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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

We make forward-looking statements in this repoat fire subject to risks and uncertainties. Theseafd-looking statements include
information about possible or assumed future resaflbur business, financial condition, liquiditgsults of operations, plans and objectives.
When we use the words “believe,” “expect,” “dicipate,” “estimate,” “plan,” “continue,” * ‘intend,” “should,” “may,” “would,” “will”’

or similar expressions, we intend to identify fordidooking statements. Statements regarding theximg subjects, among others, are forward-
looking by their nature:

our business and investment strate

our ability to maintain existing financing arrangemts and our ability to obtain future financingasgements
our ability to timely file our periodic reports withe Securities and Exchange Commission, or ¢

our expectations regarding materiality or significe;

the effectiveness of our disclosure controls amdgdures

material weaknesses in our internal controls owaricial reporting

additional information that may arise from the @negtion of our financial statemen

inadequacy of or weakness in our internal contoeks financial reporting of which we are not cuthgraware or which have not be
detected

general volatility of the securities markets in ahive invest

the impact of and changes to various governmermgrprs;

our expected investmen

changes in the value of our investme

interest rate mismatches between our investmemrts@nborrowings used to finance such purche
changes in interest rates and mortgage prepay 1aest

effects of interest rate caps on our adjus-rate investments

rates of default, delinquencies or decreased reggages on our investmen

prepayments of the mortgage and other loans unidgrbur mortgag-backed securities, or RMBS, or other a-backed securities,
ABS;

the degree to which our hedging strategies mayayr mot protect us from interest rate volatili
the potential delisting of our common stock frora tew York Stock Exchange, or NYS
impact of and changes in governmental regulatitansiaw and rates, accounting guidance, and simikgters

availability of investment opportunities in reatae-related and other securitie




e availability of qualified personne

e estimates relating to our ability to make distribng to our stockholders in the futu

e our understanding of our competitic

e market trends in our industry, interest rates,dilet securities markets or the general econt

e our ability to maintain our classification as alrestate investment trust, or REIT, for federabime tax purposes; ai

e  our ability to maintain our exemption from regisima under the Investment Company Act of 1940,rasraded, or 1940 Ac

The forward-looking statements are based on ouefsehssumptions and expectations of our futureopmance, taking into account all
information currently available to us. You shoutat place undue reliance on these forward-lookiateshents. These beliefs, assumptions and
expectations can change as a result of many pessieints or factors, not all of which are knownsoSome of these factors are described L

the caption “Risk Factors” in this 2013 Form 10-Kf a change occurs, our business, financial itmmg liquidity and results of operations may
vary materially from those expressed in our forwlawking statements. Any forward-looking statemgmaks only as of the date on which it is
made. New risks and uncertainties arise from tionéne, and it is impossible for us to predict #h@vents or how they may affect us. Except as
required by law, we are not obligated to, and doimend to, update or revise any forward-lookitegesments, whether as a result of new
information, future events or otherwise.

Special Note Regarding this Form 10-K

Unless otherwise indicated herein or as may beimedjby law, the disclosure included in this Forfaklis presented as of December 31,

2013. Accordingly, this Form 10-K does not reflelitevents occurring after December 31, 2013 (gtxae required by law, or as required by
ASC 855, Subsequent Events), and we have not @kaéerto update each and every item included inRbisn 10-K to reflect such

events. Therefore, this Form 10-K should be reazbhjunction with our filings we have previoushade with the SEC subsequent to December
31, 2013.




PART |
Iltem 1. Business
The Company

We are a specialty finance company that invediseedirectly or indirectly through our subsidiaién residential mortgageacked securities,
RMBS, residential mortgage loans, commercial mgggaans, real estate-related securities and \s@adther asset classes. We elected to be
taxed as a REIT for federal income tax purposeswencing with our taxable year ended December 317 20 herefore, we generally will not
be subject to federal income tax on our taxablerme that is distributed to our stockholders. Weewecorporated in Maryland in June 2007
and commenced operations in November 2007. Wasllistir common stock on the NYSE in November 20@teade under the symbol “CIM”

We are externally managed by Fixed Income Discéuaivisory Company, which we refer to as our ManagefIDAC. Our Manager is an
investment advisor registered with the SEC. Adddily, our Manager is a wholly-owned subsidianAohaly Capital Management, Inc., or
Annaly, a NYSE-listed REIT, which has a long traekord of managing investments in U.S. governmgahay mortgage-backed securities, or
Agency RMBS, and other real-estate related investsne

Our Manager

We are externally managed and advised by FIDAGemfincome management company, pursuant to a neamag agreement. All of our
officers are employees of our Manager or one diffitates. We believe our relationship with ddanager enables us to leverage our Manager’
well-respected and established portfolio managemesaturces for each of our targeted asset classeseautilize our Manager’s infrastructure,
including its investment professionals that focngesidential mortgage loans, Agency RMBS, thaaieranteed by the Federal National
Mortgage Association, or Fannie Mae, the Federahélboan Mortgage Corporation, or Freddie Mac, &edGovernment National Mortgage
Association, or Ginnie Mae, Non-Agency RMBS, comeaisdrmortgage loans, commercial mortgage-backedrgis, or CMBS, and

ABS. Additionally, we utilize our Manager’s finam@nd administration functions, which address aaiiog, legal, compliance, investor
relations and operational matters, including pdidfmanagement, trade allocation and executioryritées valuation, risk management and
information technologies in connection with thefpamance of its duties. Our Manager commencedadatvestment management operatior
1994.

Our Manager is responsible for administering owgifess activities and day-to-day operations. Runtsto the terms of the management
agreement, our Manager provides us with our manageteam, including our officers, along with appiafe support personnel. Our Manager
is at all times subject to the supervision and sigét of our Board of Directors and has only suatcfions and authority as we delegate to it.

Our Investment Strategy

Our objective is to provide attractive risk-adjusteturns to our investors over the long-term, prity through dividends and secondarily
through capital appreciation. We intend to achitng objective by investing in a diversified int@ent portfolio of RMBS, residential mortge
loans, real estate-related securities and varither asset classes, subject to maintaining our RE{ls and exemption from registration under
the 1940 Act. The RMBS, ABS, CMBS, and CDOs wechase may include investment-grade and non-investgrade classes, including the
BB-rated, B-rated and non-rated classes.

We rely on our Manager’s expertise in identifyirggets within our target asset classes. Our Mamagkes investment decisions based on
various factors, including expected cash yieldhtieé value, risk-adjusted returns, current angegted credit fundamentals, current and
projected macroeconomic considerations, currentpaojgcted supply and demand, credit and marklecoscentration limits, liquidity, cost of
financing and financing availability, as well asimaining our REIT qualification and our exemptimom registration under the 1940 Act.




Over time, we will modify our investment allocatistrategy as market conditions change to seek kinmee the returns from our investment
portfolio. We believe this strategy, combined witlr Manager’s experience, will enable us to pajdeinds and achieve capital appreciation
through various changing interest rate and credites and provide attractive long-term returnai@stors.

Our targeted asset classes and the principal imegsgs we have made and in which we may in the dutwrest are:

Asset Class

RMBS

Residential Mortgage Loat

Principal Investments

Non-Agency RMBS, including investme-grade and nc-investment grade classes, includ
the BE-rated, E-rated and nc-rated classe:

Agency RMBS.
Interes-only RMBS.

Prime mortgage loans, which are mortgage loansctivd#brm to the underwriting guidelin

of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, which we refer tdgesncy Guidelines; and jumbo prime
mortgage loans, which are mortgage loans that confo the Agency Guidelines except as to
loan size

Alt-A mortgage loans, which are mortgage loans that ima&g been originated usi
documentation standards that are less stringentttitadocumentation standards applied by
certain other first lien mortgage loan purchasgmms, such as the Agency Guidelines, but
have one or more compensating factors such aseviErwith a strong credit or mortgage
history or significant asset

FHA/VA insured loans, which are mortgage loans tieahply with the underwritini
guidelines of the Federal Housing Administratio”lf&) or Department of Veteran Affairs
(VA) and which are guaranteed by the FHA or VA pextively.

Mortgage servicing rights associated with residggmtiortgage loans, which reflect the va
of the future stream of expected cash flows froendbntractual rights to service a given pool
of residential mortgage loar




Commercial Mortgage Loar e First or second lien loans secured by multifamigperties, which are residential rer
properties consisting of five or more dwelling snéind mixed residential or other commer
properties; retail properties; office propertiesiralustrial properties, which may or may not
conform to the Agency Guideline

Other Asse-Backed Securitie e CMBS.
e Debt and equity tranches of CD(

e Consumer and n-consumer ABS, including investm-grade and nc-investment grad
classes, including the E-rated, E-rated and nc-rated classe:

Hedging Instrument e Swaps
e Swaptions
e Futures
e Index options
e Mortgage option:

Since we commenced operations in November 200hawe focused our investment activities on acquiNiog-Agency and Agency RMBS al
on purchasing residential mortgage loans that baea originated by select originators, including titail lending operations of leading
commercial banks. Our investment portfolio at Deler 31, 2013 was weighted toward Non-Agency RMBS.December 31, 2013, based on
the amortized cost balance of our interest earagsgts, approximately 49.8% of our investment pliotfvas Non-Agency RMBS, 36.1% of our
investment portfolio was Agency RMBS, and 14.1%wf investment portfolio was securitized residdmtiartgage loans. At December 31,
2012, based on the amortized cost balance of teneist earning assets, approximately 50.3% ofraugstment portfolio was Non-Agency
RMBS, 28.2% of our investment portfolio was Age®lyIBS, and 21.5% of our investment portfolio wasusiized residential mortgage

loans. We expect that over the near term, oursiinvent portfolio will continue to be weighted towaion-Agency RMBS, subject to
maintaining our REIT qualification and our 1940 Astemption.

Following our initial public offering we initiallyengaged in transactions with residential mortgagdihg operations of leading commercial
banks and other originators in which we identifeed re-underwrote residential mortgage loans oviayeslich entities, and purchased and
securitized such residential mortgage loans oueseln the past we have also acquired formerly Aa#&d Non-Agency RMBS and
immediately re-securitized those securities. We 8w resulting AAA-rated super senior RMBS anidireed the rated or unrated mezzanine
RMBS. More recently we have engaged in transastwith residential mortgage lending operationseafling commercial banks and other
originators in which we identified and re-underveroésidential mortgage loans owned by such entaied rather than purchasing and
securitizing such residential mortgage loans ouesglwe and the originator or another entity, achn investment bank, structured the
securitization and purchased the resulting mezeaauin subordinate Nohgency RMBS. Our investment decisions depend ongiieg market
conditions and our business opportunities at sinoh &nd we expect that these will change over titkga result, we cannot predict the
percentage of our assets that will be investedah @sset class or whether we will invest in othesses of investments. We may change our
investment strategy and policies without a votewfstockholders.




Our investment strategy is intended to take adggnéd opportunities in the current interest rate aredit environment. We expect to adjust our
strategy to changing market conditions by shiftiug asset allocations across these various asssied as interest rate and credit cycles change
over time. We believe that our strategy, combiwét FIDAC’s experience, will enable us to pay dignds and achieve capital appreciation
throughout changing market cycles. We expectke talong-term view of assets and liabilities, andreported earnings and estimates of the
fair value of our investments at the end of a feiahreporting period will not significantly impaour objective of providing attractive risk-
adjusted returns to our stockholders over the engy

We use leverage to seek to increase our poteatizins and to finance the acquisition of our assBis income is generated primarily by the
difference, or net spread, between the income weaaour assets and the cost of our borrowings. epect to finance our investments using a
variety of financing sources including, when avaliéa repurchase agreements, warehouse facilitééseguritizations. We may manage our (
and interest rate risk by utilizing interest ragglges, such as interest rate swaps, caps, optidrfsitares to reduce the effect of interest rate
fluctuations related to our financing sources.

We have elected to be taxed as a REIT and opeunateusiness to be exempt from registration undel840 Act, and therefore we are required
to invest a substantial majority of our asset®ank secured by mortgages on real estate andstatd-eelated assets. Subject to maintaining our
REIT qualification and our 1940 Act exemption, weerthbt have any limitations on the amounts we magshin any of our targeted asset clas

Investment Portfolio
The following briefly discusses the principal typ#snvestments that we have made and may in thedumake:
Residential Mortgag-Backed Securities

We have invested in and intend to continue to inWeBRMBS which are typically pass-through certfies created by the securitization of a pool
of mortgage loans that are collateralized by redidereal estate properties.

The securitization process is governed by one aerobthe rating agencies, including Fitch Ratingepdy’s Investors Service, Standard &
Poor’s, and DBRS Limited which determine the retipedond class sizes, generally based on a ségupayment structure. Bonds that are
rated from AAA to BBB by the rating agencies araesidered “investment grade.” Bond classes thasaloerdinate to the BBB class are
considered “below-investment grade” or “non-investitngrade.” The respective bond class sizes deerdimed based on the review of the
underlying collateral by the rating agencies. Ppagments received from the underlying loans ard tsenake the payments on the

RMBS. Based on the sequential payment priority risk of nonpayment for the investment grade RNWBIBwer than the risk of nonpayment
for the non-investment grade bonds. Accordindig,ihvestment grade class is typically sold atgeltoyield compared to the non-investment
grade classes which are sold at higher yields.

We invest in investment grade and non-investmeadeggRMBS. We evaluate certain credit charactesistf these types of securities, including,
but not limited to, loan balance distribution, gesqghic concentration, property type, occupancyippér and lifetime caps, weighted-average
loan-to-value and weighted-average Fair Isaac Catjpm (“FICO”) score. Qualifying securities atesh analyzed using base line expectations
of expected prepayments and loss severities, thierdwstate of the fixed-income market and broagenomy in general. Losses and
prepayments are stressed simultaneously basedrediarisk-based model. Securities in this pdidfare monitored for variance from expected
prepayments, severities, losses and cash flowdiibeliligence process is particularly important eostly with respect to newly formed
originators or issuers because there may be dittfeo information publicly available about theséitess and investments.

We may invest in net interest margin securitied\is, which are notes that are payable from amdisel by excess cash flow that is generated
by RMBS or home equity line of credit-backed setesj or HELOCSs, after paying the debt service eeges and fees on such securities. The
excess cash flow represents all or a portion esalual that is generally retained by the originafdhe RMBS or HELOCs. The residual is
illiquid, and thus the originator will monetize tpesition by securitizing the residual and isstanglM, usually in the form of a note that is
backed by the excess cash flow generated in therlyimt securitization. We may also invest in met&t-only (“I0”) Agency and Non-Agency
RMBS. These 10 RMBS represent the Company’s righeteive a specified proportion of the contrachui@rest flows of the collateral.




We may invest in mortgage pass-through certificet®sed or guaranteed by Ginnie Mae, Fannie M&geuidie Mac which are securities
representing interests in “pools” of mortgage los@sured by residential real property where paysefiboth interest and principal, plus pre-
paid principal, on the securities are made mortthlyolders of the security, in effect passing tigtomonthly payments made by the individual
borrowers on the mortgage loans that underlie ¢boarities, net of fees paid to the issuer/guaraatdrservicers of the securities. We may also
invest in collateralized mortgage obligations, &@s, issued by the Agencies. CMOs consist of mlgttlasses of securities, with each class
bearing different stated maturity dates. Monthdyments of principal, including prepayments, arg fieturned to investors holding the shortest
maturity class; investors holding the longer mayuriasses receive principal only after the filsss has been retired.

Agency RMBS are collateralized by either fixed-ratertgage loans, or FRMs, adjustable-rate mortézeyes, or ARMs, or hybrid

ARMSs. Hybrid ARMs are mortgage loans that haverest rates that are fixed for an initial periggbi¢ally three, five, seven or ten years) and
thereafter reset at regular intervals subject ter@st rate caps. Our allocation between secsidtidlateralized by FRMs, ARMs or hybrid ARI
will depend on various factors including, but riatited to, relative value, expected future prepaynteends, supply and demand, costs of
financing, costs of hedging, expected future irsterate volatility and the overall shape of the Ul&asury and interest rate swap yield
curves. We take these factors into account whemalee these types of investments.

Residential Mortgage Loan

We have invested in and may in the future invesegidential mortgage loans (mortgage loans sedwredsidential real property) primarily
through direct purchases from selected mortgaggnaiors. We may enter into additional mortgagalpurchase agreements with a number of
primary mortgage loan originators, including moggdankers, commercial banks, savings and loariaisos, home builders, credit unions
and mortgage conduits. We may also purchase ngmtigans on the secondary market. We expect tbass to be secured primarily by
residential properties in the United States.

The residential mortgage loans in which we haveipusly invested were primarily underwritten to @pecifications. The originators
performed the credit review of the borrowers, thpraisal of the properties securing the loan, anthtained other quality control

procedures. We generally considered the purchdsarms when the originators have verified the baers’ income and assets, verified their
credit history and obtained appraisals of the prtigge We or a third party performed an indepehdederwriting review of the processing,
underwriting and loan closing methodologies thatdhiginators used in qualifying a borrower fooan. Depending on the size of the loans, we
may not have reviewed all of the loans in a poot,rather selected loans for underwriting reviewdshupon specific risk-based criteria such as
property location, loan size, effective loan-touatatio, borrower’s credit score and other cidteve believe to be important indicators of credit
risk. Additionally, before the purchase of loawg, obtained representations and warranties frot edginator stating that each loan was
underwritten to our requirements or, in the evemtarwriting exceptions have been made, we wererirdd so that we may evaluate whether to
accept or reject the loans. An originator who bhes these representations and warranties in maKwan that we purchase may be obligate
repurchase the loan from us. As added securityyseed the services of a third-party document cuestoid insure the quality and accuracy of all
individual mortgage loan closing documents anddiol the documents in safekeeping. As a resulfate original loan collateral documents
that are signed by the borrower, other than thgiraal credit verification documents, were examingatified and held by the third-party
document custodian.

We may originate mortgage loans or provide othpesyof financing to the owners of real estate. cteently do not intend to establish a loan
servicing platform, but expect to retain highlyes@iservicers to service any mortgage loan portigécacquire. We have previously purchased
certain residential mortgage loans on a servicatgined basis. In the future, however, we maydgets originate mortgage loans or other types
of financing, and we may elect to service mortgages and other types of assets.

We expect that all servicers servicing any loanseguire will be highly rated by the rating agesci&Ve also conduct a due diligence review of
each servicer before executing a servicing agreentgervicing procedures would typically follow Fé@ Mae guidelines but will be specified
each servicing agreement. All servicing agreemeiitsneet standards for inclusion in highly ratedrtgage-backed or asset-backed
securitizations.




We expect that any loans we acquire will be fiest | single-family residential traditional fixedtea adjustable-rate and hybrid adjustable-rate
loans with original terms to maturity of not mohah 40 years and are either fully amortizing oriarerest-only for up to ten years, and fully
amortizing thereafter. Fixed-rate mortgage loagwr lan interest rate that is fixed for the lifdted loan. All adjustable-rate and hybrid
adjustable-rate residential mortgage loans wilk lz@einterest rate tied to an interest rate inddest loans have periodic and lifetime constraints
on how much the loan interest rate can change pp@determined interest rate reset date. Theesiteate on each adjustable-rate mortgage
loan resets monthly, semi-annually or annually gederally adjusts to a margin over a U.S. Treasutgx or London Interbank Offer Rate, or
LIBOR, index. Hybrid ARMs have a fixed rate for itial period, generally three to ten years, #meh convert to ARMs for their remaining
term to maturity.

We have in the past and may in the future acges&lential mortgage loans for our portfolio witle ihtention of either securitizing them and
retaining them in our portfolio as securitized mgage loans, or holding them in our residential genye loan portfolio. To facilitate the
securitization or financing of our loans, we magate subordinate certificates, which provide aifipdcamount of credit enhancement. We
issue securities through securities underwritedsedtier retain these securities or finance thetheérmrepurchase agreement market. There is no
limit on the amount we may retain of these belowestment-grade subordinate certificates. Untilbeeuritize our residential mortgage loans,
we expect to finance our residential mortgage |wantfolio through the use of warehouse facilitiesl @purchase agreements.

As a result of our failure to have timely financigdtements we withdrew our licenses in variouisglictions to avoid not being in good standing
under such licenses. The failure to maintain liesre our good standing in various jurisdictiony ieamporarily require us to cease certain
business strategies or modify the way in which wexate such strategies. For example, withouttéite sicenses necessary to purchase
residential mortgage loans, it was necessary foo sfructure securitization transactions in aedéht manner than we may otherwise have
chosen to do. This may, among other things, casise be unable to execute aspects of our busiviesh may have otherwise been profitable,
or we may incur additional costs related to suchin®ss operations that we otherwise would not hdVese conditions may have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial conditiod results of operations.

Commercial Mortgage Loans

We may invest in commercial mortgage loans. Gélyerge may invest in first or second lien loanswwed by multifamily properties, which ¢
residential rental properties consisting of fivenmre dwelling units, or by mixed residential onet commercial properties, retail properties,
office properties or industrial properties. Thésmns may or may not conform to the Agency guidin

Other Asset-Backed Securities

We may invest in securities issued in various CHiérimgs to gain exposure to bank loans, corpadoateds, ABS, mortgages, RMBS, CMBS,
and other instruments. To avoid any actual orgieed conflicts of interest with our Manager, amestment in any such security structured or
managed by our Manager will be approved by a ntgjofiour independent directors.

We may invest in CMBS, which are secured by, odence ownership interests in, a single commerotatgage loan or a pool of mortgage
loans secured by commercial properties. Theseaiiesumay be senior, subordinated, investmentegmcdon-investment grade. We intend to
invest in CMBS that will yield current interest otoe and where we consider the return of principdlet likely. We intend to acquire CMBS
from private originators of, or investors in, matgg loans, including savings and loan associationgigage bankers, commercial banks, fine
companies, investment banks and other entities.




Investment Guidelines

We have adopted a set of investment guidelinesstitadut the asset classes, risk tolerance ledigks;sification requirements and other criteria
used to evaluate the merits of specific investmastaell as the overall portfolio composition. Qdeinager’s investment committee
(“Investment Committee”) periodically reviews owmngpliance with the investment guidelines. Our Haso reviews our investment portfolio
and related compliance with our investment polieied procedures and investment guidelines at esphiarly scheduled board of directors
meeting.

Our board of directors and our Manager’s Investn@armittee have adopted the following guidelingsofar investments and borrowings:
e No investment shall be made that would cause taltto qualify as a REIT for federal income taxrposes
e No investment shall be made that would cause be tegulated as an investment company under the A&

e With the exception of real estate and housing, ingles industry shall represent greater than 20%hefsecurities or aggregate |
exposure in our portfolio; ar

e Investments in nc-rated or deeply subordinated ABS or other secsritimt are nc-qualifying assets for purposes of the 75% F
asset test will be limited to an amount not to ext®0% of our stockholde equity.

These investment guidelines may be changed by aerityapf our board of directors without the apprbofour stockholders.

Our board of directors has also adopted a sepseats investment guidelines and procedures torgower relationships with FIDAC. We have
also adopted detailed compliance policies to goweeiminteraction with FIDAC, including when FIDAG in receipt of material non-public
information.

Our Financing Strategy

We use leverage to increase potential returnsitstogkholders. We are not required to maintainsgrecific debt-to-equity ratio as we believe
the appropriate leverage for the particular asgetare financing depends on the credit qualityrésidof those assets. At December 31, 2013,
our ratio of debt-to-equity was 1.0:1. For purpgosécalculating this ratio, our equity is equattie Total stockholders’ equity on our
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition, @nddebt consists of repurchase agreements andtss debt. As part of our borrowing,
we have entered into a RMBS repurchase agreem#énR@ap Securities, Inc., or RCAP, which is a whaolivned subsidiary of Annaly. As of
December 31, 2013, Annaly owns approximately 4.88%ur outstanding shares of common stock. Asedddnber 31, 2013 and 2012, we had
no financing under our agreement with RCap. Te,dae have not had any counterparties to our reaseagreement borrowing arrangements
terminate any relationships as a result of ouunfaito be current in our reporting requirement$lie SEC. However, beginning in the fourth
quarter of 2011 we proactively reduced the amofibbaowings under our master repurchase agreemeéttitsespect to Agency RMBS to
ensure that we are able to meet any margin calls.

Subject to our maintaining our qualification asEI'R we may use a number of sources to financermastments, including the following:
e Repurchase Agreemen. We have financed certain of our assets throlgh use of repurchase agreements. We anticipat
repurchase agreements will be one of the sourcewilivase to achieve our desired amount of leverigeour residential real est
assets. We maintain formal relationships with ipldtcounterparties to obtain financing on favoeatgrms

e  Warehouse Facilitie. We have utilized and may in the future utilizedit facilities for capital needed to fund ouretss We intend
maintain formal relationships with multiple coungarties to maintain warehouse lines on favorablage




e  Securitization. We have acquired and may in the future acquéstdential mortgage loans for our portfolio witke tmtention ¢
securitizing them and retaining a portion of theusized mortgage loans in our portfolio. To fdate the securitization or financing
our loans, we generally create subordinate ceatdig, providing a specified amount of credit enkarent, which we intend to retair
our portfolio.

e ReREMICs.We have acquired and may in the future acquire-Agency RMBS for our portfolio with the intention of-securitizing
them and retaining a portion of the re-securitikiec-Agency RMBS in our portfolio, typically the subondite certificates. To facilite
the re-securitization, we transfer N&gency RMBS to a special purpose entity that hanlfermed as a securitization vehicle that
issue multiple classes of securities secured bypagedble from cash flows on the underlying -Agency RMBS.

Our Interest Rate Hedging and Risk Management Straggy

From time to time, we use derivative financial ingtents to hedge all or a portion of the interas# risk associated with our borrowings. Under
the federal income tax laws applicable to REITsgererally enter into certain transactions to heddebtedness that we incur, or plan to incur,
to acquire or carry real estate assets.

We may engage in a variety of interest rate managéepachniques that seek to mitigate changes éndst rates or other potential influences on
the values of our assets. The federal incomeutias applicable to REITs may require us to impleneentain of these techniques through a
taxable REIT subsidiary, or TRS, that is fully ®dijto corporate income taxation. Our intere®t nrahnagement techniques may include:

e puts and calls on securities or indices of se@s;

e  Eurodollar futures contracts and options on sugtiracts;

e interest rate caps, swaps and swapti

e U.S. Treasury securities and options on U.S. Tirgasecurities; an

e other similar transaction
We may attempt to reduce interest rate risks amiinémize exposure to interest rate fluctuationstigh the use of match funded financing
structures, when appropriate, whereby we seeh ()atch the maturities of our debt obligations wtiite maturities of our assets and (ii) to m:
the interest rates on our investments with likedidiebt (i.e., floating rate assets are financet flolating rate debt and fixed-rate assets are
financed with fixed-rate debt), directly or throutjie use of interest rate swaps, caps or othendiahinstruments, or through a combination of
these strategies. This will allow us to minimike tisk that we have to refinance our liabilitiefdre the maturities of our assets and to reduce
the impact of changing interest rates on our egmin
Compliance with REIT and Investment Company Requirenents
We monitor our investment securities and the incénoa these securities and, to the extent we entethedging transactions, we monitor
income from our hedging transactions as well, sio &nsure at all times that we maintain our gicalifon as a REIT and our exempt status
under the 1940 Act.
Employees
We are externally managed and advised by our Marpagsuant to a management agreement as discusted BAVe have no employees. All
our named executive officers are employees of camdder or one of its affiliates. Our Manager isatdigated to dedicate certain of its
employees exclusively to us, nor is it or its ergpkes obligated to dedicate any specific portioitsaime to our business. Our Manager uses the

proceeds from its management fee in part to paypemsation to its officers and employees who, nbsténding that certain of them also are
officers, receive no cash compensation directlynfics.
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Management Agreement

On November 15, 2007 we entered into a managengesg¢iment with FIDAC, which provided for an initterm through December 31, 2010
with an automatic one-year extension option angestito certain termination rights. In 2011 and @0we paid to our Manager a quarterly
management fee equal to 1.50% per annum of ous @txkholdersEquity (as defined in the management agreemeritgctive November 2!
2012, the management fee was reduced to 0.75%npamnaof gross Stockholders’ Equity, which reductigth remain in effect until we are
current on all of our filings required under applite securities laws.

We are obligated to reimburse our Manager forastsincurred under the management agreementditian, the management agreement
permits our Manager to require us to pay for itsata portion of rent, telephone, utilities, offifurniture, equipment, machinery and other
office, internal and overhead expenses that ourdganincurred in connection with our operationbege expenses are allocated between our
Manager and us based on the ratio of the propodfignoss assets compared to the gross assets ethlmagur Manager as calculated at each
quarter end. Together we will modify this allocatimethodology, subject to the approval of our badrdirectors if the allocation becomes
inequitable (i.e., if we become very highly levesdgompared to our Manager’s other funds and ad¢spun

March 2013 Amendment to Management Agree

Because of the Restatement Filing, on March 8, 264 amended the management agreement. In the ameahdve memorialized the reduct

in the management fee effective on November 282 28dditionally, our Manager agreed to pay all masd future expenses that we and/or our
Audit Committee incur to: (1) evaluate our accongtpolicy related to the application of GAAP to dwn-Agency RMBS portfolio (the
Evaluation); (2) restate our financial statemeatslie period covering 2008 through 2011 as a redthe Evaluation (the Restatement Filing);
and (3) investigate and evaluate any shareholderati#e demands arising from the Evaluation antiierRestatement Filing (the Investigatic
provided, however, that our Manager’s obligatiopay expenses applies only to expenses not paidibinsurers under our insurance policies.
Expenses shall include, without limitation, feed ansts incurred with respect to auditors, outsimensel, and consultants engaged by us and/or
our Audit Committee for the Evaluation, Restatentdlihg and the Investigation.

The amended management agreement is automatieayved for a one-year term on each anniversary a#teugh two-thirds of the
Independent directors or the holders of a majaritthe outstanding shares of common stock (other those held by Annaly or its affiliates)
may elect to terminate the management agreement2(pdays notice at any time in their sole disoretwithout the payment of a termination
fee. Additionally, we may terminate the managenagmeement effective immediately if (i) our Managagages in any act of fraud,
misappropriation of funds, or embezzlement agdfresus, (i) there is an event of any gross negltigeon the part of our Manager in the
performance of its duties under the managementeagget, (iii) there is a commencement of any procegetlating to our Manager’s
bankruptcy or insolvency, (iv) there is a dissantof our Manager, or (v) our Manager is conviaé@ncluding a plea of nolo contendere) a
felony.

Fees Paid Under the Management Agreer

For the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 arid 804 Manager earned management fees of $26.@mi$49.5 million and $52.0 million,
respectively and received expense reimburseme$d@8 thousand, $447 thousand and $625 thousamectesely. From our inception through
2009, our Manager waived its right to require updg our pro rata portion of rent, telephone, tigti, office furniture, equipment, machinery i
other office, internal and overhead expenses oMamager and its affiliates required for our opiersd.

Competition

Our net income depends, in large part, on ourtglidi acquire assets at favorable spreads oveb@uowing costs. In acquiring real estate-
related assets, we will compete with other mortgageéTs, specialty finance companies, savings aad &ssociations, banks, mortgage bankers,
insurance companies, mutual funds, institutionaégtors, investment banking firms, financial ingtans, hedge funds, governmental bodies
(including the U.S. Federal Reserve) and othetiesti In addition, there are numerous mortgagelRlith similar asset acquisition objectives,
and others that may be organized in the futures@tother REITs will increase competition for thaitable supply of mortgage assets suitable
for purchase. Many of our competitors are signiftbalarger than we are, have access to greatéatapd other resources and may have other
advantages over us. In addition, some of our ctitopgmay have higher risk tolerances or differésk assessments, which could allow the
consider a wider variety of investments and esthbiiore favorable relationships than we can. Ctumamket conditions may attract more
competitors, which may increase the competitiorstarrces of financing. An increase in the comipetitor sources of funding could adversely
affect the availability and cost of financing, ahéreby adversely affect the market price of ouniemn stock.
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Distributions

To maintain our qualification as a REIT, we mustidbute substantially all of our REIT taxable inm®to our stockholders for each year, anc
intend to distribute all such taxable income tasfatsuch requirement. We have declared and gajdlar quarterly dividends in the past and
intend to do so in the future. The Board of Dicestdeclared and paid common stock cash divideh#i8.69 per common share for each of the
quarters of 2013.

The Board of Directors also declared and paid aispdividend of $0.20 per share that was paidanudry 31, 2014 to shareholders of recor
January 8, 2014 and a quarterly dividend of $0€9cpmmon share for the first quarter of 2014. Bbard of Directors has also determined
there will be a quarterly dividend of $0.09 perrehi@r the second, third and fourth quarters of2201

Available Information

Our investor relations website is www.chimerareitnic We make available on the website under "lrord3telations/SEC filings," free of char
our annual report on Form 10-K, our quarterly répon Form 10-Q, our current reports on Form 8- any other reports (including any
amendments to such reports) as soon as reasomabticpble after we electronically file or furnishch materials to the SEC. Information on
website, however, is not part of this Annual Reporf-orm 10-K. All reports filed with the SEC malgo be read and copied at the SEMiblic
reference room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washingto@, R0549. Further information regarding the operadf the public reference room may be
obtained by calling 1-800-SEC-0330. In additidhpour filed reports can be obtained at the SE®@ébsite at www.sec.gov.

12




Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

You should carefully consider the following factdogyether with all the other information includedthis 2013 Form 10-K, in evaluating our
company and our business. If any of the followigks actually occur, our business, financial cdiwti and results of operations could be
materially and adversely affected, and the valuewfstock could decline. Additional risks and emainties not presently known to us or that
we currently deem immaterial also may impair ousibess operations. As such, you should not configelist to be a complete statement of
all potential risks or uncertainties.

Risks Associated With Adverse Developments in the dtgage Finance and Credit Markets

Difficult conditions in the financial markets and the economy generally have caused us and may continto cause us market value losses
related to our holdings.

Our results of operations are materially affecteddnditions in the mortgage market, the finanmakkets and the economy generally. Conc
over monetary policy, inflation, energy costs, gdiigal issues, the availability and cost of ctetlie mortgage market and the real estate m
may contribute to increased volatility and dimir@dhexpectations for the economy and markets gairvgaird.

A substantial portion of our assets are classifieéccounting purposes as “available-for-sale” eadied at fair value. Changes in the fair
values of those assets are directly charged oiteceth Other comprehensive income (loss), or @Gla result, a decline in values may reduce
the book value of our assets. Moreover, if theidedh value of an available-for-sale securitytises-than-temporary, such decline will reduce
earnings.

All of our repurchase agreements and interestswatgp agreements are subject to bilateral margis icathe event that the collateral securing
obligations under those facilities exceeds or dusneet our collateralization requirements. We mawvide no assurances that we can find
funding which may result in us having to disposasdets at an inopportune time when prices aresiegl.

We rely on the availability of financing to acquiesidential mortgage loans, real estate-relatedrigies and real estate loans on a leveraged
basis. Institutions from which we will seek to ahtéinancing may own or finance residential mortgdoans, real estate-related securities and
real estate loans, which may decline in value ande them to suffer losses based on conditioreinesidential mortgage market. This may
cause lenders and institutional investors to reduaease to provide funding to borrowers, inclgdather financial institutions. Under these
conditions, it may be more difficult for us to olotdinancing on favorable terms or at all. Our jadfility may be adversely affected if we are
unable to obtain cost-effective financing for auvéstments.

Mortgage loan modification programs, future legisldive action and changes in the requirements necesgdo qualify for refinancing a
mortgage may adversely affect the value of, and threturns on, the assets in which we invest.

The U.S. Government, through the Federal HousingiiAtstration, or FHA, and the Federal Deposit lasiwe Corporate, or FDIC, has
implemented programs designed to provide homeownsighsassistance in avoiding residential mortgaglforeclosures including the Hope
Homeowners Act of 2008, which allows certain dissesd borrowers to refinance their mortgages intd#tdured loans and the Home
Affordable Modification Program, or HAMP, which prides a detailed, uniform model for otime modification of eligible residential mortga
loans. The programs may also involve, among dtiiegs, the modification of mortgage loans to resthe principal amount of the loans or the
rate of interest payable on the loans, or to exteagayment terms of the loans. These loan ricadibn programs, including future legislative
or regulatory actions and amendments to the batdydgws, that result in the modification of outsiing mortgage loans, as well as changes in
the requirements necessary to qualify for refinage mortgage may affect the value of, and themstan, our Non-Agency RMBS and Agency
RMBS. Depending on whether or not we purchasddstrument at a premium or discount, the yield e@eive may be positively or negatively
impacted by any modification.
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The U.S. Government's efforts to encourage refinariieg of certain loans may affect prepayment rates fomortgage loans in mortgage-
backed securities.

In addition to the increased pressure upon resalenbrtgage loan investors and servicers to engalgss mitigation activities, the U.S.
Government is pressing for refinancing of certaisnis, and this encouragement may affect prepayratas for mortgage loans in mortgage-
backed securities.

To the extent these and other economic stabilizaticstimulus efforts are successful in increagirepayment speeds for residential mortgage
loans, such as those in mortgage-backed secuthiscould potentially have a negative impact oninocome and operating results, particularly
in connection with loans or mortgage-backed sdesrigurchased at a premium or our interest-onlyriees.

Any further downgrade, or perceived potential of adowngrade, of U.S. sovereign credit ratings by thearious credit rating agencies may
have a materially adverse effect on our business.

During the summer of 2011, S&P downgraded the Bo8ereign credit rating in response to the protdebate over the U.S. debt ceiling limit
and S&P'’s perception of the U.S. Government’s ghit address its long-term budget deficit. Initidd, the credit rating of government
sponsored enterprises, or GSEs, was also downglad8é&P in response to the downgrade in the U.@ersign credit rating, as the value of the
Agency MBS issued by such GSEs and their abilithéeet their obligations under such Agency MBS ipawted by the support provided to
them by the U.S. Government and market perceptbtize strength of such support and the likelihobids continuity. Additionally, in October
2013 a second protracted debate over the U.Scddinty occurred along with a shutdown of the UeSleral government. To the extent that the
credit rating of any or all of the GSEs were tadogngraded by other credit rating agencies or &rttowngraded by S&P, the value of our
Agency MBS could be negatively impacted. In additiowe could be negatively affected in a number ajsvin the event of a default by the U.S.
Government or a downgrade of the U.S. sovereigtitarating by other credit rating agencies or dHar downgrade by S&P. Such negative
impacts could include changes in the financing seofmour repurchase agreements collateralized enégMBS, which could include higher
financing costs and/or a reduction in the amoutiiin@icing provided based on the market value dataral posted under these agreements.
These outcomes could in turn materially advers#gcaour operations and financial condition inuarnber of ways, including a reduction in the
net interest spread between our assets and assbrgurchase agreement borrowings or by decreasmapility to obtain repurchase
agreement financing on acceptable terms, or at all.

The conservatorship of Fannie Mae and Freddie Madheir reliance upon the U.S. Government for solveng and related efforts that may
significantly affect Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac andheir relationship with the U.S. Government, may dversely affect our business,
operations and financial condition.

Due to increased market concerns about Fannie k& eddie Mac's ability to withstand future creldses associated with securities held in
their investment portfolios and on which they pd®/guarantees, without the direct support of tt& Government, Congress passed the
Housing and Economic Recovery Act of 2008, or tiiERA. Among other things, the HERA establishedRideral Housing Finance Agency,
or FHFA, which has broad regulatory powers ovenf@iMae and Freddie Mac. On September 6, 2008 ##€A placed Fannie Mae and
Freddie Mac into conservatorship and, together tighTreasury, established a program designeddst liovestor confidence in Fannie Mae’s
and Freddie Mac’s debt and mortgage-backed sezsiriths the conservator of Fannie Mae and Freddie, fhe FHFA controls and directs their
operations and may (1) take over the assets obperhte Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac with all thegrewf their shareholders, directors and
officers of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac and condlidiusiness of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac; (dgcbhll obligations and money due to
Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac; (3) perform all funtdiof Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac which are congistih the conservator’'s appointment;
(4) preserve and conserve the assets and progdrgnaie Mae and Freddie Mac; and (5) contractésistance in fulfilling any function,
activity, action or duty of the conservator.

The problems faced by Fannie Mae and Freddie Madtieg in their placement into federal conservsiigqy and receipt of significant U.S.
Government support have sparked debate among sateraf policy makers regarding the continued rbth® U.S. Government in providing
liguidity for mortgage loans and mortgage-backemigges. With Fannie Mae’s and Freddie Mac's fatunder debate, the nature of their
guarantee obligations could be considerably limidtive to historical measurements. Any changébe nature of their guarantee obligations
could redefine what constitutes a mortgégeked security and could have broad adverse iatgits for the market and our business, opera
and financial condition. If Fannie Mae or Fredilac are eliminated, or their structures changecedlyi (i.e., limitation or removal of the
guarantee obligation), we may be unable to acq\gency RMBS.
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Although the Treasury previously committed capiteFannie Mae and Freddie Mac through 2012, atldemeport issued on February 11, 2011
by the U.S. Department of Treasury titled “Reforgnamerica’s Housing Finance Market” committed toyiding sufficient capital to enable
Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac to meet their curredtfaiure guarantee obligations, there can be narassse that these actions will be adequate
for their needs. If these actions are inadequatenie Mae and Freddie Mac could continue to suffeses and could fail to honor their
guarantees and other obligations. Furthermoresuhent credit support provided by the Treasurlfaanie Mae and Freddie Mac, and any
additional credit support it may provide in theufiet, could have the effect of lowering the interasts we expect to receive from RMBS, and
tightening the spread between the interest we @asur RMBS and the cost of financing those assets.

Future policies that change the relationship betwesnnie Mae and Freddie Mac and the U.S. Govertimetuding those that result in their
winding down, nationalization, privatization, oimaination, may create market uncertainty and haeeeffect of reducing the actual or perceived
credit quality of securities issued or guarantegédnnie Mae or Freddie Mac. As a result, sucicigal could increase the risk of loss on
investments in mortgage-backed securities guardig&annie Mae and/or Freddie Mac. It also isjids that such policies could adversely
impact the market for such securities and otheuritées types and spreads at which they trade.ofithe foregoing could materially and
adversely affect our business, operations and diahnondition.

We have exposure to European financial counterparnsis.

A significant portion of our Agency RMBS are finattwith repurchase agreements. We secure our biogswnder these agreements by
pledging our Agency RMBS as collateral to the lendée collateral we pledge exceeds the amourteobbrrowings under each agreement,
typically with the extent of over collateralizatibeing at least 5% of the amount borrowed. If thenterparty to the repurchase agreement
defaults on its obligations and we are not abletwver our pledged assets, we are at risk ofdabia overeollateralized amount. The amoun
this exposure is the difference between the amioanid to us plus interest due to the countergartythe fair value of the collateral pledged by
us to the lender including accrued interest red#éan such collateral.

We also use interest rate swaps to manage ouesttete risks. Under these swap agreements, wWggAgency RMBS as collateral as part ¢
margin arrangement for interest rate swaps thahaaa unrealized loss position. If a counterparére to default on its obligation, we would be
exposed to a loss to a swap counterparty to thenettiat the amount of our Agency RMBS pledged eded the unrealized loss on the
associated swaps and we were not able to recovexttess collateral.

Over the past several years, several large Eurdpearcial institutions have experienced finandificulty and have been either rescued by
government assistance or by other large Europeaksha institutions. Some of these

financial institutions or their U.S. subsidiariesvk provided us financing under repurchase agresmnenve haventered into interest rate swi
with such institutions. We have entered into repase agreements and/or interest rate swaps witmancial institution counterparties that are
either domiciled in Europe or a U.S.-based subsiddéa European domiciled financial institutiohid possible that European credit crisis may
impact the operations of the U.S. subsidiariesBfieopean domiciled financial institution. Our firdngs and operations could be adversely
affected by such events.

We have received financing from a wholly-owned sulidiary of Annaly, which is a significant shareholde of ours and which owns our
Manager.

Our ability to fund our investments on a leverabadis depends to a large extent upon our abiligetare warehouse, repurchase and/or credit
financing on acceptable terms. The current stateeoNon-Agency mortgage sector has made it difffou us to obtain short-term financing on
favorable terms. As a result, we have completed s@aruritizations in order to obtain long-term fingng and terminated our un-utilized whole
loan repurchase agreements in order to avoid payangusage fees under those agreements. In addibormencing in 2009, we entered into a
RMBS repurchase agreement with RCap, a wholly-ovaugidiary of Annaly. Annaly owns approximatel@&% of our outstanding shares of
common stock as of December 31, 2013. This agrelecoatains customary representations, warrantidcamenants contained in such
agreements including RCap having the right to mmakegin calls if the value of our RMBS collateratigithe agreement falls. As of December
31, 2013 and 2012, we had no amounts outstandidgr uhis agreement. We cannot assure you that Riggrovide us with financing in the
future. If RCap does not provide us with financatg time we are unable to obtain other finanoivgycould be forced to sell our assets at an
inopportune time when prices are depressed.
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Risks Associated With Our Management and Relationsh With Our Manager
We are dependent on our Manager and its key persomhfor our success.

We have no separate facilities and are complegdignt on our Manager. We have no employees. Qecidive officers are employees of our
Manager, which has significant discretion as toitmglementation of our investment and operatindces and strategies. Accordingly, we
depend on the diligence, skill and network of besicontacts of the senior management of our Man&y& Manager’s employees evaluate,
negotiate, structure, close and monitor our invests] therefore, our success will depend on tlaiticued service. The departure of any of the
senior managers of our Manager could have a mbhsehe@rse effect on our performance. In additiea,can offer no assurance that our
Manager will remain our investment manager or @natvill continue to have access to our Managensmenanagers. If the management
agreement is terminated and no suitable replaceimémind to manage us, we may not be able to éeexir business plan. Moreover, our
Manager is not obligated to dedicate certain oéfitpployees exclusively to us nor is it obligatedédicate any specific portion of its time to our
business, and none of our Manager's employeesoateactually dedicated to us under our managenwgeeaent with our Manager. The only
employees of our Manager who are primarily dedatébeour operations are Matthew Lambiase, our Beesiand Chief Executive Officer,
Robert Colligan, our Chief Financial Officer andc8sary, Mohit Marria, our Chief Investment Officand William B. Dyer, our Head of
Underwriting.

There are conflicts of interest in our relationshipwith our Manager and Annaly, which could result indecisions that are not in the best
interests of our stockholders.

We are subject to conflicts of interest arising aubur relationship with Annaly and our Managepe&ifically, each of our officers also serve:
an employee of our Manager or its affiliates. Assult, our Manager and our officers may have aasfbetween their duties to us and their
duties to, and interests in, Annaly or our Manager.

There may also be conflicts in allocating investteamhich are suitable both for us and Annaly. Apmaay compete with us with respec
certain investments which we may want to acquing, @ a result we may either not be presentedthéttopportunity or have to compete v
Annaly to acquire these investments. Our Managet our officers may choose to allocate favorahlestments to Annaly instead of
us. The ability of our Manager and its officerala@mployees to engage in other business activitgs reduce the time our Manager spi
managing us. Further, during turbulent conditiongshe mortgage industry, distress in the credirkats or other times when we will ni
focused support and assistance from our Manageraliwill likewise require greater focus and atient placing our Manages’resources
high demand. In such situations, we may not wec#ie necessary support and assistance we remuiweuld otherwise receive if we wi
internally managed. There is no assurance tlematlocation policy that addresses some of thelictfrelating to our investments will
adequate to address all of the conflicts that négealn addition, we have entered into a repwehagreement with RCap, our Manager’
affiliate, to finance our RMBS. This financing angement may give rise to further conflicts becd&&ap may be a creditor of ours. As on
our creditors, RCap’s interests may diverge fromitterests of our stockholders.
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We pay our Manager substantial management feesdiegs of the performance of our portfolio. Ouardger’s entitlement to substantial
nonperformance-based compensation might reduggcigéstive to devote its time and effort to seekimgestments that provide attractive risk-
adjusted returns for our portfolio. This in twould have a negative impact on both our abilitynetke distributions to our stockholders and the
market price of our common stock. As of Decemtgr2®13, Annaly owns approximately 4.38% of ourstariding shares of common stock
which entitles them to receive quarterly distribag. In evaluating investments and other managestettegies, this may lead our Manager to
place emphasis on the maximization of revenudsea¢xpense of other criteria, such as preservafioapital. Investments with higher yield
potential are generally riskier or more speculatiMas could result in increased risk to the vaifieur invested portfolio. Annaly may sell their
shares in us at any time. To the extent Annalg seime of its shares, its interests may be légsetd with our interests.

The management agreement with our Manager was notegotiated on an arm’s-length basis and may not besdavorable to us as if it had
been negotiated with an unaffiliated third party ard may be difficult to terminate.

Our President and Chief Executive Officer, Chiefdficial Officer and Secretary, Chief Investmenic@ff and Head of Underwriting also serve
as employees of our Manager. Our management agréemth our Manager was negotiated between reladetles, and its terms, including f
payable, may not be as favorable to us as if ithesh negotiated with an unaffiliated third pafithough our management agreement has been
amended, termination of the management agreemenbendifficult.

Our board of directors approved very broad investmat guidelines for our Manager and will not approveeach investment decision made
by our Manager.

Our Manager is authorized to follow very broad stweent guidelines. Our board of directors pedallly reviews our investment guidelines
our investment portfolio, but does not, and isneguired to review all of our proposed investmemtany type or category of investment, except
that an investment in a security structured or rgaddy our Manager must be approved by a majofipuoindependent directors. In addition,
in conducting periodic reviews, our board of diogstrelies primarily on information provided to théy our Manager. Furthermore, our
Manager uses complex strategies, and transactitesed into by our Manager may be difficult or irspible to unwind by the time they are
reviewed by our board of directors. Our Manages fyreat latitude within the broad investment dinds in determining the types of assets it
may decide are proper investments for us, whichdo@sult in investment returns that are substiytigelow expectations or that result in los
which would materially and adversely affect ouribass operations and results.

We may change our investment strategy, asset alld@an, or financing plans without stockholder conset which may result in riskier
investments.

We may change our investment strategy, asset bocar financing plans at any time without thesent of our stockholders, which could
result in our making investments that are diffeffemtn, and possibly riskier than, the investmermsatibed in this 2013 Form X- A change i
our investment strategy or financing plans mayease our exposure to interest rate and defaularidkeal estate market fluctuations.
Furthermore, a change in our asset allocation caddlt in our making investments in asset categatifferent from those described in this 2
Form 10-K. These changes could adversely affeatrtduéket price of our common stock and our abilityrtake distributions to our stockholders.

While investments in investment vehicles managedusnManager require approval by a majority of imglependent directors, our Manager has
an incentive to invest our funds in investment glefs managed by our Manager because of the pagsdfigenerating an additional incremer
management fee, which may reduce other investnpgartunities available to us. In addition, we aatressure you that investments in
investment vehicles managed by our Manager wiN@idoeneficial to us.

Our investment focus is different from those of otkr entities that have been managed by our Manager.
Our investment focus is different from those ofestantities that have been managed by our ManAgeordingly, our Manager’s historical
returns are not indicative of its performance for mvestment strategy and we can offer no assartivat our Manager will replicate the

historical performance of the Manageinvestment professionals in their previous endesayOur investment returns could be substantialbyer
than the returns achieved by our Manager’s investipefessionals’ previous endeavors.
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We compete with Annaly for access to our Manager'eesources and investment opportunities.

Some of our Manager's personnel are also emplaye&analy and in that capacity are involved in Alysinvestment process. Accordingly,
we will compete with Annaly for our Manager’s resoes. Annaly has an investment focus that overhdfisours, which could result in us
competing for access to the benefits that we exmarctelationship with our Manager will provideus.

Risks Related To Our Business

Our reported GAAP financial results differ from the taxable income results that impact our dividend ditribution requirements and,
therefore, our GAAP results may not be an accuratédicator of future taxable income and dividend digributions.

Generally, the cumulative net income we report dlierlife of an asset will be the same for GAAP gmdpurposes, although the timing of this
income recognition over the life of the asset cdiddnaterially different. Differences exist in #iecounting for GAAP net income and REIT
taxable income which can lead to significant vazemin the amount and timing of when income ansesire recognized under these two
measures. Due to these differences, our reporfgdPGinancial results could materially differ froour determination of taxable income results,
which impacts our dividend distribution requirenrgrand, therefore, our GAAP results may not becanrate indicator of future taxable income
and dividend distributions.

We may generate taxable income in excess of our GRAncome on Non-Agency RMBS purchased at a discoutd par value, which may
result in significant timing variances in the recogition of income and losses.

We have acquired and intend to continue to acduire-Agency RMBS at prices that reflect significamarket discounts on their unpaid

principal balances. For financial statement repgrpiurposes, we generally establish a portionisfrttarket discount as a Non-Accretable
Difference. This credit reserve is generally natrated into income for financial statement repgrinirposes. For tax purposes, however, we are
not permitted to anticipate, or establish a reséwecredit losses prior to their occurrence. Assult, the entire market discount is accreteal int
income in determining taxable income during perimdahich no actual losses are incurred. Lossegulserecognized for tax purposes when
incurred (thus lowering taxable income in periadsvhich losses are incurred). These differences@ounting for tax and GAAP can lead to
significant timing variances in the recognitionimfome and losses. Taxable income on Non-Agency Rldrchased at a discount to their par
value may be higher than GAAP earnings in earlyoplsr(before losses are actually incurred). Becaugsdistribute dividends to our
stockholders based on our taxable income, our einddlistributions could exceed our GAAP incomearigads during which our taxable income
exceeds our GAAP income on Non-Agency RMBS purathaseliscount to par value.

Failure to procure adequate capital and funding orfavorable terms, or at all, would adversely affecbur results and may, in turn,
negatively affect the market price of shares of oucommon stock and our ability to distribute dividerds to our stockholders.

We depend upon the availability of adequate funding capital for our operations. We intend toriiteour assets over the long-term through a
variety of means, including repurchase agreemeresdlit facilities and securitizations. Our acdessapital depends upon a number of factors
over which we have little or no control, including:

general market condition

the marke’s perception of our growth potenti

our current and potential future earnings and désthibutions;
the market price of the shares of our capital staok

the marke's view of the quality of our asse
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We have used and may in the future use a numkmru€es to finance our investments, including refpase agreements, warehouse facilities
and securitizations. Current market conditions teffected the cost and availability of financingrfr each of these sources — and their
individual providers —to different degrees; some are available but agla¢ost, and some are largely unaffected. For @i@nn the repurchas
agreement market, borrowers have been affecteeteiffly depending on the type of security theyfimancing. Non-Agency RMBS have been
harder or more expensive to finance, dependindnernype of assets collateralizing the RMBS.

The impairment of financial institutions could négely affect us. If one or more major market papants fail or otherwise experience a major
liquidity crisis, it could adversely affect the rkatability of all fixed income securities and tkisuld negatively impact the value of the securities
we acquire, thus reducing our net book value.

Furthermore, if any of our lenders or any of outepdial lenders are unwilling or unable to provigewith financing, we could be forced to sell
our securities or residential mortgage loans ahapportune time when prices are depressed.

Our business, results of operations and financiatltion may be materially adversely affected ksraptions in the financial markets. We
cannot assure you, under such extreme conditibasthiese markets will remain an efficient sourcliog-term financing for our assets. If our
strategy is not viable, we will have to find altatime forms of financing for our assets, which may be available. Further, as a REIT, we are
required to distribute annually at least 90% of R&IT taxable income (subject to certain adjustsietat our stockholders and are, therefore, not
able to retain significant amounts of our earniftysew investments. We cannot assure you that@rsufficient, funding or capital will be
available to us in the future on terms that areptable to us. If we cannot obtain sufficient fumgdon acceptable terms, there may be a neg
impact on the market price of our common stock @mdability to make distributions to our stockhalsle Moreover, our ability to grow will be
dependent on our ability to procure additional fagd To the extent we are not able to raise aoitfii funds through the issuance of additional
equity or borrowings, our growth will be constraine

We operate in a highly competitive market for invesment opportunities and more established competite may be able to compete more
effectively for investment opportunities than we ca.

A number of entities compete with us to make theesyof investments that we plan to make. We compigteother REITS, public and private
funds, commercial and investment banks and comaldicance companies. Many of our competitors atestantially larger and have
considerably greater financial, technical and miamigeresources than we do. Several other REITs haiged, or are expected to raise, signifi
amounts of capital, and may have investment objestihat overlap with ours, which may create coitipetfor investment opportunities. Some
competitors may have a lower cost of funds andsscteefunding sources that are not available ténusddition, some of our competitors may
have higher risk tolerances or different risk asseshts, which could allow them to consider a wiggiety of investments and establish more
favorable relationships than us. We cannot assauehat the competitive pressures we face willhate a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of openat Also, as a result of this competition, we maybe able to take advantage of attractive
investment opportunities from time to time, andaae offer no assurance that we will be able totileand make investments that are
consistent with our investment objectives.

Loss of our 1940 Act exemption would adversely affe us and negatively affect the market price of shas of our common stock and our
ability to distribute dividends and could result in the termination of the management agreement withwr Manager.

We conduct our operations so that neither we ngrodrour subsidiaries are required to registerragmaestment company under the 1940
Because we are a holding company that will con@tadbusinesses primarily through whotlyvned subsidiaries, the securities issued by
subsidiaries that are excepted from the definitibfinvestment companytinder Section 3(c)(1) or Section 3(c)(7) of the@94t, together wit
any other investment securities we may own, mayhaoe a combined value in excess of 40% of theevafuour adjusted total assets or
unconsolidated basis. This requirement limits {fie$ of businesses in which we may engage througbubsidiaries. In addition, the asset:
and our subsidiaries may acquire are limited byptie¥isions of the 1940 Act, the rules and regatadipromulgated under the 1940 Act and
staff interpretative guidance, which may adverséfgct our performance.
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If the value of securities issued by our subsidmthat are excepted from the definition of “inwemht company” by Section 3(c)(1) or 3(c)(7) of
the 1940 Act, together with any other investmentsées we own, exceeds 40% of our adjusted ttaéts on an unconsolidated basis, or if one
or more of such subsidiaries fail to maintain acegtion or exemption from the 1940 Act, we couldpag other things, be required either (a) to
substantially change the manner in which we conducbperations to avoid being required to regiatean investment company or (b) to
register as an investment company under the 1940eber of which could have an adverse effecti®iand the market price of our securitie

we were required to register as an investment cagnpader the 1940 Act, we would become subjectbstntial regulation with respect to our
capital structure (including our ability to usedeage), management, operations, transactions ffitibtad persons (as defined in the 1940 Act),
portfolio composition, including restrictions withspect to diversification and industry concentrgtend other matters.

Certain of our subsidiaries rely on the exemptimm registration provided by Section 3(c)(5)(C}tué 1940 Act. Section 3(c)(5)(C) as
interpreted by the staff of the SEC, requires usvest at least 55% of our assets in “mortgagesodiner liens on and interest in real estate” (or
Qualifying Real Estate Assets) and at least 80#uofassets in Qualifying Real Estate Assets plakastate related assets. The assets that we
acquire, therefore, are limited by the provisiohthe 1940 Act and the rules and regulations proameld under the 1940 Act. On August 31,
2011, the SEC issued a concept release titled “@aimp Engaged in the Business of Acquiring Mortgagel Mortgage-Related

Instruments” (SEC Release No. IC-29778). Underctreept release, the SEC is reviewing interprasisees related to the Section 3(c)(5)(C)
exemption. The potential outcomes of the SECtimas are unclear as is the SEC’s timetable fareitdew and actions. If the SEC determines
that any of our securities are not Qualifying Restlate Assets or real estate related assets anigheelieves we do not satisfy the exemption
under Section 3(c)(5)(C), we could be requiredesdructure our activities or sell certain of ousets. The net effect of these factors will be to
lower our net interest income. If we fail to qfalior exemption from registration as an investmesrpany, our ability to use leverage would
be substantially reduced, and we would not be @bd@nduct our business as described. Our busimi#dse materially and adversely affectec
we fail to qualify for this exemption.

Certain of our subsidiaries may rely on the exeampfirovided by Section 3(c)(6) which excludes fritha definition of “investment company”
any company primarily engaged, directly or throaggjority-owned subsidiaries, in a business, amdhgrs, described in Section 3(c)(5)(C) of
the 1940 Act (from which not less than 25% of scompany’s gross income during its last fiscal weas derived) together with an additional
business or additional businesses other than ingeseinvesting, owning, holding or trading in sgties. The SEC staff has issued little
interpretive guidance with respect to Section &jcahd any guidance published by the staff couldire us to adjust our strategy accordingly.

We expect certain of our subsidiaries we may farrthe future to rely on Section 3(c)(7) for theddD Act exemption and, therefore our inte
in each of these subsidiaries would constituteimve’Stment security” for purposes of determiningetler we pass the 40% test.

We may in the future, however, organize one or nsufesidiaries that seek to rely on the 1940 Actrgpt®on provided to certain structul
financing vehicles by Rule 3a-7. If we organizésdiaries that rely on Rule JFafor an exemption from the 1940 Act, these subsiel wil
also need to comply with the restrictions describetBusiness—Operating and Regulatory Structure4@l8ct Exemption.”In general, Rul
3a-7 exempts from the 1940 Act issuers that lilgirtactivities as follows:

e the issuer issues securities the payment of whigtends primarily on the cash flow frc“eligible asse” that by their terms conw
into cash within a finite time perio

e the securities sold are fixed income securitiesdatvestment grade by at least one rating ageir@d(income securities which ¢

unrated or rated below investment grade may be teoidstitutional accredited investors and any séies may be sold todualifiec
institutional buyer” and to persons involved in the organization or api@n of the issuer

20




e the issuer acquires and disposes of eligible agsptmly in accordance with the agreements putstieawhich the securities are isst
(2) so that the acquisition or disposition doesrestlt in a downgrading of the issugefixed income securities and (3) the eligible ts
are not acquired or disposed of for the primaryppse of recognizing gains or decreasing lossedtiresirom market value chang
and

e unless the issuer is issuing only commercial patperjssuer appoints an independent trustee, t@esonable steps to transfer to
trustee an ownership or perfected security intdéretiie eligible assets, and meets rating agengyinements for commingling of ce
flows.

Any subsidiary also would need to be structurecdoimply with any guidance that may be issued byDivésion of Investment Management of
the SEC on how the subsidiary must be organizediaply with the restrictions contained in Rule 3&E@mpliance with Rule 3a-7 may require
that the indenture governing the subsidiary incladditional limitations on the types of assetsdhlesidiary may sell or acquire out of the
proceeds of assets that mature, are refinancetherdse sold, on the period of time during whidlklstransactions may occur, and on the
amount of transactions that may occur. In lighthef requirements of Rule 3a-7, our ability to managsets held in a special purpose subsidiary
that complies with Rule 3a-7 will be limited and may not be able to purchase or sell assets own#thbsubsidiary when we would otherwise
desire to do so, which could lead to losses. Weeatiy limit the aggregate value of our interest®ir subsidiaries that may in the future seek to
rely on Rule 3a-7 to 20% or less of our total assetan unconsolidated basis, as we continue tosiswvith the SEC staff the use of subsidiaries
that rely on Rule 3a-7 to finance our operations.

The determination of whether an entity is a majeoitvned subsidiary of our company is made by uge T840 Act defines a majoritywnec
subsidiary of a person as a company of which 50%hare of the outstanding voting securities are aumgsuch person, or by another comg
which is a majorityswned subsidiary of such person. The 1940 Act &srttefines voting securities as any security prdsentitling the owne
or holder thereof to vote for the election of dices of a company. We treat companies in which wa at least a majority of the outstanc
voting securities as majoritywned subsidiaries for purposes of the 40% testh@le not requested the SEC to approve our treatofieany
company as a majoritgwned subsidiary and the SEC has not done soe IBEC were to disagree with our treatment of onaane companie
as majorityewned subsidiaries, we would need to adjust oategyly and our assets in order to continue to @s40% test. Any such adjustm
in our strategy could have a material adverse effeas.

There can be no assurance that the laws and regaagoverning the 1940 Act status of REITs, inolgdthe Division of Investme
Management of the SEC providing more specific fietknt guidance regarding these exemptions, vatl ghange in a manner that adver
affects our operations. If we or our subsidiaristh maintain an exception or exemption from #1940 Act, we could, among other things
required either to (a) change the manner in whiehcanduct our operations to avoid being requiretegister as an investment company
effect sales of our assets in a manner that, artimie when, we would not otherwise choose to dms¢c) register as an investment comp
any of which could negatively affect the value af common stock, the sustainability of our busirmesslel, and our ability to make distributit
which could have an adverse effect on our busiardshe market price for our shares of common stock

Rapid changes in the values of our RMBS, residentianortgage loans, and other real estateelated investments may make it mor
difficult for us to maintain our qualification as a REIT or our exemption from the 1940 Act.

If the market value or income potential of our RMB&sidential mortgage loans, and other real esddted investments declines as a result of
increased interest rates, prepayment rates or fatears, we may need to increase our real estagsiments and income or liquidate our non-
qualifying assets to maintain our REIT qualificatior our exemption from the 1940 Act. If the deelin real estate asset values or income
occurs quickly, this may be especially difficultaocomplish. This difficulty may be exacerbatedhuyilliquid nature of any non-real estate
assets we may own. We may have to make investneeigions that we otherwise would not make absenREBIT and 1940 Act considerations.
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We may have significant credit risk, especially olNon-Agency RMBS, in certain geographic areas and nyabe disproportionately
affected by economic or housing downturns, naturadlisasters, terrorist events, adverse climate changer other adverse events specific
those markets.

A significant number of the mortgages collateraligour RMBS may be concentrated in certain geogeagrieas. For example, with respect to
our Non-Agency RMBS portfolio, we have significantligher exposure in California, Florida, New Yorew Jersey and Maryland. Certain
markets within these states (particularly Califarand Florida) experienced significant decreaseasigential home value during the recent
housing crisis and continue to experience challemgtconomic and real estate conditions. Any evettadversely affects the economy or real
estate market in these states could have a dispi@pately adverse effect on our Non-Agency RMB®fotio. In general, any material decline

in the economy or significant difficulties in theal estate markets would be likely to cause amedh the value of residential properties secu

the mortgages in the relevant geographic area, rhiarn, would increase the risk of delinquendgfault and foreclosure on real estate
collateralizing our Non-Agency RMBS in this are&idmay then materially adversely affect our créalis experience on our Non-Agency
RMBS in such area if unexpectedly high rates o&dkf(e.g., in excess of the default rates forechstind/or higher than expected loss severities
on the mortgages collateralizing such securitieeie occur.

The occurrence of a natural disaster (such asrémgeake, tornado, hurricane or a flood) or a digant adverse climate change may cause a
sudden decrease in the value of real estate anfdl Wiloely reduce the value of the properties sewyithe mortgages collateralizing our Non-
Agency RMBS. Since certain natural disasters mayymically be covered by the standard hazard ersce policies maintained by borrowers,
the borrowers may have to pay for repairs dueeatbasters. Borrowers may not repair their prgparinmay stop paying their mortgages under
those circumstances. This would likely cause dé&faand credit loss severities to increase on tlé gfanortgages securing our Non-Agency
RMBS which, unlike Agency RMBS, are not guarantasdo principal and/or interest by the U.S. Governinany federal agency or federally
chartered corporation.

We leverage our investments, which may adverselyfatt our return on our investments and may reduceash available for distribution to
our stockholders.

We leverage our investments through borrowingsegly through the use of repurchase agreementghwase facilities, credit facilities and
securitizations. We are not required to maintaiy specific debt-to-equity ratio. The amount of leage we use varies depending on our ability
to obtain credit facilities, the lenders’ and rgtegencies’ estimates of the stability of the itwvesnts’ cash flow, and our assessment of the
appropriate amount of leverage for the particutsets we are funding. Under some credit facilitiesexpect to be required to maintain
minimum average cash balances in connection wittoladngs. Our return on our investments and caslilable for distribution to our
stockholders may be reduced to the extent thatggsaim market conditions prevent us from leveragiaginvestments, require us to decrease
our rate of leverage, increase the amount of eslhtve post, or increase the cost of our finanoahative to the income that can be derived f
the assets acquired. Our debt service paymentseslilice cash flow available for distributions tockholders, which could adversely affect the
price of our common stock. We may not be able tetroar debt service obligations, and, to the extesittwe cannot, we risk the loss of some or
all of our assets to foreclosure or sale to sattsfyobligations. We leverage certain of our asgbetsigh repurchase agreements. A decrease in
the value of these assets may lead to marginwallsh we will have to satisfy. We may not have filneds available to satisfy any such margin
calls and we may be forced to sell assets at gignifly depressed prices due to market conditiorgrerwise. The satisfaction of such margin
calls may reduce cash flow available for distribntto our stockholders. Any reduction in distrilbas to our stockholders or sales of assets at
inopportune times or prices may cause the valmptommon stock to decline, in some cases, ptecigy.

We depend on warehouse and repurchase facilities dreredit facilities to execute our business plan,ral our inability to access funding
could have a material adverse effect on our resultsf operations, financial condition and business.

Our ability to fund our investments depends torgdaxtent upon our ability to secure warehouggynehase and credit financing on acceptable
terms. We can provide no assurance that we wildoeessful in establishing sufficient warehousgurehase, and credit facilities. In addition,
because warehouse, repurchase, and credit faciiteeshort-term commitments of capital, the lendeay respond to market conditions, which
may favor an alternative investment strategy fenmhmaking it more difficult for us to secure contd financing. During certain periods of the
credit cycle, such as recently, lenders may cutheir willingness to provide financing. If we aret able to renew our then existing warehouse,
repurchase, and credit facilities or arrange fav fieancing on terms acceptable to us, or if wead#fon our covenants or are otherwise unable
to access funds under any of these facilities, Vllhave to curtail our asset acquisition actistie
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It is possible that the lenders that provide usfiftancing could experience changes in their 3hiiti advance funds to us, independent of our
performance or the performance of our investmeémttyding our mortgage loans. In addition, if tlegulatory capital requirements imposed on
our lenders change, they may be required to sigmifly increase the cost of the warehouse fadlitiat they provide to us. Our lenders also
revise their eligibility requirements for the typafsresidential mortgage loans they are willindit@nce or the terms of such financings, based
on, among other factors, the regulatory environraettheir management of perceived risk, partitulaith respect to assignee liability.
Financing of equity-based lending, for example, thagome more difficult in the future. Moreover, iaount of financing we will receive

under our warehouse and repurchase facilitiesbeillirectly related to the lendeksiluation of the assets that secure the outstardingwings
Typically warehouse, repurchase, and credit fasligrant the respective lender the absolute tigteevaluate the market value of the assets
secure outstanding borrowings at any time. If @égrdetermines in its sole discretion that the e@a@liithe assets has decreased, it has the right t
initiate a margin call. A margin call would requixe to transfer additional assets to such lendéowt any advance of funds from the lender for
such transfer or to repay a portion of the outdtapdorrowings. Any such margin call could have @&enial adverse effect on our results of
operations, financial condition, business, liquidihd ability to make distributions to our stockdeis, and could cause the value of our common
stock to decline. We may be forced to sell asget®yaificantly depressed prices to meet such margils and to maintain adequate liquidity,
which could cause us to incur losses. Moreovehacextent we are forced to sell assets at sudah jimen market conditions, we may be forced
to sell assets at the same time as others faaimtasipressures to sell similar assets, which cguigtly exacerbate a difficult market
environment and which could result in our incurrgignificantly greater losses on our sale of siegets. In an extreme case of market duress, a
market may not even be present for certain of esets at any price.

Certain financing facilities may contain covenantghat restrict our operations and may inhibit our ability to grow our business and
increase revenues.

Certain financing facilities we may enter into m@ntain extensive restrictions, covenants, ancesgptations and warranties that, among other
things, require us to satisfy specified financgaiset quality, loan eligibility and loan performarnests. If we fail to meet or satisfy any of thes
covenants or representations and warranties, wédvib@uin default under these agreements and odetercould elect to declare all amounts
outstanding under the agreements to be immedidtedyand payable, enforce their respective intesggmst collateral pledged under such
agreements and restrict our ability to make addtidoorrowings. Certain financing agreements mayaio cross-default provisions, so that if a
default occurs under any one agreement, the lenabelsr our other agreements could also declarésaltleThe covenants and restrictions we
expect in our financing facilities may restrict @lbility to, among other things:

incur or guarantee additional de

make certain investments or acquisitic

make distributions on or repurchase or redeem alegiitck;
engage in mergers or consolidatio

finance mortgage loans with certain attribu

reduce liquidity below certain level

grant liens;

incur operating losses for more than a specifigtbge
enter into transactions with affiliates; a

hold mortgage loans for longer than establisheé periods

Our failure to be current in our reporting requiests with the SEC diminishes our ability to enakle counterparties who do not have
transparency into our financial performance. Weentty finance only that portion of our portfolibat is Agency RMBS. To date, we have not
had any counterparties to our borrowing arrangesenininate any relationships as a result of aluréato be current in our reporting
requirements with the SEC, however, we have preglgtreduced the amount of borrowings under ourtenaspurchase agreements with
respect to Agency RMBS to ensure that we are alieciet any margin calls.
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These restrictions may interfere with our abiliyobtain financing, or to engage in other busireetiwities, which may have a significant
negative impact on our business, financial condijtiiguidity and results of operations. A defauilaesulting repayment acceleration could
significantly reduce our liquidity, which could neige us to sell our assets to repay amounts du@atstanding. This could also significantly
harm our business, financial condition, resultemérations, and our ability to make distributiombjch could cause the value of our common
stock to decline. A default will also significantiynit our financing alternatives such that we vki# unable to pursue our leverage strategy, v
could curtail our investment returns.

The repurchase agreements, warehouse facilities arwdedit facilities that we use to finance our invasnents may require us to provide
additional collateral and may restrict us from leveaging our assets as fully as desired.

We use repurchase agreements, warehouse fagilitéesredit facilities to finance our investmentse @rrently have uncommitted repurchase
agreements with 16 counterparties, including R@apfinancing our RMBS. We expect to add additiorgurchase counterparties in the
future. Our repurchase agreements are uncomnaittédhe counterparty may refuse to advance fundsruhe agreements to us. If the market
value of the loans or securities pledged or soldsto a funding source decline in value, we mageleired by the lending institution to provi
additional collateral or pay down a portion of thads advanced, but we may not have the fundsablaito do so. Posting additional collateral
will reduce our liquidity and limit our ability tkeverage our assets, which could adversely affecbaosiness. In the event we do not have
sufficient liquidity to meet such requirements,dery institutions can accelerate repayment of ndebtedness, increase our borrowing rates,
liquidate our collateral or terminate our abilityorrow. Such a situation would likely result inagid deterioration of our financial condition
and possibly necessitate a filing for protectiodenthe U.S. Bankruptcy Code. Further, financiatitations may require us to maintain a certain
amount of cash that is not invested or to set asitielevered assets sufficient to maintain a spetlfquidity position which would allow us to
satisfy our collateral obligations. As a result, may not be able to leverage our assets as fullyeasould choose which could reduce our re
on equity. If we are unable to meet these collatdyhigations, then, as described above, our firmondition could deteriorate rapidly.

If the counterparty to our repurchase transactionsdefaults on its obligation to resell the underlyingsecurity back to us at the end of the
transaction term, or if the value of the underlyingsecurity has declined as of the end of that ternr @f we default on our obligations undei
the repurchase agreement, we will lose money on otgpurchase transactions.

When we engage in a repurchase transaction, weajlgneell securities to the transaction countepand receive cash from the counterparty.
The counterparty is obligated to resell the sei@srivack to us at the end of the term of the ti@isg which is typically 30 days. Because tl
cash we receive from the counterparty when wealhjtsell the securities to the counterparty is lsn the value of those securities (this
difference is referred to as the haircut), if toeterparty defaults on its obligation to resedl siecurities back to us we would incur a loss en th
transaction equal to the amount of the haircutufagsg there was no change in the value of the gex3)r We would also lose money on a
repurchase transaction if the value of the undaglgecurities has declined as of the end of tmsaetion term, as we would have to repurchase
the securities for their initial value but wouldtedve securities worth less than that amount. Asges we incur on our repurchase transactions
could adversely affect our earnings, and thus esh @vailable for distribution to our stockholdéfsve default on one of our obligations und
repurchase transaction, the counterparty can tetmihe transaction and cease entering into amy a¢purchase transactions with us. In that
case, we would likely need to establish a replacemepurchase facility with another repurchaseetfdal order to continue to leverage our
portfolio and carry out our investment strategyeihis no assurance we would be able to establsitable replacement facility.
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Our rights under our repurchase agreements are sulgict to the effects of the bankruptcy laws in the @nt of the bankruptcy or
insolvency of us or our lenders under the repurchasagreements.

In the event of our insolvency or bankruptcy, dertapurchase agreements may qualify for spe@akinent under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code,
the effect of which, among other things, would daltow the lender under the applicable repurclagseement to avoid the automatic stay
provisions of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code and to flmse on the collateral agreement without delayhénevent of the insolvency or bankruptc

a lender during the term of a repurchase agreenieniender may be permitted, under applicablelesey laws, to repudiate the contract, and
our claim against the lender for damages may lag¢etiesimply as an unsecured creditor. In additidhe lender is a broker or dealer subject to
the Securities Investor Protection Act of 1970awiinsured depository institution subject to thdd¥al Deposit Insurance Act, our ability to
exercise our rights to recover our securities uad@purchase agreement or to be compensatedyfalaamages resulting from the lender’s
insolvency may be further limited by those statutdsese claims would be subject to significant yelad, if and when received, may be
substantially less than the damages we actuallyinc

An increase in our borrowing costs relative to thénterest we receive on our assets may adversely edf our profitability, and thus our
cash available for distribution to our stockholders

As our repurchase agreements and other seort-borrowings mature, we will be required eitteeenter into new borrowings or to sell certail
our investments. An increase in short-term inter&tsts at the time that we seek to enter into newolvings would reduce the spread between
our returns on our assets and the cost of our Wworgs. This would adversely affect our returns an @ssets that are subject to prepayment risk,
including our RMBS, which might reduce earnings,andurn, cash available for distribution to otwckholders.

If we issue senior securities we will be exposed aodlditional risks.

If we decide to issue senior securities in theriitit is likely that they will be governed by ardenture or other instrument containing covenants
restricting our operating flexibility. Additionallyany convertible or exchangeable securities tleatsaue in the future may have rights,
preferences and privileges more favorable tharetbbsur common stock and may result in dilutiomémers of our common stock. We and,
indirectly, our stockholders, will bear the costissfuing and servicing such securities.

Our securitizations will expose us to additional rsks.

We securitize and may continue to securitize ceéour portfolio investments to generate castudoding new investments. We expect to
structure these transactions either as financamgtctions or as sales for GAAP. In each suclkaaion, we convey a pool of assets to a sp
purpose vehicle, the issuing entity, and the iggeimtity issues one or more classes of non-recowtss pursuant to the terms of an indenture.
The notes are secured by the pool of assets. lmaege for the transfer of assets to the issuinityente receive the cash proceeds of the sale of
non-recourse notes and a 100% interest in theyeglihe issuing entity. The securitization of gartfolio investments might magnify our
exposure to losses on those portfolio investmestalise any equity interest we retain in the isseirigy would be subordinate to the notes
issued to investors and we would, therefore, abalbidif the losses sustained with respect to artemd pool of assets before the owners of the
notes experience any losses. Moreover, we canragdiged that we will be able to access the sematiiin market, or be able to do so at
favorable rates. The inability to securitize ourtfmio could hurt our performance and our abilidygrow our business.

Hedging against interest rate exposure may adverseaffect our earnings, which could reduce our cashvailable for distribution to our
stockholders.

Subject to maintaining our qualification as a RBANE, pursue various hedging strategies to seeldiaceeour exposure to losses from adverse
changes in interest rates. Our hedging activitjegan scope based on the level and volatilityntériest rates, the type of assets held and other
changing market conditions. Interest rate hedgiag fail to protect or could adversely affect usahexe, among other things:

interest rate hedging can be expensive, partiguthnting periods of rising and volatile interesesg

available interest rate hedges may not correspoadtly with the interest rate risk for which protien is sought

the duration of the hedge may not match the duratfdhe related liability

the amount of income that a REIT may earn from hegflgransactions to offset interest rate losses bmylimited by federal t:

provisions governing REIT:

e the credit quality of the party owing money on Heelge may be downgraded to such an extent thapdirs our ability to sell or assi
our side of the hedging transaction; :

e the party owing money in the hedging transactioy default on its obligation to pa
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Our hedging transactions, which are intended td limsses, may actually limit gains and increaseesyposure to losses. As a result, our hedging
activity may adversely affect our earnings, whiolld reduce our cash available for distributiomto stockholders. In addition, some hedging
instruments involve risk since they are not cutyetnaded on regulated exchanges, guaranteed byarange or its clearing house, or regulated
by any U.S. or foreign governmental authoritiesngmuently, there are no requirements with redpeetcord keeping, financial responsibility
or segregation of customer funds and positionghEemore, the enforceability of agreements undeglylerivative transactions may depend on
compliance with applicable statutory and commoditg other regulatory requirements and, dependirtheidentity of the counterparty,
applicable international requirements. The busifefisre of a hedging counterparty with whom weegribto a hedging transaction will most
likely result in its default. Default by a partyttviwvhom we enter into a hedging transaction maylr@sthe loss of unrealized profits and force
us to cover our commitments, if any, at the themezut market price. Although generally we will seéekeserve the right to terminate our
hedging positions, it may not always be possibléispose of or close out a hedging position wititbatconsent of the hedging counterparty,
we may not be able to enter into an offsetting i@mmtin order to cover our risk. We cannot assaethat a liquid secondary market will exist
for hedging instruments purchased or sold, and @&y loe required to maintain a position until exera@s expiration, which could result in loss

Our hedging strategies may not be successful in nigating the risks associated with interest rates.

Subject to complying with REIT tax requirements, lveve employed and intend to continue to emplofyrtieues that limit, or hedge, the
adverse effects of rising interest rates on ourtdleom repurchase agreements. In general, ogihgdtrategy depends on our view of our
entire portfolio, consisting of assets, liabilitexsd derivative instruments, in light of prevailimgrket conditions. We could misjudge the
condition of our investment portfolio or the market

Our hedging activity will vary in scope based oa tavel and volatility of interest rates and prpadirepayments, the type of securities held and
other changing market conditions. Our actual hegldiecisions will be determined in light of the faand circumstances existing at the time and
may differ from our currently anticipated hedgingategy. These techniques may include enteringiivigwest rate caps, collars, floors, forward
contracts, futures, options or swap agreementsnéieconduct certain hedging transactions througR&, which will be subject to federal,

state and, if applicable, local income tax.

There are no perfect hedging strategies, and sttesite hedging may fail to protect us from loskerhatively, we may fail to properly assess a
risk to our investment portfolio or may fail to cemize a risk entirely, leaving us exposed to lssgghout the benefit of any offsetting hedging
activities. The derivative financial instruments sedect may not have the effect of reducing owargst rate risk. The nature and timing of
hedging transactions may influence the effectiverméshese strategies. Poorly designed strategimspooperly executed transactions could
actually increase our risk and losses. In additi@uging activities could result in losses if terg against which we hedge does not occur. For
example, interest rate hedging could fail to protecor adversely affect us because, among othegsth

e available interest rate hedging may not corresubirettly with the interest rate risk for which peotion is sought

e the duration of the hedge may not match the duratfdhe related liability

e as explained in further detail in the risk factomiediately below, the party owing money in the hiegdransaction may default on
obligation to pay

e the credit quality of the party owing money on Hezlge may be downgraded to such an extent thapdirs our ability to sell or assi
our side of the hedging transaction;

e the value of derivatives used for hedging may hasteld from time to time in accordance with accountules to reflect changes in 1
value. Downward adjustments, “ mark-to-market losse” would reduce our stockhold’ equity.

Whether the derivatives we acquire achieve hedgeusting treatment or not, hedging generally inesleosts and risks. Our hedging strategies
may adversely affect us because hedging activitiedve costs that we will incur regardless of #ifectiveness of the hedging activity. Those
costs may be higher in periods of market volatiligth because the counterparties to our derivatiwveements may demand a higher payment
for taking risks, and transaction costs to adjustt@dges during periods of interest rate chanlgesiaay increase costs. Especially if our
hedging strategies are not effective, we couldristgnificant hedging-related costs without anyresponding economic benefits.
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We have elected not to qualify for hedge accountingeatment.

We record derivative and hedge transactions inrdecme with GAAP. Our interest rate swaps havebren designated as hedging instruments
for accounting purposes. Consequently, changifair value of swaps are reported as a compafergt income in the Consolidated
Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Inchoss),

We have experienced declines in the market value ofir assets resulting in us recording impairmentsyhich
have had an adverse effect on our results of opefahs and financial condition.

A decline in the market value of our RMBS or othesets may require us to recognize an other-thapetery impairment (or “OTTI") against
such assets under GAAP. When the fair value oRMBS is less than its amortized cost, the secigitponsidered impaired. We assess our
impaired securities on at least a quarterly basisdesignate such impairments as either temporasther-thantemporary. The determination

to whether an OTTI exists and, if so, the amountuam@sider other-than-temporarily impaired is sutdye¢ as such determinations are based on
both factual and subjective information availatll¢he time of assessment. As a result, the timimgamount of OTTI constitute material
estimates that are susceptible to significant cealmthe future, we may experience declines irfdfrevalue of our RMBS and other assets that
could result in additional OTTI that will be recaged in earnings.

Declines in the fair values of our investments magdversely affect periodic reported results and creitlavailability, which may reduce
earnings and, in turn, cash available for distributon to our stockholders.

A substantial portion of our assets are classffieéccounting purposes as “available-for-sale” eadied at fair value. Changes in the fair
values of those assets will be directly chargecredited to OCI. In addition, a decline in valugl reduce the book value of our assets. A
decline in the fair value of our assets may advgsféect us, particularly in instances where weéhorrowed money based on the fair value of
those assets. If the fair value of those assetigdecthe lender may require us to post additioodiateral to support the loan. If we were unable
to post the additional collateral, we would havedt the assets at a time when we might not otiserehoose to do so. A reduction in credit
available may reduce our ability to invest anddmenterest income which would reduce cash aviailedy distribution to stockholders.

The lack of liquidity in our investments may advergly affect our business.

We may invest in securities or other instrumends e not liquid. It may be difficult or impossgto obtain third party pricing on the
investments we purchase. llliquid investmentsciily experience greater price volatility as adganarket does not exist. In addition,
validating third party pricing for illiquid investemts may be more subjective than more liquid imaests. The illiquidity of our investments
may make it difficult for us to sell such investrteeif the need or desire arises. In addition, ifaxe required to liquidate all or a portion of our
portfolio quickly, we may realize significantly kshan the value at which we have previously resd@lr investments. As a result, our abilit
vary our portfolio in response to changes in ecan@nd other conditions may be relatively limitadyich could adversely affect our results of
operations and financial condition.

We are highly dependent on information systems anthird parties, and systems failures could significatly disrupt our business, which
may, in turn, negatively affect the market price ofour common stock and our ability to pay dividenddo our stockholders.

Our business is highly dependent on communicatmasinformation systems. Any failure or interruptiaf our systems or cyber-attacks or
security breaches of our networks or systems coalde delays or other problems in our securitgfirtg activities, including mortgage-backed
securities trading activities, which could have atenial adverse effect on our operating resultsreeghtively affect the market price of our
common stock and our ability to pay dividends to stockholders. In addition, we also face the akperational failure, termination or
capacity constraints of any of the third partiethwvhich we do business or that facilitate our bess activities, including clearing agents or
other financial intermediaries we use to facilitate securities transactions.
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Computer malware, viruses, and computer hackingoaighing attacks have become more prevalent ifnolwstry and may occur on our
systems in the future. We rely heavily on our fiicial, accounting and other data processing systénis difficult to determine what, if any,
negative impact may directly result from any sgedifterruption or cyber-attacks or security brescbf our networks or systems or any failure
to maintain performance, reliability and securifyoar technical infrastructure. However, any saomputer malware, viruses, and computer
hacking and phishing attacks may negatively affectoperations.

We depend on third-party service providers, includng mortgage servicers, for a variety of services lated to our Non-Agency RMBS and
whole mortgage loans we may acquire. We are, the@k, subject to the risks associated with third-paty service providers.

We depend on a variety of services provided byltparty service providers related to our Non-AgeR8¥BS and whole mortgage loans we
may acquire. We rely on the mortgage servicers semgice the mortgage loans backing our Non-Agen#BR to, among other things, collect
principal and interest payments on the underlyingtgages and perform loss mitigation services. i@otgage servicers and other service
providers to our Non-Agency RMBS, such as trustbend insurance providers and custodians, mayerfbim in a manner that promotes our
interests. In addition, recent legislation intentiededuce or prevent foreclosures through, amaeherdhings, loan modifications may reduce
value of mortgage loans backing our Non-Agency RMBS®/hole mortgage loans that we acquire. Mortgaaggicers may be incentivized by
the Federal government to pursue such loan motdits, as well as forbearance plans and otherretidgended to prevent foreclosure, even if
such loan modifications and other actions are méitié best interests of the beneficial owners efttortgage loans. In addition to the recent
legislation that creates financial incentives fartgage loan servicers to modify loans and takeradlstions that are intended to prevent
foreclosures, legislation has recently been adoitidcreates a safe harbor from liability to ctedi for servicers that undertake loan
modifications and other actions that are intendegorévent foreclosures. Finally, any regulatorpseffo delay the initiation or completion of
foreclosure proceedings on specified types of eggidl mortgage loans (some for a limited periotirak), may limit the ability of mortgage
servicers to take actions that may be essentjaeserve the value of the mortgage loans underlfiagnortgage servicing rights. Any such
limitations are likely to cause delayed or reduceliections from mortgagors and generally incresesgicing costs. As a result, the mortgage
loan servicers on which we rely may not perfornoum best interests or up to our expectations. fftbwd-party service providers do not perfo
as expected, our business, financial conditionraadlts of operations and ability to make distiitms to our shareholders may be materially
adversely affected.

The Dodd-Frank Act contains many regulatory changesind calls for future rulemaking that may affect
our business.

The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumereetiain Act, or the Dodd-Frank Act, contains margulatory changes and calls for future
rulemaking that may affect our business, includimg, not limited to resolutions involving derivadis, risk-retention in securitizations, the
origination of residential mortgage loans and shemi financings. The Dodd-Frank Act's requirensemiay impact the housing and mortgage
markets, which could have an adverse effect orbosiness. We are evaluating the potential implgulatory change under the Dodd-Frank
Act.

The increasing number of proposed federal, state anlocal laws may increase our risk of liability wit respect to certain mortgage loans,
may include judicial modification provisions and caild increase our cost of doing business.

The United States Congress and various state aatllégislatures are considering legislation, wharnong other provisions, would permit
limited assignee liability for certain violations the mortgage loan and servicing origination psscand would allow judicial modification of
loan principal in the event of personal bankruptéye cannot predict whether or in what form Congi@sthe various state and local legislatures
may enact legislation affecting our business. éxample, the California Homeowner Bill of Rightdhish became effective on January 1, 2013,
imposes new obligations and potential liabilitiesimvestors, master servicers, servicers and subses, including anti-blight and tenant
protection provisions. We are evaluating the piidéimpact of these initiatives, if enacted, o ptactices and results of operations. Asar

of these and other initiatives, we are unable &aljot whether federal, state or local authoritidlsrequire changes in our practices in the future
or in our portfolio. These changes, if requireal)ld adversely affect our profitability, particulaif we make such changes in response to ne
amended laws, regulations or ordinances in ang sthere we acquire a significant portion of our tyage loans, or if such changes result in us
being held responsible for any violations in thertg@ge loan origination process, or if the printgraount of loans we own or are in RMBS
pools we own are modified in the personal bankyuptocess.
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Risks Related to Our Investments

We might not be able to purchase residential mortgge loans, mortgagesacked securities and other investments that meetioinvestment
criteria or at favorable spreads over our borrowingcosts.

To the extent we purchase assets using leveragaegbincome depends on our ability to acquiredessiial mortgage loans, mortgage-backed
securities and other investments at favorable ggreaer our borrowing costs. Our investments alecged by our Manager, and our
stockholders will not have input into such investitngecisions. Our Manager has conducted due didigerith respect to each investment
purchased. However, there can be no assuranceuhitanager's due diligence processes will uncalleelevant facts or that any investment
will be successful.

We may not realize income or gains from our investents.

We invest to generate both current income and &agipreciation. The investments we invest in rhayyever, not appreciate in value and, in
fact, may decline in value, and the debt secunitiesnvest in may default on interest or principayments. Accordingly, we may not be able to
realize income or gains from our investments. Aaing that we do realize may not be sufficient faeifany other losses we experience. Any
income that we realize may not be sufficient tseffour expenses.

Our investments may be concentrated and will be syct to risk of default.

We are not required to observe specific diverdificacriteria. To the extent that our portfoliocisncentrated in any one region or type of
security, downturns relating generally to suchaagir type of security may result in defaults amuanber of our investments within a short time
period, which may reduce our net income and theevaf our shares and accordingly may reduce olityetoi pay dividends to our stockholde

Our investments in subordinated RMBS are generallyn the “first loss” position and our investments inthe mezzanine RMBS are
generally in the “second loss” position and theref@ subject to losses.

In general, losses on a mortgage loan includedsicaritization will be borne first by the equityltier of the issuing trust, and then by the “first
loss” subordinated security holder and then by‘skeond loss” mezzanine holder. In the event éduleand the exhaustion of any classes of
securities junior to those in which we invest amere is any further loss, we will not be able tworeer all of our investment in the securities we
purchase. In addition, if the underlying mortgagetfolio has been overvalued by the originatorif tne values subsequently decline and, as a
result, less collateral is available to satisfgiest and principal payments due on the related 8MiBe securities in which we invest may
effectively become the “first loss” position behitiid more senior securities, which may resultgmificant losses to us. The prices of lower
credit quality securities are generally less samstb interest rate changes than more highly rateelstments, but more sensitive to adverse
economic downturns or individual issuer developreet projection of an economic downturn, for exéenpould cause a decline in the price
lower credit quality securities because the abditpbligors of mortgages underlying RMBS to makiagipal and interest payments may be
impaired. In such event, existing credit supporithie securitization structure may be insufficienprotect us against loss of our principal on
these securities.
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Increases in interest rates could negatively affethe value of our investments, which could resulhireduced earnings or losses and
negatively affect the cash available for distributon to our stockholders.

We have invested in and will continue to investdal estate-related assets by acquiring RMBS, eatil mortgage loans, CMBS and CDOs
backed by real estate-related assets. Under aahgiehd curve, an investment in these assetsdeitline in value if long-term interest rates
increase. Declines in market value may ultimatefjuce earnings or result in losses to us, which meggtively affect cash available for
distribution to our stockholders. A significantkiassociated with these investments is the riskitbtn long-term and short-term interest rates
will increase significantly. If long-term rates veetio increase significantly, the market value efsthinvestments would decline, and the duration
and weighted average life of the investments woudcease. We could realize a loss if these assats gold. At the same time, an increase in
short-term interest rates would increase the amofunterest owed on the repurchase agreementther adjustable rate financings we may
enter into to finance the purchase of these asdétsket values of our investments may decline aittany general increase in interest rates
number of reasons, such as increases in defaudteases in voluntary prepayments for those inverstterthat are subject to prepayment risk and
widening of credit spreads.

In a period of rising interest rates, our interestexpense could increase while the interest we earn our fixed-rate assets would not
change, which would adversely affect our profitabity.

Our operating results will depend in large parttomdifferences between the income from our asset)f credit losses and financing costs. We
anticipate that, in most cases, the income frorh sissets will respond more slowly to interest flatgtuations than the cost of our borrowings.
Consequently, changes in interest rates, partiguhort-term interest rates, may significantiueihce our net income. Increases in these rates
will tend to decrease our net income and marketevaf our assets. Interest rate fluctuations riesgpih our interest expense exceeding our
interest income would result in operating lossesi®and may limit or eliminate our ability to madtistributions to our stockholders. Although
we use hedging strategies to protect against ineseia interest expense, there is no guarantdeettge strategy will be effective or will prevent
decreases in net income in a period of rising @dkerates.

Interest rate mismatches between our investments drany borrowings used to fund purchases of these sets may reduce our income
during periods of changing interest rates.

We intend to fund some of our acquisitions of resithl mortgage loans, real estate-related seesiidnd real estate loans with borrowings that
have interest rates based on indices and repriemgs with shorter maturities than the interest natlices and repricing terms of our adjustable-
rate assets. Accordingly, if short-term interesés increase, this may have a negative impactoprofitability.

Some of the residential mortgage loans, real estddted securities and real estate loans we aequérand will be fixed-rate securities. This
means that their interest rates will not vary dirae based upon changes in a short-term interestrrdex. Therefore, the interest rate indices
and repricing terms of the assets that we acquuletzeir funding sources will create an interett rismatch between our assets and
liabilities. During periods of changing intereatas, these mismatches could reduce our net inadizidend yield and the market price of our
stock.

Accordingly, in a period of rising interest rates&g could experience a decrease in net income et lss because the interest rates on our
borrowings adjust whereas the interest rates offixen-rate assets remain unchanged.

Interest rate caps on our adjustable-rate RMBS maydversely affect our profitability.

Adjustable-rate RMBS are typically subject to pditoand lifetime interest rate caps. Periodic ieerate caps limit the amount an interest rate
can increase during any given period. Lifetimernesérate caps limit the amount an interest rateimerease over the life of the security. Our
borrowings typically will not be subject to similegstrictions. Accordingly, in a period of rapidhcreasing interest rates, the interest rates paid
on our borrowings could increase without limitatighile caps could limit the interest rates on atjuatable-rate RMBS. This problem is
magnified for hybrid adjustable-rate and adjustabte RMBS that are not fully indexed. Further, edmybrid adjustable-rate and adjustable-rate
RMBS may be subject to periodic payment caps #mdltin a portion of the interest being deferred added to the principal outstanding. As a
result, we may receive less cash income on hyldjigstable-rate and adjustable-rate RMBS than wd tepay interest on our related
borrowings. These factors could reduce our netésténcome or cause us to suffer a loss.
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A flat or inverted yield curve may adversely affectadjustable-rate RMBS prepayment rates and supply.

Our net interest income varies primarily as a tesuthanges in interest rates as well as chamgesdrest rates across the yield curve. When the
differential between short-term and long-term benatk interest rates narrows, the yield curve id gabe “flattening.” We believe that when

the yield curve is relatively flat, borrowers haeincentive to refinance into hybrids with longetial fixed-rate periods and fixed rate
mortgages, causing our RMBS to experience fasegrgyments. In addition, a flatter yield curve gaitgieads to fixed-rate mortgage rates that
are closer to the interest rates available on ARM#entially decreasing the supply of adjustabte-RIMBS. At times, short-term interest rates
may increase and exceed long-term interest ragesjreg an inverted yield curve. When the yield eusvinverted, fixedate mortgage rates m
approach or be lower than mortgage rates on ARM#)dr increasing adjustable-rate RMBS prepaymamdsfurther negatively impacting
adjustable-rate RMBS supply. Increases in prepasranour MBS portfolio cause our premium amori@ato accelerate, lowering the yield

on such assets. If this happens, we could experiamecrease in net income or incur a net lossgltiese periods, which may negatively
impact our distributions to stockholders.

A significant portion of our portfolio investments will be recorded at fair value as determined in acgrdance with our pricing policy and,
as a result, there will be uncertainty as to the Mae of these investments.

A significant portion of our portfolio of investmenis in the form of securities that are not pupltcaded. The fair value of securities and other
investments that are not publicly traded may nataelily determinable. It may be difficult or imgsible to obtain third party pricing on the
investments we purchase. We value these investmearterly at fair value, as determined in acaoecdawith our valuation policy as approved
by our board of directors. Because such valuatiwasnherently uncertain, may fluctuate over spertods of time and may be based on
estimates, our determinations of fair value mafedifaterially from the values that would have based if a ready market for these securities
existed. The value of our common stock could besesbly affected if our determinations regardingfttievalue of these investments were
materially higher than the values that we ultimateblize upon their disposal.

A prolonged economic slowdown, a recession or detlig real estate values could impair our investmestand negatively affect our
operating results.

Many of our investments are susceptible to econaiwdowns or recessions, which could lead to fifeiosses in our investments and a
decrease in revenues, net income and assets. Walid@@conomic conditions also could increase ondihg costs, limit our access to the ca
markets or result in a decision by lenders noixtered credit to us. These events could preventams fncreasing investments and have an
adverse effect on our operating results.

Changes in prepayment rates could negatively affethe value of our investment portfolio, which couldresult in reduced earnings or
losses and negatively affect the cash available fdistribution to our stockholders.

There are seldom any restrictions on borrowerditisi to prepay their residential mortgage loafismeowners tend to prepay mortgage loans
faster when interest rates decline. Consequentigecs of the loans have to reinvest the moneyveddrom the prepayments at the lower
prevailing interest rates. Conversely, homeowrend ot to prepay mortgage loans when interest mateease. Consequently, owners of the
loans are unable to reinvest money that would lofiverwise been received from prepayments at tHeehigrevailing interest rates. This
volatility in prepayment rates may affect our apito maintain targeted amounts of leverage onpoutfolio of residential mortgage loans,
RMBS, and CDOs backed by real estate-related aasdtmay result in reduced earnings or lossessf@nd negatively affect the cash available
for distribution to our stockholders.

To the extent our investments are purchased araipm, faster than expected prepayments resulfastar than expected amortization of the

premium paid, which would adversely affect our @ggga. Conversely, if these investments were pwetiat a discount, faster than expected
prepayments accelerate our recognition of income.
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The mortgage loans we invest in and the mortgagedas underlying the mortgage-backed and asset-backegcurities we invest in are
subject to delinquency, foreclosure and loss, whiatould result in losses to us.

Residential mortgage loans are typically securedigle-family residential property and are subjeatisks of delinquency and foreclosure and
risks of loss. The ability of a borrower to repalpan secured by a residential property is depengigon the income or assets of the borrower. A
number of factors, including a general economicmown, acts of God, terrorism, social unrest and disturbances, may impair borrowers’
abilities to repay their loans. In addition, wedsvin Non-Agency RMBS, which are backed by redidéreal property but, in contrast to
Agency RMBS, their principal and interest is noaanteed by federally chartered entities such agiEaMae and Freddie Mac and, in the case
of Ginnie Mae, the U.S. government. The U.S. Depent of Treasury and FHFA have also entered irgéepred stock purchase agreements
between the U.S. Department of Treasury and Favlaeand Freddie Mac pursuant to which the U.S. Bt of Treasury will ensure that
each of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac maintains diyp®@siet worth. Asset-backed securities are bamdetes backed by loans or other
financial assets. The ability of a borrower to sefi@ese loans or other financial assets is depéngem the income or assets of these borrowers.
Commercial mortgage loans are secured by multifaoricommercial property and are subject to rigkdatinquency and foreclosure, and risks
of loss that are greater than similar risks assediwith loans made on the security of sinfgletly residential property. The ability of a bower

to repay a loan secured by an income-producinggotppypically is dependent primarily upon the segsful operation of such property rather
than upon the existence of independent incomesataief the borrower. If the net operating incomthe property is reduced, the borrower’s
ability to repay the loan may be impaired. Net afiag income of an income producing property caaffected by, among other things, tenant
mix, success of tenant businesses, property maragetacisions, property location and condition, petition from comparable types of
properties, changes in laws that increase operatipgnse or limit rents that may be charged, apg h@ address environmental contaminatic
the property, the occurrence of any uninsured dysagthe property, changes in national, regiardbcal economic conditions or specific
industry segments, declines in regional or local estate values, declines in regional or locaalesr occupancy rates, increases in interest,
real estate tax rates and other operating expetisasges in governmental rules, regulations amdlfigolicies, including environmental
legislation, acts of God, terrorism, social unaasd civil disturbances. In the event of any defanlier a mortgage loan held directly by us, we
will bear a risk of loss of principal to the extaftany deficiency between the value of the cotkidtand the principal and accrued interest of the
mortgage loan, which could have a material adveifeet on our cash flow from operations. In there\a the bankruptcy of a mortgage loan
borrower, the mortgage loan to such borrower vélideemed to be secured only to the extent of thee e the underlying collateral at the time
of bankruptcy (as determined by the bankruptcy pand the lien securing the mortgage loan wilsbbject to the avoidance powers of the
bankruptcy trustee or debtor-in-possession to xtenéthe lien is unenforceable under state laweélosure of a mortgage loan can be an
expensive and lengthy process which could havéstantial negative effect on our anticipated returrthe foreclosed mortgage loan. RMBS
evidence interests in or are secured by poolssideatial mortgage loans and CMBS evidence inteliastr are secured by a single commercial
mortgage loan or a pool of commercial mortgagedoaacordingly, the RMBS and CMBS we invest in subject to all of the risks of the
respective underlying mortgage loans.

We may be required to repurchase mortgage loans andemnify investors if we breach representations ahwarranties, which could
negatively affect our earnings.

If we sell loans, we would be required to make @unstry representations and warranties about suds koethe loan purchaser. Our residential
mortgage loan sale agreements will require uspgarghase or substitute loans in the event we braaepresentation or warranty given to the
loan purchaser. In addition, we may be requiregpairchase loans as a result of borrower fraud tiré event of early payment default on a
mortgage loan. Likewise, we are required to repasetor substitute loans if we breach a representatiwarranty in connection with our
securitizations. The remedies available to a puwehaf mortgage loans are generally broader thasethvailable to us against the originating
broker or correspondent. Further, if a purchasérees its remedies against us, we may not betatdaforce the remedies we have against the
sellers. The repurchased loans typically can oalfifanced at a steep discount to their repurcpese, if at all. They are also typically sold at a
significant discount to the unpaid principal bakn8ignificant repurchase activity could negativeffigct our cash flow, results of operations,
financial condition and business prospects.

We may enter into derivative contracts that could pose us to contingent liabilities in the future.

Subject to maintaining our qualification as a REp@rt of our investment strategy involves enteimg derivative contracts that could require us
to fund cash payments in certain circumstancessd petential payments will be contingent liabiiti¢he value of which are unknown, and
therefore may not appear on our Consolidated Statemof Financial Condition. Our ability to fundetie contingent liabilities will depend on
liquidity of our assets and access to capital atithe, and the need to fund these contingentilialicould adversely impact our financial
condition.
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Our Manager’s due diligence of potential investmerg may not reveal all of the liabilities associatedith such investments and may not
reveal other weaknesses in such investments, whicbuld lead to investment losses.

Before making an investment, our Manager assebsestrengths and weaknesses of the originatosoetiof the asset as well as other factors
and characteristics that are material to the perdoice of the investment. In making the assessmenbtherwise conducting customary due
diligence, our Manager relies on resources avalablt and, in some cases, an investigation b fpérties. This process is particularly
important with respect to newly formed originatordssuers with unrated and other subordinatecttrasof RMBS and ABS because there may
be little or no information publicly available alidhese entities and investments. There can beswance that our Manager’s due diligence
process will uncover all relevant facts or that aiestment will be successful.

Our real estate investments are subject to risks pacular to real property.

We own assets secured by real estate and may @vestate directly in the future, either througtedi investments or upon a default of
mortgage loans. Real estate investments are subjeatious risks, including:

acts of God, including earthquakes, hurricanesdiioand other natural disasters, that may resuhiimsured losse:

acts of war or terrorism, including the consequerafderrorist attacks, such as those that occumne8leptember 11, 200

adverse changes in national and local economicrearilet conditions

changes in governmental laws and regulations, lfisalicies and zoning ordinances and the relatesiscof compliance with laws a
regulations, fiscal policies and ordinanc

e costs of remediation and liabilities associatedhwitvironmental conditions such as indoor mold;

e the potential for uninsured or un-insured property losse

If any of these or similar events occurs, it maguee our return from an affected property or inwesit and reduce or eliminate our ability to
make distributions to stockholders.

We may be exposed to environmental liabilities witmespect to properties to which we take title.

In the course of our business, we may take titleab estate, and, if we do take title, we couldbigiect to environmental liabilities with respect
to these properties. In such a circumstance, webmadyeld liable to a governmental entity or todtparties for property damage, personal inj
investigation, and clean-up costs incurred by tipestes in connection with environmental contanigrg or may be required to investigate or
clean up hazardous or toxic substances, or cheneiegses at a property. The costs associatedrwitstigation or remediation activities could
be substantial. If we ever become subject to digit environmental liabilities, our business, finil condition, liquidity, and results of
operations could be materially and adversely aéfi:ct

We may in the future invest in RMBS collateralizedby subprime mortgage loans, which are subject to oreased risks.

We may in the future invest in RMBS backed by dellal pools of subprime residential mortgage lod8sibprime” mortgage loans refer to
mortgage loans that have been originated usingrumitiég standards that are less restrictive thenunderwriting requirements used as
standards for other first and junior lien mortgémgn purchase programs, such as the programs ofd-&fae and Freddie Mac. These lower
standards include mortgage loans made to borrdweiag imperfect or impaired credit histories (uidihg outstanding judgments or prior
bankruptcies), mortgage loans where the amourteoloian at origination is 80% or more of the valfithe mortgage property, mortgage loans
made to borrowers with low credit scores, mortgages made to borrowers who have other debt tipa¢sents a large portion of their income
and mortgage loans made to borrowers whose incomet irequired to be disclosed or verified. Duedonomic conditions, including increased
interest rates and lower home prices, as well geeagive lending practices, subprime mortgage lbaws in recent periods experienced
increased rates of delinquency, foreclosure, batéyuand loss, and they are likely to continuexpegience delinquency, foreclosure,
bankruptcy and loss rates that are higher, andhthgtbe substantially higher, than those experigbgemortgage loans underwritten in a more
traditional manner. Thus, because of the highéngeéncy rates and losses associated with subpriontgage loans, the performance of RMBS
collateralized by subprime mortgage loans in whighmay invest could be correspondingly adversdicédd, which could adversely impact
results of operations, financial condition and hass.
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Our Manager utilizes analytical models and data irconnection with the valuation of our investments, ad any incorrect, misleading or
incomplete information used in connection therewithwould subject us to potential risks.

Given the complexity of our investments and strigggour Manager must rely heavily on analyticatiegle and information and data suppliec
third-parties (“Models and Data”). Models and Dai#l be used to value investments or potentiakstments and also in connection with
hedging our investments. When Models and Datagptobe incorrect, misleading or incomplete, angisiens made in reliance thereon expose
us to potential risks. For example, by relying oaddls and Data, especially valuation models, ounddar may be induced to buy certain
investments at prices that are too high, to sethaeother investments at prices that are toodowo miss favorable opportunities

altogether. Similarly, any hedging based on faMtydels and Data may prove to be unsuccessfulth&umore, any valuations of our
investments that are based on valuation modelsprase to be incorrect.

Some of the risks of relying on analytical modeld #hird-party data are particular to analyzingt¢tzes from securitizations, such as RMBS.
These risks include, but are not limited to, thHéofeing: (i) collateral cash flows and/or liabilistructures may be incorrectly modeled in all or
only certain scenarios, or may be modeled basesingplifying assumptions that lead to errors; ifiormation about collateral may be incorrect,
incomplete, or misleading; (iii) collateral or bohidtorical performance (such as historical prepayts, defaults, cash flows, etc.) may be
incorrectly reported, or subject to interpretatfery., different issuers may report delinquenctistes based on different definitions of what
constitutes a delinquent loan); or (iv) collatesabond information may be outdated, in which dagemodels may contain incorrect assumpt
as to what has occurred since the date informatemlast updated.

Some of the analytical models used by our Manageh as mortgage prepayment models or mortgagaltefadels, are predictive in

nature. The use of predictive models has inheigkd. For example, such models may incorrecttgdast future behavior, leading to potential
losses on a cash flow and/or a mark-to-market baseddition, the predictive models used by ounitger may differ substantially from those
models used by other market participants, withréselt that valuations based on these predictivéatsanay be substantially higher or lower
certain investments than actual market pricesthEumore, since predictive models are usually caostd based on historical data supplied by
third-parties, the success of relying on such nmeodely depend heavily on the accuracy and relighifithe supplied historical data and the
ability of these historical models to accuratelijeret future periods.

All valuation models rely on correct market datauits. If incorrect market data is entered into exevellfounded valuation model, the resulti
valuations will be incorrect. However, even if metrklata is appropriately captured in the modelyélsalting “model prices” will often differ
substantially from market prices, especially fars#ies with complex characteristics, such asvdgive securities.

Regulatory and Legal Risks

Violations of federal, state and local laws by theriginator, the servicer, or us may result in res@sion of the loans or penalties that may
adversely impact our income.

Violations of certain provisions of federal, stated local laws by the originator, the servicer @ras well as actions by governmental agencies,
authorities and attorneys general, may limit outherservicer’s ability to collect all or part dfet principal of, or interest on, the residential
mortgage loans we purchase and hold, and loanséhat as security for the RMBS we purchase ardl hdiolations could also subject the
entity that made or modified the loans to damagesaaministrative enforcement (including disgorgetrad prior interest and fees paid). In
particular, a loan seller’s failure to comply witértain requirements of federal and state lawsdcsubject the seller (and other assignees of the
mortgage loans) to monetary penalties and restiitarobligors’ rescinding the mortgage loans addhesseller and any subsequent holders of
the mortgage loans, even if the assignee was spbnsible for and was unaware of those violatiorsese adverse consequences vary
depending on the applicable law and may vary depgrah the type or severity of the violation, biugy typically include:
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e the ability of the homeowner to rescind, or cantted,loan;

the inability of the holder of the loan to colledt of the principal and interest otherwise dudlmnloan;

e the right of the homeowner to collect a refund wioants previously paid (which may include amouintariced by the loan), or to
off those amounts against his or her future lodigations; anc

e the liability of the servicer and the owner of lean for actual damages, statutory damages andiymimiamages, civil or crimin
penalties, costs and attorn’ fees.

The terms of the documents under which we interglitohase loans, and the terms of the documendstasgeate the RMBS we intend to
purchase, may entitle the holders of the loanstlamdpecial purpose vehicles that hold loans in BM@contractual indemnification against
these liabilities. For example, the sellers ohlplaced in a securitization typically represéat each mortgage loan was made in compliance
with applicable federal and state laws and regquiatiat the time it was made. If there is a mdtbrizach of that representation, the seller me
contractually obligated to cure the breach or refpase or replace the affected mortgage loan.el§éfler is unable or otherwise fails to satisfy
these obligations, the yield on the loans and RMBght be materially and adversely affected. Dutheodeterioration in the housing and
commercial property markets, many of the selleas ifsued these indemnifications are no longeusiress or are unable to financially respond
to their indemnification obligations. Consequentiglders of interests in the loans and RMBS méynakely have to absorb the losses arising
from the sellers’ violations. While we attemptéie these factors into account in the prices wef@aloans and RMBS, we can offer no
assurances concerning the validity of the assumptice use in our pricing decisions.

Furthermore, the volume of new and modified lawd sagulations at both the federal and state levadsincreased in recent years. For exan
the Dodd-Frank Act established the Consumer FimdiRebtection Bureau which, among other thinggricts and supervises unfair, deceptive
or abusive acts or practices in mortgage lendiFigere is also an increased risk that the both detlaen servicer of loans we purchase or that are
held in RMBS we purchase may be involved in liigatover violations or alleged violations of redgrégnacted and proposed laws. It is
possible that these laws might result in additieghificant costs and liabilities, which couldther adversely affect the results of our
operations. Any litigation would increase our exges and reduce funds available for distributioouiostockholders.

Some local municipalities also have enacted lawsithpose potentially significant penalties on Isanvicing activities related to abandoned
properties or real estate owned properties.

Any of these preceding examples could result iayseand/or reductions in receipts of amounts duta@hoans we intend to purchase or on the
loans held in RMBS we intend to purchase, negatiaéfecting our income and operating results.

We may be subject to liability for potential violatons of predatory lending and other laws, which cold adversely impact our results of
operations, financial condition and business.

Various federal, state and local laws have beenteddhat are designed to discourage predatoryrignmtactices and more are currently
proposed. The federal Home Ownership and Equitjetion Act of 1994, commonly known as HOEPA, phitsiinclusion of certain

provisions in residential mortgage loans that haeetgage rates or origination costs in excesse&dqibed levels and requires that borrowers be
given certain disclosures before origination. Sata¢es have enacted, or may enact, similar lawsgadations, which in some cases impose
restrictions and requirements greater than thosOBPA. In addition, under the anti-predatory iegdaws of some states, the origination of
certain residential mortgage loans, including lodwas are not classified as “high cost” loans uragglicable law, must satisfy a net tangible
benefits test with respect to the related borrowiéris test may be highly subjective and open terpretation. As a result, a court may detern
that a residential mortgage loan we hold, for eXengioes not meet the test even if the relatedraigr reasonably believed that the test was
satisfied.
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Failure of residential mortgage loan originatorsenvicers to comply with these laws, to the exsat of their residential mortgage loans
become part of our mortgage-related assets, cobjgéc us, as an assignee or purchaser of thedelesidential mortgage loans or RMBS, to
monetary penalties and could result in the borrewescinding the affected residential mortgagedodrawsuits have been brought in various
states making claims against assignees or purchakhkigh cost loans for violations of state laMamed defendants in these cases have inc
numerous participants in the secondary mortgag&ehatf the loans are found to have been origithateviolation of predatory or abusive
lending laws, we could incur losses, which couldeagely impact our results of operations, financa@idition and business.

There is the potential for limitations on our ability to finance purchases of loans and RMBS, and fdosses on the loans and RMBS we
purchase, as a result of violations of law by theriginating lenders.

In June 2003, a California jury found a warehowesglér and securitization underwriter liable in gartfraud on consumers committed by a
lender to whom it provided financing and underwdtservices. The jury found that the investmenkhaas aware of the fraud and substant
assisted the lender in perpetrating the fraud byiging financing and underwriting services thabakd the lender to continue to operate, and
held it liable for 10% of the plaintiff's damage$his instance of liability is the first case weoknof in which an investment bank was held
partly responsible for violations committed by artgege lender customer. Shortly after the annauece of the jury verdict in the California
case, the Florida Attorney General filed suit ageihe same financial institution, seeking an infion to prevent it from financing mortgage
loans within Florida, as well as damages and pigilalties, based on theories of unfair and deceptade practices and fraud. The suit claimed
that this financial institution aided and abetteel same lender involved in the California casésicommission of fraudulent representations in
Florida.

In December of 2008, the Massachusetts Supremeidu@burt upheld a lower court’s order enteredigiaa lender that enjoined the lender
from foreclosing, without court approval, on cemtaiortgage loans secured by the borrower’s pritcip@lling that the court considered
“presumptively unfair.”

In May of 2009, another securitizer of residentirtgage loans entered into a settlement agreemignmthe Commonwealth of Massachusetts
stemming from its investigation of subprime lendamgl securitization markets. The securitizer afjtegrovide loan restructuring (including
significant principal write-downs) valued at approately $50 million to Massachusetts subprime beais and to make a $10 million payment
to the Commonwealth.

If other courts or regulators take similar actiangestment banks and investors in residential@mdmercial mortgage loans and RMBS like us
might face increased litigation as they are nansededendants in lawsuits and regulatory actiongnagthe mortgage companies or securitizers
with which they do business or they might be pritaibfrom foreclosing on loans they purchased. &amestment banks may charge more for
warehouse lending and reduce the prices they pdgdas to build in the costs of this potentidbhittion or exit the business entirely, thereby
increasing our cost of borrowing. Any such actibpsourts and regulators, and any such increasegricosts of borrowing, could, in turn,
have a material adverse effect on our results efains, financial condition, and business protspec

We are required to obtain various state licenses iarder to purchase mortgage loans in the secondamarket and there is no assurance
we will be able to obtain or maintain those license

While we are not required to obtain licenses tapase mortgage-backed securities, we are requireltain various state licenses to purchase
mortgage loans in the secondary market. There &seorance that we will obtain all of the licente we desire or that we will not experience
significant delays in seeking these licenses. leantiore, we will be subject to various informatieporting requirements to maintain these
licenses, and there is no assurance that we uigfpahose requirements. Our failure to obtainr@intain licenses will restrict our investment
options and could harm our business.
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The federal government’s efforts to encourage refiancing of certain loans may affect prepayment ratefor mortgage loans in RMBS.

In addition to the increased pressure upon resalenbrtgage loan investors and servicers to engalyess mitigation activities, the federal
government is pressing for refinancing of certaianis, and this encouragement may affect prepayrats for mortgage loans in RMBS. To
extent these and other economic stabilizationionutis efforts are successful in increasing prepaytrspeeds for residential mortgage loans,
such as those in RMBS, that could potentially hewegative impact our income and operating reuétdicularly in connection with loans or
RMBS purchased at a premium or our interest-ontyisges.

Federal and state agencies have taken enforcemertians and enacted regulations and government progms that require government
sponsored enterprises (such as Fannie Mae and FreddMac), insured depository institutions, and stateegulated loan servicers to engag
in loss mitigation activities relating to residental mortgage loans.

Federal and state agencies have taken enforcextemtsaand enacted regulations that require GSEh(as Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac),
insured depository institutions, and state regdl&tan servicers to engage in loss mitigation & relating to residential mortgage

loans. Other agencies have published policiesstirangly recommend these entities to engage srfugation activities. These loss mitigat
activities may include, for example, loan modifioat that significantly reduce interest and paymetdéferrals of payments, and reductions of
principal balances. Such modifications may adveratect our business and financial condition.

We will likely be subject to civil liability if we fail to make required disclosures to consumers.

Purchasers of consumer purpose, residential martigams have affirmative disclosure obligationsdnsumers under the Helping Families ¢
Their Homes in Bankruptcy Act of 2009, or the HFSAEL, which Congress enacted in May 2009 with amédiate effective date. This new
statutory obligation will subject purchasers of tgage loans to civil liability if they fail to makée required disclosures. Specifically, section
404 of the HFSTH Act amends the Truth in Lending thcprovide that a creditor that purchases ossgmed a mortgage loan must notify the
borrower in writing of a sale or transfer of histmr mortgage loan, not later than 30 days afeetrémsaction’s completion. The notice must
include how to reach an agent or party having aitthtm act on behalf of the new creditor, the liima of the place where the transfer of
ownership is recorded and any other relevant inédion about the new creditor. This disclosure \Wdé in addition to any transfer of servic
notice required under the Real Estate Settlementedures Act, or RESPA. Federal consumer creditiizes not typically impose responsibi
on assignees to communicate directly with mortgsgamd the statutory language is ambiguous.

Litigation alleging inability to foreclose may limit our ability to recover on some of the loans we pahase or that are held in RMBS.

In October 2007, a judge in the U.S. District Cdartthe Northern District of Ohio dismissed 14e&a# which plaintiffs sought to foreclose
mortgages held in securitization trusts by rulingtthose plaintiffs lacked standing to sue. lthezase, the judge found that the plaintiff was

the owner of the note and mortgage on the datéoteelosure complaint was filed in court. Simiéations have been initiated in other

states. These actions arise as a result of thenoonpractice in the mortgage industry of mortgageIsellers providing the loan purchasers
unrecorded assignments of the mortgage in blaek fhe assignments do not name the assignee)e Smumts have held that before a note
holder may initiate a foreclosure, the note holdest show proof to the court that the mortgagéfitses been properly assigned to the purchasel
each time the mortgage loan has been sold. dinesmes difficult to obtain and then record ora#of each successive assignment. It is still
unclear whether higher courts will uphold the reguoients imposed by these lower courts.

Until the issue is settled, investors in mortgaggnk are at risk of being unable to foreclose daulted loans, or at a minimum will be subject to
delays until all assignments in the chain of tramle title are properly recorded. Thus, we mayl®able to recover on some of the loans we
purchase or that are held in the RMBS we purct@asee may suffer delays in foreclosure, all of wh@ould result in a lower return on our lo
and RMBS.

In addition, some legislatures are also institusitrqngent proof of ownership requirements thagriser must satisfy before commencing a
foreclosure action. By way of example, in Janudy2the New York State Assembly amended statedawduire that any foreclosure
complaint contain an affirmative allegation thag fhlaintiff is the owner and holder of the note amaitgage at issue or has been delegated the
authority to institute the foreclosure action bg ttwner and holder of the subject mortgage and ndggin, laws of this type may limit our
ability to recover on some of the loans we purcltagbat are held in the RMBS we purchase, and masyit in delays in the foreclosure proct
all of which could result in a lower return on doans and RMBS.
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Legislative action to provide mortgage relief anddreclosure moratoriums may negatively impact our bainess.

As delinquencies and defaults in residential maggahave recently increased, there has been @agicg amount of legislative action that
might restrict our ability to foreclose and resbl property of a customer in default. For examgbene recently enacted state laws may require
the lender to deliver a notice of intent to forsgpprovide borrowers additional time to cure anstate their loans, impose mandatory settler
conference and mediation requirements, requireslent offer loan modifications, and prohibit iatton of foreclosure until the borrower has
been provided time to consult with foreclosure alors.

Alternatively, new federal legislation and someiségures provide a subsidy to a customer to pethmicustomer to continue to make payments
during a period of hardship. In the case of aislybd is possible that we might be required teefgo a portion of the amount otherwise due on
the loan for a temporary period.

Finally, some state legislatures are requiringdlm®ng lenders to give special notices to tenamgsoperties that the lenders are foreclosing on,
or to permit the tenants to remain in the propgatya period of time following the foreclosure.

These laws delay the initiation or completion akfdosure proceedings on specified types of refimlanortgage loans, or otherwise limit the
ability of residential loan servicers to take aotidhat may be essential to preserve the valugeahbrtgage loans on behalf of the holders of
RMBS. Any such limitations are likely to causéayed or reduced collections from mortgagors anmegaly increased servicing costs. Any
restriction on our ability to foreclose on a loany requirement that we forego a portion of the amhotherwise due on a loan or any
requirement that we modify any original loan tetimbkely to negatively impact our business, fin@hcondition, liquidity and results of
operations.

United States military operations may increase rislof Servicemembers Civil Relief Act shortfalls.

Under the federal Servicemembers Civil Relief Achorrower who enters active military service affter origination of his or her mortgage loan
generally may not be required to pay interest atawvannual rate of 6%, and the note holder isicéstr from exercising certain enforcement
remedies, during the period of the borrower’s a&tiuty status. Several states also have enactee oonsidering similar laws with varying
applicability and effect. As a result of militapperations in Afghanistan and Iraq, the Unitede3tétas placed a substantial number of armed
forces reservists and members of the National Goralctive duty status. It is possible that thenber of reservists and members of the
National Guard placed on active duty status mayamemt high levels for an extended time. To thiemtxthat a member of the military, o
member of the armed forces reserves or Nationatd3who is called to active duty, is a mortgagoadnan we purchase or an underlying loan
in a RMBS we may purchase, the interest rate liioiteof the Servicemembers Civil Relief Act, andy@omparable state law, will apply. An
increase in the number of borrowers taking advantighose laws may increase servicing expenseslfman we purchase or an underlying loan
in a RMBS we may purchase, and may also reduceflagland the interest payments collected from ¢hlosrrowers. In the event of default,
the laws may result in delaying or preventing thenl servicer from exercising otherwise availabteadies for default. If these events occur,
they may result in interest shortfalls on the loaespurchase or on the underlying loans in a RMBSway purchase that could result in a lower
return on our loans or additional losses.

Risks Related To Our Common Stock
The market price and trading volume of our shares bcommon stock may be volatile.
The market price of shares of our common stock bealgighly volatile and could be subject to widecfiations. In addition, the trading volume
in our shares of common stock may fluctuate andeaignificant price variations to occur. We caragsure you that the market price of our
shares of common stock will not fluctuate or dexkignificantly in the future. Some of the facttirat could negatively affect our share price or

result in fluctuations in the price or trading vole of our shares of common stock include thoséosit under “Risk Factors” and “Special Note
Regarding Forward-Looking Statements” and in ttiermation incorporated and deemed to be incorpdrbjereference herein, as well as:
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actual or anticipated variations in our quartefhei@ting results or business prospe

changes in our earnings estimates or publicatioes#arch reports about us or the real estatetiyd
an inability to meet or exceed securities analgstSmates or expectatior

increases in market interest rat

hedging or arbitrage trading activity in our shaséEsommon stock

capital commitments

changes in market valuations of similar compar

changes in valuations of our ass

adverse market reaction to any increased indebs$sdme incur in the future

additions or departures of management perso

actions by institutional shareholde

speculation in the press or investment commu

changes in our distribution polic

regulatory changes affecting our industry genemlgur busines:

general market and economic conditions;

future sales of our shares of common stock or #@siconvertible into, or exchangeable or exetdis#or, our shares of common stc

Common stock eligible for future sale may have advse effects on our share price.

We cannot predict the effect, if any, of futureesabf common stock, or the availability of shamsfditure sales, on the market price of the
common stock. Sales of substantial amounts of camstock, or the perception that such sales coeddromay adversely affect prevailing
market prices for the common stock. Annaly owngpraximately 4.38% of our outstanding shares of mom stock as of December 31,
2013. Our equity incentive plan provides for gsamitrestricted common stock and other equity-baseatds up to an aggregate of 8% of the
issued and outstanding shares of our common stoch {ully diluted basis) at the time of the awabject to a ceiling of 40,000,000 shares
available for issuance under the plan.

The lock-up period in connection with the sharepased by Annaly has expired. The market priceuofcommon stock may decline
significantly if there are sales of substantial amts of common stock or the perception that sutgssapuld occur.

There is a risk that our stockholders may not recefe distributions or that distributions may not grow over time.

We intend to make distributions on a quarterly ®asit of assets legally available to our stockhmslite amounts such that all or substantially all
of our REIT taxable income in each year is distiéiou Our ability to pay distributions may be adedysaffected by a number of factors,
including the risk factors described herein. Aditdbutions will be made at the discretion of ®mard of directors and will depend on our
earnings, our financial condition, maintenancewfREIT status and other factors as our boardrettirs may deem relevant from time to til

The Board of Directors declared and paid commockstash dividends of $0.09 per common share fdn eathe quarters of 2013. The Board
of Directors also declared and paid a special divilof $0.20 per share that was paid on Januarg@4 to shareholders of record on Janua
2014 and a regular quarterly dividend of $0.09quenmon share for the first quarter of 2014. Tharm®f Directors has also determined that
there will be a quarterly dividend of $0.09 perrehi@r the second, third and fourth quarters of2201

39




Among the factors that could adversely affect @sutts of operations and impair our ability to pigstributions to our stockholders are:

the profitability of the investments of net procedm our equity raise:

our ability to make profitable investmen

margin calls or other expenses that reduce ourftash

defaults in our asset portfolio or decreases irvithee of our portfolio; an

the fact that anticipated operating expense lavelg not prove accurate, as actual results mayfvamy estimates

A change in any one of these factors could affactadbility to make distributions. We cannot asstoe that we will achieve investment results
that will allow us to make a specified level of lealistributions or year-to-year increases in castridutions.

Market interest rates may have an effect on the trding value of our shares.

One of the factors that investors may consideeitiding whether to buy or sell our shares is osirifiution rate as a percentage of our share
price relative to market interest rates. If matkétrest rates increase, prospective investorsdaayand a higher distribution rate or seek
alternative investments paying higher dividendmtarest. As a result, interest rate fluctuationd eapital market conditions can affect the
market value of our shares. For instance, if irsierates rise, it is likely that the market pride®or shares will decrease as market rates on
interest-bearing securities, such as bonds, inereas

Investing in our shares may involve a high degreef oisk.

The investments we make in accordance with oursinvent objectives may result in a high amountsK when compared to alternative
investment options and volatility or loss of pripai. Our investments may be highly speculative aygressive, are subject to credit risk, interest
rate, and market value risks, among others, andftire an investment in our shares may not beldaifar someone with lower risk tolerance.

Broad market fluctuations could negatively impact he market price of our common stock.

The stock market has experienced extreme pricevalndhe fluctuations that have affected the markigiepof many companies in industries
similar or related to ours and that have been atedlto these companies’ operating performancesselbroad market fluctuations could reduce
the market price of our common stock. Furthermoug,operating results and prospects may be belewexpectations of public market analysts
and investors or may be lower than those of congzanith comparable market capitalizations, whichld¢dead to a material decline in the
market price of our common stock.

Future sales of shares may have adverse consequenf® investors, or cause our share price to deckn

We may issue additional shares in subsequent pofiéicngs or private placements to make new investts or for other purposes. We are not
required to offer any such shares to existing st@ders on a pre-emptive basis. Therefore, it maybe possible for existing shareholders to
participate in such future share issues, which dilaye the existing shareholders’ interests in us.

In addition, sales of substantial numbers of shaf@sir common stock in the public market, or tieecgption that such sales might occur, could
adversely affect the market price of our commouglstdhe sale of these shares could also impaiability to raise capital through a sale of
additional equity securities.

Our charter and bylaws contain provisions that mayinhibit potential acquisition bids that stockholders may consider favorable, and the
market price of our common stock may be lower as eesult.

Our charter and bylaws contain provisions that lavanti-takeover effect and inhibit a change inlmard of directors. These provisions
include the following:
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e There are ownership limits and restrictions on sfarability and ownership in our charteTo qualify as a REIT for each taxable y
after 2007, not more than 50% of the value of outstanding stock may be owned, directly or consivaly, by five or fewe
individuals during the second half of any calengear. In addition, our shares must be beneficiallned by 100 or more perst
during at least 335 days of a taxable year of 18thmoor during a proportionate part of a shortealtiée year for each taxable year ¢
2007. To assist us in satisfying these tests, barter generally prohibits any person from benafficior constructively owning mo
than 9.8% in value or number of shares, whichesenare restrictive, of any class or series of austanding capital stock. The
restrictions may discourage a tender offer or otharsactions or a change in the composition ofbmard of directors or control tt
might involve a premium price for our shares oreoitise be in the best interests of our stockholdatsany shares issued or transfe
in violation of such restrictions being automatigatansferred to a trust for a charitable beneafigj thereby resulting in a forfeiture
the additional share

e  Our charter permits our board of directors to isssteck with terms that may discourage a third pdroym acquiring us. Our charte
permits our board of directors to amend the chawiitout stockholder approval to increase the totahber of authorized shares
stock or the number of shares of any class orsamel to issue common or preferred stock, haviefepnces, conversion or ot
rights, voting powers, restrictions, limitationstasdividends or other distributions, qualificatiror terms or conditions of redempt
as determined by our board. Thus, our board cautlorize the issuance of stock with terms and itiond that could have the effect
discouraging a takeover or other transaction inctvhiolders of some or a majority of our shares iigheive a premium for th
shares over the th-prevailing market price of our shar

e Maryland Control Share Acquisition AcMaryland law provides the'‘control share’’ of a corporation acquired in‘‘control shar
acquisition” will have no voting rights except tioe extent approved by a vote of tihirds of the votes eligible to be cast on the e
under the Maryland Control Share Acquisition A¢Edntrol shares”means voting shares of stock that, if aggregated all othe
shares of stock owned by the acquirer or in respleathich the acquirer is able to exercise or ditbe exercise of voting power (exc
solely by a revocable proxy), would entitle the w@ioey to exercise voting power in electing direstaithin one of the following rang
of voting power: one-tenth or more but less thae-third, onethird or more but less than a majority, or a m&joor more of all votin
power. A'‘control share acquisiti’’ means the acquisition of control shares, subjectttain exception:

If voting rights or control shares acquired in atrol share acquisition are not approved at a $iolders’ meeting, or if the acquiring person
does not deliver an acquiring person statemerg@sned by the Maryland Control Share Acquisitioet,Ahen, subject to certain conditions and
limitations, the issuer may redeem any or all ef¢bntrol shares for fair value. If voting righfssoich control shares are approved at a
stockholders’ meeting and the acquirer become#eshto vote a majority of the shares of stocktkdito vote, all other stockholders may
exercise appraisal rights. Our bylaws contain &ipion exempting acquisitions of our shares fromMuaryland Control Share Acquisition Act.
However, our board of directors may amend our bylawthe future to repeal or modify this exemptimnywhich case any control shares of our
company acquired in a control share acquisitiohlvé@lsubject to the Maryland Control Share AcqigsitAct.

e Business Combinatior. Under Maryland law' ‘business combinatio’’ between a Maryland corporation and an interestekbblde
or an affiliate of an interested stockholder arehgited for five years after the most recent datewhich the interested stockhol
becomes an interested stockholder. These busioessirations include a merger, consolidation, skehange or, in circumstan
specified in the statute, an asset transfer oarg=selior reclassification of equity securities. Areiested stockholder is defined

0 any person who beneficially owns 10% or more ofutbéng power of the corporati’s shares; ¢

o an affiliate or associate of the corporation whibamay time within the tw-year period before the date in question, wa:
beneficial owner of 10% or more of the voting poweéthe then outstanding voting stock of the coation.
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A person is not an interested stockholder undestdieite if the board of directors approved in adegthe transaction by which such person
otherwise would have become an interested stockhditbwever, in approving a transaction, the badidirectors may provide that its approval
is subject to compliance, at or after the timegydraval, with any terms and conditions determingdhie board. After the five-year prohibition,
any business combination between the Maryland catipm and an interested stockholder generally thesecommended by the board of
directors of the corporation and approved by tfienaditive vote of at least:

0 80% of the votes entitled to be cast by holdersutétanding shares of voting stock of the corporatand

o0 two-thirds of the votes entitled to be cast by holagrgoting stock of the corporation, other than sisaneld by the interesi
stockholder with whom or with whose affiliate thesiness combination is to be effected or held bgaféiiate or associate
the interested stockholde

These super-majority vote requirements do not aibpihe corporation’s common stockholders receiveiaimum price, as defined under
Maryland law, for their shares in the form of castother consideration in the same form as prelyquesid by the interested stockholder for its
shares. The statute permits various exemptioms fi®provisions, including business combinatidret ire exempted by the board of directors
before the time that the interested stockholdeoimes an interested stockholder. Our board of wiredas adopted a resolution which provides
that any business combination between us and &y person is exempted from the provisions of tlagylnd Control Share Acquisition Act,
provided that the business combination is firstrapgd by the board of directors. This resolutioowever, may be altered or repealed in whole
or in part at any time. If this resolution is rafes, or the board of directors does not otheragggove a business combination, this statute may
discourage others from trying to acquire controigfand increase the difficulty of consummating affigr.

e  Staggered boarcOur board of directors is divided into three classkdirectors. Directors of each class are chésethree-year term
upon the expiration of their current terms, ancheggar one class of directors is elected by thekbmlders. The staggered terms of
directors may reduce the possibility of a tendéeradr an attempt at a change in control, evenghautender offer or change in con
might be in the best interests of our stockholc

e Our charter and bylaws contain other possible -takeover provisions Our charter and bylaws contains other provisitred ma
have the effect of delayingeferring or preventing a change in control of ushe removal of existing directors and, as a tesolulc
prevent our stockholders from being paid a premiiointheir common stock over the tt-prevailing market price

Our rights and the rights of our stockholders to t&e action against our directors and officers are tnited, which could limit stockholders’
recourse in the event of actions not in their besnterests.

Our charter limits the liability of our directora@ officers to us and our stockholders for monayaiges, except for liability resulting from:

e actual receipt of an improper benefit or profinioney, property or services;
e a final judgment based upon a finding of active detlberate dishonesty by the director or offideattwas material to the cause
action adjudicated for which Maryland law prohilstech exemption from liability

In addition, our charter authorizes us to obligaiecompany to indemnify our present and formegaors and officers for actions taken by tt
in those capacities to the maximum extent permigeMaryland law. Our bylaws require us to indemr@hch present or former director or
officer, to the maximum extent permitted by Marydaw, in the defense of any proceeding to whiclohghe is made, or threatened to be r
a party because of his or her service to us. litiaddwe may be obligated to fund the defensesmsturred by our directors and officers.
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The fair value of certain of the assets on our Cowtidated Statements of Financial Condition as caldated according to GAAP may not
reflect amounts we would receive if we disposed tfose assets.

GAAP requires that we consolidate certain of ourB8vWesecuritization transactions on our Consolidatede8tants of Financial Condition a
report these assets at fair value. Under GAAP vEue for these assets is measured by determiheair value of the underlying RMBS as:
we contributed to the re-securitization trust agaged to evaluating the fair value of the re-séized securities we received as a result of the
RMBS re-securitization transaction.

The fair value of the underlying RMBS assets sulijg¢the RMBS re-securitization transactions mdfedirom the value of the re-securitized
securities we received as a result of the RMBS:pendtization transaction. Discrepancies arisa sessult of market dynamics, the limitations of
the measurement techniques required by GAAP, theddidlation accounting principles under GAAP arel shbordinate nature, complexity,
illiquidity and restrictive features of the re-setimed securities we own. These differences betwtbe fair values of the underlying RMBS
consolidated on our Consolidated Statements ofreiahCondition under GAAP presentation and theneoaic value of our investments in the
re-securitized securities can be significant.

A discrepancy where the fair value of the undedyRMBS assets contained in a re-securitization teudifferent from the amount we would
receive if we sold the re-securitized securitiesow® may result in an overstatement or understatenfeour book value due to the accounting
standards we are required to apply. Reporting laghigook value than the value of our net investsianassets could have adverse effects on us
The adverse effects could include the inabilitagoee upon covenants with counterparties, thelihatn satisfy collateral demands of
counterparties based on their review of our finangiatements, or an overestimation in the mankeé pf our common stock.

Changes in the fair values of our assets, liabilés, and hedging instruments can have adverse effecn us, including earnings volatility,
and volatility in our book value.

The fair values for our assets, liabilities, anddiag instruments can be volatile. The fair valoas change rapidly and significantly from a
variety of factors, including changes in intereges, credit performance, perceived risk, supmmahd, and actual and projected cash flows anc
prepayments. Decreases in fair value may not satsbe the result of deterioration in futureftisws. Moreover, fair values for illiquid
assets can be difficult to estimate, which may Ieagblatility and uncertainty of earnings as autesf OTTI, or book value as a result of
increases in unrealized losses.

For GAAP purposes, we estimate the fair value o$tout not all, of the assets and liabilities on Gonsolidated Statements of Financial
Condition. In addition, valuation adjustments entain consolidated assets and our hedging institsae reflected in our Consolidated
Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Incboss). If we sell an asset below its cost basisyeported earnings will be reduced by
realized losses.

A decrease in the fair value of the securities wa may result in a reduction in our book value thuthe accounting standards we are requir
apply. Reporting a low book value could have adveffects even if that book value is not indicatifehe actual value of our net investments in
assets. The adverse effects could include thelityaio meet or agree upon covenants with countéies to enter into hedge instruments, or a
reduction in the market price of our common stock.

Tax Risks
Your investment has various federal income tax ris&.
This summary of certain tax risks is limited to federal tax risks addressed below. Additionalgigkissues may exist that are not addressed in
this Form 10K and that could affect the federal tax treatméntsoor our stockholders. This is not intendetleaused and cannot be used by
stockholder to avoid penalties that may be impasedtockholders under the Internal Revenue CodieoCode. We strongly urge you to seek

advice based on your particular circumstances frarindependent tax advisor concerning the effddisderal, state and local income tax law
an investment in common stock and on your indiviidiara situation.
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Complying with REIT requirements may cause us to foego otherwise attractive opportunities.

To qualify as a REIT for federal income tax purmysge must continually satisfy various tests rearthe sources of our income, the nature
and diversification of our assets, the amounts istilbute to our stockholders and the ownershipuwfstock. To meet these tests, we may be
required to forego investments we might otherwisden We may be required to make distributionsdoldtolders at disadvantageous times or
when we do not have funds readily available fotritistion. Thus, compliance with the REIT requirerteemay hinder our investment
performance.

We may enter into re-securitization transactions, lte tax treatment of which could have a material aderse
effect on our results of operations.

We have engaged in and intend to engage in fudsecuritization transactions in which we transfen-Agency RMBS to a special purpose
entity that has formed or will form a securitizatieehicle that will issue multiple classes of sé@s secured by and payable from cash flows on
the underlying Non-Agency RMBS. In the past, weéhatructured one such transaction as a real estatgage investment conduit, or REMIC,
securitization, which, to the extent we have trarsfd securities in a re-securitization, is viewsdhe sale of securities for tax purposes.
Although such transactions are treated as salgaXqiurposes, they have historically not given tsany taxable gain so that the prohibited
transactions tax rules have not been implicated ¢he tax only applies to net taxable gain frafesthat are prohibited transactions). If a re-
securitization transaction were to be considerdzbta sale of property to customers in the ordicaryse of a trade or business, and we
recognized a gain on such transaction for tax mepathen we could risk exposure to the 100% taxedtaxable income from prohibited
transactions. Moreover, even if we retained RMBShilteng from a resecuritization transaction and then subsequenttysah securities at a t
gain, the gain could, absent an available safeengmwvision, be characterized as net income frgroaibited transaction. Under these
circumstances, our results of operations could agerally adversely affected.

Complying with REIT requirements may force us to lguidate otherwise attractive investments.

To qualify as a REIT, we generally must ensure #hdhe end of each calendar quarter at least 3B walue of our total assets consists of
cash, cash items, government securities and eGBREIT real estate assets, including certain mgedoans and mortgage-backed securities.
The remainder of our investment in securities (othan government securities and qualifying retdtesassets) generally cannot include more
than 10% of the outstanding voting securities of @me issuer or more than 10% of the total valuthefoutstanding securities of any one issuer.
In addition, in general, no more than 5% of thaugadf our assets (other than government securifiegifying real estate assets, and stock in

or more TRSs) can consist of the securities ofamgissuer, and no more than 25% of the value ofadal securities can be represented by
securities of one or more TRSs. If we fail to céynpith these requirements at the end of any quante must correct the failure within 30 days
after the end of such calendar quarter or quatifycértain statutory relief provisions to avoiditasour REIT status and suffering adverse tax
consequences. As a result, we may be requireduiéate from our portfolio otherwise attractive @stments. These actions could have the ¢

of reducing our income and amounts available fstrifiution to our stockholders.

Potential characterization of distributions or gainon sale may be treated as unrelated business tatalincome to tax-exempt investors.

If (1) all or a portion of our assets are subjedtie rules relating to taxable mortgage poolsw@yre a “pension-held REIT,” or (3) a tax-
exempt stockholder has incurred debt to purchaseldrour common stock, then a portion of the thistions to and, in the case of a stockho
described in clause (3), gains realized on thecfatemmon stock by such tax-exempt stockholder begubject to federal income tax as
unrelated business taxable income under the IritB@&enue Code.

Classification of a securitization or financing armangement we enter into as a taxable mortgage poawd subject us or certain of our
stockholders to increased taxation.

We intend to structure our securitization and ftiag arrangements so as to not create a taxablgager pool. However, if we have borrowings
with two or more maturities and, (1) those borraygimre secured by mortgages or mortgage-backedtsecand (2) the payments made on the
borrowings are related to the payments receivetth®mninderlying assets, then the borrowings angdloéof mortgages or mortgage-backed
securities to which such borrowings relate maylassified as a taxable mortgage pool under theratd&Revenue Code. If any part of our
investments were to be treated as a taxable matgeagl, then our REIT status would not be impailed,a portion of the taxable income we
recognize may, under regulations to be issued &y thasury Department, be characterized as “exnebssion” income and allocated among
our stockholders to the extent of and generallgroportion to the distributions we make to eacleldtolder. Any excess inclusion income
would:
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e not be allowed to be offset by a stockha’s net operating losse

be subject to a tax as unrelated business incomstdckholder were a -exempt stockholde

e be subject to the application of federal income wathholding at the maximum rate (without reductitam any otherwise applical
income tax treaty) with respect to amounts allogablforeign stockholders; a

e Dbe taxable (at the highest corporate tax rate)siaather than to our stockholders, to the exteatetxcess inclusion income relate
stock held by disqualified organizations (generatix-exempt organizations not subject to tax on unrélatesiness income, includi
governmental organization:

Failure to qualify as a REIT would subject us to feleral income tax, which would reduce the cash avaible for distribution to our
stockholders.

We qualify as a REIT for federal income tax purgosemmencing with our taxable year ended Decembe2(®7. However, the federal inco
tax laws governing REITs are extremely complex, iatetpretations of the federal income tax lawsegaing qualification as a REIT are
limited. Qualifying as a REIT requires us to meatious tests regarding the nature of our assetsanithcome, the ownership of our outstant
stock, and the amount of our distributions on agoimg basis. While we intend to operate so thatwllequalify as a REIT, given the highly
complex nature of the rules governing REITs, thgodmg importance of factual determinations, inchgdihe tax treatment of certain investm
we may make, and the possibility of future charigesur circumstances, no assurance can be givémthaill so qualify for any particular ye:
If we fail to qualify as a REIT in any calendar yaad we do not qualify for certain statutory réfieovisions, we would be required to pay
federal income tax on our taxable income. We migigd to borrow money or sell assets to pay thaQar payment of income tax would
decrease the amount of our income available fariloigion to our stockholders. Furthermore, if vaél fo maintain our qualification as a REIT
and we do not qualify for certain statutory refiedvisions, we no longer would be required to iistie substantially all of our REIT taxable
income to our stockholders. Unless our failureualify as a REIT were excused under federal taxsJave would be disqualified from taxation
as a REIT for the four taxable years following ylear during which qualification was lost.

Failure to make required distributions would subjed us to tax, which would reduce the cash availabl®r distribution to our
stockholders.

To qualify as a REIT, we must distribute to ourcktwlders each calendar year at least 90% of olif Rkable income (excluding certain items
of non-cash income in excess of a specified thid¥hdetermined without regard to the deductiondimidends paid and excluding net capital
gain. To the extent that we satisfy the 90% distidn requirement, but distribute less than 100%wftaxable income, we will be subject to
federal corporate income tax on our undistributembime. In addition, we will incur a 4% nondedudaibkcise tax on the amount, if any, by
which our distributions in any calendar year assléan the sum of:

e  385% of our REIT ordinary income for that ye
e  95% of our REIT capital gain net income for thaayend
e any undistributed taxable income from prior ye

We intend to distribute our REIT taxable income@tw stockholders in a manner intended to satisfy9tdo distribution requirement and to a\
both corporate income tax and the 4% nondedudtikdése tax. REIT taxable income only includesratii TRS net income to the extent such
TRS distributes a dividend to the REIT. Therefon, REIT dividend distributions may or may notlude after-tax net income from our TRS.

Our taxable income may substantially exceed ouimmetme as determined by GAAP, because, for examgadized capital losses will be
deducted in determining our GAAP net income, buy mat be deductible in computing our taxable incomeddition, we may invest in assets
that generate taxable income in excess of econimicene or in advance of the corresponding cash fiom the assets. To the extent that we
generate such non-cash taxable income in a tayahle we may incur corporate income tax and thend®deductible excise tax on that income
if we do not distribute such income to stockholderthat year. In that event, we may be requicedse cash reserves, incur debt, or liquidate
non-cash assets at rates or at times that we regardfavorable to satisfy the distribution requieet and to avoid corporate income tax and the
4% nondeductible excise tax in that year. Moreower ability to distribute cash may be limitedfinancing facilities we may enter into.
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Ownership limitations may restrict change of contrd or business combination opportunities in which oustockholders might receive a
premium for their shares.

In order for us to qualify as a REIT for each tdratear after 2007, no more than 50% in value ofoutstanding capital stock may be owned,
directly or indirectly, by five or fewer individusiduring the last half of any calendar year. “Mduals” for this purpose include natural persc
private foundations, some employee benefit pladstarsts, and some charitable trusts. To presarw®EIT qualification, our charter generally
prohibits any person from directly or indirectly oiwg more than 9.8% in value or in number of shamschever is more restrictive, of any cl
or series of the outstanding shares of our cagtitek. This ownership limitation could have thesetfof discouraging a takeover or other
transaction in which holders of our common stocghmieceive a premium for their shares over tha firevailing market price or which holds
might believe to be otherwise in their best intexes

Our ownership of and relationship with any TRS whid we may form or acquire will be limited, and a falure to comply with the limits
would jeopardize our REIT status and may result inthe application of a 100% excise tax.

A REIT may own up to 100% of the stock of one orendRSs. A TRS may earn income that would not tadifying income if earned directly

by the parent REIT. Both the subsidiary and theTRBUSst jointly elect to treat the subsidiary asRST Overall, no more than 25% of the value
of a REIT’s assets may consist of stock or seesritf one or more TRSs. A TRS will pay federafiestand local income tax at regular corporate
rates on any taxable income that it earns. In Bxidithe TRS rules impose a 100% excise tax omicettansactions between a TRS and its
parent REIT that are not conducted on an arm’stlebgsis. Our TRS aftdax net income would be available for distributtorus but would nc
be required to be distributed to us. We anticiplaét the aggregate value of the TRS stock and sesuobwned by us will be less than 25% of
value of our total assets (including the TRS simo#t securities). Furthermore, we will monitor tladue of our investments in our TRSs to en
compliance with the rule that no more than 25%hefvalue of our assets may consist of TRS stocksaadrities (which is applied at the end of
each calendar quarter). In addition, we will seriae all of our transactions with taxable REIT ddizsies to ensure that they are entered into on
arm’s-length terms to avoid incurring the 100% s&dix described above. There can be no assuteweyer, that we will be able to comply
with the 25% limitation discussed above or to avapglication of the 100% excise tax discussed above

We could fail to qualify as a REIT or we could becme subject to a penalty tax if income we recognifeom certain investments that are
treated or could be treated as equity interests ia foreign corporation exceeds 5% of our gross incoenin a taxable year.

We may invest in securities, such as subordinatteddsts in certain CDO offerings, that are treatecbuld be treated for federal (and applic.
state and local) corporate income tax purposeguityanterests in foreign corporations. Categodésicome that qualify for the 95% gross
income test include dividends, interest and cemétiier enumerated classes of passive income. Wedin circumstances, the federal income
tax rules concerning controlled foreign corporatgiamd passive foreign investment companies rethatehe owner of an equity interest in a
foreign corporation include amounts in income withiiegard to the owner’s receipt of any distribngidrom the foreign corporation. Amounts
required to be included in income under those rategechnically neither actual dividends nor afithe other enumerated categories of passive
income specified in the 95% gross income test.neanore, there is no clear precedent with respetttet qualification of such income under the
95% gross income test. Due to this uncertaintyintend to limit our direct investment in securitiéat are or could be treated as equity interests
in a foreign corporation such that the sum of tm@ants we are required to include in income wilpeet to such securities and other amour
non-qualifying income do not exceed 5% of our gros®ine. We cannot assure you that we will be succkissfiis regard. To avoid any risk
failing the 95% gross income test, we may be reguio invest only indirectly, through a domesticS[ i any securities that are or could be
considered to be equity interests in a foreign @@tion. This, of course, will result in any incomegognized from any such investment to be
subject to federal income tax in the hands of tR&;Twhich may, in turn, reduce our yield on theegtment.
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Liquidation of our assets may jeopardize our REIT galification.

To qualify as a REIT, we must comply with requirentgeregarding our assets and our sources of inciénve.are compelled to liquidate our
investments to repay obligations to our lendersmag be unable to comply with these requiremerttispately jeopardizing our qualification as
a REIT, or we may be subject to a 100% tax on asyltant gain if we sell assets in transactionsateconsidered to be prohibited transactions.

The tax on prohibited transactions will limit our ability to engage in transactions, including certairmethods of securitizing mortgage
loans that would be treated as sales for federal @@me tax purposes.

A REIT’s net income from prohibited transactionsigject to a 100% tax. In general, prohibiteddeations are sales or other dispositions of
property, other than foreclosure property, butudaig mortgage loans, held primarily for sale tstomers in the ordinary course of business.
We might be subject to this tax if we sold or séaad our assets in a manner that was treatedsakedor federal income tax purposes.
Therefore, to avoid the prohibited transactions ¥&xmay choose not to engage in certain salessetsat the REIT level and may securitize
assets only in transactions that are treated aading transactions and not as sales for tax pagp@gen though such transactions may not be the
optimal execution on a pre-tax basis. We couldcgay prohibited transactions tax concerns by gimggin securitization transactions through

a TRS, subject to certain limitations describedvabd o the extent that we engage in such activitis=augh domestic TRSs, the income
associated with such activities will be subjedietderal (and applicable state and local) corpdrateme tax.

Characterization of the repurchase agreements we &t into to finance our investments as sales for fapurposes rather than as secured
lending transactions would adversely affect our allity to qualify as a REIT.

We have entered into and will enter into repurcteggeements with a variety of counterparties taesehour desired amount of leverage for the
assets in which we invest. When we enter into angfase agreement, we generally sell assets tcoowmterparty to the agreement and receive
cash from the counterparty. The counterparty iggab#d to resell the assets back to us at the ftie derm of the transaction, which is typically
30 to 90 days. We believe that for federal incoamepurposes we will be treated as the owner oésisets that are the subject of repurchase
agreements and that the repurchase agreementewittated as secured lending transactions notaditti;ig that such agreement may transfer
record ownership of the assets to the countergiartiyg the term of the agreement. It is possibbeydver, that the IRS could successfully assert
that we did not own these assets during the tertheofepurchase agreements, in which case we &iltd qualify as a REIT.

Complying with REIT requirements may limit our abil ity to hedge effectively.

The REIT provisions of the Internal Revenue Codestantially limit our ability to hedge mortgage-kad securities and related borrowings.
Under these provisions, our annual gross inconma fion-qualifying hedges, together with any otheoine not generated from qualifying real
estate assets, cannot exceed 25% of our annualigomsne. In addition, our aggregate gross incawma hon-qualifying hedges, fees, and
certain other non-qualifying sources cannot exé&@édf our annual gross income. As a result, we trtiglre to limit our use of advantageous
hedging techniques or implement those hedges thraukRS, which we may form in the future. This cbinicrease the cost of our hedging
activities or expose us to greater risks associatddchanges in interest rates than we would ettser want to bear.

We may be subject to adverse legislative or regulaty tax changes that could reduce the market pricef our common stock.

At any time, the federal income tax laws or redalet governing REITs or the administrative intetatiens of those laws or regulations may be
amended. We cannot predict when or if any new ddecome tax law, regulation or administrativeenpiretation, or any amendment to any
existing federal income tax law, regulation or adistrative interpretation, will be adopted, promatked or become effective and any such law,
regulation or interpretation may take effect rettoeely. We and our stockholders could be advera#figcted by any such change in, or any new,
federal income tax law, regulation or administratinterpretation.
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Dividends payable by REITs do not qualify for the educed tax rates.

Legislation enacted in 2003 generally reduces tagimmum tax rate for dividends payable to domedtclkolders that are individuals, trusts
estates from 39.6% to 20% (through 2013). Dividgraigable by REITS, however, are generally not leligfor the reduced rates. Although this
legislation does not adversely affect the taxatibREITs or dividends paid by REITs, the more falae rates applicable to regular corporate
dividends could cause investors who are individualsts and estates to perceive investments ifT Rl be relatively less attractive than
investments in stock of non-REIT corporations ey dividends, which could adversely affect thaueadf the stock of REITSs, including our
common stock.

Risks Associated With the Late Filings and RelatetMatters

Our failure to prepare and file timely our periodic reports with the SEC limits us from accessing thpublic markets to raise debt or
equity capital.

We did not file this 2013 Form 10-K within the tiframe required by the SEC, and we have not yed filur Form 10-Q for the first quarter of
2014. Because we are not current in our reporgggirements with the SEC, we are limited in oulitglio access the public markets to raise
debt or equity capital. Our limited ability to &ss the public markets could prevent us from pogstransactions or implementing business
strategies that we believe would be beneficialuobusiness. As a result of our failure to file &EC filings by the filing date required by the
SEC (including the grace period permitted by R@b-25 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934nasnded), we are not eligible to use our
current shelf registration statement on Form Se3il@a new Form S-3 registration statement) todrect public offerings until filings with the
SEC have been timely made for a full year. Ouligitality to use Form S-3 during this time periodll have a negative impact on our ability to
quickly access the public capital markets becalesaould be required to file a long-form registrat&tatement and wait for the SEC to declare
such registration statement effective.

Ouir failure to be current in our reporting requirem ents with the SEC may diminish our ability to enterinto borrowing arrangements
with counterparties who do not have transparency ito our financial performance.

To date, we have not had any counterparties togpurchase agreement borrowing arrangements teterang relationships as a result of our
failure to be current in our reporting requiremenith the SEC. However, since the fourth quarfe2Gil we have proactively reduced the
amount of borrowings under our master repurchasseagents with respect to Agency RMBS to ensurewieadre able to meet any margin ce

Our failure to timely file the financial statementsincluded in our delinquent SEC reports has causeds to modify some of our business
strategies and withdraw from certain state licenses

In order to engage in some business strategiearsveequired to maintain licenses in certain jucisohs. As a result of our failure to have
timely financial statements we withdrew our licemgevarious jurisdictions to avoid not being irogcstanding under such licenses. The failure
to maintain licenses or our good standing in varijpmisdictions may require us to cease certaifnless strategies or modify the way in which
we execute such strategies. For example, witlh@ustate licenses necessary to purchase residewtitjage loans, it was necessary for us to
structure securitization transactions in a differaanner than we may otherwise have chosen tortie may, among other things, cause us t
unable to execute aspects of our business whichhanag otherwise been profitable, or we may incuaitamhal costs related to such business
operations that we otherwise would not have. Tleeselitions may have a material adverse effectusrbasiness, financial condition and res
of operations.

We cannot be certain that any remedial measures weave taken or intend to take will in the future ensrre that we design, implement and
maintain adequate controls over our financial proceses and reporting with respect to future filings wth the SEC, accordingly, additional
material weaknesses may occur in the future.

As a result of our review of issues identified onoection with the Restatement Filing, we haverdateed that a material weakness in internal
controls over financial reporting existed at the@any as of December 31, 2013. Specifically, vdendit design and maintain adequate
procedures or effective review and approval. Aiied description of this material weakness is fted in “Item 9A, Controls and Procedures.”
Due to this material weakness, management haswiedtthat we did not maintain effective internatteol over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2013.
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It is possible that additional control deficiencimay be identified in the future that may represer® or more material weaknesses that could,
among other things, cause us to fail to file timaly periodic reports with the SEC; prevent us fmaviding reliable and accurate financial
information and forecasts or from avoiding or déterfraud; or require us to incur additional castglivert management resources to, among
other things, comply with Section 404 of the Sadzm@xley Act of 2002.

We may become subject to litigation arising from tle Restatement Filing or related matters, and any b litigation may have a material
adverse effect on our business.

We have received shareholder demand letters remgptice Restatement Filing and related matters.sd hetters, among other things, generally
request that our Board of Directors take variou®as to recover purported damages for our benéfiese letters further reserve the
shareholders’ rights to commence a shareholdevataré action.

We may incur costs and expenses as a result of tRestatement Filing, which may have a material advee effect on results of operations.

While we currently expect to be reimbursed by oamniger for certain costs associated with the Rastatt Filing (including legal, audit and
consulting related costs), we may incur additiarzats as a result of the Restatement Filing, dn seicnbursement may not fully offset our
expenses. Under these circumstances, our re$dpemations may be materially adversely affect8de “Item 3, Legal Proceedings.”

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
Item 2. Properties

As of December 31, 2013, we do not own any propetiyr executive and administrative office is lechat 1211 Avenue of the Americas, Suite
2902, New York, New York 10036, telephone (646)-85%59. We share this office space with Annaly amdubsidiaries.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

After the issuance of the interim financial statetsdor the third quarter of 2011, the Audit Contegtof our Board of Directors initiated an
internal investigation, with the assistance of mg&gounsel and financial advisors engaged by deitsbunsel, regarding the facts and
circumstances relating to our accounting for Noregy RMBS and the restatement of our financiakstants.

Our Board of Directors has received three derieatigmand letters alleging, among other things,ttieatirectors and our officers, as well as
Manager, FIDAC, breached their fiduciary dutiesisoby failing to institute adequate internal colstiemd failing to ensure that we made acct
financial disclosures. These letters request, @notiner things, that the Board of Directors takigoacto investigate and remedy the alleged
breaches of fiduciary duty. The Audit Committe@eots to conclude its investigation and make fisabmmendations to the Board of Direct
about an appropriate response to the letters witleimext month. The Audit Committee has reactmedralerstanding with FIDAC that resolves
the issues raised in the derivative demand letf€h& Audit Committee also expects to pursue autwhli remedies against other parties regarding
the facts and circumstances relating to our acoogifiir Non-Agency RMBS and the restatement offoancial statements. These and other
potential actions that may be filed against us,tivrewith or without merit, may divert the attemtiof management from our business, harm our
reputation and otherwise may have a material agwedfect on our business, financial condition, ssef operations and cash flows.
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Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable
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PART I
Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Relted Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Eify Securities

Our common stock began trading publicly on the NX(®8er the trading symbol “CIM” on November 16, 20As of December 31, 2013, we
had 1,027,626,237 shares of common stock issuedwstinding which were held by 351 holders of ré@d our common stock as of
December 31, 2013. The following tables set fdidhthe periods indicated, the high, low, and cigssales prices per share of our common !
as reported on the NYSE composite tape and thedtaistends declared per share of our common stock.

Stock Price

High Low Close
Quarter Ended December 31, 2( $ 31¢ $§ 29 $ 3.1C
Quarter Ended September 30, 2! $ 3.07 $ 28z $ 3.04
Quarter Ended June 30, 2C $ 3.3z % 29C $ 3.0C
Quarter Ended March 31, 20 $ 3.2¢ $ 267 $ 3.1¢
Quarter Ended December 31, 2( $ 2.7¢ $ 252 $ 2.61
Quarter Ended September 30, 2! $ 28 ¢ 21z ¢ 271
Quarter Ended June 30, 2C $ 29 % 2.3t $ 2.3¢€
Quarter Ended March 31, 20 $ 3.1z $ 251 $ 2.8%

Common

Dividends

Declared Per
Share

Quarter Ended December 31, 2( $ 0.2¢
Quarter Ended September 30, 2! $ 0.0¢
Quarter Ended June 30, 2C $ 0.0¢
Quarter Ended March 31, 20 $ 0.0¢
Quarter Ended December 31, 2( $ 0.0¢
Quarter Ended September 30, 2! $ 0.0¢
Quarter Ended June 30, 2C $ 0.0¢
Quarter Ended March 31, 20 $ 0.11

We pay quarterly dividends and distribute to oockholders all or substantially all of our taxalsleome in each year (subject to certain
adjustments). This enables us to qualify for theltenefits accorded to a REIT under the Code. &Ve hot established a minimum dividend
payment level and our ability to pay dividends rbayadversely affected for the reasons describedruhd caption “Risk Factors.” All
distributions will be made at the discretion of dward of directors and will depend on our taxahd®me, our financial condition, maintenance
of our REIT status and such other factors as oardof directors may deem relevant from time tcetim

The Board of Directors declared dividends of $(B6share, including a special dividend of $0.20gb&re, during 2013. The special dividend
was paid on January 31, 2014 to shareholders ofdemn January 8, 2014. The Board of Directordagled dividends of $0.38 per share during
2012. The Board of Directors declared and pargalar quarterly dividend of $0.09 per common sliaré¢he first quarter of 2014. The Board
of Directors determined that there will be a quéytdividend of $0.09 per share for the seconddthand fourth quarters of 2014. The Board of
Directors will review this program after the corsitun of 2014.

Share Performance Graph

The following graph and table set forth certairomfiation comparing the yearly percentage changerinulative total return on our common
stock to the cumulative total return of the Stadd&afoor’'s Composite-500 Stock Index or S&P 500ebndand the Bloomberg REIT Mortgage
Index, or BBG REIT Index, an industry index of ngaije REITs. The comparison is for the period flaaeember 31, 2008 to December 31,
2013 and assumes the reinvestment of dividends.gidph and table assume that $100 was investad icommon stock and the two other
indices on December 31, 2008. Upon written requesyill provide stockholders with a list of the RE included in the BBG REIT Index.
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The information in the share performance graphtaht has been obtained from sources believed teliadle, but neither its accuracy nor its
completeness can be guaranteed. The historicahiation set forth above is not necessarily indieatf future performance. Accordingly, we
do not make or endorse any predictions as to fidiuaee performance.

The share performance graph and table shall ndebmed, under the Securities Act of 1933, as angemdehe Securities Exchange Act of

1934, as amended, to be (i) “soliciting material*fded” or (ii) incorporated by reference by aggneral statement into any filing made by us
with the SEC, except to the extent that we spedifidncorporate such share performance graph anié by reference.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

We have adopted a long term stock incentive plamaentive Plan, to provide incentives to our ipeledent directors and employees of our
Manager and its affiliates to stimulate their effdowards our continued success, long-term grenthprofitability and to attract, reward and
retain personnel and other service providers. Ifbentive Plan authorizes the Compensation Comenitfehe board of directors to grant
awards, including incentive stock options as definader Section 422 of the Code, or ISOs, non-figdlstock options, or NQSOs, restricted
shares and other types of incentive awards. Ttenlive Plan authorizes the granting of optionstber awards for an aggregate of 40,000,000
shares of common stock. For a description of ncettive Plan, see Note 12 to the Consolidatedn€inhStatements.

The following table provides information as of Deteer 31, 2013 concerning shares of our common stottorized for issuance under our
existing Incentive Plan.

Number of
Securities Number of
to be Issued Upon Securities
Exercise of Weighted Averag: Remaining
Outstanding Exercise Price of Available
Options, Outstanding for Future Issuance
Warrants, and Options, Warrants, Under Equity
Plan Categor Rights and Rights Compensation Pla
Equity Compensation Plans Approved by Stockhol - - 38,387,56
Equity Compensation Plans Not Approved by Stockérsd1) - - -
Total - - 38,387,56

(1) We do not have any equity plans that have eehkapproved by our stockholde

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following selected financial data are as of fimdhe years ended December 31, 2013, 2012, ZIMD, and 2009. The selected financial
data should be read in conjunction with the moteitisl information contained in the Consolidateddficial Statements and Notes thereto

contained in Part IV, Financial Statements, andafifigement's Discussion and Analysis of Financiald@ion and Results of Operations” in
Part I, Item 7, included elsewhere in this 2013nd.0-K.
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Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition Higlights
(dollars in thousands, except share and per sladiag

December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Nonr-Agency Mortgag-Backed Securitie

Senior $ 89,68° $ 88 $ 1,02( $ 342,57t $ 2,022,41

Senior, interest onl $ 229,06! $ 122,86¢ $ 188,67¢ $ 160,96 $ -

Subordinate $ 457,56¢ $ 547,79: $ 606,89! $ 635,45. $ 361,07

Subordinated, interest on $ 16,57. $ 16,25 $ 22,01¢ $ 32,44¢ $ 15,37¢

RMBS transferred to consolidated variable inte

entities (VIES) $ 2,981,557 $ 3,274,20. $ 3,270,33; $ 4,357,66/ $ -
Agency Mortgag-Backed securitie $ 199757 $ 180669 $ 3,14453 $ 2,133,58 $ 1,690,02
Securitized loans held for investme $ 783,48 $ 1,300,13 $ 256,63: $ 349,11 $  470,53:
Total asset $ 6,936,08. $ 7,742,48' % 7,747,13! $ 8,069,28! $ 4,618,322
Repurchase agreeme $ 165856 $ 152802 $ 267298 $ 180879 $ 1,716,39
Repurchase agreements with affilis $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 259,00
Securitized debt, loans held for investm $ 669,98: $§ 1,169,711 $ 212,77¢ $ 289,23t $  390,35(
Securitized debt, N-Agency RMBS transferred 1
consolidated VIE: $ 933,73. $ 1,336,26. $ 1,630,27 $ 1,956,077 $ -
Total liabilities $ 3,604,557 $ 4,200,010 $ 4,699,511 $ 4,390,69 $ 2,491,76
Shareholders' equit $ 3,331,511 $ 354247 $ 3,04761 $ 3,678,558 $ 2,126,56:
Book value per share ( $ 3.2 % 3.4t $ 297 $ 3.5¢ $ 3.17
Number of shares outstandi 1,027,626,23 1,027,597,45 1,027,467,08 1,027,034,35 670,371,58

(1) See discussion of Estimated Economic Book Valudanagement's Discussion and Analysis of Firelr@ondition and Results
Operations

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehsive Income (Loss) Highlights
(dollars in thousands, except share and per slzdiag

For the Year Ende
December 31 December 31 December 31 December 3. December 3.

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Interest income $ 511,78: $ 589,44( $ 705,02: $ 576,100 $ 287,68.
Income expens $ 101,99¢ $ 126,55¢ $ 134,85¢ $ 146,44t $ 35,08:
Net interest incom $ 409,78: $ 462,88. $ 570,16t $ 429,65. $ 252,60(
Net income (loss $ 362,68t $ 327,76 $ 137,32¢ $ 248,40! $ 230,60t
Income (loss) per shée-basic $ 0.3t $ 03z $ 0.1z $ 0.3C $ 0.4€
Average share-basic 1,027,094,37 1,026,831,03 1,026,365,19 821,675,80 505,962,84
Dividends declared per share $ 0.5€ $ 0.3t $ 051 $ 0.6 $ 0.42

(1) For applicable period as reported in our egmi@anouncement
Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of ikncial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion of our financial conditiand results of operations should be read in catipm with the consolidated financial
statements and notes to those statements incladeam 15 of this 2013 Form 10-K. The discussiayroontain certain forward-looking
statements that involve risks and uncertaintiewwBrdiooking statements are those that are not histdriczature. As a result of many factc
such as those set forth under “Risk Factors” is #i13 Form 10-K, our actual results may differemnatly from those anticipated in such
forward-looking statements.

Executive Summary

We are a Maryland corporation that commenced ojpaisabn November 21, 2007. We acquire, eitherctliirer indirectly through our
subsidiaries, residential mortgage-backed secsiritieRMBS, residential mortgage loans, commeruiadtgage loans, real estate related
securities and various other asset classes. Wextemally managed by Fixed Income Discount Adwistompany, which we refer to as FID,
or our Manager. FIDAC is a fixed-income investmeranagement company that is registered as an meastdviser with the SEC. FIDAC is
a wholly owned subsidiary of Annaly Capital Managet Inc., or Annaly. FIDAC has a broad rangex@ezience in managing investments in
Agency RMBS, which are mortgage pass-through éeatés, collateralized mortgage obligations, or Gyiénd other RMBS representing
interests in or obligations backed by pools of mage loans issued or guaranteed by Fannie MaediErbthc, and Ginnie Mae, Non-Agency
RMBS, collateralized debt obligations, or CDOs, attter real estate related investments.
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Our objective is to provide attractive risk-adjusteturns to our investors over the long-term, prity through dividends and secondarily
through capital appreciation. We intend to achitng objective by investing in a diversified int@gnt portfolio of RMBS, residential mortge
loans, real estate-related securities and varithey asset classes, subject to maintaining our REflis and exemption from registration under
the 1940 Act. The RMBS, ABS, CMBS, and CDOs wechase may include investment-grade and non-investgrade classes, including the
BB-rated, B-rated and non-rated classes.

We rely on our Manager’s expertise in identifyirggets within our target asset classes. Our Mamagkes investment decisions based on
various factors, including expected cash yieldgtie¢ value, risk-adjusted returns, current angegpted credit fundamentals, current and
projected macroeconomic considerations, currentpaojgcted supply and demand, credit and marklecoscentration limits, liquidity, cost of
financing and financing availability, as well asimaining our REIT qualification and our exemptifioom registration under the 1940 Act.

Over time, we will modify our investment allocatistrategy as market conditions change to seek kinmee the returns from our investment
portfolio. We believe this strategy, combined witlr Manager’s experience, will enable us to pajdeinds and achieve capital appreciation
through various changing interest rate and cradites and provide attractive long-term returnacestors.

Our targeted asset classes and the principal imezds we have made and in which we may in theduhwest are:
Asset Class Principal Investments

RMBS e Non-Agency RMBS, including investme-grade and nc-investment grade classes, including
BB-rated, E-rated and nc-rated classe

e Agency RMBS
e Interes-only (“10”) RMBS

Residential Mortgage Loat e Prime mortgage loans, which are mortgage loansctireform to the underwriting guidelines
Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, which we refer to asn&g Guidelines; and jumbo prime mortgage
loans, which are mortgage loans that conform toApency Guidelines except as to loan ¢

e Alt-A mortgage loans, which are mortgage loans thatmaag been originated usi
documentation standards that are less stringentttttadocumentation standards applied by ce
other first lien mortgage loan purchase programsh &s the Agency Guidelines, but have one or
more compensating factors such as a borrower wsthoag credit or mortgage history or
significant asset

e FHA/VA insured loans, which are mortgage loans tmamply with the underwriting guidelines
the Federal Housing Administration (FHA) or Depagtrof Veteran Affairs (VA) and which are
guaranteed by the FHA or VA, respectiv

e Mortgage servicing rights associated with residgmtiortgage loans, which reflect the value of

future stream of expected cash flows from the emttral rights to service a given pool of
residential mortgage loar
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Commercial Mortgage Loar e First or second lien loans secured by multifamigperties, which are residential rental propel
consisting of five or more dwelling units; and nixessidential or other commercial properties;
retail properties; office properties; or industpabperties, which may or may not conform to the
Agency Guideline:

Other Asse-Backed Securitie e CMBS
e Debt and equity tranches of CDt

e Consumer and n-consumer ABS, including investm-grade and nc-investment grade classt
including the BE-rated, E-rated and nc-rated classe

Hedging Instrument e Swaps
e Swaptions
e Futures
e Index options
e Mortgage option:

Since we commenced operations in November 200hawve focused our investment activities on acquiNieg-Agency and Agency RMBS al
on purchasing residential mortgage loans that baea originated by select originators, including ittail lending operations of leading
commercial banks. Our investment portfolio at Deber 31, 2013 was weighted toward Non-Agency RMBS.December 31, 2013, based on
the amortized cost balance of our interest earagsgts, approximately 49.8% of our investment pliotivas Non-Agency RMBS, 36.1% of our
investment portfolio was Agency RMBS, and 14.1%wif investment portfolio was securitized residdmtiartgage loans. At December 31,
2012, based on the amortized cost balance of teneist earning assets, approximately 50.3% ofrougstment portfolio was Non-Agency
RMBS, 28.2% of our investment portfolio was AgefiyIBS, and 21.5% of our investment portfolio wasusgized residential mortgage

loans. We expect that over the near term, oursimvent portfolio will continue to be weighted towaddon-Agency RMBS, subject to
maintaining our REIT qualification and our 1940 Asiemption.

We have engaged in transactions with residentiatgage lending operations of leading commerciakband other originators in which we
identified and rainderwrote residential mortgage loans owned by sadities, and purchased and securitized suchenetiid mortgage loans.
the past we have also acquired formerly AAA-rateshdgency RMBS and immediately re-securitized theseurities. We sold the resulting
AAA-rated super senior RMBS and retained the rateuhrated mezzanine RMBS.
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Our investment strategy is intended to take adggnéd opportunities in the current interest rate aredit environment. We expect to adjust our
strategy to changing market conditions by shiftiug asset allocations across these various asssied as interest rate and credit cycles change
over time. We believe that our strategy, combiwét FIDAC’s experience, will enable us to pay dignds and achieve capital appreciation
throughout changing market cycles. We expectke talong-term view of assets and liabilities, andreported earnings and estimates of the
fair value of our investments at the end of a feiahreporting period will not significantly impaour objective of providing attractive risk-
adjusted returns to our stockholders over the engy

We use leverage to seek to increase our poteatizins and to finance the acquisition of our assBis income is generated primarily by the
difference, or net spread, between the income weaaour assets and the cost of our borrowings. epect to finance our investments using a
variety of financing sources including, when avaliéa repurchase agreements, warehouse facilitééseguritizations. We may manage our (
and interest rate risk by utilizing interest ragglges, such as interest rate swaps, caps, optidrfsitares to reduce the effect of interest rate
fluctuations related to our financing sources.

We have elected and believe we are organized areldgerated in a manner that qualifies us to bedas a REIT under the Code. A REIT
generally will not be subject to federal income textaxable income that is distributed to stockadd Furthermore, substantially all of our
assets consist of qualified REIT real estate agetthe type described in Code Section 856(c)(5Ye calculate that at least 75% of our assets
were qualified REIT assets, as defined in the Clatehe years ended December 31, 2013 and 201Ral¥é calculate that our revenues
qualified for the 75% REIT income test and for #8586 REIT income test for the years ended Decembe2@L3, 2012 and 2011. We also met
all REIT requirements regarding the ownership af@mmon stock and the distribution of our REITalabe income. Therefore, for the years
ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, we believe #agualified as a REIT under the Code.

We operate our business to be exempt from redgmtrander the 1940 Act, and therefore we are reduio invest a substantial majority of our
assets in loans secured by mortgages on real esidieal estate-related assets. Subject to nrangeour REIT qualification and our 1940 Act
exemption, we do not have any limitations on the@amts we may invest in any of our targeted asssteks.

Looking forward, we cannot predict the percentageun assets that will be invested in each assasabr whether we will invest in other classes
of investments. We may change our investmentegfyaand policies without a vote of our stockholders

Net Income Summary

The table below presents our net income on a GAa&distfor the years ended December 31, 2013, 204 2Gi.
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Net Income (Loss)
(dollars in thousand:

For the Year Ende

December 31

December 31

December 31

2013 2012 2011
Net Interest Income:
Interest income $ 140,22: $ 172,08t 254,02
Interest expens (6,770 (10,679 (11,94)
Interest income, Assets of consolidated V 371,55¢ 417,35: 450,99t
Interest expense, N-recourse liabilities of consolidated VII (95,229 (115,88() (122,919
Net interest income (expens 409,78« 462,88 570,16t
Other-than-temporary impairments:
Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss (4,35¢) (47,637) (241,96
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensigeme (loss (40,817 (84,619 (115,143
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss (45,167 (132,25() (357,109
Other gains (losses)
Net unrealized gains (losses) on derivati 34,36¢ (9,479 (34,479
Net realized gains (losses) on derivati (7,719 (20,22 (15,929
Gains (losses) on derivativ 26,65¢ (29,690 (50,407
Net unrealized gains (losses) on inte-only RMBS (44,277 83: (14,545
Net realized gains (losses) on sales of investn 68,10° 85,16¢ 54,35
Realized losses on principal w-downs of No-Agency RMBS (18,316 - -
Total other gains (losse 32,17( 56,30 (10,599
Net investment income (los 396,78 386,93! 202,46.
Other expenses
Management fee 25,95: 49,52¢ 51,96¢
Expense recoveries from Manay (6,789 (4,712) -
Net Management fee 19,16« 44 81 51,96
Provision for loan losses, n (1,799 36¢ 5,291
General and administrative expen 16,73¢ 13,98¢ 7,267
Total other expense 34,09¢ 59,16° 64,52’
Income (loss) before income taxe 362,68t 327,76 137,93!
Income taxe: 2 1 60¢
Net income (loss $ 362,68( $ 327,76 137,32
Net income (loss) per share available to common stedolders:
Basic $ 0.3t $ 0.32 0.1:
Diluted $ 0.3t $ 0.3 0.1:
Weighted average number of common shares outstandjn
Basic 1,027,094,37 1,026,831,03 1,026,365,19
Diluted 1,027,570,34 1,027,499,25 1,027,171,38

For the year ended December 31, 2013, our net iacgas $362.7 million, or $0.35 per average basienaon share, as compared to $327.8

million, or $0.32 per average basic common sharethie year ended December 31, 2012. For thegresed December 31, 2011, our net inc
was $137.3 million, or $0.13 per average basic comshare. The increase in earnings for the yedgdBecember 31, 2013 over the same
period of 2012 is primarily attributable to decknie OTTI of $87.1 million from the year ended Derxer 31, 2013 as compared to the same

period of 2012 offset in part by lower net interesiome year over year of $51.0 million from theyended December 31, 2013 as compared to

the same period of 2012. The increase in earriorgbe year ended December 31, 2012 as compatéeé same period of 2011 is primarily ¢
to declines in OTTI of $224.9 million from the yeamded December 31, 2011 as compared to the saind p£2012.

We discuss the changes in our net income in greateil in the discussion on our results of operetibelow.

Trends

We expect the results of our operations to be tdteby various factors, many of which are beyondoauntrol. Our results of operations will
primarily depend on, among other things, the l@f&lur net interest income, the market value ofassets, and the supply of and demand for

such assets. Economic trends, both macro as svébae directly affecting the residential housimayket, and the supply and demand of RMBS

may affect our operations and financial resultse 8éo evaluate market information regarding cunmresidential mortgage loan underwriting
criteria and loan defaults to manage our portfofiassets, leverage, and debt. Our net interestre, which reflects the amortization of

purchase premiums and accretion of discounts, s/arienarily as a result of changes in interestsiaberrowing costs, credit impairment losses,
and prepayment speeds, which is a measurementofhickly borrowers pay down the unpaid principaldmce on their mortgag



loans. Further description of these factors ivigied below.
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Prepayment Speec Prepayment speeds, as reflected by the Constapayment Rate, or CPR, vary according to inteess, the type of
investment, conditions in financial markets, artteotffactors, none of which can be predicted with @artainty. In general, when interest rates
rise, it is relatively less attractive for borrowéo refinance their mortgage loans, and as atrggapayment speeds tend to decrease. When
interest rates fall, prepayment speeds tend tease. For mortgage loan and RMBS investments psedhat a premium, as prepayment speeds
increase, the amount of income we earn decreashs asirchase premium on the bonds amortizes feasterexpected. Conversely, decreas:
prepayment speeds result in increased income anextand the period over which we amortize the lpase premium. For mortgage loan and
RMBS investments purchased at a discount, as pregratyspeeds increase, the amount of income wereagases from the acceleration of the
accretion of the discount into interest income. &ogely, decreases in prepayment speeds reswdtieased income as the accretion of the
purchase discount into interest income occurs avenger period. Recently, the correlation betwiaggrest rates and prepayment has not
followed normal trends for certain asset clasg&ise to economic hardship, some borrowers have beable to refinance their loans as
underwriting standards are more stringent and toediditions remain restrictive.

Rising Interest Rate Environme As indicated above, as interest rates rise, prapat speeds generally decrease. Rising inteatest,r

however, increase our financing costs which mayltés a net negative impact on our net interesbime. In addition, if we acquire Agency ¢
Non-Agency RMBS collateralized by monthly reset adjbét-rate mortgages, or ARMs, and three- andyea- hybrid ARMs, such interest r
increases could result in decreases in our nesiment income, as the increase in our adjustatdeassets may increase slower than our
adjustable rate financing. We expect that ourdfirate assets would decline in value in a risingrest rate environment and that our net interest
spreads on fixed rate assets could decline irragrinterest rate environment to the extent susktasare financed with floating rate debt.

Credit Risk. One of our strategic focuses is on acquiringelsted Non-Agency RMBS that have been downgradeailibe of defaults in the
mortgages collateralizing such RMBS. When we aegsiich RMBS we attempt to purchase it at a pricé ¢hat its loss-adjusted return profile
is in line with our targeted yields. We retain tiek of potential credit losses on all of the desitial mortgage loans we hold in our portfolio as
well as all of the Non-Agency RMBS. We attemptritigate credit risk in the asset selection procdasor to the purchase of investments, we
conduct a credit-risk based analysis of the calldtgecuring our investment that includes examitiagower characteristics, geographic
concentrations, current and projected delinquencigsent and projected severities, and actualexpected prepayment speeds among other
characteristics to estimate expected losses. Vdeaaltjuire assets which we believe to be of higHicguality.

Size of Investment PortfolioThe size of our investment portfolio, as measimethe aggregate unpaid principal balance of contgage loans
and aggregate principal balance of our mortgageeelsecurities and the other assets we own,dsaddey revenue driver. Generally, as the
of our investment portfolio grows, the amount dénest income we receive increases. The largestment portfolio, however, may result in
increased expenses if we incur additional intezgpense to finance the purchase of our assets.

Financial Condition

Estimated Economic Book Valu

This Management Discussion and Analysis sectiotadas analysis and discussion of financial infoliorathat utilizes or presents ratios based
on GAAP book value. The table and discussion bglmgent our estimated economic book value. Wekzdk and disclose this non-GAAP
measurement because we believe it representsiaratesof the fair value of the assets we own orahite to dispose of, pledge, or otherwise

monetize. The estimated economic book value shmatithe viewed in isolation and is not a substifatebook value computed in accordance
with GAAP.
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GAAP requires us to consolidate certain securitimatand re-securitization transactions where we lietermined that we are the primary
beneficiary. In these transactions, we transfessests to the trusts, which issued tranches afrsand subordinate notes or certificates. We
sold the senior tranches and therefore have nancimg involvement in these trusts other than beiplder of notes or certificates issued by
trusts, with the same rights as other holders efibies or certificates, except as it relates thiC2012-CIM1, CSMC 2012-CIM2 and CSMC
2012-CIM3. As it relates solely to CSMC 2012-CIMOSMC 2012-CIM2 and CSMC 2012-CIM3, we have theighib approve loan
modifications and determine the course of actiobpetdaken as it relates to loans in technical defiaeluding whether or not to proceed with
foreclosure. The notes and certificates we owhwlggie issued by the trusts are largely subordihiziterests in those trusts. The trusts have no
recourse to our assets other than pursuant toaatbi®y us of the transaction documents relateldetdrainsfer of the assets by us to the trusts, but
are presented as if we own 100% of the trust.

For re-securitized RMBS transactions and loan $zafions, we present the pre-securitized assatsterred into the consolidated trusts in our
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition as-Ngency RMBS transferred to consolidated varidfierest entities or Securitized loans
held for investment. Post securitization RMBS tssseld are presented as liabilities in our Codstéid Statements of Financial Condition as
Securitized debt, collateralized by Non-Agency RMB Securitized debt, collateralized by loans faldnvestment. We have presented the
underlying securities we transferred to the trémtshe calculation of GAAP book value at fair valand recorded the corresponding liability for
the notes or certificates sold to third partiearabrtized cost. Fair value adjustments that atenmalit related are recorded in Other
comprehensive income (loss). Credit related impairt are deemed other-than-temporary and are extarcearnings.

Because we are unable to dispose of, monetizeedgplthe RMBS or loans we transferred into thegruge also present our estimated econ
book value. We believe this measure representsdtimated value of the securities issued by tiresés that we own. In contrast to GAAP
book value, our estimated economic book value demsionly the assets we own or are able to dispogtedge, or otherwise monetize. To
determine our estimated economic book value, wsidenonly the fair value of the notes or certifgsaissued by the securitization and re-
securitization trusts that we actually own. Acdogtly, our estimated economic book value doesmdude assets or liabilities for which we
have no direct ownership, specifically the notesestificates of the securitization and re-seczatibn trusts that were sold to third parties.

At December 31, 2013 the difference between GAASkh@lue and estimated economic book value wasrdated to be $437.8 million, or
$0.42 per share. At December 31, 2012 the differdretween GAAP book value and estimated econoatik balue was determined to be
$416.1 million, or $0.40 per share. This differer primarily driven by the value of the RMBS dssge have retained in thesesecuritizatior
transactions as compared to the value of consetidaans and securities net of RMBS assets soldemmlded at amortized cost in these
transactions. In these re-securitization traneastiwe retained the subordinated, typically naaegfirst loss notes or certificates issued by the
securitization trusts. These securities are compypically locked out as to principal repaymeetatively illiquid, and do not necessarily
appreciate or depreciate in tandem with the broblder Agency RMBS market or with the loans on s@msiowned by the trusts. The tables
below present the adjustments to GAAP book valaewre believe are necessary to adequately refleatadculation of estimated economic
book value as of December 31, 2013 and 2012.
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December 31, 201
(dollars in thousands, except per share ¢

Estimatec
GAAP Book Economic
Value Adjustments  Book Value
Assets:
Non-Agency RMBS, at fair valu
Senior $ 89,687 $ - 9 89,68’
Senior intere-only 229,06! - 229,06!
Subordinatet 457,56 - 457,56
Subordinated intere-only 16,57: - 16,57
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI 2,981,57. (1,352,02) 1,629,54.
Agency RMBS, at fair valu 1,997,57 - 1,997,57
Securitized loans held for investment, net of alloee for loar
losses 783,48 (689,50 93,97%
Other asset 380,55t - 380,55t
Total asset $ 6,936,08 $ (2,041,53) $ 4,894,54
Liabilities:
Repurchase agreements, Agency RN 1,658,56. - 1,658,56.
Securitized debt, collateralized by Agency RMBS 933,73 (933,73) -
Securitized debt, collateralized by loans heldfigestmen 669,98 (669,98) -
Other liabilities 342,29 - 342,29
Total liabilities 3,604,57. (1,603,71) 2,000,85!
Total stockholders' equit 3,331,51 (437,82)) 2,893,68!
Total liabilities and stockholders' equ $ 6,936,08 $ (2,04153) $ 4,894,54
Book Value Per Shal $ 3.24 % (0.42) $ 2.82

December 31, 201
(dollars in thousands, except per share ¢

Estimatec
GAAP Book Economic
Value Adjustments  Book Value
Assets:
Non-Agency RMBS, at fair valu
Senior $ 88 $ - 3 88
Senior intere-only 122,86 - 122,86
Subordinatet 547,79: - 547,79:
Subordinated intere-only 16,25: - 16,25
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI 3,274,20. (1,730,42) 1,543,78:
Agency RMBS, at fair valu 1,806,69 - 1,806,69
Securitized loans held for investment, net of aloee for loar
losses 1,300,13. (1,191,60) 108,52:
Other asset 674,45: - 674,45:
Total asset $ 7,74248 $ (2,922,02) $ 4,820,46!
Liabilities:
Repurchase agreements, Agency RN 1,528,02! - 1,528,02!
Securitized debt, collateralized by M-Agency RMBS 1,336,26. (1,336,26) -
Securitized debt, collateralized by loans heldfigestmen 1,169,711 (1,169,711 -
Other liabilities 166,01: - 166,01
Total liabilities 4,200,01 (2,505,97) 1,694,03!
Total stockholders' equit 3,542,47 (416,059 3,126,42.
Total liabilities and stockholders' equ $ 7,74248 $ (2,922,02) $ 4,820,46!
Book Value Per Shal $ 3.4 $ (0.40) $ 3.0¢

Our estimate of economic book value has imporiamitdtions.

Our estimate of fair value is as @ant in time and subject to significe



judgment, primarily the estimate of the fair vabfeghe securities issued by the trusts which we ancth can freely sell or pledge. Should we
the assets in our portfolio, we may realize mallgrédifferent proceeds from the sale than we hastéreated as of the reporting date.

The calculation of estimated economic book valiscdbed above is used by management to underdtarfdit value of the assets we own and

the liabilities for which we are legally obligateahd is presented for informational use only. &ktmated economic book value should not be
viewed in isolation and is not a substitute forlbgalue computed in accordance with GAAP.
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Portfolio Review

During the year ended December 31, 2013, on areggtg basis, we purchased $2.4 billion, sold $illidr) and received $1.5 billion in
principal payments related to our Agency and Nor#ay RMBS. In addition, we used $914.2 milliorpobceeds from our assets to repay
principal on our securitized debt.

The following table summarizes certain charactesstf our portfolio at December 31, 2013 and 2012.

December 31 December 31

2013 2012
Interest earning assets at pe-end (1) $ 6,555,52! $ 7,068,03
Interest bearing liabilities at peri-end $ 3,262,27. $ 4,033,99
Leverage at peric-end 1.0:1 1.1:1
Leverage at peric-end (recourse 0.5:1 0.4:1
Portfolio Composition, at amortized ct
Non-Agency RMBS 49.8% 50.2%
Senior 1.5% 0.C%
Senior, interest onl 5.1% 2.%
Subordinatet 6.C% 7.£%
Subordinated, interest on 0.2% 0.2%
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI 36.% 39.9%
Agency RMBS 36.1% 28.2%
Securitized loan 14.1% 21.5%
Fixec-rate percentage of portfol 76.5% 75.5%
Adjustablerate percentage of portfol 23.1% 24.5%
Annualized yield on average interest earning ageethe year ende 8.81% 8.5¢%
Annualized cost of funds on average borrowed fiodghe year ended (: 3.51% 3.2%

(1) Excludes interest income on cash and cash alguits.
(2) Includes the effect of realized losses on adtrate swaps and US Treasury futu

The following table presents details of each asisst in our portfolio at December 31, 2013 and220The principal or notional value represe
the interest income earning balance of each cl@ks.weighted average figures are weighted by gagstment’s respective principal/notional
value in the asset class.

December 31, 201

Principal o Weightec Weightec Weightec Principal
Notional Average Average . Average Weightec Writedown:
Value at Weighted Weightet Yieldat Month 12 Month Weighted Average Weighted During

PeriodEnd Average Average Weightec Period- CPRat CPRat Average Loss Average Period
(dollars in Amortizec Fair  Average End Period- Period- Delinquenc' Severity Credit (dollars in

thousands Cost Basi Value Coupon (1) End End Pipeline 60- (2) Enhanceme! thousands
Non-Agency Mortgag-Backed Securitie
Senior $ 128,21° $ 69.27 $ 69.9¢ 142% 58i1% 12.11% 15.09% 38.0% 63.2(% 8.2t% $ 297
Senior,
interestonly $5,742,78 $ 4.9 $ 3.9¢ 1406 17.1% 15.2% 16.7&% 19.9(% 51.06% 0.0(% $

Subordinatec $ 830,63: $ 40.9¢ $ 55.0¢ 290 134% 17.0% 19.5% 16.1¢% 49.5¢% 12.55%$ 6,56%
Subordinatec
interestonly $ 274,46:$ 534 $ 6.0¢ 1.7% 8.9% 16.9% 18.0% 15.4% 45.0% 0.0(% $ -
RMBS
transferred tc
consolidated
variable
interest
entities $3,912,371 $ 54.17 $ 77.82 46€6% 15806 11.61% 14.7% 25.7% 57.9(% 1.5¢% $ 34,38¢
Agency
Mortgage-
Backed
Securities $2,145,47' $ 106.8! $105.2¢ 39% 3.4% 8.81% 19.81% NA NA 0.0(% $ -
Securitizec
loans $ 776,07- $ 102.1. $ 98.2¢ 47(% 35(% 0.0(% 0.0(% 0.00%  0.0(% 0.0(% $ (6)
(1) Bond Equivalent Yield at period end. Weighteeefage Yield is calculated using each investmeaspective amortized co:
(2) Calculated based on reported losses to daliging widest data set available (i.e., -time losses, I-month loss, etc.

December 31, 201




Principal o Weightec Weightec Weightec Principal
Notional Average Average . Average Weightec Writedown:
Value at Weighted Weightet Yieldat Month 12 Month Weighted Average Weighted During

PeriodEnd Average Average Weightec Period- CPRat CPRat Average Loss Average Period
(dollars in Amortizec Fair  Average End Period- Period- Delinquenc' Severity Credit (dollars in

thousands Cost Basi Value Coupon (1) End End Pipeline 60- (2) Enhancemei thousands
Non-Agency Mortgag-Backed Securitie
Senior $ 12€ $ 57.02 $ 67.0( 0.0(% 11.9(% 22.6(% 38.6(% 0.00%  0.0(% 12.8(% $ -
Senior,
interestonly $3,012,86: $ 4.51 $ 4.0¢ 1.7¢% 10.3% 17.3% 17.4%% 20.1% 50.43% 0.0(% $

Subordinate( $1,057,82. $ 44.7: $ 51.7¢ 3.18&% 11.0% 17.3¢% 18.7%% 18.72% 51.0%% 15.22%$ 15,80}
Subordinatec
interestonly $ 256,07: $ 6.3 $ 6.3% 225%  8.9(% 20.9% 16.7% 19.9% 44.8% 0.0(% $ -
RMBS
transferred tc
consolidated
variable
interest
entities $4,610,10' $ 53.9¢ $ 72.5( 48t% 1544 14.8"% 14.8% 29.42% 59.02% 22%$ 70,95!
Agency
Mortgage-
Backed
Securities $1,756,58! $ 103.0¢ $108.2¢ 465%  3.5¢% 28.3% 24.12% NA NA 0.0(% $ -
Securitizec
loans $1,284,84! $ 102.0¢ $102.7¢ 468%  3.88% 35.21% 4.45% 0.8 4.35% 11.1¢% $ 404
(1) Bond Equivalent Yield at period end. Weighteeefage Yield is calculated using each investmeaspective amortized co:
(2) Calculated based on reported losses to daliging widest data set available (i.e., -time losses, J-month loss, etc.

Based on the projected cash flows for our Non-AgdRigIBS that are not of high credit quality, a pontiof the original purchase discount is
designated as Accretable Discount, which refldaspurchase discount expected to be accretedniteiest income, and a portion is designated
as Non-Accretable Difference, which representsctivdractual principal on the security that is nqtexted to be collected. The amount
designated as Non-Accretable Difference may bessetjuover time, based on the actual performantieeddecurity, its underlying collateral,
actual and projected cash flow from such collatezedbnomic conditions and other factors. If thefgrenance of a security is more favorable t
previously estimated, a portion of the amount destigd as Non-Accretable Difference may be acciietednterest income over time.
Conversely, if the performance of a security is iesorable than previously estimated, the amodessgnated as Non-Accretable Difference
may increase, resulting in an OTTI loss.
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The following table presents changes to AccretBlideount and Non-Accretable Difference as it paddb our entire Non-Agency RMBS
portfolio for assets with purchase discounts dutirggprevious five quarters.

Accretable Discour

For the Quarter Ende

December 3: September 3 March 31 December 3:
201z 201% June 30, 201 201z 2012
(dollars in thousand:
Balance, beginning of peric $ 1,012,51° $ 1,026,92 $ 1,088,415 $ 1,11526¢ $ 1,118/47
Accretion of discoun (40,817 (40,00) (40,047 (39,32¢) (40,287
Purchase - - - 93t -
Sales - (6,65%) (46,125 a7 8
Transfers from credit reser 28,96: 35,05« 30,74« 18,41¢ 39,47¢
Transfers to credit reser (3,969 (2,806 (5,819 (7,122) (2,417
Balance, end of peric $ 996,69 $ 101251 $ 1,026,92. $ 1,088,115 $ 1,115,26
Non-Accretable Differenc:
For the Quarter Ende
December 3. September 3 March 31 December 3:
201z 201% June 30, 201 201z 2012
(dollars in thousand:
Balance, beginning of peric $ 1,261,94 $ 1,370,79. $ 1,464,555 $ 1,540,781 $ 1,655,22,
Principal Writedown: (41,709 (93,059 (68,835 (72,055 (85,559
Purchase - - - 93t -
Sales - - - 32 (8
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss 22,54¢ 16,45¢ - 6,16:% 8,18t
Transfers from credit reser (28,962) (35,05¢) (30,7449 (18,419 (39,474
Transfersto credit reserv 3,96¢ 2,80¢ 5,81:% 7,122 2,411
Balance, end of peric $ 1,217,79. $ 1,261,94 $ 1,370,79: $ 1,464,555 $ 1,540,78

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Accounting policies are integral to understandinganagement’s Discussion and Analysis of Findr@andition and Results of Operations.
The preparation of financial statements in accardamith GAAP requires management to make certalguents and assumptions, on the basis
of information available at the time of the finasctatements, in determining accounting estimagesl in the preparation of these statements.
Our significant accounting policies and accountsgimates are described in Note 2 to the Conselidginancial Statements. Ciritical
accounting policies are described in this sec#gnaccounting policy is considered critical if @quires management to make assumptions or
judgments about matters that are highly uncertaiheatime the accounting estimate was made olinegignificant management judgment
interpreting the accounting literature. If actuggults differ from our judgments and assumptionstleer accounting judgments were made, this
could have a significant and potentially adverspaot on our financial condition, results of opemasi and cash flows. These critical accounting
policies were developed by management, and revidwexlr auditors, prior to being presented to asdu$sed with the Audit Committee of 1
Board of Directors.

The consolidated financial statements include, oareolidated basis, our accounts, the accourgarofvholly-owned subsidiaries, and variable
interest entities, or VIEs, for which we are thanary beneficiary. All significant intercompany bates and transactions have been eliminated
in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith GAAP requires management to make estimatgsassumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities andatisce of contingent assets and liabilities atdate of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the negqutiriod. Although our estimates contemplate cuircenditions and how we expect then
change in the future, it is reasonably possiblealtual conditions could be different than antitga in those estimates, which could materially
adversely impact our results of operations andioancial condition. Management has made signifiesmtimates in several areas, including
OTTI of Non-Agency RMBS, valuation of Agency andiNAgency RMBS and interest rate swaps and incomegration on Non-Agency
RMBS. Actual results could differ materially fratmose estimates.
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Interest Income and Impairment on Nc-Agency and Agency Residential Mortgage-Backed Séi@s

We invest in RMBS representing interests in oblaget backed by pools of mortgage loans. We deinbetween (1) Agency RMBS and (2)
Nonr-Agency RMBS as follows: The Agency RMBS are magdg pass-through certificates, collateralized nagegobligations (“CMOs”), and
other RMBS representing interests in or obligatibasked by pools of mortgage loans issued or gtegdras to principal and/or interest
repayment by agencies of the U.S. Government aréigt chartered corporations such as Ginnie Masgldie Mac or Fannie Mae. The Non-
Agency RMBS are not issued or guaranteed by Faviae Freddie Mac, or Ginnie Mae and are therefobgest to credit risk.

We hold our RMBS as available-for-sale, record ¢hiesestments at estimated fair value as desciibBldte 5 of our consolidated financial
statements, and include unrealized gains and lassesdered to be temporary in Other comprehernso@me (loss) in our Consolidated
Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Incboss). From time to time, as part of the overahagement of our portfolio, we may sell
any of our RMBS investments and recognize a redligen or loss as a component of earnings in oms@lalated Statements of Operations and
Comprehensive Income (Loss) utilizing the spedifentification method.

Our accounting policies for recognition of interegtome and OTTI related to RMBS are describedateN? of the consolidated financial
statements. As noted therein, there are threeréiffeccounting models that may be applicable top@ses of the recognition of interest income
and OTTIl on RMBS, and include the following:

ASC 310-20Nonrefundable Fees and Other CogiSC 310-20) — applies to all Agency RMBS and darbdon-Agency
RMBS of high credit quality that, at the time ofrpliase, we expect to collect all contractual céshs and the security cannot
be contractually prepaid in such a way that thewsald not recover substantially all of our recordi@eestment .

ASC 310-30)Loans and Debt Securities Acquired with Deterioda@redit Quality(ASC 310-30) — applies to Non-Agency
RMBS where there is evidence of deterioration eddrquality and that we do not expect to colldctantractual cash flows of
the security.

ASC 325-40Beneficial Interests in Securitized Financial As$AiSC 325-40) — applies to certain Non-Agency RMRBf n
within the scope of ASC 310-20 or ASC 310-30. Bheslude Non-Agency RMBS which is not of high dtepiality at the
time of purchase or that can be contractually pcepaotherwise settled in such a way that we wadtirecover substantially
all of our recorded investment.

The determination of which accounting model to gppll have a significant impact on the amountsntérest income and OTTI losses reflec
in the results of operations because each accaqumirdel has different requirements regarding tish f@ws used to calculate interest income
and impairments (i.e., contractual cash flows ¥peeted cash flows) and the manner of such calongtand the impact of changes in
prepayment assumptions on interest income or OJs&es.

For Agency and Non-Agency RMBS accounted for ufg€ 310-20, the amount of interest income recorlent the life of a security will be
equal to the contractual cash flows of the secuatity the accretion/amortization of any purchaseodist or premium. The amount of interest
income reported in any particular financial repugtperiod will, however, vary depending on the atand estimated prepayments on the
security. For Agency RMBS purchased at a premiuthegrincipal amount, increases in prepaymentdgpesd! generally result in a reduction
of the recorded amount of interest income in ai@aer financial reporting period whereas decreasg@sepayment speeds will generally result
in an increase in the amount of interest incomee particular financial reporting period. The oppe$s generally the case for Agency RMBS
purchased at a discount to the principal amourdt ) as prepayment speeds increase, interesheoeported in a particular financial report
period will generally increase, whereas interesbime reported in a particular financial reportirgipd will generally decrease when prepayr
speeds decline. However, volatility in the reporeabunt of interest income will result when there significant changes in actual or future
expected prepayment speeds regardless of theidiredtthose changes. This volatility is becausgeabcounting model that we apply under /
310-20 requires us to record a cumulative adjustnoena retrospective basis from the acquisiticte déthe security, when there are changes in
prepayment speeds. That cumulative adjustmentatreporting date is intended to reflect the mostant estimate of the timing of
prepayments over the life of the security (botluakprepayments that have occurred in the pasthentiming of prepayments that will occur in
the future).
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Agency RMBS and Non-Agency RMBS accounted for ule€ 310-20 may experience an OTTI loss. The O©3$ recognized in earnings
will be calculated based on the present valueettntractual cash flows expected to be colle@ebsequent to recognition of an OTTI loss
recognize income on these securities under ASC3B14s further described below.

For Non-Agency RMBS accounted for under ASC 31®mBASC 325-40, the reported amounts of interesirime and OTTI are significantly
impacted by management judgments around both tloemtnand timing of credit losses (defaults) angayenents. Interest income on these
Non-Agency RMBS is recognized initially and in subseuperiods based on the timing and amount of ftasls expected to be collected, as
opposed to being based on contractual cash flole a€counting models in ASC 310-30 and ASC 325e40dl provide for delineations
between individual changes in cash flow estimats®8 on expected defaults or prepayments. Sagtetifly, we are required to consider the
overall impact on the amount and timing of futuasit flows whether due to changes in default exfientaor prepayments in order to deterrr
the amount of interest income to recognize. Furtioee, the overall impact on the amount and timihfyre cash flows whether due to char
in default expectations or prepayments also impaetsamount of OTTI losses recognized in earnings.

Nonr-Agency RMBS accounted for under ASC 310-30 or A26-40 is generally purchased at a discount t@timeipal amount. At the original
acquisition date, we estimate the timing and amotinash flows expected to be collected and cdbtitze present value of those amounts to our
purchase price. In each subsequent financial riegperiod, we are required to revise our estimaféke remaining timing and amount of cash
flows expected to be collected. Depending on thereaf the changes in the timing or amount of damhis expected to be collected, whether
due to changes in default expectations or prepayassumptions, the following will occur:

° If there is a positive change in the amount andhinof future cash flows expected to be collectednfthe previous estimate used
accounting purposes, the effective interest rafatiire accounting periods may increase resultingni increase in the reported amount
of interest income in future periods. A positifenge in the amount and timing of future cash flewsected to be collected from the
previous estimate used for accounting purposes beusbnsidered significant for Non-Agency RMBS aoued for under ASC 310-30
for the effective interest rate in future accougtperiods to increase. An OTTI loss will not bealed in earnings in the period we
determine there is a positive change in the amangdtiming of future estimated cash flows. A pesitthange in the amount and tim
of future cash flows expected to be collected iss@tered to have occurred when the net preseng wdlfuture cash flows expected to
be collected has increased from the previous esinthis can occur from a change in either thertgmf when cash flows are expected
to be collected (i.e., from changes in prepaympaeds or the timing of estimated defaults) or @amount of cash flows expected to
be collected (i.e., from reductions in estimatefutire defaults). Furthermore, a positive chargddoccur on an overall basis in
situations where the positive impact of a changhéntiming of cash flows exceeds the negative ohp&increased defaults, or when
the positive impact of a decline in estimated didaexceeds the negative impact of an extensigheofiming of receipt of cash flow

° If there is a negative (or adverse) change in theunt and timing of future cash flows expectedeabllected from the previol
estimate used for accounting purposes, and theiiesUair value is below its amortized cost, an OTTIdlesjual to the adverse cha
in cash flows expected to be collected, discouns#dg the securities’ effective rate before impa&int) is required to be recorded in
current period earnings. For Non-Agency RMBS actedifor under ASC 310-30, while the effective ietrrate used to accrete
interest income after an OTTI has been recognizéédbathe same, the amount of interest incomendsin future periods will declir
because of the reduced amount of the amortizedbesss of the investment to which such effectieriest rate is applied. Additionally,
for Non-Agency RMBS accounted for under ASC 325%0ile the effective interest rate used to accrgrest income during the
period directly after an OTTI has been recognizétlhe the same, the amount of interest incomendsxb in such future period will
decline, absent an increase in cash flows expéaoted collected, because of the reduced amouhedadmortized cost basis of the
investment to which such effective interest rategplied. An adverse change in the amount anahgraf future cash flows expected to
be collected is considered to have occurred whemét present value of future cash flows expeadsbtcollected has decreased from
the most previous estimate. This change can ocoor & change in either the timing of when cash §lane expected to be collected
(i.e., from changes in prepayment speeds or thegiof estimated defaults) or in the amount of démlus expected to be collected (i
from increases in estimates of future defaultsjttfeumore, an adverse change could occur on amlbbeassis in situations where the
negative impact of a change in the timing of cdag exceeds the positive impact of a decline timeged defaults, or when the
negative impact of an increase in estimated defaxteeds the positive impact of shortening otithang of receipt of cash flow:
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Because the accounting models in ASC 310-30 and 2Z540 are impacted by both assumptions of prepaysrand assumptions of credit
losses (defaults), changes in the amounts of reddrderest income or OTTI losses over financipbréng periods cannot be considered to
result solely from the impact of changes in thalitnerofile of the investment or solely from thepact of changes in prepayment speeds.
Furthermore, while there may be some level of datim between assumptions for defaults and prepaysnas general market interest rates
change, in the recent market conditions that catigl has not been direct and predictable.

Determination of appropriate accounting model forad-Agency RMBS

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated findrsteiements, the determination of the appropdat®unting model for Non-Agency RMBS is
dependent on management’s assessment and judgtaatirto the following factors made as of the &gtjon date:

° Our assessment of the credit quality of the asseliding its credit rating at the acquisition dated whether the security |
experienced deterioration in credit quality sinsdriception

° Our assessment of the probability of collectiomlbtontractual cash flow:

° Our assessment of whether the security can beamta#lly prepaid such that we would not recoverioiial investment

The most critical judgment inherent in the detemtion of the appropriate accounting model is oseasment of the cash flows expected to be
collected at the acquisition date. In making tltiscainting judgment, we consider expected defaulispgepayments as further described below.

Impact of prepayment assumptions on RMBS accounfi@dunder ASC 31-20

Changes in actual prepayments will impact the amotimterest income recognized in each finanaglorting period for RMBS accounted for
under ASC 310-20. We estimate expected prepaynsemtther described below.

Impact of default and prepayment assumptions on I-Agency RMBS accounted for under ASC 310-30 and ARX5-40

Management judgments around the estimated amodrttraimg of defaults, and the timing of collectiohcash flows (i.e., prepayments and the
timing of defaults) will have a significant impamt the reported amount of interest income and QdSdes. Furthermore, it is the combined
impact of the assumptions for the amount and tinsihgash flows from defaults and prepayments thikimpact the reported amounts of
interest income and OTTI losses.

Our estimate of cash flows expected to be colleatded to NorAgency RMBS is based on our review of the unded\ysacurities or mortgag
loans securing the RMBS. We consider historiclrmation available and expected future performasfabe underlying securities or mortge
loans, including timing of expected future casiwlip prepayment rates, default rates, loss sevgrddinquency rates, percentage of non-
performing loans, extent of credit support avagalblair Isaac Corporation (“FICQO”) scores at loagioation, year of origination, loan-to-value
ratios, geographic concentrations, as well as tefyr credit rating agencies, such as Moody'’s IltoresServices, Inc. (“Moody’s”), Standard &
Poor’s Corporation (“S&P”), Fitch, Inc. or DBRS Litaed (collectively, “Rating Agencies”), general rkat assessments, and dialogue with
market participants. However, the assumptions wyidg these estimates are generally not basecdeargable market data, but rather reflect
unobservable inputs based on management judgmerat.rédsult, substantial judgment is used in oulyaizato determine the cash flows
expected to be collected related to Non-Agency RMBS

In determining the OTTI related to credit lossasNon-Agency RMBS securities accounted for unde€/A30-30 and ASC 325-40, we
compare the present value of the remaining cas¥sfexpected to be collected at the purchase datasfodate previously revised) against the
present value of the cash flows expected to beaeltl at the current financial reporting date. diseount rate used to calculate the present
value of expected future cash flows is the effectiterest rate or effective yield used for incameognition purposes.
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Variable Interest Entities

VIEs are defined as entities in which equity ineest(i) do not have the characteristics of a cdinpfinancial interest, and/or (ii) do not have
sufficient equity at risk for the entity to finanite activities without additional subordinateddircial support from other parties. The entity that
consolidates a VIE is known as its primary benafigi and is generally the entity with (i) the powedirect the activities that most significantly
impact the VIES economic performance, and (ii) the right to reedienefits from the VIE or the obligation to alistwsses of the VIE that cou
be significant to the VIE. For VIES' that do nave substantial on-going activities, the poweriteal the activities that most significantly
impact the VIES' economic performance may be detegthby an entity’s involvement with the desigrtioé VIE.

We use securitization trusts considered to be WiE®curitization and reecuritization transactions. Prior to JanuaryQIL® these VIEs met t
definition of Qualified Special Purpose EntitieQSPE”) and, as such, were not subject to consaidat us. Effective January 1, 2010, all
such VIEs were considered for consolidation basethe criteria in ASC 81@onsolidation

Our Consolidated Statements of Financial Conditiomtain the assets and liabilities related to tarsolidated variable interest entities, or VIES.
Due to the non-recourse nature of these VIEs ouexmosure to loss from investments in these esti§ limited to our retained beneficial
interests.

We currently consolidate four residential mortghmgen securitizations and six RMBS re-securitizatimmsactions which are VIEs. The
residential mortgage loan securitizations contamkjo prime residential mortgage loans we purchdseidg 2007 and 2008 and securitized
shortly thereafter. The RMBS re-securitizatiomsactions contain Non-Agency RMBS comprised of prilp what we classify as collateral
backed by Alt-A first lien mortgages of 2005-200itages. We categorize collateral as Alt-A regesdlof whether the loans were originally
described as “prime” if the behavior of the coltatavhen we purchased the security more resemjgbésal Alt-A collateral. We define Alt-A
collateral characteristics to be evidenced by the day delinquency bucket of the pool being gretitan 5% and the weighted average FICO
scores at the time of origination as greater tHzh 6

Our determination to consolidate these ten VIEs sigisificantly influenced by management’s judgmeetated to the activities that most
significantly impact the economic performance &fsth entities and the identification of the partthwihe power over such activities. For the
residential mortgage loasecuritizations, we determined that our abilityeplace defaulting loans with performing loans heslin us having tr
power that most significantly impacts the econopgdormance of the VIE. For the six consolidatedB3te-securitization transactions, we
determined that no party has power over any ongadtigities of the entities and therefore the deteation of the primary beneficiary should
based on involvement with the initial design of émity. Since we transferred the RMBS to the d&ezation entities, we determined we had the
power over the design of the entity, which resuiteds being considered the primary beneficiaryisTetermination was influenced by the
amount of economic exposure to the financial penforce of the entity and required a significant ngengent judgment in determining that we
should consolidate these six entities.

Due to the consolidation of these VIESs, our actwahership interests in the securitization and @ss8zations have been eliminated in
consolidation and the Consolidated Statementsreafrigial Condition reflect both the assets heldraomdrecourse debt issued to third parties by
these VIEs. In addition, our operating results eash flows include the gross amounts related tasgisets and liabilities of the VIEs as opposed
to the actual economic interests we own in thegesVOur interest in these VIEs is restricted tolibeeficial interests we retained in these
transactions. We are not obligated to providefargncial support to these VIEs.
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Our Consolidated Statements of Financial Condiieparately present: (i) our direct assets anditiabi and (ii) the assets and liabilities of our
consolidated securitization vehicles. Assets loé@isolidated VIEs can only be used to satisfydbigations of those VIEs, and the liabilities
consolidated VIEs are non-recourse to us.

We have aggregated all the assets and liabilifitseoconsolidated securitization vehicles dueutndetermination that these entities are
substantively similar and therefore a further digagated presentation would not be more meaninghd.notes to our consolidated financial
statements describe our direct assets and liakilithd the assets and liabilities of our consd@itlaecuritization vehicles. See Note 8 to our
consolidated financial statements for additionfdrimation related to our investments in VIESs.

Fair Value Measurements

The Financial Accounting Standards Board, or FA&Sines fair value, establishes a framework forsngag fair value, and requires certain
disclosures about fair value measurements under®sA@pecifically, this guidance defines fair val@sed on exit price, or the price that would
be received upon the sale of an asset or the @&naofé liability in an orderly transaction betweawearket participants at the measurement date.
Valuation techniques for RMBS are based on modhesdonsider the estimated cash flows expected tmhected from the underlying

collateral and an estimated markeaised yield reflective of the unique attributesheftranche including, but not limited to, assuiomsi related t
prepayment speeds, the frequency and severityfafiltie and attributes of the collateral underlysngh securities. Estimates of the fair value of
RMBS are particularly sensitive to assumptionsteeldo the expected timing of prepayments, thenexibdefaults, and the severity of expected
losses. Management reviews the fair values gertebgt¢he model to determine whether prices arec#fle of the current market. Management
indirectly corroborates its estimates of the failue using pricing models by comparing its resudtsidependent prices provided by third party
pricing services.

To the extent the inputs used to estimate fairezahe observable, the values would be categonizeevel 2 of the fair value hierarchy;
otherwise they would be categorized as Level 32 Company’s fair value estimation process utilingsits other than quoted prices that are
observed in the market. The Company’s estimafgegayment, default and severity curves all invadgistments that are deemed to be
significant to the fair value measurement proceddch renders the resulting Non-Agency fair valggreates Level 3 inputs in the fair value
hierarchy. Level 3 assets represent approximétedy and 69% of total assets measured at fair vaiwerecurring basis as of December 31,
2013 and 2012, respectively. None of the liak#itmeasured at fair value on a recurring basi$ Be@ember 31, 2013 and 2012 are Level 3.

Our assets and liabilities which are measurediav&due are discussed in Note 5 to our consoldifiteancial statements.

Recent Accounting Pronouncemen

Refer to Note 2(q) in the Notes to Consolidatedakaial Statements for a discussion of accountindagice recently adopted by the Company.
Results of operations for the years ended Decembat, 2013, 2012 and 2011

Our primary source of income is interest incomaedron our assets. Our economic net interest iaauals interest income excluding inte
earned on cash and cash equivalents less inteqgmtse and realized losses on our interest rageked-or the purpose of computing economic
net interest income and ratios relating to cogunfls measures throughout this section, intergstrese includes net payments on interest rate
hedges, including interest rate swaps and Tredatuyes, which is presented as a part of Realiz#asylosses) on derivatives in our
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Compsalgeimcome. Interest rate hedges are used togeaha increase in interest paid on
repurchase agreements in a rising rate environnfergsenting the net contractual interest paynmamntaterest rate hedges with the interest paid
on interest-bearing liabilities reflects our tatahtractual interest payments. We believe thisgration is useful to investors because this
presentation depicts the economic value of ourdgtmaent strategy, by showing actual interest expandenet interest income. Where indicated,
interest expense, including interest payments tamdst rate hedges, is referred to as economieeBitexpense. Where indicated, net interest
income reflecting interest payments on interest hetdges, is referred to as economic net intarestrie.
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The following table reconciles the GAAP and non-GAfeasurements reflected in the Management’s Bigmuand Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations.

Add: Net Less: Nel
Realized Realized
GAAP GAAP Losses Economic GAAP Net Losses on Economic Ne
Interest Interest on Interest Interest Interest Interest Interest
Income Expense Rate Hedge Expense Income Rate Hedge Income (1)
For the Year Ended Decemt
31, 2013 $ 511,78 $ 101,99¢ $ 21,78¢ $ 123,78 $ 409,78 $ 21,78¢ $ 387,95
For the Year Ended Decemt
31, 2012 $ 58944( $ 126,55( $ 20,22: $ 146,78 $ 462,88, $ 20,22: $ 442,63
For the Year Ended Decemt
31, 2011 $ 70502: $ 134,850 $ 1592¢ $ 150,78 $ 570,16t $ 15,92¢ $ 554,22
For the Quarter Ended Decem
31, 2013 $ 128,06: $ 21,488 $ 3,881 $ 2537: $ 106,57 $ 3,887 $ 102,68
For the Quarter Ended Septerr
30, 2013 $ 130,36. $ 25,07¢ $ 6,981 $ 32,058 $ 10528 $ 6,981 $ 98,30:
For the Quarter Ended June
2013 $ 12756 $ 26,61 $ 5391 $ 32,000 $ 100,95 $ 5391 $ 95,55!
For the Quarter Ended March :
2013 $ 12579 $ 28,82¢ $ 553( % 34,35¢ % 96,96¢ $ 553( % 91,42

(1) Excludes interest income on cash and cash alguits.
Economic Net Interest Incom

The table below shows our average earning assketsifhiierest earned on assets, yield on averageeisitearning assets, average debt balance,
economic interest expense, economic average cashad$, economic net interest income, and netestarate spread for the periods presented.

Yield on Economic
Average Average Net
Earning Interest Interest Average Economic  Economic Interest
Assets Helc Earned on Earning Debt Interest Average Co: Income (1) Net Interes
(1) Assets (1 Assets Balance Expense (2 of Funds (2) Rate Sprea

(Ratios have been annualized, dollars in thouse
For The Year Ende

December 31, 201 $5,805,59. $ 511,74! 8.81% $3,527,71. $ 123,78 3.51% $ 387,95 5.3(%
For The Year Ende

December 31, 201 $6,862,45. $ 589,42( 8.5¢% $4,466,69° $ 146,78 3.2¢% $ 442,63 5.3(%
For the Year Ende

December 31, 201 $8,483,421 $ 705,01( 8.31% $5,443,23. $ 150,78’ 2.71% $ 554,22 5.5%%
For The Quarter Ende

December 31, 201 $5,667,51! $ 128,05« 9.04% $3,285,58 $ 25,37: 3.0¢% $ 102,68: 5.95%
For The Quarter Ende

September 30, 201 $5,836,02! $ 130,35’ 8.99% $3,360,500 $ 32,05¢ 3.82% $ 98,30: 5.11%
For The Quarter Ended Ju

30, 2018 $5,799,17! $ 127,55 8.8(% $3,516,690 $ 32,00: 3.64% $ 95,55 5.16%
For The Quarter Ende

March 31, 201 $5,866,50. $ 125,78 8.5(% $3,827,63 $ 34,35¢ 3.5% $ 91,42 4.9%
(1) Excludes interest income on cash and

equivalents

(2) Includes effect of realized losses on interat swaps and US Treasury futu

Our economic net interest income declined by $54lifon for the year ended December 31, 2013 aspaoad to the same period of 2012. Our
net interest spread, which equals the yield oremarage assets for this period less the economi@ge cost of funds for the period did not
change for the year ended December 31, 2013 asatethfp the same period of 2012.

Our economic net interest income declined by $1filéon for the year ended December 31, 2012 aspared to the same period of 2011.
net interest spread decreased by 24 basis pomtsefyear ended December 31, 2012 from the sanedps 2011.

Our net interest rate spread on our portfolio isststent year over year for the year ended DeceBhe2013 as compared to the same period of
2012 as the increase in yield on our assets d@Mi@ was offset by a comparable increase in ourafdands over the same period. There was
no significant change in net interest rate spresatha relative mix of investments between AgencyB8yINor-Agency RMBS, anresidentia



mortgage loanremained relatively consistent throughout 201320tR. In 2012, we had a decline in net interdst spread of 24 basis poir

due to an increase in our cost of funds as we a@sem the rate of financing using secured debtmpared to repurchase agreements in 2012 as
compared to 2011 as we lowered the leverage opantiolio by reducing our agency holdings and uedproceeds to repay outstanding
repurchase agreements or retaining the proceattshsaffecting the overall mix of earning assats@ebt balances. Generally, our cost of
funds on our secured debt is higher than our ddsinals on the repurchase agreements.
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We expect going forward, that we will increase ltheerage on our portfolio and increase our replgelzgreements and investments in both
Agency and Non-Agency RMBS to take advantage oketazonditions as they become available.

Interest Income and Average Earning Asset Yit

Our average earning assets decreased by $1.hifliadhe year ended December 31, 2013 as compaitbd same period of 2012. Our interest
earned on assets decreased by $77.7 million foradheended December 31, 2013 as compared torteem@riod of 2012. The yield on our
average interest earning assets increased by B2duasts for the years ended December 31, 20tBmpared to the same periods of 2012.

Our average earning assets decreased by $1.6bdlidhe year ended December 31, 2012 as compaitbd same period of 2011. Our interest
earned on assets decreased by $115.6 million éoyaghr ended December 31, 2012 as compared tarteegeriod of 2011. The yield on our
average interest earning assets increased by 28duasts for the year ended December 31 2012 apared to the same period of 2011.

During 2011 and through most of 2012, we begaretewérage our portfolio by selling Agency RMBS gs#@s. We elected not to reinvest all
of the proceeds received on the sales of theseiesu In addition, we did not reinvest all pripal paydowns received on the retained
portfolio. We elected to repay debt and retairnasith the proceeds received from sales and payd@iour portfolio during this period to be
redeployed at a later time. We reduced our eammésgts from a high of $9.6 billion during earlyL2@o $6.1 billion of earning assets as of
December 31, 2012 and further reduced to $5.@®hibis of December 31, 2013. During the seconddi&f13, we began to redeploy the cash
retained from the sales and paydowns; however,ave hot materially increased our leverage durin320/Ne expect that we will begin to
increase earning assets during 2014 by strategicaisting in both Agency and Non-Agency RMBS séms where we determine that
favorable opportunities exist. We expect that thill increase our interest earned on assets, e may not significantly impact our yield
on average interest earning assets.

Economic Interest Expense and the Cost of Fur

The borrowing rate at which we are able to finaoge assets using repurchase agreements is typaxaitglated to LIBOR and the term of
financing. The table below shows our average lweetbfunds, economic interest expense, averageo€dghds (inclusive of realized losses
interest rate swaps), average one-month LIBOR,aaéesix-month LIBOR, average one-month LIBOR re&atio average sirionth LIBOR
and average cost of funds relative to average amesix- month LIBOR.

Average Average Average
One-Month Cost Cost
LIBOR of Funds of Funds
Relative to  Relative to Relative to
Average Economic  Average Average Average Average Average Average
Debt Interest Cost of One-Month  Six-Month ~ Six-Month  One-Month  Six-Month
Balance Expense (1 Funds LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR

(Ratios have been annualized, dollars in thouse
For The Year Ende

December 31, 201 $3,527,71. $ 123,78 3.51% 0.1% 0.41% (0.229%) 3.32% 3.1(%
For The Year Ende

December 31, 201 $4,466,69! $ 146,78 3.2%% 0.24% 0.74% (0.45%) 3.05% 2.55%
For the Year Ende

December 31, 201 $5,443,23. $ 150,78 2.71% 0.23% 0.51% (0.28%) 2.54% 2.2%
For The Quarter Ende

December 31, 201 $3,285,58. $ 25,37: 3.0% 0.17% 0.35% (0.18%) 2.92% 2.74%
For The Quarter Ende

September 30, 201 $3,360,50 $ 32,05¢ 3.82% 0.19% 0.3% (0.21%) 3.65% 3.42%
For The Quarter Ended Ju

30, 2013 $3,516,69¢ $ 32,00: 3.64% 0.2(% 0.42% (0.22%) 3.44% 3.22%
For The Quarter Ende

March 31, 201! $3,827,63! $ 34,35¢ 3.5%% 0.26% 0.76% (0.51%) 3.32% 2.82%

(1) Includes effect of realized losses on interat swaps and US Treasury futu

Average borrowed funds decreased by $939.0 mifbothe year ended December 31, 2013 as compartbeé game period of 2012. Economic
interest expense decreased by $23.0 million foyéae ended December 31, 2013 as compared tothee gariod of 2012. The economic cos
funds increased by 22 basis points for the yeag@imecember 31, 2013 as compared to the same péraid 2.

Average borrowed funds decreased by $976.5 mifbothe year ended December 31, 2012 as compartbeé &ame period of 2011. Economic

interest expense decreased by $4.0 million foy#ze ended December 31, 2013 as compared to thesanod of 2011. The economic cost of
funds increased by 52 basis points for the yeag@mecember 31, 2013 as compared to the same érkd 2.
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The changes in our economic average costs of fismatemarily a result of an increase in the ratidimancing our portfolio using secured debt
rather than repurchase agreements as the repuipesaments generally have a lower interest ratetthe secured debt.

The decline in the average debt balances yeary@arwas due to deleveraging the portfolio by ugirageeds from repayments on our assets to
repay debt balances and strategically selling asset using these proceeds to reduce our outstaddbt. We expect that in 2014, we will

begin to increase our debt balances as we idefatifyrable opportunities to invest in both Agency &fon-Agency RMBS investments. We
expect that this increased leverage will primdbi#yfrom increased financing using repurchase ageatsnhowever, if opportunities present
themselves, we may use secured debt to financetopjitees that we believe support such a transactio

Net otherthan-temporary credit impairment losses

OTTI losses are generated when fair values debktewv our amortized cost basis, an unrealized brsd the expected future cash flows decline
from prior periods, an adverse change. When agalimed loss and an adverse change in cash flogus,oge will recognize an OTTI loss in
earnings. In addition, if we intend to sell a s@guor believe we will be required to sell, a ggty in an unrealized loss position, we will
recognize an OTTI loss in earnings equal to thealired loss.

OTTI losses have had a significant impact on auairicial statements, especially during 2012 wherenatgred $132.3 million in OTTI losses
and in 2011 where we incurred $357.1 million irskess  In 2013, we noticed a significant declin®1T| losses from the prior years to $45.2
million in OTTI losses. During 2012 and continuiimgo 2013, fair values of our Non-Agency RMBS sgtoes showed improvement, reducing
the likelihood of an OTTI loss. In additional, daft rates have improved during this period, résglin improved expected future cash flows.

OTTI trends are difficult to predict; however, wepect this improving trend to continue as homegwibave rebounded and the general ecol
has improved. While we do not expect the 20120dr1rates of OTTI to recur in the future, we doestfo regularly have some OTTI in future
periods due to our large portfolio of subordinaged low rated Non-Agency RMBS investments. We nooraur portfolio closely to ensure
compliance with accounting rules and if cash flamd fair values deteriorate, we will recognize OToBses in accordance with GAAP.

In 2013, 84%, or $37.9 million, of our OTTI recoged in earnings was related to the assets fronsansolidated VIEs. While these
impairments affect our GAAP book, they have no iotfma our economic book value as we do not havedyf these assets but rather
consolidate them in accordance with GAAP accounguigance, along with their securitized debt. Eneslances are eliminated for our
economic book value presentation. In 2013, 169,7a8 million, of our OTTI recognized in earningsrélated to our subordinated Non-Agency
RMBS included in our general portfolio.

Net gains (losses) on derivativ

Our derivative portfolio includes interest rate paalreasury futures, and mortgage options. Dutieg/ear ended December 31, 2013, we
recognized net gains on derivatives of $26.7 mmilian increase of $56.4 million over the same peoic2012. During the year ended December
31, 2012, we recognized net losses of $29.7 mjleanimprovement of $20.7 million over the sameéqukof 2011 were we recognized losses of
$50.4 million. These net gains and losses on etivatives include both unrealized and realizeshgaind losses. Realized gains and losses
include the net cash paid and received on ourdésteate swaps during the period as well as salésettiements of our Treasury futures and
mortgage options. Unrealized gains and losseadedhe change in market value, period over pedondyur derivatives portfolio. We may or
may not realize these unrealized derivative gaiklasses depending on trade activity, changestémeast rates and the value of the underlying
security.

Our interest rate swaps and Treasury futures a@ taseconomically hedge the effects of changésémest rates on our portfolio specifically
our floating rate debt. Therefore, we includedrieized losses of $21.8 million, $20.2 milliorde$il5.9 million for the years ended December
31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 on these derivatives irpmgentation of economic interest expense andogaiomet interest income in the tables and
discussions above. As we do not elect to accaurihése as hedges for GAAP presentation, we présese gains and losses separately in the
consolidated statements of operations and compseleimcome. The realized losses on our inteestswaps and Treasury futures are
primarily due to declines in interest rates yeagroxear.
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We do not include any gains or losses on our mgeg@gptions in our economic interest expense andagei@ net interest income as the
mortgage options were sold for income generatiahran as an economic hedge for changes in inteaxtest in our portfolio. As we identified
opportunities in mortgage backed securities maxketmnay from time to time purchase or sell mortgaggons, including both call and put
options to take advantage of these opportunifié® realized gains on our mortgage options foyte ended December 31, 2013 was $10.2
million. We had no mortgage options for the yearded December 31, 2012 or 2011.

Net unrealized gains (losses) on inter-only RMBS and Realized loss on principal write-dasvof Non-Agency RMBS

Unrealized gains and losses on our Agency and Ngengy IO RMBS portfolio represent the change invyalue the security from the prior
period. All unrealized gains and losses on ournsgeand Non-Agency IO RMBS portfolio are reflectagarnings. During the year ended
December 31, 2013, we recorded $44.3 million ireahized losses on our 10 portfolio, an increas®4&.1 million from a small unrealized gain
for the year ended December 31, 2012 of less thamiion. We recognized a $14.5 million loss @ RMBS investments for the year ended
December 31, 2011.

10 securities represent the right to receive therést on a pool of mortgage backed securitiefydimy both Agency and Non-Agency mortgage
pools. The fair value of IO RMBS securities aravily impacted by changes in expected prepayméasraVhen 10 securities prepay, the
holder of the 10 security will receive less intéres the investment due to the reduced principal.

During the year ended December 31, 2013, we rebéidess due to a full principal paydown of a NogeAcy RMBS for which we owned the
IO strip. This resulted in a realized loss of 81&iillion and is reflected as a separate line ieithe statement of operations and comprehensive
income.

Gains and Losses on Sales of Assets

Realized gains on sales of investments decreas&d g million to $68.1 million for the year endedcember 31, 2013 from $85.2 million in
realized gains for the year ended December 31,.2BE2lized gains on sales of investments increg$30.8 million for the year ended
December 31, 2012 from $54.4 million in realizeéhgdor the year ended December 31, 2011. As wednabove, we had a significant amount
of sales in 2013, 2012 and 2011. This includedssaf both Agency RMBS and Non-Agency RMBS se@sitis we deleveraged our portfolio
and sold securities for gains when market termevisrorable for the sale of certain investmente d not forecast sales of investments as we
generally expect to invest for long term gains, eeer, from time to time, we will sell assets toiagk targeted leverage ratios as well as for
gains when prices indicate a sale is most benéfiias, or is the most prudent course of actiom&intain a targeted risk adjusted yield for our
investors.

Net Management Fees and General and Administratispenses

The table below shows our total management feegandral and administrative, or G&A, expenses aspewed to average total assets and
average equity for the periods presented.
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Total Total
Managemer Management Total Manageme!
Fee Fee and G&A Fee and G&A
and G&A Expenses/Toti Expenses/Averag

Expense! Assets Equity
(Ratios have been annualized, dollar
thousands
For The Year Ended December 31, 2 $ 35,89¢ 0.4%% 1.04%
For The Year Ended December 31, 2 $ 58,79¢ 0.76% 1.7¢%
For The Year Ended December 31, 2 $ 59,23¢ 0.7% 1.76%
For The Quarter Ended December 31, 2 $ 8,96¢ 0.51% 1.04%
For The Quarter Ended September 30, z $ 9,112 0.51% 1.01%
For The Quarter Ended June 30, 2 $ 8,38( 0.4€% 0.92%
For The Quarter Ended March 31, 2( $ 9,441 0.5(% 1.05%

We incurred management fees of $19.2 million, $4dilBon and $52.0 million for years ended Decem®gr 2013, 2012 and 2011,
respectively. These incurred management feesatref meimbursements from our manager of $6.8 omlind $4.7 million for the years ended
December 31, 2013 and 2012 related to the amendadgement agreement. The management fee is baged stockholders’ equity as
defined in the investment management agreementd@trease in the management fee is due to theragné¢o lower the management fee until
all our SEC filings are current. See further désgon of the management fee, including amendmeriteetmanagement agreement, as well as
other agreements with our Manager in our discussioalated party transactions below. We expeat ¢éince we are current on all our SEC
filings, the management fees will increase.

G&A expenses were $16.7 million, 14.0 million arild3million for the three years ended Decembe2813, 2012 and 2011, respectively .
Our G&A expenses increased primarily due to iaseel legal, accounting fees and consulting feesried.

Provision for Loan Losse

The provision for loan losses related to our séieed loans held for investment represents managenestimate of expected future losses ol
securitized loans held. During the year ended Béee 31, 2013, we recognized gains from a redudtiohe provision of $1.8 million. The
change in provision in 2013 is due primarily t@eér general reserve on loans held for investmeitie portfolio continues to decline as a re
of principal repayments. During the years endedeD®er 31, 2012 and 2011, we recorded additionmrese related to the provision for loan
losses of $368 thousand and $5.3 million.

Net Income (Loss) and Return on Average Equ
The table below shows our economic net interesinre; realized gains (losses) on sale of assettharatedit related OTTI, realized and

unrealized gains (losses) on interest rate swagh$@s) total management fee and G&A expenses,ratudrie tax, each as a percentage of
average equity, and the return on average equitthéoperiods presented.
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Realized ant

Unrealized
Gains
Realized Gain (Losses) on Total
Economic Ne  (Losses) on Interest Rate Management Fee Return
Interest Salesand  Swaps and & G&A Income Tax on
Income/Averag OTTI/Average |0s/Average Expenses/AverageBenefit/Average Average
Equity (1) Equity Equity Equity Equity Equity

(Ratios have been annualize
For The Year Ended Decemt

31, 2013 11.7% 0.72% (0.2%9%) (1.04%) 0.0% 10.55%
For The Year Ended Decemt

31,2012 13.44% (1.44%) (0.2€%) (1.7€%) 0.00(% 9.95%
For The Year Ended Decemt

31, 2011 16.41% (9.16%) (1.4€%) (1.7€%) (0.02%) 4.06%
For The Quarter Ende

December 31, 201 13.1% (3.12%) 1.55% (1.04%) 0.00(% 8.3%%
For The Quarter Ende

September 30, 201 11.3% 0.27% (3.10%) (1.01%) 0.0(% 7.4%
For The Quarter Ended June

2013 10.5(% 6.14% 0.02% (0.92%) 0.0% 15.7%
For The Quarter Ended Mar

31, 2013 10.1%% (0.72%) 0.4%% (1.05%) 0.0(% 8.87%

(1) Includes effect of realized losses on interat# swaps and US Treasury futu

Our net income was $362.7 million, $327.8 milliovd&137.3 million for the years ended Decembe2813, 2012 and 2011,

respectively. Economic net interest income asreguegage of average equity decreased by 174 baisits ffor the year ended December 31,
2013 as compared to the same period of 2012 amdatsd by 303 basis points for the year ended Desedd, 2012 as compared to the same
period of 2011. The decline in our economic ntriest income as a percentage of average equityeiso the lower interest earned on assets on
a lower average earning assets year over yeaet gifstially by lower economic interest expense@maller average debt balance year over
year. The return on average equity increased ya8& points for the year ended December 31, a6X®mpared to the same period of 2

and increased by 587 basis points for the yearceBeéeember 31, 2012 as compared to the same perRdl1. The increase in our return on
average equity is primarily due higher income assalt of lower OTTI from the prior period offset part by lower net economic interest
income.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
General

Liquidity measures our ability to meet cash requieats, including ongoing commitments to repay aurdwings, purchase RMBS, mortgage
loans and other assets for our portfolio, pay dims and other general business needs. Our @irstiprces of capital and funds for additional
investments primarily include earnings from ouréstments, borrowings under securitizations anecexw#tizations, repurchase agreements and
other financing facilities, and proceeds from egoifferings.

To meet our short term (one year or less) liquid#gds, we expect to continue to borrow fundsérnfoinm of repurchase agreements and, su
to market conditions, other types of financing.eTarms of the repurchase transaction borrowingemuour master repurchase agreements
generally conform to the terms in the standard emaspurchase agreement as published by the Sesuritiustry and Financial Markets
Association, or SIFMA, as to repayment, margin meuents and the segregation of all securities awe linitially sold under the repurchase
transaction. In addition, each lender typicallguiees that we include supplemental terms and tiomdito the standard master repurchase
agreement. Typical supplemental terms and comditioclude changes to the margin maintenance egeints, cross default provisions,
required haircuts (or the percentage that is sotettsfrom the value of RMBS that collateralizesfihancing), purchase price maintenance
requirements, and requirements that all dispulegeictto the repurchase agreement be litigatedoitrated in a particular jurisdiction. These
provisions may differ for each of our lenders.

We also expect to meet our short term liquiditydseley relying on the cash flows generated by ouestments. These cash flows are primarily
comprised of monthly principal and interest paymesteived on our investments. We may also selinmestments and utilize those proceeds
to meet our short term liquidity needs or enten imbn-recourse financing of our assets througtss#isecurities to third parties of loan
securitization or RMBS re-securitization transasichat we have completed in prior periods.

Based on our current portfolio, leverage ratio andilable borrowing arrangements, we believe osetaswill be sufficient to enable us to meet
anticipated short-term liquidity requirements. Her, a decline in the value of our collateral doztduse a temporary liquidity shortfall due to
the timing of margin calls on the financing arramgats and the actual receipt of the cash relatpdroipal paydowns. If our cash resources are
at any time insufficient to satisfy our liquiditgquirements, we may have to sell investments, fiatgrat a loss, or issue debt or additional
equity securities in a common stock offering.
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To meet our longer term liquidity needs (greatantbne year), we expect our principal sources pitalzand funds to continue to be providec
earnings from our investments, borrowings undeuidgzations and re-securitizations, repurchaseagents and other financing facilities, as
well as proceeds from equity offerings. As a restibur failure to file our SEC filings by theifily date required by the SEC (including the g
period permitted by Rule 12b-25 under the Secsrirchange Act of 1934, as amended), we are rgibkgito file a new Form S-3 registration
statement or use our existing Form S-3 registragtatements to raise additional equity capitall difitigs with the SEC have been timely made
for a full year. Our ineligibility to use Form Seldiring this time period will have a negative impaw our ability to quickly access the public
capital markets because we would be requiredeaflongform registration statement and wait for the SE@dolare such registration staterr
effective.

In addition to the principal sources of capitalatésed above, we may enter into warehouse faaldied use longer dated structured repurchase
agreements. The use of any particular sourcepfatand funds will depend on market conditionsikability of these facilities, and the
investment opportunities available to us.

Current Period
We held cash and cash equivalents of approxim&f &y million and $621.2 million at December 3112@&nd 2012, respectively.

Our operating activities provided net cash of apjpnately $304.8 million, $334.9 million and $447of the years ended December 31, 2013,
2012 and 2011, respectively. The cash provideddeyaiing activities decreased for the year endexidber 31, 2013 as compared to the year
ended December 31, 2012 due primarily to a deciiedsterest collected on the portfolio, net ofeirgst paid, of $60.8 million, offset in part by
lower management fees paid during 2013 as comparbe same period of 2012 of $23.6 million. Thstcprovided by operating activities
decreased for the year ended December 31, 2012 eamapared to the year ended December 31, 2011rduarjly to a decrease in net interest
income earned on the portfolio of $109.7 milliorayever year.

Our investing activities provided net cash of apprately $305.1 million and 988.8 million for thears ended December 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively, and used cash of $114.1 million lieryear ended December 31, 2011. During the yerdeDecember 31, 2013 we generated
cash from sales of RMBS investments of $1.2 bilaowl principal payments of $1.5 billion relatechtioour investment assets offset by
purchases of $2.4 billion in RMBS securities. Dgrthe year ended December 31, 2012 we generatbdrecen sales of RMBS investments of
$943.4 million and principal payments of $1.7 biflirelated to all our investment assets offsetlrghmses of $124.2 million in RMBS securi
and $1.5 billion in jumbo prime residential mortgdgans. During the year ended December 31, 201dtiieed cash to purchase $4.2 billion in
securities which were offset by proceeds from asalels of $2.6 billion and principal payments of4#dillion.

Our financing activities used net cash of $1.2dnill $908.9 million and $134.5 million for the yeanded December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011,
respectively. The year ended December 31, 201&tetl payments on securitized debt borrowingDa#® million, payment of dividends of
$369.7 million and proceeds from repurchase agratneet of payments on repurchase agreementd36f% million. The year ended
December 31, 2012 reflected payments on repurcdm@sements, net of proceeds from repurchase agneemé$1.1 billion, payments on
securitized debt borrowings of $952.3 million arayments of dividends during the year of $410.7iarill These uses of cash were offset in

by proceeds received from the issuance of secedlitizbt of $1.6 billion. The year ended Decemlie2B11 reflected net payments on
securitized debt borrowings of $725.8 million arayments of dividends during the year of $585.0iamill These uses of cash were offset in
party by proceeds received from repurchase agresirest of payments on repurchase agreements 6df &&nillion and proceeds from
securitized debt borrowings of $311.0 million.

As a result of our operating, investing and finagcactivities described above, our cash positiendelined from $621.2 million at December
31, 2012 to $77.6 million at December 31, 2013.iléMive accumulated cash during 2011 and 2012 esuwdtrof the delays in timely filing with
the SEC, we have recently begun to redeploy thek oo investments in both Agency and Non-AgenMBS investments. We note that our
investments in Non-Agency RMBS and Agency RMBSaatvalue, increased by $296.8 million during tlear ended December 31,

2013. While our cash balance has declined yearymar, we believe that we maintain an appropttel of liquidity, including $260.2 million
of highly liquid Agency RMBS investments which anarently not pledged as collateral for our finamgcarrangements. Even though we have
significant unrestricted Agency RMBS investments,expect to meet our future cash needs primaoipfprincipal and interest payments on
our portfolio and do not anticipate we will needstl unrestricted Agency RMBS investments to neeetliquidity needs.
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There were no secondary stock offerings during/ees ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 cteshe There were securitized debt
borrowings from CSMC 2012 - CIM1, CSMC 2012 - Clidad CSMC 2012 - CIM3 during 2012. Recourse layeiacreased to 0.5:1 at
December 31, 2013 as compared to 0.4:1 at Dece®ib@012.

As we begin to file our SEC financials in a timelieanner, we expect to increase our recourse lgeexa we finance additional purchases of
Agency and Non-Agency RMBS through the deploymémiroceeds received from principal and interesbonportfolio as well as increasing
our financing, primarily through repurchase agrestsie

We expect to continue to finance our RMBS portftdigely through repurchase agreements and loamsgh the securitization market. In
addition, we may from time to time sell securitigsssue debt as a source of cash to fund new psesh

At December 31, 2013 and 2012, the remaining ntasron our RMBS repurchase agreements were asvill

December 3. December 3:

2013 2012
(dollars in thousand:
Overnight $ - $ =
1-29 days 644,33. 732,80!
30 to 59 day: 606,94! 325,91!
60 to 89 day: - -
90 to 119 day 129,04 211,13
Greater than or equal to 120 d: 278,23! 258,16
Total $ 165856, $ 1,528,02!

We collateralize the repurchase agreements weolfsgahce our operations with our RMBS investmerisir counterparties negotiate a
‘haircut’ when we enter into a financing transactiorhich varies from lender to lender. The siz¢hefhaircut reflects the perceived risk
associated with holding the RMBS by the lendere hircut provides lenders with a cushion for dailgrket value movements that reduce the
need for a margin call to be issued or margin toelierned as normal daily increases or decreadeMBS market values occur. At December
31, 2013, the weighted average haircut on our oiyase agreements was 4.79%. Despite the hairputclease agreements subject us to two
types of margin calls. First, there are monthly giracalls that are triggered as principal payments pre-payments are received by us as these
payments lower the value of the collateral. Assult, we expect to receive margin calls from emurchase counterparties monthly simply due
to the principal paydowns on our Agency RMBS. Thanthly principal payments and pre-payments areknotvn in advance and vary
depending on the behavior of the borrowers relatgde underlying mortgages. Second, counterparigdse margin calls or return margin as a
result of normal daily increases or decreasesdatdair values. In addition, when financing assesing standard form of SIFMA Master
Repurchase Agreements, the counterparty to theiaugat typically nets its exposure to us on alltaumiding repurchase agreements and issues
margin calls if movement of the fair values of #ssets in the aggregate exceeds their allowablesar@to us. A decline in asset fair values
could create a margin call, or may create no margihdepending on the counterparty’s specificqgoliln addition, counterparties consider a
number of factors, including their aggregate exp@$o us as a whole and the number of days rengabefore the repurchase transaction closes
prior to issuing a margin call. See Note 5 to oansblidated Financial Statements for a discussihaw we determine the fair values of the
RMBS collateralizing our repurchase agreements.

The table below presents our average daily repsechalance and the repurchase balance at eacH paddor the periods presented. Our
balance at period-end tends to have little fluétunatrom the average daily balances except in perishere we are adjusting the size of our
portfolio by using leverage. Our average repurel@geement balance at December 31, 2013 decreasgdired to our average repurchase
agreement balance for the quarter ended Decemb@032 due to net repayments of our repurchaseagmets financed from the sales of
Agency RMBS during 2013. The Company continuesdejploy capital for strategic purchases of investsen
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Average Repurchas
Repurchase Balance at

Period Balance Period Enc
(dollars in thousand:
Year Ended December 31, 2C $ 1,480,66f $ 1,658,56.
Year Ended December 31, 2C $ 2,122,42. $ 1,528,02
Quarter Ended December 31, 2( $ 157487, $ 1,658,56.
Quarter Ended September 30, 2! $ 1,464,67 $ 1,589,32!
Quarter Ended June 30, 2C $ 1,422,48 $ 1,478,14
Quarter Ended March 31, 20 $ 146062 $ 1,420,37

We are not required to maintain any specific dekduity ratio. We believe the appropriate leverfagehe particular assets we are financing
depends on the credit quality and risk of thosetassAt December 31, 2013 and 2012 our total deistapproximately $3.3 billion and $4.0
billion, which represented a debt-to-equity rati@pproximately 1.0:1 and 1.1:1, respectively. Mtdude repurchase agreements and
securitized debt in the numerator of our debt-toiggatio and stockholders’ equity as the denoitaina

We do not manage our portfolio to have a pre-degeghamount of borrowings at quarter-end or yedr-édur borrowings at period end are a
snapshot of borrowing as of a date, and this nursiveuld be expected to differ from average borrgwiover the period. Our borrowings will
change as we implement our portfolio and risk manaant strategies to address changing market conslitiy increasing or decreasing
leverage. Our borrowings may change during penduasn we raise capital, and in certain instancesas purchase additional assets and
increase borrowings prior to an expected capitaéraSince our average borrowings and period eneWwings can be expected to differ, we
believe our average borrowings during a period ide@a more accurate representation of our expdsute risks associated with leverage.

Secured Debt Financing Transactior

We did not re-securitize any RMBS or jumbo primgidential mortgage loans during the year ended idbee 31, 2013. During the year ended
December 31, 2012, we financed the purchase oft$llidn of jumbo prime residential mortgage lodnssecuritizing and selling senior bonds
to third party investors for net proceeds of $IilHon. We retained the subordinate tranches ofsheuritization. We did not reecuritize RMB:

or jumbo prime residential mortgage loans durirggytear ended December 31, 2011.

Exposure to European Financial Counterpartie

A significant portion of our Agency RMBS is finarttevith repurchase agreements. We secure our bmgswnder these agreements by
pledging our Agency RMBS as collateral to the lend@e collateral we pledge exceeds the amouritebbrrowings under each agreement,
typically with the extent of over-collateralizatitieing at least 3% of the amount borrowed. Ifdbenterparty to the repurchase agreement
defaults on its obligations and we are not abletover our pledged assets, we are at risk ofdasia over-collateralized amount. The amount
of this exposure is the difference between the arlmaned to us plus interest due to the countgrend the fair value of the collateral pledged
by us to the lender including accrued interestivatde on such collateral.

We also use interest rate swaps to manage ouestterte risks. Under these swap agreements,aslg@lAgency RMBS as collateral as part of
a margin arrangement for interest rate swaps tiedhaan unrealized loss position. If a swap cerperty were to default on its obligation, we
would be exposed to a loss to the extent thatitmuat of our Agency RMBS pledged exceeded the limesbloss on the associated swaps and
we were not able to recover the excess collateral.
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Over the past several years, several large Eurdpreantial institutions have experienced finandficulty and have been either rescued by
government assistance or by other large Europeakshm institutions. Some of these financial toitdns or their U.S. subsidiaries have
provided us financing under repurchase agreemente tlave entered into interest rate swaps with satitutions. We have entered into
repurchase agreements and/or interest rate swépsiwicounterparties as of December 31, 2013dteeither domiciled in Europe or are a
U.S.-based subsidiary of a European-domiciled firdninstitution. The following table summarizesr@xposure to such counterparties at
December 31, 2013:

Repurchas Interest Rat: Exposure as
Number of  Agreement Swaps Percentage of

Country Counterpartie  Financing  at Fair Value Exposure (1  Total Assets

(dollars in thousand:

France 1 $ 202,18 $ -9 9,44¢ 0.14%
Germany 1 - (8,389 2,14: 0.05%
Netherland: 1 221,03 - 10,51¢ 0.15%
Switzerlanc 2 317,00: (21,81¢) 23,11 0.3%%
United Kingdom 1 192,90: - 4,67: 0.07%
Total 6 $ 933,13( $ (30,199 $ 49,89: 0.72%

(1) Represents the amount of securities pledgedligeral to each counterparty less the aggregfatepurchas
agreement financing and unrealized loss on swapesaith counterpart

At December 31, 2013, we did not use credit defawéips or other forms of credit protection to hettigeexposures summarized in the table
above.

If the European credit crisis continues to imphesse major European financial institutions, itésgible that it will also impact the operations of
their U.S. subsidiaries. Our financings and openatcould be adversely affected by such events.mhitor our exposure to our repurchase
agreement and swap counterparties on a regulas, hesang various methods, including review of récating agency actions, financial relief
plans, credit spreads or other developments amddmjtoring the amount of cash and securities calddtpledged and the associated loan arr
under repurchase agreements and/or the fair valssaps with our counterparties. We make reveragym calls on our counterparties to
recover excess collateral as permitted by the aggats governing our financing arrangements or ésterate swaps, or may try to take other
actions to reduce the amount of our exposure twuaterparty when necessary.

Stockholder’ Equity

On January 28, 2011, we entered into an equityiloligion agreement with FIDAC and UBS Securitiedd,lor UBS. Through this agreement,
we may sell through UBS, as our sales agent, 12%50000,000 shares of our common stock in ordibaskers’ transactions at market prices or
other transactions as agreed between us and UBSdid\hot sell any shares of our common stock utideequity distribution agreement dur
the years ended December 31, 2013 or 2012.

On September 24, 2009, we implemented a Divideridv@stment and Share Purchase Plan, or DRSPPDRB&P provided holders of record
of our common stock an opportunity to automaticediyivest all or a portion of their cash distrilouts received on common stock in additional

shares of our common stock as well as to make mgitimash payments to purchase shares of our corstnck. The DRSPP was administered

by the Administrator, Computershare. The DRSPPsuapended when we were no longer current on anigsibeginning in the second quarter
of 2012. During the quarter ended March 31, 20&Zaised $117 thousand by issuing 39,000 sharesghrthe DRSPP.

As a result of our failure to file our SEC filingy the filing date required by the SEC (includihg grace period permitted by Rule 12b-25 under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendegljyill/not be able to issue shares of our commoakstinder the equity distribution
agreement or DRSPP until filings with the SEC hlagen timely made for a full year.

During the year ended December 31, 2013 we dectiivédends to common shareholders totaling $5751om or $0.56 per share. During the
year ended December 31, 2012, we declared dividentismmon shareholders totaling $390.2 million$@:38 per shar:
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The Board of Directors declared and paid a divideif$0.09 per share for the first quarter of 20T4e Board of Directors has determined that
there will be a quarterly dividend of $0.09 perrehfar the second, third and fourth quarters of2201

There was no preferred stock issued or outstarasraf December 31, 2013 and 2012.
Related Party Transaction
The Management Agreement

On November 15, 2007 we entered into a managenges¢iment with FIDAC, which provided for an inittekm through December 31, 2010
with an automatic one-year extension option angestito certain termination rights. In 2011 and @0de paid to our Manager a quarterly
management fee equal to 1.50% per annum of ous @tmekholders’ Equity (as defined in the manageragreement). Effective November 28,
2012, the management fee was reduced to 0.75%npamnaof gross Stockholders’ Equity, which reductidgth remain in effect until we are
current on all of our filings required under apalte securities laws.

We are obligated to reimburse our Manager forastsincurred under the management agreementdlticad the management agreement
permits our Manager to require us to pay for its qata portion of rent, telephone, utilities, offifurniture, equipment, machinery and other
office, internal and overhead expenses that ourdganincurred in connection with our operationseeSéhexpenses are allocated between our
Manager and us based on the ratio of the propodfigimoss assets compared to the gross assets etamagur Manager as calculated at each
quarter end. Together we will modify this allocatimethodology, subject to the approval of our badrdirectors if the allocation becomes
inequitable (i.e., if we become very highly levexd@ompared to our Manager’s other funds and a¢spun

March 2013 Amendment to Management Agree

Because of the Restatement Filing, on March 8, 204 amended the management agreement. In the areatidve memorialized the reduct

in the management fee effective on November 282 2@8dditionally, our Manager agreed to pay all pasd future expenses that we and/or our
Audit Committee incur to: (1) evaluate our accongtpolicy related to the application of GAAP to dlwn-Agency RMBS portfolio (the
Evaluation); (2) restate our financial statemeatslie period covering 2008 through 2011 as a redthe Evaluation (the Restatement Filing);
and (3) investigate and evaluate any shareholderati#e demands arising from the Evaluation anthierRestatement Filing (the Investigatic
provided, however, that our Manager’s obligatiopay expenses applies only to expenses not paddibysurers under our insurance policies.
Expenses shall include, without limitation, feed apsts incurred with respect to auditors, outsimensel, and consultants engaged by us and/or
our Audit Committee for the Evaluation, Restatentdlihg and the Investigation.

The amended management agreement is automatieablyved for a one-year term on each anniversary altteugh two-thirds of the
independent directors or the holders of a majaftthe outstanding shares of common stock (other those held by Annaly or its affiliates)
may elect to terminate the management agreement3(pdays notice at any time in their sole disoretvithout the payment of a termination
fee. Additionally, we may terminate the managenagneement effective immediately if (i) our Managagages in any act of fraud,
misappropriation of funds, or embezzlement agdfresus, (i) there is an event of any gross negltigeon the part of our Manager in the
performance of its duties under the managementaggst, (iii) there is a commencement of any procgeeklating to our Manager’s
bankruptcy or insolvency, (iv) there is a dissantof our Manager, or (v) our Manager is conviaé¢including a plea of nolo contendere) a
felony.

Fees Paid Under the Management Agreer
The fees paid under the management agreementtaikedén the results of operations discussion abdwn addition to these fees, our manager
received expense reimbursement under the managegresiment of $493 thousand, $447 thousand andti6é@5and for the years ended

December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 , respectively. M&nager uses the proceeds from its managemeim feart to pay compensation to its
officers and employees who, notwithstanding thatiage of them also are our officers, receive ndhaasmpensation directly from us.
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Clearing Fees

On March 1, 2011, we entered into an administregamyices agreement with RCap Securities, IncR@ap. We use RCap, a SEC registered
broker-dealer and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Apni clear trades for us and RCap is paid custgrfees in return for such serviceRCap
may also provide brokerage services to us from tortene. During the years ended December 31, 28AB2 and 2011, fees paid to RCap were
$145 thousand, $138 thousand and $162 thousampactasely.

Restricted Stock Grant

We granted 1,301,000 shares of restricted stoekmgloyees of our Manager and its affiliates and bremshof our board of directors on January
2, 2008. During the years ended December 31, 26882012, 140,000 and 172,000 shares of restrétoett vested, respectively. During the
years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, 70,00R0a0d0 shares were forfeited, respectiveAt December 31, 2013 and 2012, there were
approximately 384,000 and 586,000 unvested sluinestricted stock issued to employees of FIDAESpectively. For the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, compensatiomsg@ssociated with the amortization of the faiuevaf the restricted stock was
approximately $418 thousand, $449 thousand and $#hkand, respectively.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

The following tables summarize our contractual gdttions at December 31, 2013 and 2012. The estihpaincipal repayment schedule of the
securitized debt is based on expected cash flowseatesidential mortgage loans or RMBS, as adjusteexpected principal writedowns on the
underlying collateral of the debt.

December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Greater Thai
Within One  Oneto Thre¢ Three to Five or Equal to

Contractual Obligation Year Years Years Five Years Total

Repurchase agreements for RM $ 1,658,556 $ - $ - 8 - $ 1,658,56
Securitized dek 370,25 497,94: 264,45t 396,91t 1,529,56!
Interest expense on RMBS repurchase agreemer 2,38( - - - 2,38(
Interest expense on securitized debi 57,54t 80,44¢ 58,62( 178,39: 375,00«
Total $ 208873 $ 57838 $ 32307t $ 57530 $ 3,565,50

(1) Interest is based on variable rates in effeafédDecember 31, 201

December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Greater Thal
Within One  Oneto Thre¢ Three to Five or Equal to

Contractual Obligation Year Years Years Five Years Total

Repurchase agreements for RM $ 1,528,020 $ - $ - 8 - $ 1,528,02!
Securitized dek 658,42: 793,15( 430,99: 555,71 2,438,28.
Interest expense on RMBS repurchase agreemer 3,481 5 - - 3,48¢
Interest expense on securitized debt 88,17" 113,93. 72,90 201,72: 476,73.
Total $ 2,278,100 $ 907,08 $ 503,89 $ 757,43t $ 4,446,52!

(1) Interest is based on variable rates in effeafdDecember 31, 201
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We do not have any relationships with unconsoldi@etities or financial partnerships, such as iestitften referred to as structured finance or
special purpose entities, which would have beembéshed for the purpose of facilitating off-balarsheet arrangements or other contractually

narrow or limited purposes. Further, we have n@atrgnteed any obligations of unconsolidated estit@ do we have any commitment or intent
to provide funding to any such entities.
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Capital Requirements
At December 31, 2013 and 2012, we had no matesiahgitments for capital expenditures.
Dividends

To qualify as a REIT, we must pay annual dividetodsur stockholders of at least 90% of our taxétdeme (subject to certain adjustments).
We intend to pay regular quarterly dividends to stackholders. Before we pay any dividend, we rfitsgstmeet any operating requirements and
scheduled debt service on our financing faciliied other debt payable.

Inflation

A significant portion of our assets and liabilite® interest rate sensitive in nature. As a reséirest rates and other factors influence our
performance far more so than does inflation. Changéterest rates do not necessarily correlate inflation rates or changes in inflation rates.
Our consolidated financial statements are preparadcordance with GAAP and our distributions Wil determined by our board of directors
consistent with our obligation to distribute to atimckholders at least 90% of our REIT taxable ine@n an annual basis in order to maintain
our REIT qualification; in each case, our actidtand financial condition are measured with refeedn historical cost and/or fair market value
without considering inflation.

Other Matters

We at all times intend to conduct our businessssoch to become regulated as an investment comyzasr the 1940 Act. If we were to become
regulated as an investment company, our abilityseleverage would be substantially reduced.

Section 3(a)(1)(C) of the Investment Company Adings an investment company as any issuer thatgaged or proposes to engage in the
business of investing, reinvesting, owning, holdimgrading in securities and owns or proposestpize investment securities having a value
exceeding 40% of the value of the issuer’s tots¢ts(exclusive of U.S. Government securities @asth dems) on an unconsolidated basis (the
“40% test”). Excluded from the term “investment seiies,” among other things, are securities issuechajority-owned subsidiaries that rely
the exemption from registration provided by Sec8¢c)(5)(C) of the Investment Company Act.

Certain of our subsidiaries, including Chimera Ass$elding LLC and certain subsidiaries that we rfayn in the future, rely on the exemption
from registration provided by Section 3(c)(5)(C)tloé Investment Company Act. Section 3(c)(5)(C)néarpreted by the staff of the Securities
and Exchange Commission (or the SEC), requires imvest at least 55% of our assets in “mortgagesather liens on and interest in real
estate” (or Qualifying Real Estate Assets) aneéast 80% of our assets in Qualifying Real Estatessplus real estate related assets. The asse
that we acquire, therefore, are limited by the @ions of and the rules and regulations promulgateter the Investment Company Act.

On August 31, 2011, the SEC issued a concept eetébesi “Companies Engaged in the Business of AgggMortgages and Mortgage-Related
Instruments” (SEC Release No. IC-29778). Undectreept release, the SEC is reviewing interprésisees related to the Section 3(c)(5)(C)
exemption. We are monitoring developments relatefiis matter.

Based on our calculations, as of December 31, 208132012, we were in compliance with the exemgtiom registration provided by Section 3
(©)(5)(C) and 3(a)(1)(C) of the Investment Compauy.
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As a result of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reforrd @onsumer Protection Act of 2010, the U.S. Comydelitures Trading Commission, or
CFTC, gained jurisdiction over the regulation deiest rate swaps. The CFTC has asserted thatatiées the operators of mortgage real estate
investment trusts that use swaps as part of thsinbss model to fall within the statutory defimitiof Commodity Pool Operator, or CPO, and,
absent relief from the Division or the Commissitmregister as CPOs. On December 7, 2012, asitt eésiumerous requests for no-action
relief from the CPO registration requirement foermgiors of mortgage real estate investment trthg<Division of Swap Dealer and Intermedi
Oversight of the CFTC issued no-action relief éedit'No-Action Relief from the Commodity Pool Op&yaRegistration Requirement for
Commodity Pool Operators of Certain Pooled Investnvehicles Organized as Mortgage Real Estate tmesst Trusts” that permits a CPO to
receive relief by filing a claim to perfect the wsfeghe relief. A claim submitted by a CPO will bfective upon filing, so long as the claim is
materially complete. The conditions that must e ta claim the relief are that the mortgage retdte investment trust must:

e Limit the initial margin and premiums required tstablish its commodity interest positions to no entran five percent of the f
market value of the mortgage real estate investings’'s total asset:

e Limit the net income derived annually from its coodity interest positions that are not qualifyinglpmg transactions to less than -
percent of the mortgage real estate investmert’s gross income

e Ensure that interests in the mortgage real estagsiment trust are not marketed to the publicas a commodity pool or otherwise
or in a vehicle for trading in the commodity futsyeommodity options, or swaps markets;

e  Either:
o identify itself as ¢ mortgage REI” in Iltem G of its last U.S. income tax return onfAdt12(-REIT; or

o ifit has not yet filed its first U.S. income tagturn on Form 11z-REIT, disclose to it
shareholders that it intends to identify itselbd®nortgage REIT” in its first U.S. income tax
return on Form 11:-REIT

While we disagree that the CFTC's position thattgege real estate investment trusts that use sagpart of their business model fall within
the statutory definition of a CPO, we have subrditieclaim for the relief set forth in the no-actietief entitled “No-Action Relief from the
Commodity Pool Operator Registration RequirementCfiommodity Pool Operators of Certain Pooled Inwestt Vehicles Organized as
Mortgage Real Estate Investment Trusts” and belexeneet the criteria for such relief set forthréie.

Item 7a. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures bout Market Risk

The primary components of our market risk are eglab credit risk, interest rate risk, prepaymésk, market value risk and real estate risk.
While we do not seek to avoid risk completely, vedidve the risk can be quantified from historicgberience and we seek to actively manage
that risk, to earn sufficient compensation to jystiking those risks and to maintain capital levednsistent with the risks we undertake.

Credit Risk

We are subject to credit risk in connection with myestments in Non-Agency RMBS and residentiafttaege loans and face more credit risk
on assets we own which are rated below “AAA”. Teredit risk related to these investments pertairike ability and willingness of the
borrowers to pay, which is assessed before creditanted or renewed and periodically revieweduthout the loan or security term. We
believe that residual loan credit quality, and tthesquality of our assets, is primarily determibgdhe borrowers’ credit profiles and loan
characteristics. We use a comprehensive credigeweprocess. Our analysis of loans includes borr@nadiles, as well as valuation and appra
data. We use compensating factors such as ligsetsdow loan to value ratios and regional unegnpknt statistics in evaluating loans. Our
resources include a proprietary portfolio managdaragstem, as well as third party software systéffesmay utilize a third party due diligence
firm to perform an independent underwriting revieaensure compliance with existing guidelines.ddition to statistical sampling techniques,
we create adverse credit and valuation sampleghwire individually review. We reject loans that tai conform to our standards and do not
meet our underwriting criteria. Once we own a laaur, surveillance process includes ongoing anatys@igh our proprietary data and servicer
files. Additionally, the Non-Agency RMBS and oth®BS which we acquire for our portfolio are reviehay us to ensure that they satisfy our
risk based criteria. Our review of Néxgency RMBS and other ABS includes utilizing a pietary portfolio management system. Our revie\
Non-Agency RMBS and other ABS is based on quantitadive qualitative analysis of the risk-adjustednetion Non-Agency RMBS and other
ABS. This analysis includes an evaluation of théateral characteristics supporting the RMBS susba@rrower payment history, credit profil
geographic concentrations, credit enhancementosi®s and other pertinent factors.
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Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is highly sensitive to many dast including governmental, monetary and tax jedicdomestic and international economic and
political considerations and other factors beyondamntrol. We are subject to interest rate riskannection with our investments and our
related debt obligations, which are generally repase agreements, warehouse facilities and seetioti/re-securitization vehicles. Our
repurchase agreements and warehouse facilitiedmaylimited duration that is periodically refira at current market rates. We intend to
mitigate this risk through utilization of derivagicontracts, primarily interest rate swap agreememaptions, futures and mortgage options.

Interest Rate Effects on Net Interest Incon

Our operating results depend, in large part, dieidihces between the income from our investmentanborrowing costs. Most of our
warehouse facilities and repurchase agreement&eréimancing based on a floating rate of inteoadtulated on a fixed spread over LIBOR.
The fixed spread varies depending on the type détying asset which collateralizes the financidgcordingly, the portion of our portfolio
which consists of floating interest rate assetsl@lmatch-funded utilizing our expected sourceshafrt-term financing, while our fixed interest
rate assets will not be match-funded. During periaitrising interest rates, the borrowing cost®eissed with our investments tend to increase
while the income earned on our fixed interest nagestments may remain substantially unchangeds Wi result in a narrowing of the net
interest spread between the related assets armiogs and may even result in losses. Furtherndutiis portion of the interest rate and credit
cycles, defaults could increase and result in tfedses to us, which could adversely affect ayidlity and operating results. Such delinquer
or defaults could also have an adverse effect esphead between interest-earning assets andsthberaring liabilities. Hedging techniques are
partly based on assumed levels of prepaymentsrdb@d-rate and hybrid adjustable-rate mortgagem$oand RMBS. If prepayments are slower
or faster than assumed, the life of the mortgagad@and RMBS will be longer or shorter, which wodduce the effectiveness of any hedging
strategies we may use and may cause losses oftranshctions.

Interest Rate Effects on Fair Valu

Another component of interest rate risk is theatftdanges in interest rates will have on thevaiue of the assets we acquire. We face the risk
that the fair value of our assets will increaseecrease at different rates than that of our itédsl including our hedging instruments. We
primarily assess our interest rate risk by estingathe duration of our assets and the duratiorupfiabilities. Duration essentially measures the
market price volatility of financial instruments iaterest rates change. We generally calculatetidarasing various financial models and
empirical data. Different models and methodologigs produce different duration numbers for the saeoarities.

It is important to note that the impact of changimgrest rates on fair value can change signifigamhen interest rates change beyond 100 basis
points from current levels. Therefore, the volstiln the fair value of our assets could increageiicantly when interest rates change beyond
100 basis points. In addition, other factors imghetfair value of our interest rate-sensitive stueents and hedging instruments, such as the
shape of the yield curve, market expectations &sttwe interest rate changes and other marketittons. Accordingly, in the event of changes

in actual interest rates, the change in the fdirevaf our assets would likely differ from that siobelow and such difference might be material
and adverse to our stockholders.

Interest Rate Cap Ris

We also invest in adjustable-rate mortgage loadsRIMBS. These are mortgages or RMBS in which thdetlging mortgages are typically
subject to periodic and lifetime interest rate capd floors, which limit the amount by which thegety’s interest yield may change during any
given period. However, our borrowing costs pursutarmur financing agreements will not be subjectitoilar restrictions. Therefore, in a period
of increasing interest rates, interest rate castsus borrowings could increase without limitatimyn caps, while the interest-rate yields on our
adjustable-rate mortgage loans and RMBS would &ffgg be limited. This problem will be magnified the extent we acquire adjustable-rate
RMBS that are not based on mortgages which arg ifudlexed. In addition, the mortgages or the unyileglmortgages in an RMBS may be
subject to periodic payment caps that result inesportion of the interest being deferred and addele principal outstanding. This could result
in our receipt of less cash income on our adjustade mortgages or RMBS than we need in ordeayalpe interest cost on our related
borrowings. These factors could lower our net egemcome or cause a net loss during periodsioiyinterest rates, which would harm our
financial condition, cash flows and results of @iens.
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Interest Rate Mismatch Ris

We fund a substantial portion of our acquisitioh®MBS with borrowings that, after the effect ofdggng, have interest rates based on indices
and re-pricing terms similar to, but of somewhatrtdr maturities than, the interest rate indices r@apricing terms of the mortgages and
RMBS. In most cases the interest rate indicegesmticing terms of our mortgage assets and outifighsources will not be identical, thereby
creating an interest rate mismatch between assétiabilities. Our cost of funds would likely rige fall more quickly than would our earnings
rate on assets. During periods of changing intee¢es, such interest rate mismatches could negyiivmpact our financial condition, cash flows
and results of operations. To mitigate intere® mismatches, we may utilize the hedging stratetjgesissed above. Our analysis of risks is
based on FIDAG experience, estimates, models and assumptioase&nalyses rely on models which utilize estimaitésir value and intere
rate sensitivity. Actual economic conditions or Iempentation of investment decisions by our managemeay produce results that differ
significantly from the estimates and assumptioregitis our models and the projected results shovthisnForm 10-K.

Our profitability and the value of our portfolimiluding interest rate swaps) may be adverselgt&ffeduring any period as a result of changing
interest rates. The following table quantifies pla¢ential changes in net interest income and plasti’alue for our Agency RMBS portfolio
should interest rates go up or down 25, 50, anblasts points, assuming parallel movements in teke yiurves. All changes in income and v.

are measured as percentage changes from the prbjegtt interest income and portfolio value at tagehinterest rate scenario. The base interes
rate scenario assumes interest rates at Decemp20B3 and various estimates regarding prepaymnmehathactivities are made at each level of
rate change. Actual results could differ signifitta from these estimates.

December 31, 201
Projected Percentay

Projected Percentay Change in Portfolio Value
Change in Net Interest  with Effect of Interest Rate Swa

Change in Interest Ra Income (1) (2)

-75 Basis Point (6.84%) 2.49%

-50 Basis Point (4.22%) 1.76%

-25 Basis Point (1.81%) 0.93%

Base Interest Ra 0.00% 0.00%

+25 Basis Point 1.22% (1.03%)

+50 Basis Point 1.71% (2.10%)

+75 Basis Point 1.76% (3.23%)

(1) Change in annual economic net interest incomeudisd interest expense on interest rate sv
(2) Projected Percentage Change in Portfolio Valmsed on instantaneous moves in interest |

Prepayment Risk
As we receive prepayments of principal on thesestments, premiums and discounts on such invessmeihbbe amortized or accreted into
interest income. In general, an increase in preeaymates will accelerate the amortization of pasehpremiums, thereby reducing the interest

income earned on the investments. Conversely, gigsmn such investments are accelerated and edéngd interest income increasing intel
income.
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Extension Risk

Our Manager computes the projected weighted-avdifegef our investments based on assumptions dégathe rate at which the borrowers

will prepay the underlying mortgages. In generdlew fixed-rate or hybrid adjustablate mortgage loans or RMBS are acquired via bangsy

we may, but are not required to, enter into arré@sierate swap agreement or other hedging instrutnaneffectively fixes our borrowing costs

for a period close to the anticipated averagedifthe fixed-rate portion of the related assetss Blrategy is designed to protect us from rising
interest rates as the borrowing costs are effdgtfiseed for the duration of the fixed-rate portiofithe related assets. However, if prepayment
rates decrease in a rising interest rate environrttemlife of the fixed-rate portion of the reldtassets could extend beyond the term of the sway
agreement or other hedging instrument. This coaiceta negative impact on our results from operatiaa borrowing costs would no longer be
fixed after the end of the hedging instrument while income earned on the fixed and hybrid adjlstedie assets would remain fixed. In
extreme situations, we may be forced to sell ageeatwintain adequate liquidity, which could causdo incur losses.

Basis Risk

We seek to limit our interest rate risk by hedgiagtions of our portfolio through interest rate pswand other types of hedging instruments.
Interest rate swaps are generally tied to undeglyireasury benchmark interest rates. Basis rigitaglto the risk of the spread between our
RMBS and underlying hedges widening. Such a widemay cause a decline in the fair value of our RMIES is greater than the increase in
fair value of our hedges resulting in a net dedinbook value. The widening of mortgage-backedigges yields and Treasury benchmark
interest rates may result from a variety of facgush as anticipated or actual monetary policyoastor other market factors.

Market Risk
Market Value Risk

Our available-for-sale securities are reflectethair estimated fair value with unrealized gaind lsses excluded from earnings and reported in
other comprehensive income if no OTTI has beengmrized in earnings. The estimated fair value o$é¢hsecurities fluctuates primarily due to
changes in interest rates, prepayment speeds, tiigikdity, credit quality, and other factors. @ally, in a rising interest rate environment,
the estimated fair value of these securities wbeléxpected to decrease; conversely, in a deceeasarest rate environment, the estimated fair
value of these securities would be expected teass. As market volatility increases or liquidigcreases, the fair value of our investments
may be adversely impacted.

Real Estate Market Ris

We own assets secured by real property and mayreaproperty directly in the future. Residengiebperty values are subject to volatility and
may be affected adversely by a number of factoduding, but not limited to, national, regionatdncal economic conditions (which may be
adversely affected by industry slowdowns and othetors); local real estate conditions (such as\ensupply of housing); changes or contin
weakness in specific industry segments; constmdiality, age and design; demographic factors;ratrdactive changes to building or similar
codes. In addition, decreases in property valutisceethe value of the collateral and the poteptiateeds available to a borrower to repay our
loans, which could also cause us to incur losses.
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Risk Management

To the extent consistent with maintaining our REfdtus, we seek to manage risk exposure to protegortfolio of residential mortgage loans,
RMBS, and other assets and related debt againsfféets of major interest rate changes. We gelyesatk to manage risk by:

e  monitoring and adjusting, if necessary, the rasd@¢x and interest rate related to our RMBS andinancings;

e  attempting to structure our financing agreementsatee a range of different maturities, terms, amatibns and interest rate adjustn
periods;

e using derivatives, financial futures, swaps, omiaraps, floors and forward sales to adjust thexést rate sensitivity of our investme
and our borrowings

e using securitization financing to lower averaget afunds relative to shc-term financing vehicles further allowing us to rieeethe
benefit of attractive terms for an extended peonbdime in contrast to short term financing and unidy dates of the investments
included in the securitization; a

e actively managing, on an aggregate basis, theesitente indices, interest rate adjustment periadd, gross reset margins of
investments and the interest rate indices and ta@rg periods of our financing

Our efforts to manage our assets and liabilitiescancerned with the timing and magnitude of thpriging of assets and liabilities. We attempt
to control risks associated with interest rate momets. Methods for evaluating interest rate righuide an analysis of our interest rate sensit|
“gap”, which is the difference between interestr@ay assets and interest-bearing liabilities matudr re-pricing within a given time period. A
gap is considered positive when the amount of @sterate sensitive assets exceeds the amountoéstirate sensitive liabilities. A gap is
considered negative when the amount of interestsasitive liabilities exceeds interest-rate smesassets. During a period of rising interest
rates, a negative gap would tend to adversely taffetcinterest income, while a positive gap woeladit to result in an increase in net interest
income. During a period of falling interest ratasiegative gap would tend to result in an incréaset interest income, while a positive gap
would tend to affect net interest income adverdg@gcause different types of assets and liabilitids the same or similar maturities may react
differently to changes in overall market rates @mditions, changes in interest rates may affectmetest income positively or negatively eve
an institution were perfectly matched in each mgtwategory.

The following table sets forth the estimated m&ust re-pricing of our interest-earning assets iaterest-bearing liabilities at December 31,
2013. The amounts of assets and liabilities shaitlmin a particular period were determined in ademrce with the contractual terms of the
assets and liabilities, except adjustable-ratedpand securities are included in the period irctvitheir interest rates are first scheduled tosidju
and not in the period in which they mature andudek the effect of the interest rate swaps. Thegant rate sensitivity of our assets and liabd

in the table could vary substantially based onagitepayments.

(dollars in thousand:

Greater than .

Within 3 Months  3-12 Months 1 Year to 3 Year Years Total
Rate sensitive asse $ 1,613,92. $ 2,534,311 $ 972,85¢ $ 8,688,911 $ 13,810,01
Cash equivalent 77,62¢ - - - 77,62¢
Total rate sensitive asse 1,691,55. 2,534,31 972,85! 8,688,91i 13,887,64
Rate sensitive liabilitie 158,03: 594,26( 30,20¢ 1,157,90. 1,940,40.
Interest rate sensitivity gé $ 153351 § 1,940,05 $ 942,64 $ 7,531,01 $ 11,947,24
Cumulative rate sensitivity ge $ 153351 $ 3,473,571 $ 4,416,22 $ 11,947,24
Cumulative interest rate sensitivity g
as a
percentage of total rate sensitive as 11% 25% 32% 8€%

Our analysis of risks is based on our manager'smapce, estimates, models and assumptions. Thasesas rely on models which utilize
estimates of fair value and interest rate sengjitivictual economic conditions or implementatiorirofestment decisions by our manager may
produce results that differ significantly from thgtimates and assumptions used in our models arutdfected results shown in the above tables
and in this Form 10-K. These analyses contairageforward-looking statements and are subjedi¢ostfe harbor statement set forth under the
heading, “Special Note Regarding Forward-Lookingt&nents.”
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Our consolidated financial statements and theeélabtes, together with the Report of Independegfistered Public Accounting Firm thereon,
are set forth on pages beginning on F-1 of thi3ZBdrm 10-K.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountés on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Disclosure controls and procedures (as defineduiedl3a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Exchange Aetflasigned to ensure that information
required to be disclosed in reports filed or subeditinder the Exchange Act is recorded, processmamarized and reported within the time
periods specified in SEC rules and forms and thelt énformation is accumulated and communicatedaoagement, including the Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, titoav timely decisions regarding required disclosure

Our management, including our Chief Executive @ffiand Chief Financial Officer, reviewed and evidahe effectiveness of the design and
operation of our disclosure controls and procedasesf the end of the period covered by this 201iRial report. As described below,
management has identified material weaknessegtimireomponents of our internal control over fic@hreporting, which is an integral
component of our disclosure controls and procedétes result of these material weaknesses, thalityeto file this Annual Report on Form
10-K within the statutory time period, and the enadion that we have performed, our Chief Execu¥iécer and Chief Financial Officer have
concluded that the disclosure controls and proeedwere not effective as of December 31, 2013.

(b) Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Fhancial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finahaaorting, as such term is defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f). UnHlerdupervision and with the participation of oumagement, including our Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, we conductedevaluation of the effectiveness of our interraitool over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2013 based on the framework in Int€oatrol—Integrated Framework issued by the Corteaibf Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission (1992 Framework) (COSO3eBan that evaluation, our management conclugedrtternal controls over financial
reporting and disclosure were not effective as @é@nber 31, 2013 due to the material weaknessetemal control over financial reporting
described below.

Material Weaknesses in Internal Control Over Finah&eporting

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combametif deficiencies, in internal control over findalaeporting such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of ourwairor interim financial statements will not be yeated or detected on a timely basis. As
previously disclosed in Item 9A of our Annual Retpmm Form 10K for the period ended December 31, 2012, we repartaterial weaknesses
our internal control over financial reporting (afided in Rule 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under theltange Act). Certain of the previously
reported material weaknesses have been remediadetkatain material weaknesses remain un-remediateblis period and remediation as
described below is ongoing.
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Management has remediated the following materialkmess in our internal control over financial reimay as of December 31, 2013

e Weakness
Our resources and level of technical accountingerige within the accounting function were insuéfit to properly evaluate and accc
for the complexity of our investments in Non-AgenRMBS securities, Intere€dnly Strips, impairment of securitized loans hetd
investment, effective interest calculations andtesl disclosures in accordance with generally aedegccounting principles.

e Remediation

Our Manager hired several key people in 2013, tgholy a new Chief Financial Officer, Director of Bimcial Reporting and Director
Accounting Policy. The new resources and levekohnical accounting expertise within the accounfimction were sufficient to prope
evaluate and account for the complexity of our @trreents and related disclosures in accordance gétierally accepted account
principles for 2013. Therefore, the previously ntiiged material weakness for inadequate technamtounting experience has b
remediated.

e \Weakness
We did not design and maintain adequate reviewagpdoval controls over significant estimates arairttelated disclosure proces:
prevent or detect a material misstatement. Spadlifi we did not establish adequate procedureesign effective controls as follows:

o0 There was no precise or direct independent reviedwalidation of inputs used in significant estisgtind their related disclost
such as the determination of fair val

e Remediation
In 2013, our Manager formed a middle office groogstablish an independent price validation proeessto establish review contr
over complex calculations and spreadsheets ussabmort the financial statements and disclosufé® middle office group designe
rigorous process and exercised adequate revievagmval control®ver the determination of fair value and their tedadisclosure
Therefore, the previously identified material weass for inadequatgrecision or direct independent review and val@af inputs il
the determination of fair value has been remediated

Management has identified the following un-remestiahaterial weaknesses in our internal control éimancial reporting as of December 31,
2013:

e We have identified that our design, procedures, ardcution of review controls, including the reviea journal entries ar
reconciliations, for routine processes were notlymor effective. Specifically there was insuféiot evidence that our review cont
were designed and executed at a precision leveWbiald prevent or detect a material misstaterr

e We did not design and maintain adequate reviewagnpdoval controls over significant estimates arartrelated disclosure proces:
prevent or detect a material misstatement. Spadlifi we did not establish adequate procedureesign effective controls as follown

o0 There was inadequate or delayed review and vadidaif inputs used in significant estimates andrtredated disclosures, such
othe~thar-temporary impairment, interest income related t@&tments in RMBS and securitized loans held feestment

o There was inadequate or delayed evidence of indigmenvalidation of calculations used in significaticounting estimates
ensure the accounting policies were appropriateplémented

0 There was inadequate or delayed evidence of rewfetlie schedules supporting the amounts and dis@esn the consolidat
financial statement.

e We have identified an overreliance on spreadsteegtsisting of manual inputs and complex calcul&iosed to record transactions
estimates supporting the financial statement ansoantl disclosures. Our controls over this eledirdata were not performed &
level of precision sufficient to rely on the comtpleess and accuracy of the source data or manpat. iThe safeguarding &
management of electronic data were insufficienet@ence the existence or extent of managemeniisweand validation over tl
complex spreadsheets by a person with the necessiangetency and authorit

Due to the material weaknesses, management haideddhat we did not maintain an effective intémtrol over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2013, based on criteria establishdtei€OSO Framework.

The effectiveness of our internal control over ficial reporting as of December 31, 2013 has beditealby Ernst & Young LLP, an
independent registered public accounting firm,tated in their report which is included elsewhegseeim.

(c) Changes in Internal Control over Financial Repating

Management is committed to the ongoing remediadftorts to address the material weaknesses asawelher identified areas of risk. These
remediation efforts, summarized below, which atleegiimplemented or in process, are intended th Adtress the identified material
weaknesses and to enhance our overall financiatal@nvironment.

While a significant amount of review and approvahtrols were added since the filing of our 2012nFd-K on December 31, 2013, thewas



still insufficient evidence that our review consalere designed and executed at an appropriatesipretevel. Review controls typically oct
during the calendar year as well as the end ofciendar year through the date of the FornmK1flling; however a majority of the revie
controls for the Company were executed in 2014ttier2013 reporting period. As discussed abdwejriability to file an Annual Report
Form 10-K within the statutory time period is deehaeresult of these material weaknesses.

In November 2013, our Manager hired a new Chiehfietogy Officer. Our Manager has reviewed its textbgy infrastructure and is in the
process of implementing several new systems whittreduce its reliance on spreadsheets and mamwoaksses. It is expected that the
technology projects will take time to implement andy not be fully implemented and functioning ug@til5. For 2014, the Company and its
Manager have and will continue to focus on its cargnvironment, have and will add controls toeissting infrastructure and will ensure
controls are executed on a timely basis until tleensystematic and automated processes and presaghertested and in place.
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Our Manager has grown the accounting policy, mideffece and financial reporting group which hasréased the opportunity to furtl
segregate duties, improve the technical competefdlye accounting function and improve our congnlironment. These resources have
will continue to provide improved documentationjdance and precision of review of the schedulepsting the amounts and disclosure
the consolidated financial statements. The tinesknof the reviews in future periods will furtheprrove the control environment.

Although not all identified material weaknessesenbgen remediated, our management has concludesigh#dicant changes to the control
environment and related processes have occurrethahdur consolidated financial statements forpagods covered by and included in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K are prepared in accareavith GAAP and fairly present in all materialpests, our financial position, results of
operation and cash flows for each of the periodsgmted herein.

Other than the ongoing remediation efforts desdrét@ove, there have been no changes in our inteonélol over financial reporting that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely tatenilly affect, our internal control over finantiaporting.

Item 9B. Other Information

None.

PART Il

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpora¢ Governance
Directors
The following are our directors and officers adviafy 16, 2014.

We have three classes of directors. Each of cas<dl, Class Il and Class Il directors will beotdsl at our next annual meeting of
stockholders. Our Class | directors will servelunir annual meeting of stockholders for 2017.r Glass |l directors will serve until our annual
meeting of stockholders for 2015. Our Class Itediors will serve until our annual meeting of &tualders for 2016. Set forth below are the
names and certain information on each of our dirsct

Mathew Lambiase was previously classified as agdlaBirector, however, our Board has reclassifid Lambiase as a Class Il Director.
Class | Directors

Paul Donlin, age 52, was appointed as one of cas<dl Directors and our Nonexecutive Chairman efBbard of Directors on November 15,
2007. Mr. Donlin left Citigroup in 2007, after areer that spanned 21 years. For the previougd®at Citigroup, Mr. Donlin was in the
securitization business, with his most recent pmsibeing the Head of Global Securitization in @lebal Securitized Markets Business within
Fixed Income. Earlier in his career at CitigroMy, Donlin managed the Structured Finance and Aayi&nit of Citigroup’s Private

Bank. None of the corporations or organization tave employed Mr. Donlin during the past five ngeia a parent, subsidiary or other affiliate
of us. Mr. Donlin has an M.B.A. from Harvard Unigity and a Bachelor’'s Degree from Georgetown Uity

The Board believes that Mr. Donlin’s qualificationslude, among other things, his significant eigrese in the residential mortgage-backed
securities market from his years of managemenbandsight of securitization activities and his ertige in financial matters.
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Mark Abrams, age 65, was appointed as one of cagIDirectors on November 15, 2007. Mr. Abraersed as Chief Investment Officer of
the Presidential Life Insurance Company from Noven#903 to December 2012 and as Executive Vicddenatsfrom 2005 to December
2012. He was Senior Vice President of the Presimldrife Insurance Company from 2001 to 2005, aeébre that, Mr. Abrams served as Vice
President of the Presidential Life Insurance Cormgsiimce October 1994. None of the corporationsrganizations that have employed Mr.
Abrams during the past five years is a parent,idigrg or other affiliate of us. Mr. Abrams ha8achelor's Degree from Hobart College.

The Board believes that Mr. Abrams’s qualificatiamdude, among other things, his experience dsef mvestment officer and his prior
executive experience with other companies.

Gerard Creagh, age 56, was appointed as one @lass | Directors effective as of April 1, 2010fitba newly created directorship on the board
of directors. Since May 2011, Mr. Creagh has sbagea Managing Partner at CVC Advisers LLC, arfai@ consulting firm. From September
2005 through April 2010, Mr. Creagh served as ttesiBlent and a member of the Board of Directoiduff & Phelps Corporation. From
September 2005 to September 2007, Mr. Creagh ser/Bdesident of Duff & Phelps Acquisitions, LLErior to its merger with Duff & Phelps
in September 2005, Mr. Creagh served as executareaging director of Standard & Poor's Corporataig&onsulting practice. Mr. Creagh
joined Standard & Po’s from PricewaterhouseCoopers, where he held dséipn of North American Valuation Services preetieader. Mr.
Creagh previously served as the U.S. leader fov#ieation Practice of Coopers & Lybrand. Nonehef corporations or organizations that t
employed Mr. Creagh during the past five yearspar@nt, subsidiary or other affiliate of us. @reagh received Bachelor's Degree and
Master's Degree in mechanical engineering from Mataim College and has an M.B.A. in finance from Néwk University's Leonard N. Stern
School of Business.

The Board believes that Mr. Creagh’s qualificationdude, among other things, his experience irothersight of risk management policies and
procedures, his significant background as a leagocate executive and his prior board experiendb other companies.

Class Il Directors

Paul A. Keenan, age 47, was appointed as one dtlass Il Directors on November 15, 2007. Mr. Kaehas been a partner in the law firm of
Kelley Drye and Warren LLP since 2002 and speaslin real estate finance. None of the corporatarrorganizations that have employed Mr.
Keenan during the past five years is a parent,idiglog or other affiliate of us. Mr. Keenan ha3.R. from Seton Hall University and a
Bachelor’'s Degree from Rutgers, the State UniverditNew Jersey.

The Board believes that Mr. Keenan'’s qualificationdude, among other things, his experience asvdirm partner specializing in real estate
finance and his knowledge of the real estate fiaandustry.

Dennis M. Mahoney, age 72, was appointed as ooero€lass Il Directors effective as of April 1, Z0tb fill a newly created directorship on-
board of directors. Before retiring in 2007, MraMoney was Senior Vice President of Columbia Bamkvweas responsible for the development
and expansion of alternative investment produltsor to joining Columbia Bank in 1994, Mr. Mahonegs Executive Vice President and Cl
Operating Officer of First Atlantic Savings. Mr.ationey joined First Atlantic Savings in 1988 fromr€ret Savings Bank where he was
Executive Vice President, Treasurer. None of tirparations or organizations that have employedM&honey during the past five years is a
parent, subsidiary or other affiliate of us. Mralbney received a Bachelor's Degree in EconomidsBarsiness Administration from Roanoke
College.

The Board believes that Mr. Mahoney’s qualificatignclude, among other things, his significant klezlge of the banking and investment
industry and his experience as an executive ifitla@cial services industry.

Class Il Directors

Matthew Lambiase, age 48, has served as our Pnésidd Chief Executive Officer, and one of our dioes since August 2007. He is Manac
Director for Annaly Capital Management, Inc., orrfaty, and our Manager. He joined these companidarie 2004. Before joining Annaly ¢
FIDAC, Mr. Lambiase was a Director in Fixed IncoB®ales at Nomura Securities International, Inc. rdig11 year employment at Nomura,
Mr. Lambiase was responsible for the distributibe@ammercial and residential mortgage-backed sgesittio a wide variety of institutional
investors. Mr. Lambiase also held positions atrB&gearns & Company as Vice President in Insthal Fixed Income Sales and as a mortgage
analyst in the Financial Analytics and StructuredriBaction Group. Mr. Lambiase has been duringdisé five years and is currently employed
at Annaly and our Manager. Mr. Lambiase has a Blac!s Degree in Economics from the University afyfon.

The Board believes that Mr. Lambiase’s qualificasiacnclude, among other things, his significanuistdy knowledge and experience and his
current position as our Chief Executive Officer &dsident provides him with knowledge of our leexgn strategy and operations.

John P. Reilly, age 65, was appointed as one o€tass Il Directors effective as of April 1, 20f®fill a newly created directorship on the
board of directors. Mr. Reilly co-founded and re$tdent and Chief Executive Officer of Keltic Fircéal Services, LLC, a privately owned
finance company providing asset based loans tounedize companies. Prior to founding Keltic Firiah8ervices, LLC, in 1999, Mr. Reilly
spent 22 years at Citicorp in various senior exeeugositions in the Leverage Lending, Capital Mask Corporate Finance and Private Banking
Businesses. Since 2001, Mr. Reilly has serveddisator of Scan Source, Inc. None of the corponator organizations that have employed
Mr. Reilly during the past five years is a parestibsidiary or other affiliate of us. Mr. Reillatia M.B.A. from Fairleigh Dickinson University,
Teaneck , New Jersey, and a Bachelor's Degree Kiogis College, Wilkes-Barre, Pennsylvania.
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The Board believes that Mr. Reilly’s qualificatioinglude, among other things, his knowledge offth@nce industry and prior experience as a
director of another company.

Executive Officers

The following sets forth certain information withspect to our current executive officers:

Name Age Position Held with U
Matthew Lambias: 48 Chief Executive Officer, President and Direc
Robert Colligar 43 Chief Financial Officer and Secrete
Mohit Marria 36 Chief Investment Office
William B. Dyer 67 Head of Underwriting

Biographical information on Mr. Lambiase is prouidgbove. Certain biographical information for Moll@an, Mr. Marria and Mr. Dyer is set
forth below.

Robert Colligan is our Chief Financial Officer aidcretary. Before joining FIDAC as a Managing Biioe in May 2013, Mr. Colligan was the
Controller at Starwood Capital Group for the presidive years. Prior to Starwood Capital Groupirfr2002 to 2008 Mr. Colligan was a
Managing Director at Bear Stearns and from 19980t® a Vice President at Merrill Lynch in financiaporting, strategy and investor relations
roles. Mr. Colligan began his career at PricewateskeCoopers where from 1993 to 1999 he had rolestinaudit and national tax. He has a
Bachelor’'s Degree in Accounting from Villanova Uersity, a Master’'s Degree in Taxation from GeorgastWhgton University and is a
Certified Public Accountant.

Mohit Marria is our Chief Investment Officer and Brecutive Vice President of FIDAC. Mr. Marriaf@d FIDAC in August 2005. While at
FIDAC, Mr. Marria has had responsibility for thevédopment and implementation of Chimera’s traditngtegies in residential mortgageckec
securities, residential mortgage loans and itsvd#vies portfolio. He has been a member of thesiment team since Chimera'’s inception. Mr.
Marria joined FIDAC from American International Gio (AIG). Prior to working at AlG, Mr. Marria wodd at Metropolitan Life Insurance
Company. Mr. Marria earned a Bachelor’'s Degrefiance and a M.B.A., each from the Rutgers Unityers

William B. Dyer is our Manager’s Executive Vice Bigent and serves as our Head of Underwriting.oigbining FIDAC in August 2007, Mr.
Dyer was Vice President, Credit Risk ManagemenPidH Mortgage Corporation from 1997 where his resfulities included supervision of
the Credit Solutions Department. Mr. Dyer was Mieesident at the Fixed-Income Division of Nomurssét Capital Corporation from 1994 to
1997, where he managed deal-related activitiesa&liior the securitization or sale of the mortgégmns. Mr. Dyer has an M.B.A. from St.
John’s University and a Bachelor’'s Degree fromFgancis College.
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Corporate Governance

We believe that we have implemented applicablearatte governance policies and observe good cogpgmaternance procedures and
practices. We have adopted a number of writteities| including corporate governance guidelineslecof business conduct and ethics, and
charters for our audit committee, compensation citteenand nominating and corporate governance cteeni

Board Oversight of Risk

The board of directors is responsible for overggeunr risk management practices and committedsedoard of directors assist it in fulfilling
this responsibility.

As required by its charter, the audit committediraly discusses with management our significast exposures and the actions management
has taken to limit, monitor or control such expesyincluding guidelines and policies with resgeatur assessment of risk and risk
management. At least annually, the audit commig@ws with management our risk management progvhaith identifies and quantifies a
broad spectrum of enterprise-wide risks, and rdlatgion plans. In 2013, our full board of direstparticipated in this review and discussion
and expects to continue this practice as parsabit in the oversight of our risk managementtwas. In addition, our Manager's employees
report to the audit committee on various matteleted to our risk exposures on a regular basisarerfrequently if appropriate. At their
discretion, members of the board of directors msg directly contact management to review and dise@uny risk-related or other concerns that
may arise between regular meetings.

Our board of directors reviewed with the compegatommittee its compensation policies and prastggplicable to our Manager that could
affect our assessment of risk and risk managentesitowing such review, our board of directors deti@ed that our compensation policies and
practices, pursuant to which we pay no cash congiensto our Manages’' employees since they are compensated by our Mardgnot creat
risks that are reasonably likely to have a matexiizierse effect on us. Our board of directors etsidered that while we may grant our
Manager’'s employees equity awards, such grants Higjr interests with our interests and do noat@eisks that are reasonably likely to have a
material adverse effect on us. As part of its @skessment and management activities going forwarcompensation committee also
determined that our compensation committee wouttettake an annual review of our compensation @sliend practices as they relate to risk,
the results of which will be shared with our fuldyd of directors.

Board Leadership Structure

We have separated the roles of principal executffieer and chairman of the board. Our principedutive officer is Matthew Lambiase, who
is our Chief Executive Officer, President and aebior. Our chairman of the board of directorsasl®onlin, who is an independent

director. The board of directors believes thisadtion of responsibilities between these two passt provides for dynamic board leadership
while maintaining strong independence and is tloeecén effective and appropriate leadership stractu

Board Committees and Charters

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

We have adopted a Code of Business Conduct andskthihich sets forth the basic principles and diride for resolving various legal and

ethical questions that may arise in the workplawia the conduct of our business. This codgfdieable to all our named executive officers
and directors, as well as to our Manager's officdirectors and employees when such individualsetieg for or on our behalf.
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We have adopted a Code of Business Conduct andsBtliihin the meaning of Item 406(b) of Regulat®. This Code of Business Conduct
and Ethics applies to our principal executive @ffigrincipal financial officer and principal aceting officer. This Code of Business Conduct
and Ethics is publicly available on our websitevatw.chimerareit.com. If we make substantive anmegiots to this Code of Business Conduct
and Ethics or grant any waiver, including any iraphvaiver, we intend to disclose these eventsumaebsite.

Corporate Governance Guidelines

We have adopted Corporate Governance Guidelineshwin conjunction with the charters and key pragiof our board committees, provide
the framework for the governance of our company.

Other Charters

Our compensation committee, audit committee andimating and corporate governance committee haweaalepted written charters which
govern their conduct.

Where You Can Find Our Corporate Governance Docurngen

Our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, Corp@ateernance Guidelines, Compensation Committee 8haktidit Committee Charter and
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee €hare available on our website (www.chimerareihdWe will provide copies of these
documents free of charge to any stockholder whdsanwritten request to Investor Relations, Chinevastment Corporation, 1211 Avenue of
the Americas, Suite 2902, New York, New York 10036.

Compensation Committee

Our board of directors has established a compemsatimmittee, which is composed of each of ourpedeent directors, Messrs. Abrams,
Creagh, Donlin, Keenan, Mahoney and Reilly. MreKan chairs the compensation committee, whoseipainftinctions are to:

evaluate the performance of our office

evaluate the performance of our Manay

review the compensation and fees payable to oualmunder our management agreerr

recommend to the board of directors the compensé&tioour independent directors; a

administer the issuance of any securities undeequity incentive plan to our executives or the kyges of our Manage

For additional information on the compensation cotte®, please see “Compensation Committee Repeltin
Audit Committee

Our board of directors has established an audingittee, which is composed of each of our indepehdeectors, Messrs. Abrams, Creagh,
Donlin, Keenan, Mahoney and Reilly. Mr. Mahonewics our audit committee as our board of direchas determined that Mr. Mahoney is an
audit committee financial expert, as that termefrobd by the SEC. Each of the members of thet@odimittee is “financially literate” under
the rules of the NYSE. The committee assists tdadin overseeing:

our accounting and financial reporting proces

the integrity and audits of our consolidated finahstatements

our compliance with legal and regulatory requiretsg

the qualifications and independence of our indepehrkgistered public accounting firm; ¢
the performance of our independent registered paoicounting firm
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The audit committee is also responsible for engagiir independent registered public accounting,fiewiewing with the independent
registered public accounting firm the plans andltef the audit engagement, approving professiemaices provided by the independent
registered public accounting firm, reviewing thdépendence of the independent registered publauatiog firm, considering the range of at
and non-audit fees and reviewing the adequacy ointernal accounting controls.

Our board of directors has determined that alhefdirectors serving on the audit committee arepeddent members of the audit committee
under the current NYSE independence requirementS&C rules. The activities of the audit commitiee described in greater detail below
under the caption “Report of the Audit Committee.”

Nominating and Corporate Governance Commiti

Our board of directors has established a nominatimtjcorporate governance committee, which is caegbof each of our independent
directors, Messrs. Abrams, Creagh, Donlin, Keeiahoney and Reilly. Mr. Donlin chairs the committevhich is responsible for seeking,
considering and recommending to the full boardiadadors qualified candidates for election as doexand recommending a slate of nominees
for election as directors at the annual meetingt@tkholders. It also periodically prepares arzhsts to the board for adoption the nominating
and corporate governance committee’s selectioart@ifor director nominees. It reviews and male®mmendations on matters involving
general operation of the board and our corporatemance, and annually recommends to the boardneasifor each committee of the

board. In addition, the nominating and corporatesgnance committee annually facilitates the assessof the board of directors’ performance
as a whole and of the individual directors and repihereon to the board.

Our board of directors has determined that alhefdirectors serving on the nominating and corpogat/ernance committee are independent
members of the nominating and corporate governaengenittee under the current NYSE independence repgints and SEC rules.

Our nominating and corporate governance commitieeiotly considers the following factors in makitgyrecommendations to the board of
directors: background, skills, expertise, accélityiland availability to serve effectively on tih®ard of directors. Our nominating and corporate
governance committee also conducts inquiries mdoackground and qualifications of potential cdat#is. Although the nominating and
corporate governance committee does not have afaliversity policy, it believes that diversityas important factor in determining the
composition of the board of directors. Additiogathe committee believes that it is critical tovea board of directors with diverse backgrot

in various areas as this contributes to our sucaedss in the best interests of our stockhold&ifse nominating and corporate governance
committee will consider nominees recommended bystaekholders. These recommendations should brigel in writing to our Secretary.

Our nominating and corporate governance commitses a variety of methods for identifying and eviihggnominees for director. Our
nominating and corporate governance committee agigudssesses the appropriate size of the boatuleaftors, and whether any vacancies on
the board of directors are expected due to retiltimieotherwise. In the event that vacancies atieipated, or otherwise arise, our nominating
and corporate governance committee considers vapotential candidates for director. Candidateg coane to the attention of our nominating
and corporate governance committee through cumentbers of our board of directors, professionaickefirms, stockholders or other
persons. These candidates are evaluated at regidpecial meetings of our nominating and corgogatvernance committee, and may be
considered at any point during the year. As dbsdrabove, our nominating and corporate governemcenittee considers properly submitted
stockholder nominations for candidates for the dadirdirectors. Following verification of the stdwlder status of persons proposing
candidates, recommendations are aggregated andietsby our nominating and corporate governancentittee at a regularly scheduled or
special meeting. If any materials are providedsfockholder in connection with the nominatiomafirector candidate, such materials are
forwarded to our nominating and corporate goveraarmnmittee. Our nominating and corporate govemaommittee also reviews materials
provided by professional search firms or otheripaiin connection with a nominee who is not propgdsga stockholder. In evaluating such
nominations, our nominating and corporate goveraeaenmittee seeks to achieve a balance of knowjedgerience and capability on the
board of directors.
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Communications with the Board of Directors

Interested persons may communicate their complaintencerns by sending written communication$iéottoard of directors, committees of
board of directors, the non-management directadsradiividual directors by mailing those communioas to:

Chimera Investment Corporation
[Applicable Addressee*]
1211 Avenue of the Americas
Suite 2902
New York, NY 10036
Phone: (646) 454-3759
Facsimile: (212) 696-9809
Email: investor@chimerareit.com
Attention: Investor Relations

Audit Committee of the Board of Directo

Compensation Committee of the Boar@®wkctors

Nominating and Corporate Governance @ittee of the Board of Directors
Non-Management Directors

Name of individual director

* % 3k X X

These communications are sent by us directly tepleeified addressee.

We require each member of the board of directoegtemd our annual meeting of stockholders exaapalisences due to causes beyond the
reasonable control of the director.

Board and Committee Meetin¢

Our Board of Directors held twenty eight meeting2013. During 2013, the compensation committée tweo meetings, the audit committee
held seventeen meetings, and the nominating anqmbaie governance committee held three meetingsh Hirector attended at least 75% of
aggregate number of meetings held by our boardrettdrs during the portion of the last fiscal y&arwhich he was a director. Each director
attended at least 75% of the aggregate number etimgs of all committees of the Board of Directorswhich the director served during the
portion of the last fiscal year for which he wasoanmittee member.

Meetings of No-Management Directors

Our corporate governance guidelines require treabtiard have at least two regularly scheduled mgetach year for our non-management
directors. These meetings, which are designedaim@te unfettered discussions among our mamagement directors, are presided over by
Donlin or Mark Abrams. During 2013, our non-manaegetrdirectors had five meetings.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compdince

We believe that based solely upon our review ofedpf forms we have received or written repred@nta from reporting persons, during the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2013, all filinguieements under Section 16(a) of the Securitieh&mge Act of 1934, as amended, applicable
to our officers, directors and beneficial ownersmfre than ten percent of our common stock wereptiechwith on a timely basis.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

Compensation Discussion and Analysis

Our Compensation Discussion and Analysis descobesompensation program, objectives and policeshie individuals who were serving as

our executive officers at December 31, 2013 asiredwnder item 402(a)(3) of Regulation S-K (“nanese@cutive officers”) and our executive
officers generally.
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Our named executive officers who were serving asgacutive officers at December 31, 2013 are:

Name Current Age Position Held with Ut
Matthew Lambias: 48 Chief Executive Officer, President and Direc
Rob Colligan 43 Chief Financial Officer and Secrete
Mohit Marria 36 Chief Investment Office
William B. Dyer 66 Head of Underwriting
A. Alexandra Denaha 44 Former Chief Financial Officer and Secret

The names and biographical information for our entiexecutive officers are set forth above undehéading “Executive Officers.”
Overview of Compensation Program and Philosophy

We have no employees. We are externally managedibilanager pursuant to a management agreemeng¢deivur Manager and us. All of
our named executive officers are employees of camdger. We have not paid, and do not intend togaycash compensation to our named
executive officers. We do not provide our nameeleikive officers with pension benefits, perquisitesther personal benefits to them. We
have no arrangements to make cash payments tamechexecutive officers upon their termination fregnvice as our officers. While we do
not pay our named executive officers any cash cosgt®n, our compensation committee may grant amrad executive officers equity awards
intended to align their interests with our intesest

Cash and Other Compensation

Our named executive officers and other personnel @mduct our regular business are employees dflamager. Accordingly, we do not pay
or accrue any salaries or bonuses to our officers.

Equity-Based Compensation

Our compensation committee may, from time to tigrant equity awards in the form of restricted statkick options or other types of award
our named executive officers pursuant to our eqoitgntive plan. These awards are designed to Higimterests of our named executive
officers with those of our stockholders, by allogiour named executive officers to share in thete®f value for our stockholders through
stock appreciation and dividends. These equity @svare generally subject to vesting requirements asnumber of years, and are designed to
promote the retention of management and to achigeag performance for our company. These awamtlsefuprovide flexibility to us in our
ability to enable our Manager to attract, motivatel retain talented individuals. We have not grdminy equity awards to employees of our
Manager since January 2, 2008.

We believe our compensation policies are partitulppropriate since we are an externally manadeld RREIT regulations require us to pay
at least 90% of our earnings to stockholders aglelids. As a result, we believe that our stockialére principally interested in receiving
attractive risk-adjusted dividends and growth widinds and book value. Accordingly, we want tovite an incentive to our directors and
management that rewards success in achieving ltede Since we do not have the ability to reégimings, we believe that equity-based
awards serve to align the interests of our Managariployees with the interests of our stockholdersceiving attractive risk-adjusted
dividends and growth. Additionally, we believettkguity-based awards are consistent with our stlders’interest in dividend and book va
growth as these individuals will be incented tovgimok value and the dividend for stockholders diree. We believe that this alignment of
interests provides an incentive to our Manager’plegees to implement strategies that will enhanadang-term performance and promote
growth in dividends and growth in book value.
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Our equity incentive plan permits the granting pfions to purchase shares of common stock intetwlgdalify as incentive stock options under
the Internal Revenue Code, and stock options thaiodl qualify as incentive stock options. The eigar price of each stock option may not be
less than 100% of the fair market value of our sh@f common stock on the date of grant. Our coisgaéon committee will determine the
terms of each option, including when each optioy bmexercised and the period of time, if any,ratdirement, death, disability or termination
of employment during which options may be exercis@gtions become vested and exercisable in ingalls and the exercisability of options
may be accelerated by the compensation committee.

Our equity incentive plan also permits the granthghares of our common stock in the form of ief#d common stock. A restricted common
stock award is an award of shares of common stwtkmhay be subject to forfeiture (vesting), retitsits on transferability and such other
restrictions, if any, as the compensation committeg impose at the date of grant. The shares mstyand the restrictions may lapse separately
or in combination at such times, under such cir¢anmees, including, without limitation, a specifigeriod of employment or the satisfaction of
pre-established criteria, in such installmentstbenwise, as our compensation committee may determi

We may also grant unrestricted shares of commarkstehich are shares of common stock awarded ababto the participant or for a purchi
price determined by the compensation committeeeliadr equity incentive plan. The compensationrodiee may also grant shares of our
common stock, stock appreciation rights, dividegdiealent rights, and other stock and non-stoclebasvards under the equity incentive
plan. These awards may be subject to such conditiad restrictions as the compensation commiteedatermine, including, but not limited
to, the achievement of certain goals or continuagleyment with us through a specific period. Eauwtard under the plan may not be
exercisable more than 10 years after the dateavitgr

Our equity incentive plan provides that the compéna committee has the discretion to provide #lladr any outstanding options and stock
appreciation rights will become fully exercisatdé,or any outstanding stock awards will becomedeasind transferable and all or any
outstanding options and awards will be earnedyradiny outstanding awards may be cancelled in exgehfor a payment of cash or all or any
outstanding awards may be substituted for awamtsatl substantially preserve the otherwise agille terms of any affected awards previo
granted under the equity incentive plan if thera change in control of us.

Our compensation committee does not use a spéaifitula to calculate the number of equity awards atier rights awarded to executives
under our equity incentive plan. Our compensatimmmittee does not explicitly set future award IgA@portunities on the basis of what the
executives earned from prior awards. While the acamsption committee will take past awards into aotatiwill not solely base future awards
in view of those past awards. Generally, in deteimy the specific amounts to be granted to arviddal, the compensation committee will t
into account factors such as the individual's posithis or her contribution to our company, marhetctices as well as the recommendations of
our Manager.

We have not and do not intend to either backdateksiptions or grant stock options retroactiveBresently, we do not have designated date
which we grant stock option awards. We do notridte time stock options grants with our releasmaferial nonpublic information for the
purpose of affecting the value of executive comptaos.

We have designed our compensation policy in arrteffgorovide the proper incentives to our Managierhployees to maximize our
performance in order to serve the best interesteiogtockholders. We seek to achieve this ohjedtirough the granting of restricted stock
under our equity incentive plan. Consistent witin wiew that this component of compensation isglesil to provide long term incentives, we
expect the restricted stock to vest in equal ilmtaits over four, five or ten year periods from tlage of grant. Consistent with the foregoing
grants of restricted stock we made in 2008 havesting period of ten years.

Consideration of “Say on Pay” Voting Results

The Compensation Committee considered the resulte@dvisory stockholder “say on pay vote” at 80L1 annual meeting of stockholders in
making equity-based compensation decisions for 2B&tause our stockholders approved our equityebesmpensation program as described
in our 2011 proxy statement, the compensation cdteenbelieves that stockholders support our congiemspolicies. Therefore, the
compensation committee continued to apply the gaineiples with regard to executive compensatiodt3. We will conduct a “say on pay
vote” at our next annual meeting of stockholders.
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Compensation Committee Report

Our Compensation Committee has reviewed and disdube Compensation Discussion and Analysis redjbiydtem 402(b) of Regulation -
with management and, based on such review andsdieis, the Compensation Committee recommendéet tBdard that the Compensation
Discussion and Analysis be included in this ForrrK10

Paul A. Keenan, Chair
Mark Abrams

Gerard Creagh

Paul Donlin

Dennis M. Mahoney

John P. Reilly

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Parttipation

Our compensation committee is comprised solelheffollowing independent directors: Messrs. Keef@imair), Abrams, Creagh, Donlin,
Mahoney and Reilly. None of them is serving or $&xwved as an officer or employee of us or anyiatfior has any other business relationship
or affiliation with us, except his service as aedtor.

Summary Compensation Table

We do not provide any of our executive officershaany cash compensation or bonus. Nor do we pecay executive officers with pension
benefits or nonqualified deferred compensationglaiWe granted shares of restricted stock to onredeexecutive officers during the year er
December 31, 2008 but have not granted any resirgtbck or option awards since such time. We hatventered into any employment
agreements with any persons, and are not obligatethke any cash payments upon termination of gmpat or a change in control of us. We
did not pay any compensation to our named execoffigers during the three year period ended Deeerith, 2013.

Grants of Plan Based Awards in 2013

We did not grant any shares of restricted stockpop or other incentive compensation to our namestutive officers during the year ended
December 31, 2013.

Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End

The following table provides information about datsling equity awards of our named executive affiees of the end of 2013.

Stock Awards
Equity Incentive Plan Awards: Equity Incentive Plan Awards:
Number of Unearned Shares, Market or Payout Value of Unearned Shares,
Units or Other Rights Units or Other Rights That Have Not Yet
Name That Have Not Vested(#)(1) Vested($)(2)
Matthew Lambias: 36,000 $111,60C
Mohit Marria 8,000 $24,80C
William Dyer 35,000 $108,50C
A. Alexandra Denaha 35,000 $108,50C
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* The columns for “Option Awards” have been omittextause they are not applicable.

(1) Reflects a restricted stock award grantethéoniamed executive officer on January 2, 2008, whésts in equal installments on the first
business day of each fiscal quarter over a pefidd gears beginning January 2, 2008.
(2) Reflects fair value of unvested shares usiegdbnber 31, 2013 closing price of $2.90.

Options Exercised and Stock Vested

The following table sets forth certain informatiwith respect to our named executive officers reigardtock vested during the calendar year

2013.
Stock Awards
Name Number of
Shares Value

Acquired on Realized on

Vesting (#) Vesting(1) ($)
Matthew Lambias: 9,000 $26,775
Mohit Marria 1,500 $4,463
William Dyer 7,000 $20,825
A. Alexandra Denaha 7,000 $20,825

(1) Reflects fair value of vested shares using clopiige on date of vestin
Pension Benefits
We do not provide any of our named executive officgith pension benefits.
Nonqualified Deferred Compensation
We do not provide any of our named executive officgith any nonqualified deferred compensation qlan
Potential Payments upon Termination of Employment

We do not have any employment agreements with foyronamed executive officers and are not obligabemake any payments to them upon
termination of employment.

Potential Post-Employment Payments and Payments anChange in Control

None of our named executives has the right to teateiemployment and receive severance paymentsufsand we are not required to mi
payments to an executive upon a change of contigd.o However, all unvested shares of restristedk we have granted under our equity
incentive plan will vest immediately upon the exiaeis death. The following table presents théeptial value our named executive officers
would be entitled to in connection with such vegtimd assumes that the triggering event took mladeecember 31, 2013.

Termination
with Cause  Termination
or without Other Post
Voluntary Cause or for Death or Employment
Name Benefit Termination  Good Reasor Disability (1) Obligations
Matthew Lambias: Stock vesting $ - 8 - 8 111,60 $ -
Mohit Marria Stock vesting $ - 8 - 8 24,80( $ -
William Dyer Stock vesting $ - 8 - % 108,50 $ -
A. Alexandra Denaha Stock vesting $ - $ - $ 108,50 $ -

(1) We have valued the benefit based on the pategain executives would have realized if therrettd stock had vested on December 31,
2013.
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Compensation Policies and Practices as They ReldteRisk Management

We did not pay any compensation of any sort tonaumed executive officers and did not have any eyegle during the year ended December
31, 2013 and, therefore, our compensation polaiespractices are not reasonably likely to haveterial adverse effect on us. We pay our
Manager a management fee that is a percentage efamkholders’ equity. This management fee istieot to our performance and, as a result,
we believe this management fee is not reasondt@lylto have a material adverse effect on us. leldesigned our compensation policies and
practices and the incentives established by theipsland practices, as such policies and practédate to or affect risk taking by our Manager
on our behalf, in a manner that we believe will catise our Manager to seek to make higher rislstments as the compensation payable to our
Manager avoids placing undue emphasis on the maation of net income at the expense of other @itsuch as preservation of capital, to
achieve higher management fees. We have desigmambmpensation policy in an effort to provide gireper incentives to our Manager’'s
employees to maximize our performance in ordeetwesthe best interests of our stockholders. @ardof directors monitors our
compensation policies and practices to determingthn its risk management objectives are beingwitbtrespect to incentivizing our

Manager’'s employees.

Director Compensation

We compensate only those directors who are indepenohder the NYSE listing standards. Any memlb@uo board of directors who is also
employee of our Manager is not considered indepengeder the NYSE listing standards and does rogiive additional compensation for
serving on our board of directors.

During 2013, our Compensation Committee, togethi#tr RPL Associates L.P., a nationally-recognizethpensation consulting firm (“FPL"),
reviewed the components of the compensation arraeges offered to our independent directors. As @lthis process, our Compensation
Committee considered, among other things, the slatiel responsibilities associated with their pms#tiand emerging trends and best practic
director compensation.

Based upon the recommendations of FPL and our Casatien Committees review of FPL’s analysis, oumPensation Committee determined
to leave unchanged the compensation arrangemdatedto our independent directors, which area ¢ash retainer of $50,000 (which the
independent directors may elect to receive shdrearaccommon stock in lieu of cash), (ii) an annequity grant of $50,000, (iii) an Audit
Committee Chairperson retainer of $12,500 (iv)tainer of $5,000 for each Chairperson of additiamshmittee, and (v) to the extent the
combined number of Board/committee meetings ex28ed a calendar year, an additional meeting feé&760 for each meeting (with the same
fee to apply for both in-person and telephonic ings).

We also reimburse our directors for their travgdenses incurred in connection with their attendatdall board and committee meetings. Our
independent directors are eligible to receive igsti common stock, option and other stock-basestdswinder our equity incentive plan.

The Compensation Committee will, on an ongoingdasintinue to examine and assess our director @asagion practices relative to our

compensation philosophy and objectives, as watbaspetitive market practices and total stockhotdeurns, and will make modifications to the
compensation programs, as deemed appropriate.
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The table below summarizes the compensation paigshg our independent directors for the year efdsmember 31, 2013.

Change in
Non-Equity  Pension Value

Fees Incentive and Deferred

Earned or Stock Option Plan CompensationAll Other
Name Paid in Cash Awards (2) Awards CompensationEarnings CompensationTotal
Mark Abrams $61,25C $50,000 $ - $ - $ = $ - $111,25C
Gerard Creag $57,50C $50,00C $ - $ - $ - $ - $107,50C
Paul Donlin $65,500 $50,000 $ - $ - $ = $ - $115,50C
Paul A. Keenan(1 $58,250 $50,00C $ - $ - $ - $ - $108,25C
Dennis M. Mahone $73,750 $50,000 $ - $ = $ = $ = $123,75C
John P. Reilly $58,25C $50,00C $ - $ - $ - $ - $108,25C

(1) Elected to receive common stock in lieu ofhcpayment for Board of Director fees earned dugi@g3. The granting of such shares of
common stock in lieu of cash payment has been defemtil the Company is current in its filings wihe Securities and Exchange Commission
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as astwnd

(2) For amounts under the column “Stock Awardsg"disclose the expenses associated with the awaadured in dollars and calculated in
accordance with FASB ASC Topic 71&8empensation — Stock Compensation

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain BeneficialDwners and Management and Related Stockholder Matte

The following table sets forth certain informatias of May 16, 2014 relating to the beneficial ovshgr of our common stock by (i) all persons
that we know beneficially own more than 5% of outstanding common stock, (ii) each of our namedetiee officers and directors, and (iii)
all of our executive officers and directors aseugr. Knowledge of the beneficial ownership of oommon stock is drawn from statements f
with the SEC pursuant to Section 13(d) or 13(ghefSecurities Act of 1934, as amended. Exceptreswise indicated, to our knowledge, €
stockholder listed below has sole voting and inwestt power with respect to the shares benefic@ilged by the stockholder.

Unless otherwise indicated, all shares are ownegtttly and the indicated person has sole votingiavestment power. Except as indicated in
the footnotes to the table below, the businesseaddsf the stockholders listed below is the adds&esir principal executive office, 1211
Avenue of the Americas, Suite 2902, New York, Nearkr10036.

Amount and Nature of Percent of
Name of Beneficial Ownet Beneficial Ownership Class

Matthew Lambiase(1 525,00( *
Robert Colligan(2 0 *
Mohit Marria(3) 131,58¢ *
William B. Dyer(4) 99,64¢ *
Mark Abrams(5] 112,03: *
Gerard Creagh(¢€ 228,17( *
Paul Donlin(7) 654,13" *
Paul A. Keenan(8 136,35° *
Dennis M. Mahoney(¢ 81,30" *
John P. Reilly(10 130,92° *

All Directors and Officers As a Grot 2,099,16! *
Wells Fargo & Company/(1] 63,740,76 6.2%
BlackRock, Inc.(12) 55,259,85 5.4%
Thornburg Investment Management Inc.(; 61,360,85 6.0%
Leon G. Cooperman(1: 77,886,722 7.6%
Credit Suisse AG(1- 55,069,18 5.4%
The Vanguard Group(1t 56,775,94 5.5%

* Less than 1 percer
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(1) Mr. Lambiase, our Chief Executive Officer, Presidand one of our directors, is the beneficial owsfe90,000 shares of restrict
common stock issued under our equity incentive plaith vests in equal installments on the firstibess day of each fiscal quarter over
a period of ten years beginning on January 2, 2008udes 58,500 shares of restricted common dtwatkhave vested as of May 16,
2013; 2,250 shares of restricted common stockwiibtest within 60 days after May 16, 2013; andZ8D shares which vest more thar
days after December 13, 2013. Includes 43,000 sludreommon stock held by Mr. Lambiase in a 40p{&).

(2)  Mr. Colligan was named our Chief Financial Offieerd Secretary effective May 16, 20.

(3) Mr. Marria, our Chief Investment Officer, is therlgdicial owner of 20,000 shares of restricted comrsiock issued under our equ
incentive plan which vests in equal installmentshanfirst business day of each fiscal quarter eveeriod of ten years beginning on
January 2, 2008. Includes 13,000 shares of resdrommon stock that have vested as of Decemb@013; 500 shares of restricted
common stock that will vest within 60 days aftercBeber 13, 2013; and 6,500 shares which vest rhare@0 days after December 13,
2013. Includes 54,000 shares of common stockleMr. Marria in a 401(k) plar

(4) Mr. Dyer, our Head of Underwriting, is the benedladwner of 70,000 shares of restricted commorkssstied under our equity incenti
plan which vests in equal installments on the fitsdiness day of each fiscal quarter over a periicen years beginning on January 2,
2008. Includes 45,500 shares of restricted comstaek that have vested as of December 13, 20180 Effares of restricted common
stock that will vest within 60 days after Decemib8r 2013; and 22,750 shares which vest more thatagé after December 13, 20:

(5) Mr. Abrams is one of our directol

(6) Mr. Creagh is one of our directo

(7)  Mr. Donlin is one of our directors. Includes 20Ghares of common stock held by Mr. Donlin in enfa Trust.

(8) Mr. Keenan is one of our directo

(9) Mr. Mahoney is one of our directol

(10) Mr. Reilly is one of our directors. Includes 1405€hares of common stock held by members of Mily's immediate family

(11) The address for this stockholder is 420 MontgonSrget, San Francisco, CA 94104. The shares shewareeficially owned by Wel
Fargo & Company reflect shares owned on its owralieimd on behalf of the following subsidiaries: W€apital Management
Incorporated; Wells Fargo Advisors Financial Netkydrl C; Wells Fargo Advisors, LLC; Wells Fargo Funilanagement, LLC; and
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association. Aggregatadficial ownership reported by Wells Fargo & Comp# on a consolidated basis
and includes any beneficial ownership of a subsidi/ells Capital Management Incorporated repobtedeficially owning 62,415,720
shares of common stock with the sole power to wote direct the vote of zero shares, the sharetepto vote or to direct the vote of
13,685,920 of common stock, the sole power to disf to direct the disposition of zero sharesoofimon stock and the shared powe
dispose or to direct the disposition of 62,415,3R8res of common stock. Wells Fargo & Company tepdveneficially owning
63,740,765 shares of common stock with the solespdavvote or to direct the vote of 4 shares of wam stock, the shared power to vote
or to direct the vote of 63,716,222 of common stdc& sole power to dispose or to direct the digipmsof 4 shares of common stock and
the shared power to dispose or to direct the dispoof 63,740,761 shares of common stock. Baséelyson information contained in a
Schedule 13G/A filed by Wells Fargo & Company onuky 28, 2014
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(12)

(13)

(14)

(15)

(16)

The address for this stockholder is 40 East 52ree§tNew York, NY 10022. The shares shown as lixiaky owned by BlackRock, Inc
reflect shares owned on its own behalf and on belighe following subsidiaries: BlackRock Advisptd C; BlackRock Investment
Management, LLC; BlackRock Asset Management Cahadaed; BlackRock Advisors (UK) Limited; BlackRodkund Advisors;
BlackRock International Limited; BlackRock Institahal Trust Company, N.A.; BlackRock Investment Mgament (UK) Limited.
Aggregate beneficial ownership reported by BlackRdmc. includes any beneficial ownership of a sdibsy. BlackRock, Inc. reported
beneficially owning 55,259,856 shares of commoulsteith the sole power to vote or to direct theevot 51,237,802 shares of common
stock, the shared power to vote or to direct thte wb zero shares of common stock, the sole powveispose or to direct the dispositior
55,259,856 shares of common stock and the shaseergo dispose or to direct the disposition of zgares of common stock. Based
solely on information contained in a Schedule 1B&&ifoy BlackRock, Inc. on January 28, 20

The address for this stockholder is 2300 North Bidg Road Santa Fe, NM 87506. Thornburg Investiamagement Inc. reporte
beneficially owning shares of common stock with sbée power to vote or to direct the vote of 61,860 shares of common stock, the
shared power to vote or to direct the vote of atrares of common stock, the sole power to disposedirect the disposition of
61,360,859 shares of common stock and the shargerfo dispose or to direct the disposition of zgmares of common stock. Based
solely on information contained in a Schedule 1B&ifoy Thornburg Investment Management Inc. orudan21, 2014

The address for this stockholder is 11431 W. Patnfeark Road, Boca Raton FL 33428. The shares sheveeneficially owned by Lec

G. Cooperman reflect shares owned on his own beahdlion behalf of the following entities: Omega iGdgPartners, L.P.; Omega Cap
Investors, L.P.; Omega Equity Investors, L.P.; Om@yerseas Partners, Ltd.; Omega Credit Opporésritund, LTD. L.P.; a limited
number of Managed Accounts; the Cooperman FamihdFar a Jewish Future; the Michael S. CoopermamWRust; the UTMA
account for Asher Silvin Cooperman; Toby Coopermad Michael S. Cooperman; and The Leon and Toby&waan Family
Foundation. Mr. Cooperman reported that he mayeeengd the beneficial owner of 77,886,720 shards.cimsists of 12,558,165 shares
owned by Omega Capital Partners, L.P.; 5,274,928sowned by Omega Capital Investors, L.P.; 5@®BPshares owned by Omega
Equity Investors, L.P.; 14,048,767 shares owne®imega Overseas Partners, Ltd.; 2,224,000 shanescoly Omega Credit
Opportunities Fund, Ltd. L.P.; 23,626,905 sharesemhby a limited number of managed accounts; 8btsbares owned by the
Cooperman Family Fund for a Jewish Future; 11,882dhares owned by Mr. Cooperman; 600,000 sharasdby

Toby Cooperman; 33,800 shares owned by the UTkbdant for Asher Silvin Cooperman; 250,000 shakesed by The Leon and
Toby Cooperman Family Foundation; 1,000,000 shawesed by Michael S. Cooperman; and 1,000,000 shasmed by the Michael S.
Cooperman WRA Trust. Mr. Cooperman reported hatliregsole power to vote or to direct the vote q258,815 shares, the shared
power to vote or to direct the vote of 23,626,90arss, the sole power to dispose or to direct igpgodition of 54,259,815 shares, and the
shared power to dispose or to direct the disposiifa23,626,905 shares. Based solely on informatantained in a Schedule 13D filed
by Leon G. Cooperman on February 24, 2(

The address for this stockholder in the UnitedeStéd Eleven Madison Avenue, New York, NY 10010edt Suisse AG reporte
beneficially owning shares of common stock with $lée power to vote or to direct the vote of zdrarses of common stock, the shared
power to vote or to direct the vote of 55,069,188res of common stock, the sole power to dispose direct the disposition of zero
shares of common stock and the shared power tosispr to direct the disposition of 55,069,189 aba@f common stock. Based solely
on information contained in a Schedule 13G fileddvgdit Suisse AG on January 14, 20

The address for this stockholder is 100 Vanguavd BMalvern, PA 19355. The shares shown as baa#fi owned by The Vangual
Group reflect shares owned on its own behalf andedralf of the following subsidiaries: Vanguarddgiary Trust Company, and
Vanguard Investments Australia, LTD. The Vanguardup reported beneficially owning shares of comrsitmek with the sole power to
vote or to direct the vote of 637,652 shares ofroom stock, the shared power to vote or to direxwthte of zero shares of common st
the sole power to dispose or to direct the dismsitf 56,205,994 shares of common stock and thesshpower to dispose or to direct the
disposition of 569,952 shares of common stock. 8aséely on information contained in a Schedule 18 by The Vanguard Group ¢
February 12, 201«
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Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans

We have adopted an equity incentive plan to proiridentives to our independent directors, employéesir Manager and its affiliates, and
other service providers to stimulate their efféosward our continued success, long-term growthpoétability and to attract, reward and retain
personnel.

The following table provides information as of Dexteer 31, 2013, concerning shares of our commork stothorized for issuance under our
existing equity incentive plan.

Number of
Securities Number of
to be Issued Upon Securities
Exercise of Weighted Averag: Remaining
Outstanding Exercise Price of Available
Options, Outstanding for Future Issuance
Warrants, and Options, Warrants, Under Equity
Plan Categor Rights and Rights Compensation Pla
Equity Compensation Plans Approved by Stockhol - - 38,387,56
Equity Compensation Plans Not Approved by Stockéiald1) - - -
Total - - 38,387,56

(1) We do not have any equity plans that have eetkapproved by our stockholde

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transamns, and Director Independence
Management Agreement

The Management Agreement

On November 15, 2007 we entered into a managengesgiment with FIDAC, which provided for an initterm through December 31, 2010
with an automatic one-year extension option angestito certain termination rights. In 2011 and @0we paid to our Manager a quarterly
management fee equal to 1.50% per annum of ous @xkholders’ Equity (as defined in the manageragreement). Effective November 28,
2012, the management fee was reduced to 0.75%npanmaof gross Stockholders’ Equity, which reductigh remain in effect until we are
current on all of our filings required under apalte securities laws.

We are obligated to reimburse our Manager forastsincurred under the management agreementdlticard the management agreement
permits our Manager to require us to pay for itsata portion of rent, telephone, utilities, offifurniture, equipment, machinery and other
office, internal and overhead expenses that ourdganincurred in connection with our operationseshexpenses are allocated between our
Manager and us based on the ratio of the propodfigimoss assets compared to the gross assets etamagur Manager as calculated at each
quarter end. Together we will modify this allocatimethodology, subject to the approval of our badrdirectors if the allocation becomes
inequitable (i.e., if we become very highly levexd@ompared to our Manager’s other funds and a¢spun

March 2013 Amendment to Management Agree

Because of the Restatement Filing, on March 8, 264 amended the management agreement. In the ameathdve memorialized the reduct

in the management fee effective on November 282 2@8dditionally, our Manager agreed to pay all pasd future expenses that we and/or our
Audit Committee incur to: (1) evaluate our accongtpolicy related to the application of GAAP to dwn-Agency RMBS portfolio (the
Evaluation); (2) restate our financial statemeatglie period covering 2008 through 2011 as a reduhe Evaluation (the Restatement Filing);
and (3) investigate and evaluate any shareholderati#e demands arising from the Evaluation anthierRestatement Filing (the Investigatic
provided, however, that our Manager’s obligatiopay expenses applies only to expenses not paddibinsurers under our insurance policies.
Expenses shall include, without limitation, feed ansts incurred with respect to auditors, outsimensel, and consultants engaged by us and/or
our Audit Committee for the Evaluation, Restatentdlihg and the Investigation.
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The amended management agreement is automatieayved for a one-year term on each anniversary a#teugh two-thirds of the
Independent directors or the holders of a majarftthe outstanding shares of common stock (other those held by Annaly or its affiliates)
may elect to terminate the management agreement3(pdays notice at any time in their sole disoretvithout the payment of a termination
fee. Additionally, we may terminate the managenagmeement effective immediately if (i) our Managagages in any act of fraud,
misappropriation of funds, or embezzlement agdfresus, (ii) there is an event of any gross negtigeon the part of our Manager in the
performance of its duties under the managementeagget, (iii) there is a commencement of any procegetlating to our Manager’s
bankruptcy or insolvency, (iv) there is a dissantof our Manager, or (v) our Manager is conviaé@ncluding a plea of nolo contendere) a
felony.

Fees Paid Under the Management Agreer

The fees paid under the management agreementtaitedén the results of operations discussion abdwn addition to these fees, our manager
received expense reimbursement under the managegresment of $493 thousand, $447 thousand andtti6é@5and for the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 , respectively. Manager uses the proceeds from its managemeir fert to pay compensation to its
officers and employees who, notwithstanding thatage of them also are our officers, receive ndhaa@mpensation directly from us.

Clearing Fees

On March 1, 2011, we entered into an administragamices agreement with RCap Securities, IndR@ap. We use RCap, a SEC registered
broker-dealer and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Apni clear trades for us and RCap is paid custgrfees in return for such serviceRCap
may also provide brokerage services to us from torténe. During the years ended December 31, 22082 and 2011, fees paid to RCap were
$145 thousand, $138 thousand and $162 thousamactasely.

Restricted Stock Grants

We granted 98,688 shares of stock to our indepémtiesttors during the year ended December 31, 201iéh vested immediately. During the
year ended December 31, 2013, approximately 14Gbafes of restricted stock we had awarded to andde’s employees during 2008 ves
and 70,000 shares were forfeited. At DecembeRB13 there are approximately 384,000 unvested sludmestricted stock issued to our
Manager’'s employees.

Financing Arrangements with RCap

In September 2009, we entered into a residentiaigage-backed securities repurchase agreemenR@#p. This agreement contains
customary representations, warranties and covengshave not borrowed any amounts under thiseageet since April 30, 2010 and
currently have no amounts outstanding under thiseagent. We have been in compliance with all camenof this agreement since we entered
into this agreement.

Other Relationships

Matthew Lambiase, our President and Chief Execudiffecer, one of our directors and the Managingebior of our Manager, is the son of one
of Annaly’s directors, John A. Lambiase. Annalyaanced on January 30, 2014 that John A. Lambiasd#dwot stand for re-election at
Annaly’s annual meeting of shareholders in May 28dd his departure date will be effective the diathe annual meeting of

shareholders. James Zurovchak, a Vice Presidefimdly, is the son-in-law of Dennis Mahoney, ofi@ar Directors.

Approval of Related Person Transactions
Our code of business conduct and ethics requilred alr personnel to be scrupulous in avoidingaflict of interest with regard to our
interests. The code prohibits us from entering mbusiness relationship with an immediate famigmber or with a company that the emplc

or immediate family member has a substantial fir@risterest unless such relationship is disclaseahd approved in advance by our board of
directors.
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Each of our directors and executive officers isunexyl to complete an annual disclosure questioaraid report all transactions with us in which
they and their immediate family members had or ale a direct or indirect material interest wighpect to us. We review these questionnaires
and, if we determine it is necessary, discuss aepgried transactions with the entire board of dinsc We do not, however, have a formal
written policy for approval or ratification of su¢fansactions, and all such transactions are eteglumn a case-by-case basis. If we believe a
transaction is significant to us and raises pddrcconflict of interest issues, we will discussvith our legal counsel, and if necessary, we will
form an independent board committee which hasi¢fie to engage its own legal and financial couts@valuate and approve the transaction.

In addition, we will not invest in any collateradid debt obligation or security structured or madageour Manager or any of its affiliates unless
the investment is approved in advance by a majofityur independent directors.

Independence of Our Directors

New York Stock Exchange rules require that at laasijority of our directors be independent of campany and management. The rules
require that our board of directors affirmativetekrmine that there are no material relationshgte/éen a director and us (either directly or as a
partner, stockholder or officer of an organizatilbat has a relationship with us) before such direcan be deemed independent. We have
adopted independence standards consistent withYekvStock Exchange rules. Our board of directars reviewed both direct and indirect
transactions and relationships that each of oectbrs had or maintained with us and our managen@ut board of directors, based upon the
fact that none of our independent directors hayenaaterial relationships with us other than asaimes and holders of our common stock,
affirmatively determined that six of our direct@r® independent directors under New York Stock Brgle rules. Our independent directors are
Mark Abrams, Gerard Creagh, Paul Donlin, Paul Aeikan, Dennis M. Mahoney and John P. Reilly. Matthambiase is not considered
independent because he is an employee of our Manage

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Ernst & Young LLP, or Ernst & Young, was our indagent registered public accounting firm for thedilsyears ending December 31, 2013
2012. During this time, Ernst & Young and its affied entities, or EY, performed accounting andtmglservices for us.

Relationship with Independent Registered Public Acounting Firm

Expenses are generally accrued when services avedpd. The aggregate fees billed for 2013 and®2 404 each of the following categories
services are set forth below:

Audit Fees: The aggregate fees incurred by EY and Deloittd ®&iche, LLP for audits and reviews of our 2013aficial statements we
approximately $2.9 million and $25 thousand respelst We estimate that our Manager will reimuthe Company for approximately $
million of the fees billed by EY for 2013. The aggate fees incurred by EY for the audit of the @any’s internal control over financ
reporting were approximately $600 thousand for 20IBe aggregate fees incurred by EY for auditsramtews of our 2012 financial stateme
were approximately $3.5 million. We estimate that Manager will reimburse the Company for appmately $2.8 million of the fees billed
EY for 2012. The aggregate fees incurred by EYtfer audit of the Comparg/internal control over financial reporting werepagximately
$570 thousand for 2012.

Audit-Related Fees No fees were billed by EY for audit-relatedvsegs during 2013 or 2012 .

Tax Fees The aggregate fees billed by EY for tax serviimes2013 were $66 thousand. The aggregate féles! iy EY for tax services f
2012 were $66 thousand.

All Other Fees EY did not perform any other kinds of services tis during 2013. The aggregate fees billed by EY for other sesvice 201:

were $99 thousand. The other services billed itR220ere related to advisory services provided byifE2011 prior to EY being appointed
our Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
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The audit committee has also adopted policies anckgdures for pre-approving all non-audit work perfed by our independent registered
public accounting firm. Specifically, the auditnemittee pre-approved the use of EY for the follogvaategories of non-audit services: merger
and acquisition due diligence and audit servi@@sservices; internal control reviews; employeedfieplan audits; and reviews and procedures
that we request EY to undertake to provide asserananatters not required by laws or regulatiomgdch case, the audit committee also set a
specific annual limit on the amount of such sersiaich we would obtain from EY, and required mamagnt to report the specific
engagements to the audit committee on a quartadisband also obtain specific pre-approval froenahdit committee for any engagement over
five percent of the total amount of revenues edtihto be paid by us to EY during the then curfisotl year. Our audit committee approved
the hiring of EY to provide all of the servicesalttd above prior to EY’s engagement. None ofséwices related to the Audit-Related Fees
described above was approved by the audit comnptiesiant to a waiver of pre-approval provisiorid@eh in the applicable rules of the
Securities and Exchange Commission.
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PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedute
(a) Documents filed as part of this report:
1. Financial Statements.
2. Schedules to Financial Statements.

All financial statement schedules have been omitesmhuse they are either inapplicable or the infdion required is provided in our Financial
Statements and Notes thereto, included in Pdteh 8, of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

3. Exhibits:
EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit Description

Number

3.1 Articles of Amendment and Restatement of Chimevadtment Corporation (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to @@mpan’s
Registration Statement on Amendment No. 1 to Fort §ile No. 333-145525) filed on September 27Q728nd
incorporated herein by referenc

3.2 Articles of Amendment of Chimera Investment Corpiora (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Compé's Report on Form-K
filed on May 28, 2009 and incorporated hereindfgmence

3.3 Articles of Amendment of Chimera Investment Corpiora (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Compé's Report on Form-K
filed on November 5, 2010 and incorporated hergirelference

3.4 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Chimera Investmerdation (filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the Comp’s Report on Forr
8-K filed on December 19, 2011 and incorporated Indogireference

4.1 Specimen Common Stock Certificate of Chimera Inwesit Corporation (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Comy’s

Registration Statement on Amendment No. 1 to Fortd §ile No. 333-145525) filed on September 27Q728nd
incorporated herein by referenc

10.1 Form of Management Agreement between Chimera ImargtCorporation and Fixed Income Discount Advisépompan'
(filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Registmatitatement on Amendment No. 1 to Form S-11 (Fde383-145525)
filed on September 27, 2007 and incorporated hdrgireference

10.2 Form of Amendment No. 1 to the Management Agreernetween Chimera Investment Corporation and Firedrhe
Discount Advisory Company (filed as Exhibit 10.2th@ Company’s Registration Statement on AmendiNentl to Form
S-11 (File No. 33-151403) filed on October 14, 2008 and incorporateein by reference

10.3 Form of Amendment No. 2 to the Management Agreerbetween Chimera Investment Corporation and Firedrhe
Discount Advisory Company (filed as Exhibit 10.1the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed@ctober 20,
2008 and incorporated herein by referer

104 Amendment No. 3 to the Management Agreement bet@émera Investment Corporation and Fixed Incormse@int
Advisory Company (filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the Canyg’'s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on Marct2813 and
incorporated herein by referenc

10.5t Form of Equity Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit.2@o the Compar's Registration Statement on Amendment No.
Form &-11 (File No. 33-145525) filed on September 27, 2007 and incorpdraggein by referenct

10.6t Form of Restricted Common Stock Award (filed as iBkH.0.3 to the Compar' s Registration Statement on Amendnr
No. 1 to Form -11 (File No. 33-145525) filed on September 27, 2007 and incorpdriagzein by referenc

10.7t Form of Stock Option Grant (filed as Exhibit 1004tthe Compar’s Registration Statement on Amendment No. 1 to f
S-11 (File No. 33-145525) filed on September 27, 2007 and incorpdrageein by referenct

10.8 Form of Master Securities Repurchase Agreemeted(és Exhibit 10.5 to the Compé's Registration Statement

Amendment No. 3 to Form-11 (File No. 33-145525) filed on November 13, 2007 and incorporat@in by reference
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121
211
311

31.2

32.1

32.2

Exhibit 101.INS
XBRL
Exhibit 101.SCF
XBRL
Exhibit 101.CAL
XBRL
Exhibit 101.DEF
XBRL
Exhibit 101.LAB
XBRL
Exhibit 101.PRE
XBRL

Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Char

Subsidiaries of Registra

Certification of Matthew Lambiase, Chief Execut®&icer and President of the Registrant, pursuar@dction 302 of th
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Robert Colligan, Chief Financiaff@er of the Registrant, pursuant to Section 30the Sarban«Oxley
Act of 2002.

Certification of Matthew Lambiase, Chief Execut®&icer and President of the Registrant, pursuariig U.S.C. Sectio
1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of theaSa-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Robert Colligan, Chief Financiaff@er of the Registrant, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.tlBecl350 as adopte
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbi-Oxley Act of 2002

Instance Document *

Taxonomy Extension Schema Documen

Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Documen

Additional Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbas@&@ment Created*
Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Documen

Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Documel

t Represents a management contractnopeosatory plan or arrangement

** Submitted electronically herewith. Attaed as Exhibit 101 to this report are the followittguments formatted in XBRL (Extensible
Business Reporting Language): (i) ConsolidatedeBtants of Financial Condition as of the years ermderember 31, 2013 and December 31,
2012; (ii) Consolidated Statements of Operatiorts@omprehensive Income (Loss) for the years endeet@ber 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011; (iii)
Consolidated Statement of Stockholders' EquitytHeryears ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 201 Cdnsolidated Statements of Cash
Flows for the years ended December 31, 2013, 20d2611; and (v) Notes to Consolidated Financiatédbents.
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CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accourfing
Consolidated Financial Stateme
Consolidated Statements of Financial Conditionfd3emember 31, 2013 and 20

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Compseleemcome (Loss) for the Years Enc
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2(

Consolidated Statements of Changes in StockholBgtsty (Deficit) for the Years Ende
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2(

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the YEaded
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2(

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem:
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Chimera Investment Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidatednséatis of financial condition of Chimera Investm@urporation (the “Company’as o
December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the related coaseti statements of operations and comprehensieenim (loss), changes in stockholders
equity (deficit), and cash flows for the years tlegmled. These financial statements are the reiplity of the Company's management.
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesarfcial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstais of the Public Company Accounting OversighafloUnited States). Those stand.
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebtaaisonable assurance about whether the finastataiments are free of material misstater
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, ewidesupporting the amounts and disclosures initlaadial statements. An audit also inclt
assessing the accounting principles used and signifestimates made by management, as well asativey the overall financial statem
presentation. We believe that our audits provideagonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referedlove present fairly, in all material respedts,¢onsolidated financial position of the Comg
at December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the consolidesedts of its operations and its cash flows lier years then ended, in conformity with |
generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bofdnited States), the Compasy’
internal control over financial reporting as of Beter 31, 2013, based on criteria establishedtarral Controlintegrated Framework issu
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of treadway Commission (1992 Framework) and our tegated June 4, 2014 expresse
adverse opinion thereon.

/sl Ernst & Y oung LLP
New York, New York
June 4, 2014
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To The Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Chimera Investment Corporation

We have audited Chimera Investment Corporasionternal control over financial reporting as oédember 31, 2013, based on cril
established in Internal Controllrtegrated Framework issued by the Committee ohSpong Organizations of the Treadway Commissi@9%
Framework) (the COSO criteria). Chimera Investm@atporations management is responsible for maintaining effedtiternal control ow
financial reporting, and for its assessment of #ffectiveness of internal control over financiapoging included in the accompany
Management's Report on Internal Control Over FiferiReporting. Our responsibility is to expressopimion on the Compang’internal contre
over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti@d@nited States). Those stand:
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaasonable assurance about whether effectivenaiteontrol over financial reporting w
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal cordk@r financial reporting, assessing the
that a material weakness exists, testing and etiraduthe design and operating effectiveness ofriatlecontrol based on the assessed risk
performing such other procedures as we considezedssary in the circumstances. We believe thahwdit provides a reasonable basis for
opinion.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is agess designed to provide reasonable assuranagliregthe reliability of financi:
reporting and the preparation of financial statetmidor external purposes in accordance with gelyemdcepted accounting principles.
companys internal control over financial reporting inclsgdiose policies and procedures that (1) pertatheganaintenance of records tha
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettiansactions and dispositions of the assetseofdmpany; (2) provide reasonable assuranc
transactions are recorded as necessary to perepiau@tion of financial statements in accordancé génerally accepted accounting princig
and that receipts and expenditures of the compeape@ing made only in accordance with authorizatiohmanagement and directors of
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurancediagaprevention or timely detection of unauthorizegtjuisition, use, or disposition of
company’s assets that could have a material effetihe financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @étsisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods angjext to the risk that controls may become inadegbecause of changes in conditions, ol
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

A material weakness is a deficiency, or combinatibleficiencies, in internal control over finaricieporting, such that there is a reason
possibility that a material misstatement of the pany’s annual or interim financial statements will net firevented or detected on a tin
basis. The following material weaknesses have mimniified and included in management’s assessment.

e Management identified that its design, procedusss] execution of review controls, including theiegw of journal entries at
reconciliations, for routine processes were ingifec Specifically there was insufficient evidertbat the Companyg’ review control
were designed and executed at a precision leveWbiald prevent or detect a material misstaterr

e Management identified that the Comp’s review controls over significant estimates aneirtielated disclosure process were
designed precisely enough to prevent or detecttarrabmisstatement as follow
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0 There was inadequate or delayed review and vadidadi inputs used in significant estimates andrtredated disclosures, st
as othe-thar-temporary impairment, interest income related t@ftments in RMBS and securitized loans held feestment

o There was inadequate or delayed evidence of indigmevalidation of calculations used in significastounting estimates
ensure the accounting policies were appropriatefylémented

o There was inadequate or delayed evidence of revidhe schedules supporting the amounts and diseesn the consolidat
financial statements by a person with the necessanpetency and authority to review such sched

e Management has identified an overreliance on sptesds consisting of manual inputs and complexutalions used to recc
transactions and estimates supporting the finastéaément amounts and disclosures. Managememtsols over this electronic di
were not performed at a level of precision suffiti® rely on the completeness and accuracy otluece data or manual input. ~
safeguarding and management of electronic data wmestdficient to evidence the existence or extehimanagement's review &
validation over the complex spreadsheets by a pexéth the necessary competency and authc

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bofdnited States), the consolids
statements of financial condition of Chimera Inwestit Corporation as of December 31, 2013 and 281@ the related consolidated staterr
of operations and comprehensive income (loss),gdmim stockholdergquity (deficit) and cash flows for the years tleeed. These mater
weaknesses were considered in determining theedtoning and extent of audit tests applied in audit of the 2013 financial statements,
this report does not affect our report dated Jyrg®4, which expressed an unqualified opinionhasé financial statements.

In our opinion, because of the effect of the materieaknesses described above on the achieveméne abjectives of the control critel
Chimera Investment Corporation has not maintairféettéve internal control over financial reportirag of December 31, 2013, based or
COSO criteria.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP
New York, New York
June 4, 2014
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Chimera Investment Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidatednsgattis of operations and comprehensive income (loBahges in stockholders' equity
(deficit), and cash flows of Chimera Investmentgawation and subsidiaries (the "Company") for tearyended December 31, 2011. These
financial statements are the responsibility of@menpany's management. Our responsibility is toesgan opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statedof the Public Company Accounting Oversightr8d@nited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obteasonable assurance about whether the finatateinents are free of material misstaten
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, exddesupporting the amounts and disclosures initlaadial statements. An audit also includes,
assessing the accounting principles used and gignifestimates made by management, as well asagivag the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit providesagonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaaeferred to above present fairly, in all maler@spects, the results of operations and
flows of Chimera Investment Corporation and sulasids for the year ended December 31, 2011 in conifip with accounting principle
generally accepted in the United States of America.

/sl Deloitte & Touche LLP
New York, New York
March 8, 2013 (December 31, 2013 as to Note 18)
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CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
(dollars in thousands, except share and per slaiag

December 31

December 31

2013 2012
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 77,62¢ $ 621,15:
Nonr-Agency RMBS, at fair valu
Senior 89,681 88
Senior intere-only 229,06! 122,86¢
Subordinatet 457,56¢ 547,79:
Subordinated intere-only 16,57: 16,25
Agency RMBS, at fair valu 1,997,57 1,806,69
Receivable for investments sc 253,54: -
Accrued interest receivab 15,82: 15,24¢
Other asset 8,291 13,97(
Derivatives, at fair value, n: 8,09t -
Subtotal 3,153,85: 3,144,07.
Assets of Consolidated VIES
Non-Agency RMBS transferred to consolidated variabterigst entities ("VIES"), at fair valt 2,981,57. 3,274,20.
Securitized loans held for investment, net of alage for loan losses of $9.1 million and $1
million, respectively 783,48 1,300,13.
Accrued interest receivab 17,17 24,08
Subtotal 3,782,22i 4,598,41
Total asset $ 6,936,08. $ 7,742,48
Liabilities:
Repurchase agreements, Agency RMBS ($1.7 billiah%in6 billion pledged as collateral, respectivi $ 1,658,56. $ 1,528,02!
Accrued interest payab 1,397 2,441
Dividends payabl 297,90 92,43
Accounts payable and other liabiliti 1,861 1,17(
Investment management fees and expenses payadifdiate 5,65¢ 7,67¢
Derivatives, at fair valu 30,19¢ 53,93¢
Subtotal 1,995,58! 1,685,68:
Non-Recourse Liabilities of Consolidated VIEs
Securitized debt, collateralized by MAgency RMBS ($3.0 billion and $3.3 billion pledgas
collateral, respectively 933,73: 1,336,26.
Securitized debt, collateralized by loans heldifigestment ($762.6 million and $1.3 billion pledc
as collateral, respectivel 669,98 1,169,71
Accrued interest payab 5,27¢ 8,35¢
Subtotal 1,608,99. 2,514,32!
Total liabilities $ 3,60457 $ 4,200,011
Commitments and Contingencies (See Note
Stockholders' Equity:
Preferred Stock: par value $0.01 per share; 1000000shares authorized, 0 shares issuet
outstanding, respective $ - $ -
Common stock: par value $0.01 per share; 1,500000hares authorized, 1,027,626,237
1,027,597,458 shares issued and outstanding, tesge: 10,27: 10,26¢
Additional paic-in-capital 3,605,24. 3,604,55.
Accumulated other comprehensive income (li 990,80 989,93t
Retained earnings (accumulated defi (1,274,800 (1,062,279
Total stockholders' equit $ 3,331,510 $ 3,542,47!
Total liabilities and stockholders' equ $ 6,936,08. $ 7,742,48

See accompanying notes to consolidated financtésents
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CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHEN SIVE INCOME (LOSS)

(dollars in thousands, except share and per slaiag

December 31

For the Year Ende

December 31

December 31

2013 2012 2011

Net Interest Income:
Interest income $ 140,22: $ 172,08¢ $ 254,02¢
Interest expens (6,770 (10,679 (11,94)
Interest income, Assets of consolidated V 371,55¢ 417,35: 450,99¢
Interest expense, N-recourse liabilities of consolidated VI (95,229 (115,88() (122,91)
Net interest income (expens 409,78« 462,88 570,16¢
Other-than-temporary impairments:
Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss (4,35¢) (47,637 (241,96
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensiceme (loss (40,81) (84,619 (115,149
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss (45,167 (132,25() (357,10
Other gains (losses)
Net unrealized gains (losses) on derivati 34,36¢ (9,479 (34,479
Net realized gains (losses) on derivati (7,719 (20,227) (15,929
Net gains (losses) on derivative 26,65¢ (29,696 (50,407
Net unrealized gains (losses) on inte-only RMBS (44,277 83¢< (14,545
Net realized gains (losses) on sales of investn 68,107 85,16¢ 54,35:
Realized losses on principal w-downs of No-Agency RMBS (18,31¢) - -
Total other gains (losse 32,17( 56,30: (10,599
Net investment income (los 396,78 386,93! 202,46:
Other expenses
Management fee 25,95 49,52t 51,96¢
Expense recoveries from Manay (6,78¢) (4,712) -
Net management fe: 19,16¢ 44 81: 51,96¢
Provision for loan losses, n (1,799 36¢ 5,291
General and administrative expen 16,73¢ 13,98¢ 7,26
Total other expense 34,09¢ 59,16% 64,52’
Income (loss) before income taxe 362,68¢ 327,76¢ 137,93!
Income taxe: 2 1 60€
Net income (loss $ 362,68t $ 327,760 $ 137,32¢
Net income (loss) per share available to common steholders:
Basic $ 0.3t $ 03z $ 0.12
Diluted $ 0.3 $ 03z $ 0.1:
Weighted average number of common shares outstandin
Basic 1,027,094,37 1,026,831,03 1,026,365,19
Diluted 1,027,570,34 1,027,499,25 1,027,171,38
Dividends declared per share of common stoc $ 0.5¢€ $ 0.3t $ 0.51
Comprehensive income (loss;
Net income (loss $ 362,68t $ 327,767 $ 137,32¢
Other comprehensive income (los
Unrealized gains (losses) on avail-for-sale securities, ni 23,807 509,39¢ (549,42)
Reclassification adjustment for net losses includetet income (loss) for otf-
than-

temporary credit impairment loss 45,167 132,25( 357,10!
Reclassification adjustment for net realized loggafs) included in net incon
(loss) (68,107 (85,166 (54,359
Other comprehensive income (lo 867 556,48 (246,67()
Comprehensive income (los $ 363,55 $ 884,25( $ (109,34))

See accompanying notes to consolidated financitésients
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CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)
(dollars in thousands, except per share ¢

Accumulatec Retainec
Additional Other Earnings
Common Stoc Paid- Comprehensiv  (Accumulated
Par Value in Capital Income (Loss Deficit) Total

Balance, December 31, 20 $ 10,26 $ 3,601,891 $ 680,12 $ (613,68) $ 3,678,58
Net income (loss - - - 137,32¢ 137,32¢
Unrealized gains (losses) on avail-for-sale securities

net - - (549,42) - (549,42)
Reclassification adjustment for net losses includetet

income (loss) for other-than-temporary credit innpeint

losses - 357,10! - 357,10¢
Reclassification adjustment for net realized loggeis)

included in net income (los - - (54,359 - (54,359
Proceeds from direct purchase and dividend reinverst 4 1,11¢ - - 1,12C
Proceeds from common stock offerir - 22 - - 22
Proceeds from restricted stock gre 2 711 - - 71z
Common dividends declared, $0.51 per s! - - - (523,48)) (523,48))
Balance, December 31, 20 $ 10,267 $ 3,603,73' $ 433,45 $ (999,84() $ 3,047,61
Net income (loss - - - 327,76° 327,76°
Unrealized gains (losses) on avail-for-sale securities

net - - 509,39¢ - 509,39¢
Reclassification adjustment for net losses includetet

income (loss) for other-than-temporary credit innpeint

losses - - 132,25( - 132,25(
Reclassification adjustment for net realized loggeis)

included in net income (los - - (85,16¢) - (85,16¢)
Proceeds from direct purchase and dividend reinvest 1 11€ - - 117
Proceeds from restricted stock gre - 69¢ - - 69¢
Common dividends declared, $0.38 per s! - - - (390,206 (390,206
Balance, December 31, 20 $ 10,26¢ $ 3,60455 $ 989,93t $ (1,062,27) $ 3,542,47
Net income (loss - - - 362,68t 362,68t
Unrealized gains (losses) on avail-for-sale securities

net - - 23,80" - 23,80"
Reclassification adjustment for net losses includetet

income (loss) for other-than-temporary credit innpesint

losses - - 45,167 - 45,167
Reclassification adjustment for net realized loggeis)

included in net income (los - - (68,107 - (68,107
Proceeds from restricted stock gre 4 687 - - 691
Common dividends declared, $0.56 per s! - - - (575,21) (575,21)
Balance, December 31, 20 $ 10,27: $ 3,60524 $ 990,80 $ (1,274,80) $ 3,331,51

See accompanying notes to consolidated financésents
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CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(dollars in thousand:

For the Year Ende

December 31 December 31 December 31
2013 2012 2011
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Net income (loss $ 362,68t $ 327,760 % 137,32¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashkigea by (used in) operatir
activities:
(Accretion) amortization of investment discountsfpiums, ne (80,58¢) (67,267) (60,709
Amortization of deferred financing cos 5,69( 8,54¢ -
Accretion (amortization) of securitized debt dise®ipremiums, ne 11,98: 6,98t 12,55:
Net unrealized losses (gains) on derivati (34,369 9,47: 34,47¢
Net unrealized losses (gains) on inte-only RMBS 44,27 (833 14,54t
Net realized losses (gains) on sales of investn (68,107 (85,166€) (54,359
Realized losses on principal w-downs of No-Agency RMBS 18,31¢ - -
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss 45,167 132,25( 357,10¢
Provision for loan losses, n (2,799 36¢ 5,291
Equity-based compensation expel 691 44¢ 713
Changes in operating asse¢
Decrease (increase) in accrued interest redeivabt 6,33¢ 9,111 (672)
Decrease (increase) in other as (13 (34¢) (190
Changes in operating liabilitie
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable andl@thidities 691 (517 1,29¢
Increase (decrease) in investment managemenafebexpenses payable
affiliate (2,019 (5,287 53¢
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest payad (4,129 (625) (217)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activ $ 304,82( % 33491 $ 447,70t
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
RMBS portfolio:
Purchase $ (2,386,16) (124,21 (4,174,74))
Sales 1,228,80! 943,35( 2,628,99.
Principal payment 488,25! 717,35: 677,19(
Non-Agency RMBS transferred to consolidated VI
Principal payment 466,52: 505,77¢ 668,92
Securitized loans held for investme
Purchase - (1,531,01) -
Principal payment 507,68: 477,55! 85,52¢
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi $ 305,09¢ $ 988,80t $ (114,117
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Proceeds from repurchase agreem $ 7,879,36. 6,826,541 15,247,54
Payments on repurchase agreem (7,748,82) (7,971,51) (14,383,35)
Ne proceeds from common stock offerir - - 22
Payment of deferred financing co - (9,489 -
Proceeds from securitized debt borrowings, taidized by loans held fi
investmen - 1,426,98. -
Payments on securitized debt borrowings, colditeed by loans held fc
investmen (499,549 (470,789 (80,18))
Proceeds from securitized debt borrowings, taidized by No-Agency RMBS - 181,20: 310,97:
Payments on securitized debt borrowings, aidized by No-Agency RMBS (414,69() (481,469 (645,60
Net proceeds from direct purchase and divideird/estmen - 367 1,12C
Common dividends pa (369,740 (410,717 (584,989
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi (1,153,44) $ (908,86) $ (134,46
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis (543,529) $ 414,85« 199,12¢
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pe 621,15: 206,29¢ 7,17:
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe $ 77,62¢ $ 621,15 $ 206,29¢
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Interest receive $ 437,53, $ 530,57¢ $ 640,19¢
Interest pait $ 88,45 $ 120,73 $ 120,68t
Management fees and expenses paid to aff $ 27,96¢ $ 54,80¢ $ 51,38:

Non-cash investing activities:




Receivable for investments st $ 253,54, $ - $ -

Net change in unrealized gain (loss) on avai-for sale securitie $ 867 $ 556,48. $ (246,67()

Non-cash financing activities:

Common dividends declared, not yet $ 297,90 $ 92,43, % 112,93

See accompanying notes to consolidated financisdsents




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization

Chimera Investment Corporation (the “Company”) weganized in Maryland on June 1, 2007. The Comganymenced operations on
November 21, 2007 when it completed its initial ltibffering. The Company elected to be taxed esahestate investment tru“REIT”)
under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as ameadddegulations promulgated thereunder (the “Qodehe Company formed the
following wholly-owned qualified REIT subsidiaries: Chimera Se@sitHoldings, LLC in July 2008; Chimera Asset HolfiLLC and Chimer.
Holding LLC in June 2009; and Chimera Special HugdiLLC in January 2010 which is a wholly-owned sdiasy of Chimera Asset Holding
LLC. In July 2010, the Company formed CIM Tradi@gmpany LLC, a wholly-owned taxable REIT subsidiéiilyRS”). In October 2013, the
Company formed Chimera Funding TRS LLC, which stelly-owned TRS.

Annaly Capital Management, Inc. (“Annaly”) owns apximately 4.38% of the Company’s common sharese Company is managed by Fixed
Income Discount Advisory Company (“FIDAC”), an irstenent advisor registered with the Securities axchBnge Commission
(“SEC”). FIDAC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Aaly.

2. Summary of the Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Basis of Presentation and Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statememtsrelated notes of the Company have been prepasetordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United StA18&AAP"). In the opinion of management, all adjustms considered necessary for a fair
presentation of the Company's financial positiesuits of operations and cash flows have beendedlu Certain prior year amounts have been
reclassified to conform to the current year's pnéston.

The consolidated financial statements include, oaresolidated basis, the Company’s accounts, theuats of its wholly-owned subsidiaries,
and variable interest entities (“VIES”) in whichet&ompany is the primary beneficiary. All signifiténtercompany balances and transactions
have been eliminated in consolidation.

The Company uses securitization trusts considerée VIEs in its securitization and re-securitiaatiransactions. VIEs are defined as entities
in which equity investors (i) do not have the cletegistics of a controlling financial interest, &od(ii) do not have sufficient equity at risk for
the entity to finance its activities without addital subordinated financial support from otheripartThe entity that consolidates a VIE is known
as its primary beneficiary, and is generally thétgmith (i) the power to direct the activitiesahmost significantly impact the VIES’ economic
performance, and (ii) the right to receive bendfiben the VIE or the obligation to absorb losseshef VIE that could be significant to the

VIE. For VIEs that do not have substantial on gaaativities, the power to direct the activitieattinost significantly impact the VIEstonomit
performance may be determined by an entity’s inmmignt with the design and structure of the VIE.

The trusts are structured as pass through ertfiteéseceive principal and interest on the undedygollateral and distribute those payments t
certificate holders. The assets held by the sizatibn entities are restricted in that they calyde used to fulfill the obligations of the
securitization entity. The Companyrisks associated with its involvement with the#es are limited to its risks and rights as a diedie holde
of the bonds it has retained. There have beercent changes to the nature of risks associatédtindt Company’s involvement with VIEs.

Determining the primary beneficiary of a VIE readrsignificant judgment. The Company determinatl fitr the securitizations it consolidates,
its ownership of substantially all subordinate iagts provided the Company with the obligationtisaab losses and/or the right to receive
benefits from the VIE that could be significanthe VIE. In addition, the Company is consideretidge the power to direct the activities of the
VIEs that most significantly impact the VIES' ecaonic performance (“power”) or the Company was deteeth to have power in connection
with its involvement with the purpose and desigihef VIE.
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The Company’s interest in the assets held by theseritization vehicles, which are consolidateditenCompany’s Statements of Financial
Condition, is restricted by the structural provismf these entities, and a recovery of the Comiganyestment in the vehicles will be limited
each entity’s distribution provisions. The liabé# of the securitization vehicles, which are @gnsolidated on the Company’s Statements of
Financial Condition, are non-recourse to the Comipand can generally only be satisfied from eadustzation vehicles respective asset pc

The securitization entities are comprised of sediasses of residential mortgage backed secu(tRidBS”) and jumbo, prime, residential
mortgage loans. See Notes 3, 4 and 8 for furtiseudsion of the characteristics of the securdies loans in the Company’s portfolio.

(b) Statements of Financial Condition Presentation

The Company’s Consolidated Statements of Fina@maldition separately present: (i) the Company’saiassets and liabilities, and (i) the
assets and liabilities of consolidated securitiratiehicles. Assets of each consolidated VIE cay lom used to satisfy the obligations of that
VIE, and the liabilities of consolidated VIEs amnarecourse to the Company. The Company is nagateld to provide, nor has it provided, any
financial support to these consolidated securibmatehicles.

The Company has aggregated all the assets anlititabof the consolidated securitization vehidies to the determination that these entities
substantively similar and therefore a further digagated presentation would not be more meaninghd.notes to the consolidated financial
statements describe the Company’s direct assetiadnildies and the assets and liabilities of agidated securitization vehicles. See Note 8 for
additional information related to the Company’seéstments in consolidated securitization vehicles.

(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on handashddeposited overnight in money market fundsghvare not bank deposits and are not
insured or guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Inser&orporation. There were no restrictions on eashcash equivalents at December 31,
2013 and 2012.

(d) Agency and Non-Agency Residential Mortgage-Baeld Securities

The Company invests in RMBS representing intetiestdbligations backed by pools of mortgage loafke Company delineates between
Agency RMBS and Non-Agency RMBS as follows: AgeRIMBS are mortgage pass-through certificates, atdized mortgage obligations
(“*CMOs”), and other RMBS representing interestsiirobligations backed by pools of mortgage loasséd or guaranteed by agencies of the
U.S. Government, such as Ginnie Mae, or feder&lfrtered corporations such as Freddie Mac or Falaewhere principal and interest
repayments are guaranteed by the respective agéttoy U.S. Government or federally chartered crafion. Non-Agency RMBS are not

issued or guaranteed by a U.S. Government Agenother institution and are subject to credit ri®epayment of principal and interest on Non-
Agency RMBS is subject to the performance of thetgame loans or RMBS collateralizing the obligation

The Company classifies its RMBS as available-fde;s@cords investments at estimated fair valugeasribed in Note 5 of these consolidated
financial statements, and includes unrealized gaaslosses considered to be temporary on all RMR&uding interest-only (“10”) strips, in
Other comprehensive income (loss) in the Consddi&tatements of Operations and Comprehensive ¢boss). 10 strips are recorded at
estimated fair value and all unrealized gains asdds are included in earnings in the Consolidatattments of Operations and Comprehensive
Income (Loss). From time to time, as part of therall management of its portfolio, the Company realy any of its RMBS investments and
recognize a realized gain or loss as a componegdroings in the Consolidated Statements of OpeErmtind Comprehensive Income (Loss)
utilizing the average cost method.
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The Company’s accounting policy for interest incceme impairment related to its RMBS is as follows:

Interest Income Recognition

The recognition of interest income on RMBS secesitiaries depending on the characteristics ofaberity as follows:
Agency RMBS and No-Agency RMBS of High Credit Quality

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB¢cAunting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 310-2ynrefundable Fees and Other Costs
(“ASC 310-20") is applied to the recognition ofénést income for the following securities:

e Agency RMBS
e Norn-Agency RMBS that meet all of the following condit® at the acquisition date (referred to hereafte*Non-Agency
RMBS of High Credit Qualit”):

1. Rated AA or higher by a nationally recognized dregling agency. The Company uses the lowestgatuailable

2. The Company expects to collect all of the sec’s contractual cash flow

3. The security cannot be contractually prepaid shel the Company would not recover substantiallygits recorde
investment

Under ASC 310-20, interest income, including premsuand discounts associated with the acquisitidhesfe securities, is recognized over the
life of such securities using the interest methasiol on the contractual cash flows of the securityapplying the interest method, the Comg
considers estimates of future principal prepaymentise calculation of the constant effective yidbifferences that arise between previously
anticipated prepayments and actual prepaymentwegteas well as changes in future prepayment gsons, result in a recalculation of the
effective yield on the security on a quarterly ba$his recalculation results in the recognitiorapnfadjustment to the carrying amount of the
security based on the revised prepayment assursmiwha corresponding increase or decrease inteelpaterest income.

Non-Agency RMBS Not of High Credit Quality

Nonr-Agency RMBS that are purchased at a discountlaaidare not of high credit quality at the time afghase are accounted for under ASC
310-30,Loans and Debt Securities Acquired with DeteriodaBredit Quality(“ASC 310-30") or ASC 325-4@Beneficial Interests in Securitized
Financial Asset(*ASC 325-40") (referred to hereafter as “Non-AggmMBS Not of High Credit Quality”).

Non-Agency RMBS are accounted for under ASC 310-30éffollowing conditions are met as of the acqigsitate:

1. There is evidence of deterioration in credit qyadit the security from its inceptio
2. ltis probable that the Company will be unabledtiert all contractual cash flows of the secur

Non-Agency RMBS that are not within the scope of ASKD-30 are accounted for under ASC 325-40 if abttguisition date:

1. The security is not of high credit quality (definasl rated below AA or is unrated),
2. The security can contractually be prepaid or otliexsettled in such a way that the Company woutdexver substantially all of
recorded investmer

Interest income on Non-Agency RMBS Not of High Gr&lality is recognized using the interest metbaded on management’s estimates of
cash flows expected to be collected. The effedtiterest rate on these securities is based on ream&y’s estimate for each security of the
projected cash flows, which are estimated basesbsarvation of current market information and idel@ssumptions related to fluctuations in
prepayment speeds and the timing and amount oit dosdes. Quarterly, the Company reviews andpjifrapriate, makes adjustments to its cash
flow projections based on inputs and analyses veddrom external sources, internal models, andib@pany’s judgments about prepayment
rates, the timing and amount of credit losses,ahdr factors. Changes in the amount and/or tirofrcash flows from those originally project

or from those estimated at the last evaluation, daiteconsidered to be either positive changedwsrae changes. For securities accounted for
under ASC 325-40, any positive or adverse changash flows that does not result in the recognitiban other-than-temporary impairment
("OTTI") results in a prospective increase or deseein the effective interest rate used to recegnizrest income. For securities accounted for
under ASC 310-30, only significant positive changesreflected prospectively in the effective ietrrate used to recognize interest

income. Adverse changes in cash flows expectbe twllected are generally treated consistenthRIBS accounted for under ASC 325-40
and ASC 310-30, and generally result in recognitiban OTTI with no change in the effective inténege used to recognize interest income.
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Impairment
Considerations Applicable to all RMBS

When the fair value of an available-for-sale RMB$eiss than its amortized cost the security isidensd impaired. On at least a quarterly basis
the Company evaluates its securities for OTTithéf Company intends to sell an impaired securityt, is more-likely-thamot that the Compa
will be required to sell an impaired security beftis anticipated recovery, then the Company neignize an OTTI through a charge to
earnings equal to the entire difference betweelintresstment’'s amortized cost and its fair valuthatmeasurement date. If the Company does
not intend to sell an impaired security and itas more-likely-than-not that it would be requiredsell an impaired security before recovery, the
Company must further evaluate the security for iinmpant due to credit losses. The credit compon&@tTori is recognized in earnings and the
remaining or non-credit component is recorded esmnaponent of Other comprehensive income (loss) ("PEollowing the recognition of an
OTTI through earnings, a new amortized cost basgsiablished for the security and subsequent egiesvin fair value may not be adjusted
through earnings.

When evaluating whether the Company intends toeselinpaired security or will more-likely-than-nm¢ required to sell an impaired security
before recovery, the Company makes judgments tretider among other things, its liquidity, leveragentractual obligations, and targeted
investment strategy to determine its intent anéitgltd hold the investments that are deemed inghirThe determination as to whether an C
exists is subjective as such determinations aredoas factual information available at the timeas$essment as well as the Compsuegtimate
of future conditions. As a result, the determiotdf OTTI and its timing and amount is based dimedes that may change materially over
time.

The Company’s estimate of the amount and timingash flows for its RMBS is based on its reviewtf tinderlying securities or mortgage
loans securing the RMBS. The Company consideterigal information available and expected futueefprmance of the underlying securities
or mortgage loans, including timing of expectedifatcash flows, prepayment rates, default ratss,deverities, delinquency rates, percenta
non-performing loans, extent of credit support ke, Fair Isaac Corporation (“FICQ”) scores ari@rigination, year of origination, loan-to-
value ratios, geographic concentrations, as wakparts by credit rating agencies, such as Moolhysstors Service, Inc., Standard & Poor’s
Rating Services or Fitch Ratings, Inc., generalkeiaassessments and dialogue with market partitipaks a result, substantial judgment is |
in the Company’s analysis to determine the expecast flows for its RMBS.

Considerations Applicable to Non-Agency RMBS of Higredit Quality

The impairment assessment for Non-Agency RMBS ghHiredit Quality involves comparing the presernt&af the remaining cash flows
expected to be collected to the amortized codt@becurity at the assessment date. The discatenised to calculate the present value of the
expected future cash flows is based on the setgffective interest rate as calculated under 83Q-20 (i.e., the discount rate implicit in the
security as of the last measurement date). Ipteeent value of the remaining cash flows expetttdd collected is less than the amortized cost
basis, an OTTI is recognized in earnings for tHfedince. This amount is considered to be the tles component; the remaining difference
between amortized cost and the fair value of tlearity is considered to be the portion of loss ggdped in other comprehensive income (loss).
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Following the recognition of an OTTI through eawgsrfor the credit loss component, a new amortiosd lsasis is established for the security
and subsequent recoveries in fair value may natdpested through earnings.

Considerations Applicable to Non-Agency RMBS NotHifgh Credit Quality

Non-Agency RMBS within the scope of ASC 325-40 or ASID-30 are considered other-than-temporarily inguawhen the following two
conditions exist: (1) the fair value is less thla@ amortized cost basis, and (2) there has beadwase change in cash flows expected to be
collected from the last measurement date (i.e g@vchanges in either the amount or timing of lasfs from those previously expected).

The OTTI is separated into a credit loss compoti&ttis recognized in earnings and the portioros$ recognized in other comprehensive
income (loss). The credit component is comprisetthefimpact of the fair value decline due to chanigeassumptions related to default
(collection) risk and prepayments. The portionassl recognized in other comprehensive income (tmsaprises the change in fair value of the
security due to all other factors, including chamgebenchmark interest rates and market liquiditydetermining the OTTI related to credit
losses for securities, the Company compares trseptealue of the remaining cash flows adjusteghfepayments expected to be collected at
the current financial reporting date to the presatte of the remaining cash flows expected todiiected at the original purchase date (or the
last date those estimates were revised for acaayptirposes). The discount rate used to calctiiatpresent value of expected future cash
flows is the effective interest rate used for inearacognition purposes as determined under ASGA82%-ASC 310-30.

Following the recognition of an OTTI through eagsrfor the credit component, a new amortized casistis established for the security and
subsequent recoveries in fair value may not beséeljuthrough earnings. However, to the extentttieae are subsequent increases in cash flows
expected to be collected, the OTTI previously rdedrthrough earnings may be accreted into int@restne following the guidance in ASC
325-40 or ASC 310-30.

The determination of whether an OTTI exists andpifthe extent of the credit component is sultgestgnificant judgment and management’s
estimates of both historical information availahtehe time of assessment, the current market@mwvient, as well as the Company’s estimates
of the future performance and projected amounttamdg of cash flows expected to be collected andbcurity. As a result, the timing and
amount of OTTI constitutes an accounting estimade hay change materially over time.

(e) Interest-Only RMBS

The Company invests in 10 Agency and Non-Agency FBiips. 10 RMBS strips represent the Comparigtst to receive a specified
proportion of the contractual interest flows of twdlateral. The Company has accounted for IO RMBips at fair value with changes in fair
value recognized in the CompasyConsolidated Statements of Operations and Corepsare Income (Loss). The Company has electethth
value option to account for IO RMBS strips to siifyplhe reporting of changes in fair valud.he IO RMBS strips are included in RMBS, at 1
value, on the accompanying Consolidated Statenoéitiancial Condition. Interest income on IO RMB#ps is accrued based on the
outstanding notional balance and the security’srectual terms, and amortization of any premiundisecount is calculated in accordance with
ASC 325-40. Changes in fair value are presentéteirunrealized gains (losses) on interest-only RMBS$he Consolidated Statement of
Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss). ledud Agency RMBS, at fair value on the ConsolideB¢atements of Financial condition
are 10 RMBS strips carried at fair value with chesign fair value reflected in earnings of $42.8ioml and $5.1 million as of December 31,
2013 and 2012. Included in Non-Agency RMBS tramef&to VIESs, at fair value on the Consolidated&teents of Financial condition are 10
RMBS strips carried at fair value with changesdin Yalue reflected in earnings of $11.7 milliorde$17.0 million as of December 31, 2013 and
2012. Total Interest income reported on 10 sei@srivas $29.9 million, $23.1 million and $32.5 ioiti for the years ended December 31, 2013,
2012 and 2011, respectively.

F-13




(f) Securitized Loans Held for Investment and Relad Allowance for Loan Losses

The Company'’s securitized residential mortgagedaae comprised of fixed-rate and variable-ratagoaVortgage loans are designated as held
for investment, and are carried at their princlpglance outstanding, plus any premiums, less digs@nd allowances for loan losses. Interest
income on loans held for investment is recognizest the expected life of the loans using the irgeneethod. Nonrefundable fees and costs
related to acquiring the Company’s securitizeddesiial mortgage loans are recognized as expenseshe life of the associated debt using the
interest method of amortization. Income recognit®suspended for loans when, based on inform&tion the servicer, a full recovery of
interest or principal becomes doubtful. The Comypastimates the fair value of securitized loangdiseclosure purposes only as described in
Note 5 of these consolidated financial stateme

(9) Allowance for Loan Losses — Securitized Loanseid for Investment

The securitized loan portfolio is comprised prifyaaf non-conforming, single family, owner occupjgambo, prime loans that are not
guaranteed as to repayment of principal or inter8stcuritized loans are serviced and modified third-party servicer. The Company gener.
has the ability to approve certain loan modificasi@nd determine the course of action to be tagétralates to certain loans in technical def
including whether or not to proceed with foreclasur

The Companys general reserve is based on historical loss fatgsools of loans with similar credit charactéds, adjusted for current trer
and market conditions, including current trenddetinquencies and severities.

The Company has established a specific reservedfiatts consideration of loans more than 60 diyimquent, loans in foreclosure and
borrowers that have declared bankruptcy. The lossiprovision related to these loans is measwseldeadifference between the unpaid
principal balance and the estimated fair valuéheffiroperty securing the mortgage, less estimatsts ¢o sell. The specific reserve also reflects
consideration of concessions granted to borrowgtbd servicer in the form of modifications (i.eeductions). Loan loss provisions related to
these modifications are based on the contractiradipal and interest payments, post-modificatiaacdunted at the loan’s original effective
interest rate. Loans with specific reserves adévidually evaluated for impairment. Loan modificaas made by the servicer are evaluated to
determine if they constitute troubled debt restitings (“TDRS”). A restructuring of a loan constiés a TDR if the servicer, for economic or
legal reasons related to the borrower's finandffitdlties, grants a concession to the borrowait ihwould not otherwise consider. Impairment
of modified loans considered to be TDRs is meashesgd on the present value of expected cash @mesunted at the loan’s effective interest
rate at inception. If the present value of expectegh flows is less than the recorded investmetiteidoan, an allowance for loan losses is
recognized with a corresponding charge to the pronifor loan losses. Impairment of all other loartividually evaluated is measured as the
difference between the unpaid principal balancethadstimated fair value of the collateral, lestimgated costs to sell. The Company charges
off the corresponding loan allowance and relatéucjpal balance when the servicer reports a redliass. A complete discussion of securitized
loans held for investment is included in Note 4hese consolidated financial statements.

(h) Repurchase Agreements

The Company finances the acquisition of a signifigeortion of its Agency mortgage-backed securitveth repurchase agreements. The
Company has evaluated each agreement and deterthatezhch of the repurchase agreements be acddontas secured borrowings. None of
the Company’s repurchase agreements are accoumtad €omponents of linked transactions. As a tethd Company separately accounts for
the financial assets posted as collateral andectl&purchase agreements in the accompanying atetsal financial statements.

() Securitized Debt, Non-Agency RMBS Transferreda Consolidated VIEs, and Securitized Debt, Loans Hig for Investment

The Company has issued securitized debt to finammtion of its residential mortgage loan and RMB®#folios. Certain transactions

involving residential mortgage loans are accoufte@ds secured borrowings, and are recorded agifzed loans held for investment and the
corresponding debt as Securitized debt, collatedlby loans held for investment in the Consolid&&atements of Financial Condition. These
securitizations are collateralized by residentifilistable or fixed rate mortgage loans that haeslaced in a trust and pay interest and
principal to the debt holders of that securitizatidRe-securitization transactions classified agiB&zed debt, collateralized by Non-Agency
RMBS reflect the transfer to a trust of fixed ojustiable rate RMBS which are classified as Ma@ency RMBS transferred to consolidated V
that pay interest and principal to the debt hol@déithat re-securitization. Re-securitization gactions completed by the Company that did not
qualify as sales are accounted for as securedwinigs. The associated securitized debt is caaiednortized cost. The Company estimates the
fair value of its securitized debt for disclosutegnses as described in Note 5 to these consdlidiaEncial statements.
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(j) Fair Value Disclosure

A complete discussion of the methodology utilizgdite Company to estimate the fair value of itaficial instruments is included in Note 5 to
these consolidated financial statements.

(k) Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company’s investment policies permit it to eféo derivative contracts, including intereseratvaps, interest rate caps, options, and
futures as a means of managing its interest rsiteasg well as to enhance investment returns. Tinep@oy’s derivatives are recorded as either
assets or liabilities in the Consolidated StatesiehFinancial Condition and measured at fair vallibese derivative financial instrument
contracts are not designated as hedges for GA&IRefitre, all changes in fair value are recognineshirnings. The Company estimates the fair
value of its derivative instruments as describedate 5 of these consolidated financial statemeN&st payments on derivative instruments are
included in the Consolidated Statements of CasWé-ks a component of net income (loss). Unrealizéds (losses) on derivatives are remc
from net income (loss) to arrive at cash flows froperating activities.

The Company elects to net by counterparty thevigire of its derivative contracts when appropriaféese contracts contain legally enforceable
provisions that allow for netting or setting offalf individual swaps receivable and payable wahlecounterparty and, therefore, the fair value
of those swap contracts are reported net by cquentigt The credit support annex provisions of@loenpanys interest rate swap contracts all
the parties to mitigate their credit risk by reingrthe party which is in a net payable positiopast collateral. As the Company elects to net by
counterparty the fair value of interest rate swaptiacts, it also nets by counterparty any caslatesll exchanged as part of the interest rate
swap contracts.

() Sales, Securitizations, and Re-Securitizations

The Company periodically enters into transactiongtiich it sells financial assets, such as RMB#, mortgage loans. Gains and losses on

of assets are calculated using the average cokbthethereby the Company records a gain or losh@ulifference between the average
amortized cost of the asset and the proceeds fieradle. In addition, the Company from time tcetigecuritizes or reecuritizes assets and s
tranches in the newly securitized assets. Thassdctions may be recorded as either sales aradsbes contributed to the securitization are
removed from the Consolidated Statements of Fir@ondition and a gain or loss is recognized,sosecured borrowings whereby the assets
contributed to the securitization are not derecogphbut rather the debt issued by the securitizatiity are recorded to reflect the term
financing of the assets. In these securitizatinbre-securitizations, the Company may retainosenisubordinated interests in the securitized
and/or re-securitized assets.

(m) Income Taxes

The Company has elected to be taxed as a REITnéealds to comply with the provision of the Codethwespect thereto. Accordingly, the
Company will not be subject to federal, state ealdncome tax to the extent that qualifying disttions are made to stockholders and as long a:
certain asset, income, distribution and stock osimiprtests are met. If the Company failed to qualg a REIT and did not qualify for certain
statutory relief provisions, the Company would bbject to federal, state and local income taxesnaag be precluded from qualifying as a

REIT for the subsequent four taxable years follgntime year in which the REIT qualification was Iohie Company and CIM Trading made a
joint election to treat CIM Trading as a TRS. AslsuCIM Trading is taxable as a domestic C corponaand subject to federal, state, and Ic
income taxes based upon its taxable income.
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A tax position is recognized only when, based onagament’s judgment regarding the application obime tax laws, it is more likely than not
that the tax position will be sustained upon exatiim. The Company does not have any unrecogmizebenefits that would affect its financ
position or require disclosure. No accruals fangites and interest were necessary as of DeceBih@013 or 2012.

(n) Net Income per Share

The Company calculates basic net income per slyadévling net income for the period by the baskighted-average shares of its common
stock outstanding for that period. Diluted netoime per share takes into account the effect ofiddunstruments such as unvested restricted
stock.

(o) Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based compensatiarda granted to the employees of FIDAC and FIDAdGfdiates at the fair value of the
stockbased compensation provided. The Company meath@éair value of the equity instrument using theek prices and other measurem
assumptions as of the earlier of either the datéhath a performance commitment by the recipiemé&ched or the date at which the recipient’s
performance is complete. Stock compensation expefeted to the grants of stock is recognized tivewnesting period of such grants based on
the fair value of the stock on each quarterly vestlate, at which the recipient’s performance inglete.

Compensation expense for equity based awards gremtie Company’s independent directors is reasghpro-rata over the vesting period of
such awards, based upon the fair value of suchdsaarthe grant date.

(p) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confoymiith GAAP requires management to make estimabesassumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities andatisce of contingent assets and liabilities atdate of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the negpeiriod. Although the Company’s estimates contatagurrent conditions and how it
expects them to change in the future, it is redslgnzossible that actual conditions could be matirdifferent than anticipated in those
estimates, which could have a material adversedtrgrathe Company’s results of operations andnnicial condition. Management has made
significant estimates in accounting for income gggtion and OTTI on Agency and Non-Agency RMBS #dARMBS (Note 3), valuation of
Agency and Non-Agency RMBS (Notes 3 and 5), anivdtive instruments (Notes 5 and 9). Actual resatiuld differ materially from those
estimates.

(a) Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Presentatior

Balance Sheet (Topic 210)

On December 23, 2011, the FASB released Accousiagdards Update (“ASU”) 2011-1Balance Sheet (Topic 210): Disclosures about
Offsetting Assets and LiabilitiesUnder this update, the Company is requiredgoldse both gross information and net informatiooug both
instruments and transactions eligible for offsehia statement of financial position and transastisubject to an agreement similar to a master
netting arrangement. The scope includes deriv@ts@e and repurchase agreements and reversndalepurchase agreements and securities
borrowing and securities lending arrangementsis disclosure is intended to enable financial statet users to understand the effect of such
arrangements on the Company’s financial positidime Company adopted this guidance in the firsttquaf 2013. As this standard only
requires additional disclosure, the adoption of AZ11-11 did not have any effect on the consolilfiteancial statements. The additional
disclosures related to the Company’s repurchasseamnts and derivatives are presented in Note 14.
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Comprehensive Income (Topic 220)

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU 20133@nprehensive Income: Reporting of Amounts Refiled€)ut of Accumulated Other
Comprehensive IncomeThis update requires the disclosure of informmatibout the amounts reclassified out of accumul@@tdby

component. In addition, it requires presentatidiee on the face of the statement where net incigrpeesented or in the Notes, significant
amounts reclassified out of accumulated OCI byrélspective line items of net income, but only & imount reclassified is required under
GAAP to be reclassified to net income in its ertyiie the same reporting period. For other amothws are not required under GAAP to be
reclassified in their entirety to net income, assroeference must be provided to other disclogeigsred under GAAP that provide additional
detail about those amounts. The Company adoptedjtidance in the first quarter of 2013. As thamdard only requires additional disclosure,
the adoption of ASU 2013-02 did not have any eftecthe consolidated financial statements. Thétiaddl disclosures related to accumulated
OCI are presented in Note 11.

Broad Transactions

Receivables-Troubled Debt Restructurings by Creditors (Subt@die-40)

In January 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014R&t|assification of Residential Real Estate Cotldized Consumer Mortgage Loans Upon
Foreclosure. This update clarifies when the Company is careid to have obtained physical possession, from-anbstance possession or
foreclosure, of a residential real estate propestiateralizing a mortgage loan. Current guidainckcates that the Company should reclassify a
collateralized mortgage loan such that the loamikhioe derecognized and the collateral asset rezegmvhen it determines that there has been
an in-substance repossession or foreclosure b§dhgpany. This update defines the ténmsubstance repossession or foreclodoreeduce
diversity in interpretation of when such an evertws. The guidance in this update is effectivelie Company beginning January 1,

2015. The Company is evaluating the impact of dipidate.

3. Residential Mortgage-Backed Securities

The Company classifies its Non-Agency RMBS as sesinior |0, subordinated, subordinated 10, and-Ngency RMBS transferred to
consolidated VIEs. The Company also invests innkgeRMBS. Senior interests in Non-Agency RMBS @vasidered to be entitled to the first
principal repayments in their pro-rata ownershigriests at the reporting date. The total fair @afithe Non-Agency RMBS that are held by
consolidated re-securitization trusts was $3.0dniland $3.3 billion at December 31, 2013 and 2@d®pectively. See Note 8 of these
consolidated financial statements for further désion of consolidated VIEs.

The following tables present the principal or notibvalue, total premium, total discount, amortizedt, fair value, gross unrealized gains, gross

unrealized losses, and net unrealized gain (letajed to the Company’s available-for-sale RMBSfpto as of December 31, 2013 and 2012,
by asset class.

F-17




December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Net
Principal or Gross Gross Unrealizet
Notional  Total Total Amortized Unrealizec Unrealizet  Gain/
Value  Premiumr Discount Cost  Fair Value Gains Losses  (Loss)
Nor-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 128,21 $ -$ (39,39H% 8882 % 89,68 $ 974$ (109 %  86E
Senior intere-only 5,742,78 283,27: - 283,27  229,06! 11,80: (66,00¢) (54,20¢)
Subordinatet 830,63: - (490,400 340,23. 457,56¢ 119,23: (1,89¢) 117,33
Subordinated intere-only 274,46. 14,66¢ - 14,66¢ 16,57: 2,48: (579 1,90¢
RMBS transferred to consolidat
variable interest
entities ("VIES") 3,912,371 7,49C (1,763,40) 2,075,62! 2,981,57 905,94: - 905,94.
Agency RMBS 2,145,47" 134,60¢ (5,009 2,027,731 1,997,57 22,65. (52,81() (30,15%)
Total $13,033,94 $440,03¢ $(2,298,20() $4,830,35! $5,772,04 $1,063,08 $(121,40)) $941,68!
December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Net
Principal or Gross Gross Unrealizes
Notional  Total Total Amortized Unrealizec Unrealizet  Gain/

Value  Premiurr Discount Cost  Fair Value Gains Losses  (Loss)

Nor-Agency RMBS

Senior $ 12€ $ -9 (54) $ 72 $ 88 $ 16 $ -$ 16
Senior intere-only 3,012,86: 135,86¢ - 135,86¢ 122,86 7,97¢ (20,97 (12,999
Subordinatet 1,057,82 - (584,77) 473,04¢  547,79: 81,49: (6,747 74,74
Subordinated intere-only 256,07: 16,18( - 16,18( 16,25 1,46¢ (1,399 73

RMBS transferred to consolidat
variable interest

entities ("VIES") 4,610,10! 8,95t (2,088,12) 2,437,04 3,274,20. 837,35: (297) 837,15t
Agency RMBS 1,756,58  51,50: - 1,720,59° 1,806,69 86,41¢ (317 86,10:
Total $10,693,57 $212,50! $(2,672,95) $4,782,81. $5,767,90! $1,014,72: $ (29,629 $985,09:

The table below presents changes in Accretabledyl the excess of the security’s cash flows ebqueto be collected over the Company’
investment, solely as it pertains to the Compahlya-Agency RMBS portfolio accounted for accordinghe provisions of ASC 310-30.

For the Year Ende
December 31 December 31

2013 2012

(dollars in thousand:
Balance at beginning of peric $ 2,107,38 $ 2,342,46:
Purchase 29,06 86,84"
Accretion (328,49) (364,28
Reclassification (to) from n«-accretable
difference 15,95° 64,01°
Sales (29,340 (21,657
Balance at end of peric $ 1,79457 $ 2,107,38

The table below presents the outstanding prindipknce and related amortized cost at Decemb&03B and 2012 as it pertains to the
Company’s Non-Agency RMBS portfolio accounted foc@rding to the provisions of ASC 310-30.

For the Year Ende
December 31 December 31
2013 2012
(dollars in thousand:

Outstanding principal balanc

Beginning of perioc $ 4508,47'$ 5,245,18

End of perioc $ 394966 $ 4,508,47
Amortized cost

Beginning of perioc $ 2,268,75 $ 2,649,300

End of perioc $ 2,027,73 $ 2,268,75.

The following tables present the gross unrealipedds and estimated fair value of the Com’s RMBS by length of time that such securi



have been in a continuous unrealized loss positidecember 31, 2013 and 2012. All securitiesiin@realized loss position have be
evaluated by the Company for OTTI as discussedoite I2(d).
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December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Unrealized Loss Position for Le Unrealized Loss Position for :
than 12 Month: Months or More Total
Number Number Number
Estimatec Unrealizec of Estimatec Unrealizec of Estimatec Unrealizec of
Fair Value Losses Securities Fair Value Losses  Securitie: Fair Value Losses Securitie

Non-Agency RMBS

Senior $ 28,16: $ (109) 3 3% - $ = - $ 28,16 % (109) 3
Senior intere-only 119,91: (35,257 54 45,16° (30,75¢) 28 165,08( (66,009 82
Subordinatet - - 4 17,66 (2,896 2 17,66 (2,896 6
Subordinated intere-only 1,062 (57¢) 2 - - - 1,06z (57¢) 2
RMBS transferred t

consolidated VIE! - - - - - - - - -
Agency RMBS 1,149,12 (52,519 34 491 (29¢) 3 1,149,61 (52,810 37
Total $1,298,26. $ (88,45)) 97 $ 63,31¢ $ (32,950 33 $1,361,58. $(121,40) 13C

December 31, 201

(dollars in thousand:

Unrealized Loss Position for Le Unrealized Loss Position for :
than 12 Month: Months or More Total
Number Estimate: Number Number
Estimatec Unrealize« of Fair Unrealizet of Estimatec Unrealizec of

Fair Value Losses Securities  Value Losses Securities Fair Value Losses Securities

Non-Agency RMBS

Senior $ - $ - - $ -3 = - $ - $ = =

Senior intere-only 17,76¢ (2,82¢) 12 52,92( (18,14°) 26 70,68 (20,97Y 38

Subordinater - - - 54,77+ (6,747 5 54,77+ (6,747 5

Subordinated intere-only - - - 9,65¢ (1,399 1 9,65¢ (1,399 1

RMBS transferred t

consolidated VIE: - - - 22,49( (297) 1 22,49( (297 1
Agency RMBS 234 (76) 2 99: (242 2 1,227 (317) 4
Total $ 17,99¢ $ (2,909 14 $140,83t $ (26,72Y 35 $ 158,83: $ (29,629 49

At December 31, 2013, the Company did not intengktbany of its RMBS that were in an unrealizesklposition, and it was not more likely
than not that the Company would be required totekeBe RMBS before recovery of their amortized basis, which may be at their maturity.
With respect to RMBS held by consolidated VIEs, dbéity of any entity to cause the sale by the ytior to the maturity of these RMBS is
either expressly prohibited, not probable, orrsitiéd to specified events of default, none of whielre occurred as of December 31, 2013.

Gross unrealized losses on the Company’s Agency EMBre $52.8 million and $317 thousand at Decerdbe?013 and 2012, respectively.
Given the credit quality inherent in Agency RMBEe tCompany does not consider any of the currergimments on its Agency RMBS to be
credit related. In evaluating whether it is makelly than not that it will be required to sell aimppaired security before its anticipated recovery,
which may be at their maturity, the Company considiee significance of each investment, the amotiimhpairment, the projected future
performance of such impaired securities, as wethasCompanys current and anticipated leverage capacity aniddity position. Based on the
analyses, the Company determined that at Decenlh@033 and 2012 unrealized losses on its AgencB&Mere temporary.

Gross unrealized losses on the Company’s Non-AgBMBS (excluding 10 Agency and Non-Agency RMBSsrivhich are accounted for
under the fair value option with changes in failuearecorded in earnings) were $2.0 million an®$8illion at December 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively. Based upon the most recent evaluatienCompany does not consider these unrealizsg$ato be indicative of OTTI and does
believe that these unrealized losses are crediiel but rather are due to other factors. The @ompas reviewed its Non-Agency RMBS that
are in an unrealized loss position to identify #hescurities with losses that are other-than-teargdrased on an assessment of changes in cash
flows expected to be collected for such RMBS, whiohsiders recent bond performance and expectedefperformance of the underlying
collateral.

A summary of the OTTI included in earnings for yfears ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011ssmiszl below.

For the Year Ende
December 31 December 31 December 31

2013 2012 2011
(dollars in thousands
Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss: $ (4,356) $ (47,63) $ (241,96
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehengigeme (loss (40,81) (84,619 (115,149

Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss $ (45,167 $ (132,250 $ (357,10)




The following table presents a roll forward of ttredit loss component of OTTI on the Company’s Mgency RMBS for which a portion of
loss was previously recognized in OCI. The talgléngates between those securities that are reziogr®TTI for the first time as opposed to
those that have previously recognized OTTI.
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For the Year Ende
December 31 December 31 December 31

2013 2012 2011
(dollars in thousand:

Cumulative credit loss beginning balar $ 510,08¢ $ 452,060 $ 237,74t
Additions:

Otherthar-temporary impairments not previously recogni 39,09¢ 98,32« 268,79!

Reductions for securities sold during the pe (14,039 (34,577 (2,300

Increases related to ot-thar-temporary impairments on securities w

previously recognized otF-thar-temporary impairment 6,06¢ 33,92¢ 88,31(

Reductions for increases in cash flows expectdxteollected over th

remaining life of the securitie (16,786 (39,649 (141,49)
Cumulative credit impairment loss ending bala $ 52443. $ 510,08¢ $ 452,06(

Cash flows generated to determine net other-thaapaeary credit impairment losses recognized iniageare estimated using significant
unobservable inputs. The significant inputs ugesh¢asure the component of OTTI recognized in egsnior the Company’s Non-Agency
RMBS are summarized as follows:

For the Year Ende
December 31, 201 December 31, 201
Loss Severity

Weighted Averag 56% 57%

Range 34%- 75% 33%- 86%
60+ days delinquer

Weighted Averag 26% 26%

Range 0%- 43% 0%- 53%
Credit Enhancement (.

Weighted Averag 4% 13%

Range 0%- 48% 0%- 75%
3 Month CPFk

Weighted Averag: 15% 15%

Range 0%- 42% 0% - 30%
12 Month CPF

Weighted Averag 17% 16%

Range 9% - 35% 8%- 42%

(1) Calculated as the combined credit enhancemeahetR-REMIC
and underlying from each of their respective cagiractures

The following tables present a summary of unredligains and losses at December 31, 2013 and 2@LRMBS included in the tables below
represent the right to receive a specified proportif the contractual interest cash flows of thdartying principal balance of specific
securities. At December 31, 2013, IO RMBS hadtainesalized loss of $49.1 million and had an aimed cost of $349.2 million. At
December 31, 2012, |0 RMBS had a net unrealizexld6$4.8 million and had an amortized cost of $Q66illion. The fair value of I1Os at
December 31, 2013 and 2012 was $300.1 million$4r6d .2 million, respectively. All changes in faalue of 10s are reflected in Net income
(loss).
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December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Gross Gross
Unrealized Gail Unrealized Los
Included in Gross Included in Gross
Accumulated Unrealized Gail Accumulated Unrealized Los
Other Included in Other Included in Total Gross
Comprehensive Accumulated Total Gross  Comprehensive Accumulated Unrealized
Income Deficit Unrealized Gail Income Deficit Loss
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 974 % - $ 974 $ (109) $ - $ (109
Senior intere-only - 11,80z 11,80z - (66,009 (66,009
Subordinatec 119,23: - 119,23: (1,89¢) - (1,896
Subordinated intere-only - 2,48: 2,48: - (57¢) (57¢)
RMBS transferred t
consolidated VIE: 901,77: 4,17 905,94 - - -
Agency RMBS 22,32 33C 22,65 (51,499 (1,316 (52,810
Total $ 1,044,30. $ 18,78 $ 1,063,08 $ (53,499 $ (67,90) $ (121,40)
December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Gross Gross
Unrealized Gail Unrealized Los
Included in Gross Included in Gross
Accumulated Unrealized Gail Accumulated Unrealized Los
Other Included in Other Included in
Comprehensivi  Accumulated Total Gross ~ Comprehensive  Accumulated Total Gross
Income Deficit Unrealized Gail Income Deficit Unrealized Los
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 16 $ - $ 16 $ - % - 9 -
Senior intere-only - 7,97¢ 7,97¢ - (20,97%) (20,979
Subordinatet 81,49:. - 81,49: (6,747) - (6,747
Subordinated intere-only - 1,46¢ 1,46¢ - (1,399 (1,399
RMBS transferred t
consolidated VIE: 829,30¢ 8,04~ 837,35: (297 - (297
Agency RMBS 86,06: 357 86,41¢ - (317) (317)
Total $ 996,87¢ $ 17,84: $ 1,014,72. $ (6,949 $ (22,685 $ (29,629

Changes in prepayments, actual cash flows, andfloagh expected to be collected, among other itaresaffected by the collateral
characteristics of each asset class. The portfolaost heavily weighted to contain Non-Agency R&MBith credit risk. The Company chooses
assets for the portfolio after carefully evaluateagh investment's risk profile.

The following tables provide a summary of the Compa RMBS portfolio at December 31, 2013 and 2012.

December 31, 201

Principal or
Notional Weighted Weighted
Value Average Average
at PeriodEnd  Amortized Weighted Weighted Yield
(dollars in Cost Average Fai Average at PeriodEnc
thousands Basis Value Coupon (1)
Non-Agency Mortgag-Backed
Securities
Senior $ 128,21" $ 69.27 $ 69.9¢ 1.42% 5.87%
Senior, interest onl $ 5,742,78 $ 49: $ 3.9¢ 1.44% 17.1%
Subordinatet $ 830,63. $ 40.9¢ $ 55.0¢ 2.9% 13.4%
Subordinated, interest on $ 274,46. $ 53¢ $ 6.04 1.72% 8.97%
RMBS transferred t
consolidated variable
interest entitie! $ 3,912,37 $ 54.17 $ 77.82 4.6€% 15.8%%
Agency Mortgag-Backed
Securities $ 2,14547 $ 106.8: $ 105.2¢ 3.99% 3.42%



(1) Bond Equivalent Yield at perit
end.

December 31, 201

Principal or
Notional Weighted
Value Average Weighted
at PeriodEnd  Amortized Weighted Weighted Average Yield
(dollars in Cost Average Fai Average at Period-End
thousands Basis Value Coupon (1)
Non-Agency Mortgag-Backed
Securities
Senior $ 12¢ $ 57.0 $ 67.0C 0.0(% 11.9(%
Senior, interest onl $ 3,012,860 $ 451 $ 4.0¢ 1.7¢% 10.3€%
Subordinate $ 1,057,82 % 4472 $ 51.7¢ 3.1&% 11.01%
Subordinated, interest on $ 256,07. $ 6.3z $ 6.3¢ 2.25% 8.9(%
RMBS transferred t
consolidated variable
interest entitie! $ 4,610,110 $ 53.9¢ $ 72.5( 4.8t% 15.4%%
Agency Mortgag-Backed
Securities $ 1,756,58 $ 103.0¢ $ 108.2¢ 4.65% 3.5%

(1) Bond Equivalent Yield at perit
end.

The following table presents the weighted averagditrating, based on the lowest rating availablehe Company’s Non-Agency RMBS
portfolio at December 31, 2013 and 2012.

December 31, 20: December 31, 20:

AAA 0.00% 0.01%
AA 0.71% 0.46%
A 0.01% 0.00%
BB 1.38% 1.41%
B 4.26% 1.19%
Below B or not rate! 93.64% 96.93%
Total 100.00¥ 100.00¥
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Actual maturities of RMBS are generally shortemtitize stated contractual maturities. Actual méagiof the Compang’ RMBS are affected |
the contractual lives of the underlying mortgagesijodic payments of principal and prepaymentsriofggpal. The following tables provide a
summary of the fair value and amortized cost ofGbenpany’s RMBS at December 31, 2013 and 2012 digpto their estimated weighted-
average life classifications. The weighted-avelags of the RMBS in the tables below are basetifetime expected prepayment rates using
an industry prepayment model for the Agency RMBB8fplio and the Company’s prepayment assumptionshie Non-Agency RMBS. The
prepayment model considers current yield, forwaettly steepness of the interest rate curve, cumemtgage rates, mortgage rates of the
outstanding loan, loan age, margin, and volatility.

December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Weighted Average Lifi

Greater tha
Greater tha five

one years and
Less thar year and les less Greater tha
one than than ten ten
year five years years years Total
Fair value
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ - $ 2928: $ 6040 $ - $ 89,68
Senior intere=-only 37¢ 103,68t 96,96¢ 28,03 229,06!
Subordinater 3,35¢ 63,17" 321,33 69,70( 457,56¢
Subordinated intere-only - - 14,86: 1,70¢ 16,57:
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI 5,72¢ 276,75. 1,986,87! 712,21t  2,981,57.
Agency RMBS 54 21,01: 1,850,43i 126,07  1,997,57!
Total fair value $ 9,51 $ 493,91. $4,330,88 $ 937,73 $5,772,04.
Amortized cos
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ - $ 2890 $ 59,92 % - $ 88,82
Senior intere-only 1,015 131,15¢ 117,00¢ 34,08: 283,27
Subordinater 2,871 50,48 243,35l 43,52: 340,23.
Subordinated intere-only - - 13,34« 1,322 14,66¢
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI 4,744 211,92! 1,356,98 501,97¢ 2,075,62
Agency RMBS 122 19,43! 1,880,43 127,75. 2,027,73i
Total amortized cos $ 8,76( $ 441,90 $3,671,03 $ 708,66( $4,830,35

December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Weighted Average Lifi

Greater tha
Greater tha five

one years and
Less thar year and les less Greater tha
one than than ten ten
year five years years years Total
Fair value
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ -3 - 3 88 % - $ 88
Senior intere-only 35¢ 47,20¢ 66,92° 8,37¢ 122,86
Subordinatet 4,09: 23,94¢ 359,31( 160,44. 547,79:
Subordinated intere-only - - 9,65¢ 6,59 16,25
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI 12,11¢ 312,69(  2,055,56! 893,82{  3,274,20
Agency RMBS 14€  1,802,72 3,831 - 1,806,69
Total fair value $ 16,71¢ $2,186,56. $2,495,38 $1,069,241 $5,767,90!
Amortized cos
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ - $ - $ 72 $ - $ 72
Senior intere-only 657 58,03’ 70,04« 7,13( 135,86t
Subordinatet 2,64¢ 20,59: 318,42. 131,38! 473,04¢
Subordinated intere-only - 11,05: 5,12¢ 16,18(

RMBS transferred to consolidated VI 11,18¢ 248,69¢ 1,493,64 683,51t 2,437,04



Agency RMBS 157 1,716,96 3,474 - 1,720,59
Total amortized cos $ 14,64° $2,044,29° $1,896,71 $ 827,16 $4,782,81

The Non-Agency RMBS portfolio is subject to cretik. The Company seeks to mitigate credit rishulgh its asset selection process. The
Non-Agency RMBS portfolio is primarily collateralizdsy what the Company classifies as Alt-A first limortgages. The Company categorizes
collateral as Alt-A regardless of whether the loaese originally described as “prime” if the bel@mvof the collateral when the Company
purchased the security more typically resemblespAlThe Company defines Alt-A collateral charaidies to be evidenced by the 60+ day
delinquency bucket of the pool being greater thanahd the weighted average FICO scores at thedfroggination as greater than 650. At

December 31, 2013, 97.1% of the Non-Agency RMB&tmial was Alt-A. At December 31, 2012, 99.5%haf Non-Agency RMBS collateral
was Alt-A.

The Non-Agency RMBS in the Portfolio have the fallog collateral characteristics at December 31,328dd 2012.
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December 31 December 31

2013 2012
Weighted average maturity (yea 24.1 24.¢
Weighted average amortized loan to value 69.4% 71.%
Weighted average FICO ( 71C 717
Weighted average loan balance (in thousa $ 385.( $ 453.]
Weighted average percentage owner occu 84.(% 85.1%
Weighted average percentage single fai
residence 65.4% 65.5%
Weighted average current credit enhancer 1.6% 3.1%
Weighted average geographic concentratic
top five state: CA 33.4% CA 36.71%
FL 9.1% FL 8.7%
NY 7.1% NY 6.4%
NJ 3.C% VA 2.4%
MD 2.7% NJ 2.8%

(1) Value represents appraised value of the co#lbs the time of loan originatio
(2) FICO as determined at the time of loan origorat

The table below presents the origination year efuthderlying loans related to the Company’s pddfof Non-Agency RMBS at December 31,
2013 and 2012.

December 3. December 3:

Origination Yeal 2013 2012
2000 0.6% 0.2%
2001 1.2% 0.2%
2002 1.C% 0.C%
2003 1.4% 0.4%
2004 3.6% 0.6%
2005 17.€% 14.2%
2006 32.2% 34.6%
2007 40.1% 46.7%
2008 2.1% 3.C%

Total 100.(% 100.(%

Gross realized gains and losses are recorded inrtidézed gains (losses) on sales of investmerighe Companyg Consolidated Statements
Operations and Comprehensive Income. The proceatigross realized gains and gross realized Iéssassales of investments for the years
ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 are awollo

For the Year Ende
Decembe Decembe Decembe
31, 20173 31, 2012 31, 2011

(dollars in thousand:

Proceeds from salt $ 1,079,64' $ 943,35( $ 2,628,99.
Gross realized gair 72,94¢ 85,16¢ 54,35
Gross realized loss: (4,839 - -
Net realized gail $ 68,107 $ 8516t $ 54,35

During the year ended December 31, 2013, we rebéidess due to a full principal paydown of a NogeAcy RMBS for which we owned the
IO strip. This resulted in a realized loss of $1®i8ion and is reflected as a realized loss irpasate line item in the statement of operatiok

comprehensive income.
4. Securitized Loans Held for Investment

The Company is considered to be the primary beaefiof VIEs formed for the purpose of securitizimbole mortgage loans. Refer to Note 8
for additional details regarding the Company’s imement with VIESs.

The securitized loans held for investment are edrait their principal balance outstanding, plusuordized premiums, less unaccreted discounts
and an allowance for loan losses. There were noseewritizations during the year ended Decembe2@13. During the year ended December
31, 2012, the Company consolidated the CSMC 20M1CCSMC 2012-CIM2, and CSMC 2012-CIM3 Trusts (tB&MC Trusts”). The

CSMC Trusts are securitizations collateralized igy lguality, jumbo, prime, residential mortgagerlsaThe Company transferred $1.5 billior
principal value to the CSMC Trusts that was recdrale a secured borrowing pursuant to ASC 860.dseltransactions, the Company financed
$1.4 Billion of AAA-rated, AA-rated, and A-ratedkéd rate bonds by selling the bonds to third pangstors for net proceeds of $1.4 billion.



The following table provides a summary of the chenigp the carrying value of securitized loans letdnvestment at December 31, 2013 :
2012:
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For the Year Ende
Decembe Decembe
31,201 31, 2012
(dollars in thousand:

Balance, beginning of peric $1,300,13. $ 256,63.
Purchase - 1,531,01.
Principal paydown (507,68) (477,55
Net periodic amortization (accretio (10,769 (9,599
Change to loan loss provisit 1,79¢ (368)
Balance, end of peric $ 783,48: $1,300,13

The following table represents the Company’s séized residential mortgage loans classified as fa@lthvestment at December 31, 2013 and
2012:

Decembe Decembe
31, 201: 31, 201.
(dollars in thousand:

Securitized loans, at amortized ¢ $ 792,54 $1,311,75!
Less: allowance for loan loss 9,06: 11,62«
Securitized loans held for investm $ 783,48: $1,300,13

The securitized loan portfolio is collateralizedgnyme, jumbo, first lien residential mortgagesndfich 39.5% were originated during 2012,
37.8% were originated during 2011, 6.9% during 2@l the remaining 15.8% of the loans were origith@rior to 2010. A summary of key
characteristics of these loans follows.

December 31 December 31

2013 2012
Number of loan: 1,05: 1,61¢
Weighted average maturity (yea 27.5 28.%
Weighted average loan to value 71.1% 71.2%
Weighted average FICO ( 76€ 76€
Weighted average loan balance (in thousa $ 737.( $ 794.1
Weighted average percentage owner occu 94. 1% 94.%
Weighted average percentage single fai
residence 70.(% 70.6%
Weighted average geographic concentratic
top five state: CA 34.1% CA 38.1%
VA 5.6% VA 6.2%
NY 5.5% NY 6.2%
NJ 5.1% WA 5.2%
TX 4.9% NJ 4.€%

(1) Value represents appraised value of the co#las the time of loan originatio
(2) FICO as determined at the time of loan origorat

The following table summarizes the changes in lievance for loan losses for the securitized magéggkpan portfolio at December 31, 2013,
2012 and 2011:

For the Year Ende
Decembe Decembe Decembe
31, 20173 31,2012 31, 2011

(dollars in thousand:

Balance, beginning of peric $ 1162« $ 1393t $ 11,00¢
Provision for loan losse (1,799 36¢ 5,291
Chargtw-offs (762) (2,682) (2,359
Balance, end of peric $ 9,06:$ 1162 $  13,93¢

The Company has established an allowance for lsseb related to securitized loans that is compafsadjeneral and specific reserve. The
balance in the allowance for loan losses relatéde@eneral reserve at December 31, 2013, 2012@ttwas $3.7 million, $5.0 million, and
$6.3 million, respectively. The balance in theathnce for loan losses related to the specifiovesat December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 was
$5.4 million, $6.6 million and $7.6 million, resgaely.

The total unpaid principal balance of impaired Bér which the Company established a specificrueseas $25.7 million, $29.1 million and
$32.9 at December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, regpbctiThe Company’s recorded investment in immhloans for which there is a related
allowance for credit losses at December 31, 20082 2nd 2011 was $18.7 million, $21.8 million arid $ million, respectively. The tot



unpaid principal balance of n-impaired loans for which the Company establishgdreeral reserve was $750.4 million, $1.3 billiod $235.2
million at December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respdg. The Company’s recorded investment in lodna are not impaired for which there is
a related general reserve for credit losses atibeee31, 2103, 2012 and 2011 was $764.8 millior3 $illion and $228.9 million,

respectively. Interest income on impaired loan®issignificant.
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The following table summarizes the outstandinggipial balance of loans 30 days delinquent and grest reported by the servicer at December
31, 2013 and 2012.

30 Days 60 Days 90+ Days
Delinquent Delinquent Delinquent Bankruptcy Foreclosure REO Total
(dollars in thousand:

December 31

2013 $ 99¢ % 57C $ 2,087 $ 47 $ 7530 $ 1,17¢ $ 12,83¢
December 31
2012 $ 3,11C $ 1,18¢ $ 4,045 $ 0 % 4247 $ 1,39C $ 13,97¢

With the exception of its ability to approve centédan modifications, the Company is not involveithwhe servicing or modification of loans
held for investment. The trustee and servicehefrespective securitization are responsible fofigag and modifying these loans. The
Company is required to make certain assumptioas@ounting for loans held for investment due tolitihé@ation of information available to the
Company. The following table presents the loaas were modified by the servicer during the yeauwdeel December 31, 2013 and 2012.

Amortized Amortized

Cost of Cost of
Unpaid Unpaid Modified Modified
Principal Principal Loans For Loans For
Number of Balance of Balance of = Amortized Which There Which There
Loans Modified Modified Cost of is an is No
Modified Loans (Pre- Loans (Post- Modified  Allowance foi Allowance fo
During Perioc modification) modification) Loans Loan Losse: Loan Losse!
(dollars in thousand:
Year Endec
December 31, 201 3 % 2,34¢ $ 2,35¢ $ 2,248 $ 2,24¢  $ 0
December 31, 201 9 3 516: $ 531 $ 5,25¢ $ 5,25¢ $ 0

Loans are modified by the servicer as a methodss iitigation. Based on the information availatleing the year ended December 31, 2013,
the Company determined that all loans modifiedHgydervicer were considered TDRs, as defined uBd&P. A TDR is generally any
modification of a loan to a borrower that is expading financial difficulties, where a lender agrée terms that are more favorable to the
borrower than are otherwise available in the cumesrket. All loan modifications during the yearsled December 31, 2013 and 2012 included
a reduction of the stated interest ratésans modified by the servicer have been indiviguatsessed for impairment and measurement of
impairment is based on the excess of the recordextiment in the loan over the present value oéXpected cash flows, post modification,
discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate@gption. In the absence of additional loan rficaliions by the servicer in future periods that
are considered to be TDRs, the $4.5 million specéserve related to TDRs as of December 31, 200Bewecognized in net income in future
periods by way of a decrease in the provisiondanllosses. If there are further modifications, réduction of the cashflow is reflected in the
provision for loan losses.

As of December 31, 2013, there were no loans teat wodified in the past twelve months and delingo@ scheduled payments.

5. Fair Value Measurements

The Company follows fair value guidance in accoogawith GAAP to account for its financial instrunte&rThe Company categorizes its
financial instruments, based on the priority of ithguts to the valuation technique, into a threeldair value hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy
gives the highest priority to quoted prices in\atinarkets for identical assets or liabilities (k%) and the lowest priority to unobservable
inputs (Level 3). If the inputs used to measurefitiencial instruments fall within different levedd the hierarchy, the categorization is based on
the lowest level input that is significant to tlarfvalue measurement of the instrument. Finamdakts and liabilities recorded at fair value on

the Consolidated Statements of Financial Conditiodisclosed in the related notes are categoriasddon the inputs to the valuation
techniques as follows:

Level 1 — inputs to the valuation methodology awetgd prices (unadjusted) for identical assetsliabdities in active markets.

Level 2 — inputs to the valuation methodology inEwguoted prices for similar assets and liabilitieactive markets, and inputs that are
observable for the asset or liability, either dikeor indirectly, for substantially the full terof the financial instrument.

Level 3 — inputs to the valuation methodology amehservable and significant to fair value.
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Fair value measurements categorized within Le\ak3sensitive to changes in the assumptions oradelbgy used to determine fair value and
such changes could result in a significant increaiskecrease in the fair value. For the Compamysstments in Non-Agency RMBS
categorized within Level 3 of the fair value hietay, the significant unobservable inputs includediscount rates, assumptions relating to
prepayments, default rates and loss severitiegiffsignt increases (decreases) in any of the distio@ies, default rates or loss severities in
isolation would result in a significantly lower ¢er) fair value measurement. The impact of chaimgpeepayment speeds would have differing
impacts on fair value, depending on the senioiithe investment. Generally, a change in the detsdumption is accompanied by direction
similar changes in the assumptions used for treedeserity and the prepayment speed.

Any changes to the valuation methodology are regtblby management to ensure the changes are appeops markets and products evolve
and the pricing for certain products becomes mmamesparent, the Company will continue to refinesétkiation methodologies. The methodol
utilized by the Company for the periods presensaghichanged. The methods used to produce a fai galculation may not be indicative of
net realizable value or reflective of future fa@lwes. Furthermore, while the Company believegatgation methods are appropriate and
consistent with other market participants, theafsdifferent methodologies, or assumptions, to heiiee the fair value of certain financial
instruments could result in a different estimatéaafvalue at the reporting date. The Companys liigguts that are current as of the measure
date, which may include periods of market dislamatduring which price transparency may be reduced.

During times of market dislocation, as has beereggpced for some time and continues to existpservability of prices and inputs can be
difficult for certain Non-Agency RMBS. |If third py pricing services are unable to provide a pfigean asset, or if the price provided by them
is deemed unreliable by the Company, then the ashdte valued at its fair value as determinediyy Company without validation to third-
party pricing. In addition, validating third panyicing for the Company’s investments may be nsuigiective as fewer participants may be
willing to provide this service to the Companyligilid investments typically experience greatecenolatility as an active market does not
exist. Observability of prices and inputs can wsignificantly from period to period and may cairsg#gruments to change classifications within
the three level hierarchy.

A description of the methodologies utilized by ®empany to estimate the fair value of its finanaiatruments by instrument class follows:
Short-term Instruments

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalentsuad interest receivable, dividends payable, acduad interest payable are considered to be
a reasonable estimate of fair value due to thet $&ion nature of these financial instruments.

Agency and Nc-Agency RMBS

Generally, the Company determines the fair valuigsahvestment securities utilizing an internatprg model that incorporates such factors as
coupon, prepayment speeds, weighted average dilajeral composition, borrower characteristiceoted interest rates, life caps, periodic
caps, reset dates, collateral seasoning, expexdsdd, expected default severity, credit enhandg et other pertinent factors. Management
reviews the fair values generated by the modeéterchine whether prices are reflective of the aurnearket. Management indirectly
corroborates its estimates of the fair value uginging models by comparing its results to indepsmdgrices provided by dealers in the secul
and/or third party pricing services. Certain viguid asset classes, such as Agency fixed-rate-tresughs may be priced using independent
sources such as quoted prices for To-Be-Annour@&®¥(") securities.

The Agency RMBS market is considered to be an ectiarket such that participants transact with cieffit frequency and volume to provide
transparent pricing information on an ongoing haki liquidity of the Agency RMBS market and tlmitarity of the Company’s securities to
those actively traded enable the Company to obsproted prices in the market and utilize thosegsrigs a basis for formulating fair value
measurements. Consequently, the Company hasfiddssgency RMBS as having Level 2 inputs in thie $@&lue hierarchy.
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The Company'’s fair value estimation process for Mgency RMBS utilizes inputs other than quoted witteat are observed in the market.
Company'’s estimate of prepayment, default and gg\arrves all involve Management judgment and agstions that are deemed to be
significant to the fair value measurement procetdch renders the resulting Non-Agency RMBS failuesestimates Level 3 inputs in the fair
value hierarchy.

Derivatives
Interest Rate Swaps

The Company utilizes dealer quotes to determindainealues of its interest rate swaps. The Campgaompares the dealer quotations received
to its own estimate of fair value to evaluate fesgonableness. The dealer quotes incorporate commadket pricing methods, including a
spread measurement to the Treasury yield curveteraist rate swap curve as well as underlying chexiatics of the particular contract. Interest
rate swaps are modeled by the Company by incoiipgratich factors as the term to maturity, Treasurye, overnight index swap rates, and
payment rates on the fixed portion of the interatt swaps. The Company has classified the chaistitte used to determine the fair value of
interest rate swaps as Level 2 inputs in the falue hierarchy.

Treasury Futures

The fair value of Treasury futures is determinedjbgted market prices for similar financial instemts in an active market. The Company has
classified the characteristics used to determiada value of Treasury futures as Level 2 inpatthe fair value hierarchy.

The Companys financial assets and liabilities carried at Y@ilue on a recurring basis, including the levehia fair value hierarchy, at Decem
31, 2013 and 2012 is presented below.

December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(dollars in thousand:

Assets:
Nor-Agency RMBS
Senior $ - $ - $ 89,68
Senior intere=-only - - 229,06!
Subordinatet - - 457,56
Subordinated intere-only - - 16,57
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI - - 2,981,57.
Agency RMBS - 1,997,557 -
Derivatives - 8,09t -
Liabilities:
Derivatives - (30,199 -
Total $ - $1,975,47. $3,774,46
December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Levell Level2 Level 3
Assets:
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ - $ -$ 88
Senior intere=-only - - 122,86
Subordinater - - 547,79:
Subordinated intere-only - - 16,25
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI - - 3,274,20
Agency RMBS - 1,806,69 -
Liabilities:
Derivatives - (53,939 -
Total $ - $1,752,75: $3,961,20i

The table below provides a summary of the chang#sei fair value of securities classified as Le8/ak December 31, 2013 and 2012.
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Fair Value Reconciliation,

Level

For the Year Ende

Decembe
31, 2013

Decembe
31, 2012

(dollars in thousand:

Nor-Agency RMBS

Beginning balance Level 3 ass
Transfers in to Level 3 asse¢
Transfers out of Level 3 ass:

$ 3,961,200 $ 4,088,94!

317,29¢

122,50¢

Purchase

Principal payment (475,09) (516,371

Sales (191,431 (328,26))

Accretion of purchase discour 106,29( 98,80«
Gains (losses) included in net inco

Other than temporary credit impairment los (45,16 (132,25()

Realized gains (losses) on s& 46,86¢ 48,43"

Realized losses on principal w-downs of No-Agency RMBS (18,316 -

Net unrealized gains (losses) on inte-only RMBS (43,257) 804
Gains (losses) included in other comprehensivenira

Total unrealized gains (losses) for the pe 116,06. 578,59:

Ending balance Level 3 ass $ 3,774,46. $ 3,961,20

There were no transfers to or from Level 3 forybars ended December 31, 2013 and 2012.
Sensitivity of Significant Inputs

The significant unobservable inputs used in thevaiue measurement of the Company’s Non-Agency BMB: the weighted average discount
rates, constant prepayment speed (“CPR"), cumela@afault rate, and the loss severity.

Prepayment speeds, as reflected by the CPR, veoydigg to interest rates, the type of investmeoditions in financial markets, and other
factors, none of which can be predicted with anyaiety. In general, when interest rates risés felatively less attractive for borrowers to
refinance their mortgage loans, and as a res@payment speeds tend to decrease. When intetesfall, prepayment speeds tend to increase.
For RMBS investments purchased at a premium, ggmpneent speeds increase, the amount of incomedhgpény earns decreases as the
purchase premium on the bonds amortizes fasteragkpected. Conversely, decreases in prepaymeatispesult in increased income and can
extend the period over which the Company amortizepurchase premium. For RMBS investments pusthasa discount, as prepayment
speeds increase, the amount of income the Comanyg ecreases from the acceleration of the accrefi the discount into interest income.
Conversely, decreases in prepayment speeds nesldtieased income as the accretion of the purclssaunt into interest income occurs over
a longer period.

Cumulative default rates represent an annualizedofadefault on a group of mortgages. The constafault rate (‘CDR”) represents the
percentage of outstanding principal balances irptied that are in default, which typically equateshe home being past 60-day and 90-day
notices and in the foreclosure process. When tatites increase, expected cash flows on the tyidgrcollateral decreases. When default
rates decrease, expected cash flows on the umutgdgilateral increases.

Loss severity rates reflect the amount of loss etguefrom a foreclosure and liquidation of the uhdeg collateral in the mortgage loan

pool. When a mortgage loan is foreclosed the teobis sold and the resulting proceeds are usedttle the outstanding obligation. In many
circumstances, the proceeds from the sale do Hptré&pay the outstanding obligation. In theseesas loss is incurred by the lender. Loss
severity is used to predict how costly future Igsaee likely to be. An increase in loss sevegsuits in a decrease in expected future
cashflows. A decrease in loss severity resulemiicrease in expected future cashflows.

The discount rate refers to the interest rate usdascounted cash flow analysis to determine tiesgnt value of future cash flows. The discount
rate takes into account not just the time valumofiey, but also the risk or uncertainty of futuastcflows. An increased uncertainty of future
cash flows results in a higher discount rate. diseount rate used to calculate the present vdltleeexpected future cash flows is based on the
discount rate implicit in the security as of thetlmeasurement date. As discount rates move egligbounted cash flows are reduced.

A summary of the significant inputs used to esterthe fair value of Non-Agency RMBS as of DecenBier2013 and 2012 follows:
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December 31, 201 December 31, 201

Significant Inputs Significant Inputs
Weighted Weighted
Average Loss Average Loss
Discount Discount
Rate CPR CDR Severity Rate CPR CDR Severity
Range Range
Non-Agency RMBS
50%- 11%- 50%-
Senior 6.4% 1%-6% 0%- 3% 85% 7.5% 11% 0%- 3% 58%
50%- 50%-
Senior intere-only 14.% 1%-28% 0%- 3% 85% 13.% 1%-25% 0%- 25% 85%
50%- 50%-
Subordinater 26.8% 1%-22% 0%- 3&% 85% 25.%% 1%-1&% 0%-21% 85%
Subordinated intere- 50%- 50%-
only 12.% 2%-13% 0%- 1&% 73% 13.% 4%-11% 0%- 21% 68%
RMBS transferred t 50%- 50%-
consolidated VIE: 5.2% 1%-2(% 0%- 3% 85% 5.8% 1%-15% 0%- 36% 85%

All of the significant inputs listed have some dagpf market observability, based on the Compakiytsvledge of the market, information
available to market participants, and use of commarket data sources. Collateral default and legsrity projections are in the form of
“curves” that are updated quarterly to reflect@wmpany’s collateral cash flow projections. Methoded to develop these projections conform
to industry conventions. The Company uses assungii@onsiders its best estimate of future cashdlfor each respective security.

The discount rates applied to the expected casltsfto determine fair value are derived from a ramfgebservable prices on securities backe
similar collateral. As the market becomes morkess liquid, the availability of these observallpuits will change.

The prepayment speed specifies the percentage cbtlateral balance that is expected to prepaaeth point in the future. The prepayment
speed is based on factors such as collateral Fé6@ sloan-to-value ratio, debt-tecome ratio, and vintage on a loan level basisistsdaled u
or down to reflect recent collateral-specific prapant experience as obtained from remittance reord market data services.

Default vectors are determined from the currerpépne” of loans that are more than 30 days dekmgiuin foreclosure, bankruptcy, or are real
estate owned (“REQ”). These delinquent loans deterie first 30 months of the default curve. Beyamonth 30, the default curve transitions
to a value that is reflective of a portion of therent delinquency pipeline.

The curve generated to reflect the Company’s exgdoiss severity is based on collateral-speciffzeence with consideration given to other
mitigating collateral characteristics. Charactésssuch as seasoning are taken into consideda¢icause severities tend to initially increase on
newly originated securities, before beginning tolide as the collateral ages and eventually stagsli Collateral characteristics such as loan
loan-to-value, and geographic location of colldtafso effect loss severity.

Securitized Loans Held for Investment

The Company carries securitized loans held forstent at principal value, plus unamortized prensiuless unaccreted discounts and an
allowance for loan losses. The Company estimategir value of its securitized loans held foraatment by considering the loan
characteristics, including the credit charactersstf the borrower, purpose of the loan, use ottikateral securing the loan, and management’s
expectations of general economic conditions inseor and greater economy.

Repurchase Agreemet

Repurchase agreements are collateralized finamicngactions utilized by the Company to acquirestment securities. Due to the short term
nature of these financial instruments, the Compstiynates the fair value of these repurchase agmtsmsing the contractual obligation plus
accrued interest payable at maturity.

Securitized Debt, Non-Agency RMBS Transferred ttsGlaated VIEs and Securitized Debt, Loans Heldrfeestment

The Company records securitized debt for certifisair notes financed without recourse to the Compasgecuritization or re-securitization
transactions treated as secured borrowings. Thep@oy carries securitized debt at the principadmed outstanding plus unamortized
premiums, less unaccreted discounts recorded inexdion with the financing of the loans or RMBSHwihird parties. The premiums or
discounts associated with the financing of the siotecertificates are amortized over the contrddifieeof the instrument using the interest
method. The Company estimates the fair value airitized debt by estimating the future cash fl@gsociated with the underlying assets
collateralizing the secured debt outstanding. Thmpany models the fair value of each underlyirgety considering, among other items, the
structure of the underlying security, coupon, sswiactual and expected defaults, actual and eeghelefault severities, reset indices, and
prepayment speeds in conjunction with market rebefar similar collateral performance and managem@xpectations of general economic
conditions in the sector and other economic factors
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The following table presents the carrying value faidvalue, as described above, of the Compafigancial instruments not carried at fair ve
on a recurring basis at December 31, 2013 and 2012.

December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Level in
Fair Value Carrying
Hierarchy Amount Fair Value
Securitized loans held for investm 3 783,48 762,55(
Repurchase agreemel 2 (1,658,56) (1,660,94)
Securitized debt, collateralized by M-Agency RMBS 3 (933,73)  (940,71)
Securitized debt, collateralized by loans heldifigestmen 3 (669,98) (647,620

December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Level in
Fair Value Carrying
Hierarchy Amount Fair Value

Securitized loans held for investm:e 3 1,300,213  1,320,69
Repurchase agreemel 2 (1,528,02) (1,531,51)
Securitized debt, collateralized by MAgency RMBS 3 (1,336,26) (1,334,55)
Securitized debt, collateralized by loans heldfigestmen 3 (1,169,71) (1,194,74)

6. Repurchase Agreements

The Company had outstanding $1.7 billion and $illloi of repurchase agreements with weighted ayefaorrowing rates of 0.44% and 0.52%
and weighted average remaining maturities of 5& day 56 days as of December 31, 2013 and 2012atéely. At December 31, 2013 and
2012, Agency RMBS pledged as collateral under thegarchase agreements had an estimated fair gbfgfe 7 billion and $1.6 billion,
respectively. The average daily balances of tha@amy’s repurchase agreements for the years eneeehiiber 31, 2013 and 2012 were $1.5
billion and $2.1 billion, respectively. The interestes of these repurchase agreements are ggriatdked to the one-month or the three-month
LIBOR rate and re-price accordingly.

At December 31, 2013 and 2012, the repurchase magrés collateralized by Agency RMBS had the follogviemaining maturities.

December 3. December 3:

2013 2012

(dollars in thousand:
Overnight $ -$ =
1-29 days 644,33. 732,80!
30 to 59 day: 606,94! 325,91!
60 to 89 day: - -
90 to 119 day 129,04¢ 211,13
Greater than or equal to 120 d: 278,23! 258,16
Total $ 1,658,556 $ 1,528,02!

At December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company dichae¢ an amount at risk under its repurchase agresrgeeater than 10% of its equity with
any counterparty.

7. Securitized Debt
All of the Company'’s securitized debt is collatezedl by residential mortgage loans or Negency RMBS. For financial reporting purposes,
Companys securitized debt is accounted for as securedWworgs. Thus, the residential mortgage loans oBSNeld as collateral are recorc

in the assets of the Company as securitized loaldsfor investment or Non-Agency RMBS transferre¢dnsolidated VIEs and the securitized
debt is recorded as a non-recourse liability ingbeompanying Consolidated Statements of Fina@@abition.
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At December 31, 2013 the Compasigecuritized debt collateralized by residentiaitgege loans had a principal balance of $670.4anill The
debt matures between the years 2023 and 2042 .eégrber 31, 2013 the debt carried a weighted agexast of financing equal to 3.31%. At
December 31, 2012 the Company’s securitized ddlateralized by residential mortgage loans hadircjpal balance of $1.2 billion. The debt
matures between the years 2023 and 2042. At Dezredih 2012 the debt carried a weighted averageotdimancing equal to 3.37%.

At December 31, 2013 the Company’s securitized delteralized by Non-Agency RMBS had a principalance of $966.4 million. The debt
matures between the years 2035 and 2047. At Dezre®ih 2013 the debt carried a weighted averageotdimancing equal to 4.26%. At
December 31, 2012 the Company’s securitized ddlatteralized by Non-Agency RMBS had a principalavale of $1.4 billion. The debt
matures between the years 2035 and 2047. At Dezredih 2012 the debt carried a weighted averageotdimancing equal to 4.41%.

The carrying value of securitized debt is basedsamortized cost, net of premiums or discounttee to sales of senior certificates to third
parties. The following table presents the estichaténcipal repayment schedule of the securitizelot @t December 31, 2013 and 2012, base
expected cash flows of the residential mortgagedaa RMBS, as adjusted for projected losses ontherlying collateral of the debt. All of
the securitized debt recorded in the Company’s Glateted Statements of Financial Condition is neceurse to the Company.

Decembe Decembe
31, 201 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Within One Yeal $ 370,25( $ 658,42
One to Three Yeal 497,94: 793,15(
Three to Five Year 264,45¢ 430,99
Greater Than or Equal to Five Yei 396,91t 555,71
Total $ 1,529,56! $ 2,438,28:

Maturities of the Company’s securitized debt angestelent upon cash flows received from the undeaglioans. The estimate of their repayment
is based on scheduled principal payments on therlymdg loans. This estimate will differ from act@mnounts to the extent prepayments and/or
loan losses are experienced. See Notes 3 andednfiore detailed discussion of the securities aadd collateralizing the securitized debt.

8. Consolidated Securitization Vehicles and Othevariable Interest Entities

Since its inception, the Company has created VOEthe purpose of securitizing whole mortgage laamn®-securitizing RMBS and obtaining
permanent, non-recourse term financing. The Compaajuated its interest in each VIE to determirieiff the primary beneficiary.

As of December 31, 2013, the Company’s Consolidatatements of Financial Condition includes tensctidated VIEs with $3.8 billion of
assets and $1.6 billion of liabilities. As of Deadmer 31, 2012, the Company’s Consolidated Statesvadritinancial Condition includes ten
consolidated VIEs with $4.6 billion of assets a@dbbillion of liabilities.

VIEs for Which the Company is the Primary Benefficia

The retained beneficial interests in VIEs for whibh Company is the primary beneficiary are typyctide subordinated tranches of these re-
securitizations and in some cases the Company widyiriterests in additional tranches. The resittomsolidation at December 31, 2013 is the
inclusion of $3.0 billion of Non-Agency RMBS at faialue representing the underlying securitiesefttusts, the inclusion of $783.5 million of
securitized loans held for investment, the recagmiof $933.7 million of securitized debt assoaditdth Non-Agency RMBS transferred to
consolidated VIEs and $670.0 million of securitizigbt associated with loans held for investmenaddition, at December 31, 2013 the
Company recognized $17.2 million and $5.3 millidraocrued interest receivable and accrued int@asible, respectively, of the
securitizations.
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The table below reflects the assets and liabilige®rded in the Consolidated Statements of Fieh@mndition related to the consolidated VIEs
as of December 31, 2013 and 2012.

Decembe Decembe
31, 2013 31, 2012
(dollars in thousand:

Assets
Non-Agency RMBS transferred to consolidated V. $ 2,981,57. $ 3,274,20.
Securitized loans held for investme 783,48: 1,300,13
Accrued interest receivab 17,17: 24,08:
Liabilities

Securitized debt, collateralized by M-Agency RMBS $ 933,73. $ 1,336,26.
Securitized debt, collateralized by loans helc

investmen 669,98. 1,169,71
Accrued interest payab 5,27¢ 8,35¢

Income and expense and OTTI amounts related taotidated VIEs recorded in the Consolidated StatemehOperations and Comprehensive
Income (Loss) is presented in the table below.

For the Year Ende
Decembe Decembe
31, 2012 December 31, 201 31, 2011
(dollars in thousand:

Interest income, Assets of consolidated V $371,55¢ $ 417,35 $ 450,99¢
Interest expense, N-recourse liabilities of VIE (95,229 (115,88() (122,91)
Net interest incom $276,33( $ 301,47: $ 328,07!
Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss 4,170 $ (7,61¢) $(113,04)
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehen

income (loss (33,749 (76,69 (145,51)
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss $ (37,919 % (84,31¢) $(258,559)

The amounts recorded on the Consolidated StateroB@ash Flows related to consolidated VIEs is gmésd in the table below for the periods
presented.

For the Year Ende
December 31 December 3. December 31

2013 2012 2011
(dollars in thousand:

Amortization of deferred financing cos 5,691 8,54¢ $ 1,73¢
Accretion (amortization) of securitized debt disetspremiums, ne 11,98 6,98¢ 12,55
Payment of deferred financing co - (9,489 -
Proceeds from securitized debt borrowings, coldditezd by loans held fc

investmen - 1,426,98: -
Principal payments, N-Agency RMBS transferred to consolidated VI 466,52. 505,77¢ 668,92:
Principal payments, Securitized loans held for streent 507,68: 477,55 85,52¢
Payments on securitized debt borrowings, collatezdlby loans held fc

investmen (499,549 (470,789 (80,187
Proceeds from securitized debt borrowings, coldditezd by No-Agency RMBS - 181,20: 310,97:
Payments on securitized debt borrowings, collaizzdlby Nol-Agency RMBS (414,69 (481,46, (645,60:)
Decrease (increase) in accrued interest recei 6,90¢ 2,53¢ (4,837)
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest pa (3,080 22¢ (1,836)
Net cash provided by/(used in) consolidated \ $ 81,467 $ 1,648,07 $ 347,25

VIEs for Which the Company is Not the Primary Bieragly
The Company has interests in the following VIEgaddlition to the RMBS described in Note 3.

The Company’s involvement with VIEs for which itrist considered the primary beneficiary generallinithe form of owning securities issued
by the trusts, similar to its investments in otR&BS that do not provide the Company with a coffitiglfinancial interest. The Company’s

maximum exposure to loss does not include other-temporary impairments or other write-downs that Company previously recognized
through earnings.

The table below represents the carrying amountskasgification of assets recorded on the Compasgrsolidated financial statements related
to its variable interests in n-consolidated VIEs, as well as its maximum exposuitess as a result of its involvement with the$Es/ which is



represented by the fair value of the Comy s investments in the trus
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December 31, 201 December 31, 201
Amortized Amortized
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
(dollars in thousand:

Assets
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 5¢ $ 68 $ 72 % 85
Senior intere-only - 75 - 12¢
Subordinate - 1,731 581 2,26¢
Agency RMBS 66€ 437 1,19¢ 1,001
Total $ 728 $ 2311 $ 1,851 § 3,48(

9. Derivative Instruments

In connection with the Company'’s interest rate risknagement strategy, the Company economicallydsealgportion of its interest rate risk by
entering into derivative financial instrument caatis in the form of interest rate swaps. The Camsaswaps are used to lock in a fixed rate
related to a portion of its current and anticipgiegiments on its repurchase agreements. The Contygeinglly agrees to pay a fixed rate of
interest (“pay rate”) in exchange for the rightéoeive a floating rate of interest (“receive ra@Ver a specified period of time. In addition to
interest rate swaps, the Company has purchasedagerbptions and Treasury futures. Mortgage optifive the Company the right, but not
obligation, to buy or sell mortgage backed seasitt a future date for a fixed price. Treasutyrs are derivatives which track the prices of
specific Treasury securities and are traded orctiveaexchange. It is generally the Compargolicy to close out any Treasury futures posg
prior to taking delivery of the underlying securityhe Company has invested in mortgage optionsTamalsury futures to lock in prices on the
purchase or sale of Agency RMBS, to hedge chamgiegdrest rates on its existing portfolio, or tthance investment returns.

The use of derivatives creates exposure to crisflirelating to potential losses that could be gaized if the counterparties to these instruments
fail to perform their obligations under the contgacln the event of a default by the counterpahtg,Company could have difficulty obtaining its
RMBS or cash pledged as collateral for these diévevinstruments. The Company periodically morsttre credit of its counterparties to
determine if it is exposed to counterparty creidik.r See Note 14 for further discussion of coypaety credit risk.

The table below summarizes the location and fdirevaf the derivatives reported in the Consolid&@ttements of Financial Condition after
counterparty netting and posting of cash collatasabf December 31, 2013 and 2012.

December 31, 201

Derivative Asset: Derivative Liabilities
Location on Location on
Consolidated  Net Estimatec Consolidated  Net Estimatec
Notional Statements of Fair Statements Fair
Amount Financial Value/Carryin of Financial ~ Value/Carryin
Derivative Instrument Outstandinc Condition Value Condition Value
(dollars in thousand:
Derivatives, at fai Derivatives, at fai
Interest Rate Sway $ 1,355,000 value, ne $ - value $ (30,199
Derivatives, at fai Derivatives, at fai
Mortgage Option: - value, ne - value -
Derivatives, at fai Derivatives, at fai
Treasury Future 550,00( value, ne 8,09t value -
Total $ 1,905,00i $ 8,09¢ $ (30,199

December 31, 201

Derivative Asset: Derivative Liabilities
Location on

Location on Net Estimatec Consolidated  Net Estimatec

Notional Consolidated Fair Statements Fair
Amount Statements of Value/Carryiny of Financial ~ Value/Carryin

Derivative Instrument Outstandinc Financial Conditior Value Condition Value

(dollars in thousand:
Derivatives, at fai Derivatives, at fai

Interest Rate Swaj $ 1,355,000 value, ne $ - value $ (53,939
Total $ 1,355,00 $ - $ (53,939

The effect of the Company'’s derivatives on the @ddated Statements of Operations and Comprehehsizene (Loss) is presented below.

F-33






For the Year Ende
Location on Consolidate
Statements of
Derivative Operations and Comprehensive December 3. December 3. December 3:
Instruments Income (Loss 2013 2012 2011
(dollars in thousand:

Net unrealized gains (losses)

Interest Rate Sway derivatives $ 23,74 $ (9,479 $ (34,479
Net realized gains (losses)
Interest Rate Sway derivatives (21,857 (20,227 (15,929

Net unrealized gains (losses)
Mortgage Option: derivatives - - -
Net realized gains (losses)

Mortgage Option: derivatives 12,11¢ - -
Net unrealized gains (losses)

Treasury Future  derivatives 10,62¢ - -
Net realized gains (losses)

Treasury Future  derivatives 2,02¢ - -

Total $ 26,65¢ $ (29,696 $ (50,407

The weighted average pay rate on the Company’sestteate swaps at December 31, 2013 was 1.81%hamegeighted average receive rate was
0.17%. The weighted average pay rate on the Coyfgpanterest rate swaps at December 31, 2012 v&i9d and the weighted average receive
rate was 0.21%. The weighted average pay ratheo@ompanys interest rate swaps at December 31, 2011 wa%2ad8 the weighted avera
receive rate was 0.29%.

Certain of the Company’s interest rate swap andgage option contracts are subject to Internati@wedps and Derivatives Association Master
Agreements (“ISDA”which contain provisions that grant counterpartiegain rights with respect to the applicable 1SO@on the occurrence

(i) negative performance that results in a dedlineet assets in excess of specified threshold®iarr amounts over set periods of time, (ii) the
Company'’s failure to maintain its REIT status,) (iie Company’s failure to comply with limits oretamount of leverage, and (iv) the
Company'’s stock being delisted from the New YorticBtExchange (NYSE). Upon the occurrence of itajsi(ough (iv), the counterparty to
the applicable ISDA has a right to terminate theASn accordance with its provisions.

Certain of the Company’s interest rate swaps anegaldy cleared through a registered commoditieshexge. Each of the Company’s ISDAs
and central clearing exchange agreements conteingsipns under which the Company is required tty feollateralize its obligations under the
interest rate swap agreements if at any pointdhesélue of the swap represents a liability gretitan the minimum transfer amount contained
within the agreements. The Company is also requogost initial collateral upon execution of edémtof its swap transactions. If the Company
breaches any of these provisions, it will be regplitio settle its obligations under the agreemédrttee@r termination values, which approximates
fair value. Centrally cleared swaps are fair valusing internal pricing models and compared toettehange market values. The aggregate fair
value of all derivative instruments with creditkigelated contingent features that are in a nétliig position at December 31, 2013 is
approximately $30.2 million including accrued imst, which represents the maximum amount the Coymwanld be required to pay upon
termination, which is fully collateralized.

10. Common Stock

On January 28, 2011 the Company entered into aityetjstribution agreement with FIDAC and UBS Seties LLC (“UBS”). Through this
agreement, the Company may sell through UBS, asilies agent, up to 125,000,000 shares of its constoek in ordinary brokers’ transactions
at market prices or other transactions as agreweeba the Company and UBS. The Company did nbasglshares of its common stock under
the equity distribution agreement during the yesmded December 31, 2013 and 2012.

On September 24, 2009, the Company implementedidddid Reinvestment and Share Purchase Plan (“DRSFRe DRSPP provides hold:
of record of its common stock an opportunity toomodtically reinvest all or a portion of their catibtributions received on common stock in
additional shares of the Company’s common stockedsas to make optional cash payments to purchlaaees of its common stock. Persons
who are not already stockholders may also purcties€ompany’s common stock under the plan throyggiowal cash payments. The DRSPP
is administered by the Administrator, Computershalhee DRSPP was suspended during the quarter éndexh 31, 2012 when the Company
was no longer current in its filings with the SEThere were no shares issued as a part of the DR®#) the year ended December 31, 2013
due to the suspension of the DRSPP. During thegrded December 31, 2012 the Company raised $iblisand by issuing 39,000 shares
through the DRSPP.

As a result of the Company’s delay in filing itsGEeports by the filing date required by the SE®I(iding the grace period permitted by Rule
12b-25 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1984maended), the Company will not be able to ishaees of common stock under the equity
distribution agreement or the DRSPP until filingghwhe SEC have been timely made for a full year.

During the year ended December 31, 2013 the Comgeciared dividends to common shareholders tot§l5%H.2 million, or $0.56 per
share. During the year ended December 31, 2012dhgpany declared dividends to common sharehotd&king $390.2 million, or $0.38 per
share. During the year ended December 31, 201Cdhgpany declared dividends to common sharehotd&king $523.5 million, or $0.51 per
share.
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Earnings per share for the years ended Decemb@033,and 2012, respectively, are computed aswsllo

For the Year Ende
December 31 December 31 December 31
2013 2012 2011
(dollars in thousand:

Numerator:
Net income $ 362,68t $ 327,76° $ 137,32¢
Effect of dilutive securities - -
Dilutive net income available to stockhold: $ 362,68t $ 327,76° $ 137,32!

Denominator

Weighted average basic sha 1,027,094,37 1,026,831,03 1,026,365,18
Effect of dilutive securitie 475,96: 668,22: 806,19(
Weighted average dilutive shai 1,027,570,34 1,027,499,25 1,027,171,38
Net income per average share attributab

common stockholders - Basic $ 0.3t $ 0.3z % 0.1:
Net income per average share attributab

common stockholders - Diluted $ 0.3t $ 0.32 $ 0.1:

11. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

The following table presents the changes in thepmmants of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Incdd@Cl”) for the year ended
December 31, 2013:

December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Unrealizec
gains
(losses) on
available-
for-sale Total

securities, Accumulatec
net OCI Balance
Balance as of December 31, 2( $ 989,93t $ 989,93t
OCI before reclassificatior 23,80° 23,807
Amounts reclassified from AOC (22,940 (22,940
Net current period OC 867 867
Balance as of December 31, 2( $ 990,80: $ 990,80

The following table presents the details of thdassifications from AOCI for the year ended Decengig 2013:

December 31
2013
(dollars in
thousands

Amounts
Reclassified
from Affected Line on the Consolidat
Accumulated Statements Of Operations And
Details about Accumulated OCI Compone OCI Comprehensive Income (Los
Unrealized gains and losses on avail-for-sale securitie

Net realized gains (losses) on s
$ 68,107 of investment:
Net othe-thar-temporary credi
(45,167 impairment losses

$ 22,94( Income (loss) before income ta
- Income taxe:
$ 22,94( Net of tax

12. Long Term Incentive Plan



The Company has adopted a long term stock inceplareto provide incentives to its independentaoes and employees of FIDAC and its
affiliates, to reward their efforts, to attractwaerd and retain personnel and other service prosjidad to align their interest with the common
share investors. The incentive plan authorize€thrapensation Committee of the board of directoigrant awards, including incentive stock
options, non-qualified stock options, restrictedrsis and other types of incentive awards. Theifipaward granted to an individual is based
upon, in part, the individual's position within FAT, the individual’s position within the Companystor her contribution to the Company’s
performance, as well as the recommendations of EIDAhe incentive plan authorizes the grantinggifams or other awards of 8.0% of the
outstanding shares of the Company’s common stock apceiling of 40,000,000 shares.
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On January 2, 2008, the Company granted restritterdk awards in the amount of 1,301,000 sharemflayees of FIDAC and its affiliates and
the Company’s independent directors. The awartisetindependent directors vested on the datesoit gnd the awards to FIDAC's employees
vest quarterly over a period of 10 years. As ofémber 31, 2013 there was $1.2 million of totalgongnized compensation costs related to
non-vested share-based compensation arrangemantedunder the long term incentive plan, basetthemclosing price of the shares at quarter
end. That cost is expected to be recognized operiad of 4 years. The total fair value of sharested, less those forfeited, during the years
ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 was $385ahd, $401 thousand and $443 thousand, respgctiesled on the closing price of the
stock on the vesting date. For the years endedrbleer 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, compensation expeasseiated with the amortization of the
fair value of the restricted stock was approxima$18 thousand, $449 thousand and $451 thousasykctively.

The Company’s independent directors receive a fd@lhr amount of the Company’s common stock innefor services provided to the
Company. Equity based awards granted to the imatkgue: directors vest during the year of servicer the years ended December 31, 2013,
2012 and 2011, the Company recognized $300 thou$8@0 thousand, and $270 thousand of stock basagensation to independent
directors, respectively.

The following table presents information with resip® the Company’s restricted stock awards duttiegyears ended December 31, 2013 and
2012:

For the Year Ende

December 31, 201 December 31, 201
Weighted Weighted
Average Average

Grant Grant
Number of Date Fair Number of Date Fair

Shares Value Shares Value
Unvested shares outstand- beginning of periol 586,00 17.7:2 758,40( 17.7:
Grantec 98,68t 3.04 111,52¢ 2.6¢
Vested (230,779 17.72 (264,23) 17.72
Forfeited (69,909 17.72 (19,696 17.72
Unvested shares outstand- end of perioc 384,00( 17.7:2 586,00( 17.7:

13. Income Taxes

For the year ended December 31, 2013, the Comparyjualified to be taxed as a REIT under Code &ex856 through 860. As a REIT, the
Company is not subject to federal income tax toetktent that it makes qualifying distributions akable income to its stockholders. To
maintain qualification as a REIT, the Company naistribute at least 90% of its annual REIT taxdb®me to its shareholders and meet ce
other requirements such as assets it may holdmadbmay generate and its shareholder compositiiois.generally the Company’s policy to
distribute to its shareholders all of the Compangssable income.

The state and local tax jurisdictions for which @@mpany is subject to tax-filing obligations renag the Company’s status as a REIT, and
therefore, the Company generally does not pay ilctax in such jurisdictions. The Company may, hewebe subject to certain minimum
state and local tax filing fees and its TRS is sabjo federal, state, and local taxes.

For the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 arid #&.Company recorded income tax expense of@&is#nd, $1 thousand, and $606
thousand, respectively.

In general, common stock cash dividends declaretidCompany will be considered ordinary incomsttkholders for income tax
purposes. From time to time, a portion of the Canys dividends may be characterized as capital gainstarn of capital. For the years en
December 31, 2013 and 2012, $0.08 and $0.12 ahdeene distributed in the form of dividends deckisecharacterized as a return of capital
for federal income tax purposes, respectively. tReryear ended December 31, 2011, all of the imcdistributed in the form of dividends
declared is characterized as ordinary income.

The Company’s effective tax rate differs from itsnhined federal, state and city corporate statusoryate primarily due to the deduction of
dividend distributions required to be paid unded€®&ection 857(a).

The Company’s 2013, 2012, 2011 and 2010 federtk sind local tax returns remain open for exandnati
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14. Credit Risk and Interest Rate Risk

The Companys primary components of market risk are credit aisll interest rate risk. The Company is subjetiterest rate risk in connecti
with its investments in Agency and Non-Agency RMB&idential mortgage loans, and borrowings uneleunchase agreements. When the
Company assumes interest rate risk, it attemptsnonize interest rate risk through asset selectiealging and matching the income earned on
mortgage assets with the cost of related liabdliti#he Company attempts to minimize credit rishdlgh due diligence and asset selection by
purchasing loans underwritten to agreed-upon spatins of selected originators. The Companydsiablished a whole loan target market
including prime borrowers with FICO scores gengrglieater than 650, Alt-A documentation, geograpliersification, owner-occupied
property, and moderate loan-to-value ratios. THasrs are considered to be important indicadbgedit risk.

By using derivative instruments and repurchaseesmeats, the Company is exposed to counterpartyjt cigdif counterparties to the contracts
do not perform as expected. If a counterparty tailgerform on a derivative hedging instrument,@leenpany’s counterparty credit risk is equal
to the amount reported as a derivative asset draigsce sheet to the extent that amount exceddsecal obtained from the counterparty or, if

in a net liability position, the extent to whichllederal posted exceeds the liability to the corpaety. The amounts reported as a derivative asse!
(liability) are derivative contracts in a gain/@gosition, and to the extent subject to masttingearrangements, net of derivatives in a loss/
(gain) position with the same counterparty andatethl received/(pledged). If the counterpartysftol perform on a repurchase agreement, the
Company is exposed to a loss to the extent thdathealue of collateral pledged exceeds the lighio the counterparty. The Company
attempts to minimize counterparty credit risk bylerating and monitoring the counterparty’s creeliecuting master netting arrangements and
obtaining collateral, and executing contracts agré@ments with multiple counterparties to redugmsure to a single counterparty, where
appropriate.

Our repurchase agreements and derivative transadi® governed by underlying agreements that geedar a right of setoff under master
netting arrangements, including in the event oadifor in the event of bankruptcy of either padyhe transactions. We present our assets and
liabilities subject to such arrangements on a aetshin our consolidated statements of financiatidon. The following table presents
information about our liabilities that are subjecsuch arrangements and can potentially be affseiur consolidated statements of financial
condition as of December 31, 2013 and 2012. Thagamy has no financial instruments subject to mastting arrangements, or similar
arrangements, in an asset position on a gross basis

December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Gross Amounts Not Offset with Financ
Assets (Liabilities) in the Consolidated
Statements of Financial Positi

Gross Amount: Net Amounts
Offset in the Offset in the
Consolidated Consolidated
Gross Amounts ¢ Statements Statements Cash Collaterz
Recognized Asse of Financial of Financial Financial (Received)
(Liabilities) Position Position Instruments Pledgec Net Amount
Repurchas
agreement $ (1,658,56) $ - $ (1,658,56) $ 1,737,38. $ - $ 78,82(
Interest Rate Swaj (30,199 - (30,199 39,47( - 9,271
Mortgage Option: - - - - - -
Treasury Future 10,62¢ (2,539 8,09t - - 8,09t
Total Liabilities $ (1,678,13) $ (2539 $ (1,680,66) $ 1,776,85 $ - 9 96,18¢
December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Gross Amounts Not Offset with Financ
Assets (Liabilities) in the Consolidated
Statements of Financial Positi
Gross Amount: Net Amounts
Offset in the Offset in the
Consolidated Consolidated
Gross Amounts ¢ Statements Statements Cash Collatere
Recognized Asse of Financial of Financial Financial (Received)
(Liabilities) Position Position Instruments Pledgec Net Amount
Repurchas
Agreement: $ (1,528,02) $ - 8 (1,528,02) $ 1,604,560 $ - 8 76,53¢
Interest Rate Sway (53,939 - (53,939 $ 60,38: - 6,44%

Total Liabilities $  (1,581,96) $ - $  (1581,96) $ 1,664,94. $ - 3 82,97¢
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15. Management Agreement and Related Party Transtons

Because of the Restatement Filing (as defined BaloevCompany entered into a management agreeninElAC, which provided for an
initial term through December 31, 2010 with an andtic one-year extension option and subject taoetermination rights. In 2011 and
through November 28, 2012, the Company paid FIDADaterly management fee equal to 1.50% per arofuhe gross Stockholders’ Equity
(as defined in the management agreement) of thep@oyn Effective November 28, 2012, the manageifeenivas reduced to 0.75% per annum
of gross Stockholders’ Equity, which reduction wi#main in effect until the Company is current dirofits filings required under applicable
securities laws.

Management fees accrued and paid to FIDAC for #agsyended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 wére $@lion, $49.5 million and $52
million, respectively.

Under the management agreement, the Company gaddi to reimburse FIDAC for its costs incurredemitie management agreement. In
addition, the management agreement permits FIDA@daire the Company to pay for its pro rata portdrent, telephone, utilities, office
furniture, equipment, machinery and other officgéeinal and overhead expenses that FIDAC incurredmnection with the Company’s
operations. These expenses are allocated betwb&CFand the Company based on the ratio of the Gomis proportion of gross assets
compared to the gross assets managed by FIDAQasatad at each quarter end. FIDAC and the Compalh modify this allocation
methodology, subject to the approval of the Comjzabgard of directors if the allocation becomegjimeable (i.e., if the Company becomes
very highly leveraged compared to FIDAGSther funds and accounts). During the year ebdsmgmber 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, the Com
reimbursed FIDAC approximately $493 thousand, $#risand and $625 thousand for such expensesctieghe

The Company and FIDAC amended the management agnéem March 8, 2013. In the amendment, the rémuat the management fee was
memorialized. In addition, FIDAC agreed to pdypaist and future expenses that the Company attd#okudit Committee of the Company
incur to: (1) evaluate the Company’s accountingcyaielated to the application of GAAP to its Nomgéncy RMBS portfolio (the “Evaluatioit”
(2) restate the Company’s financial statementshfeperiod covering 2008 through 2011 as a re$tlteoEvaluation (the “Restatement Filing”);
and (3) investigate and evaluate any shareholderati#e demands arising from the Evaluation antiierRestatement Filing (the
“Investigation”); provided, however, that FIDAC'bligation to pay expenses applies only to expensepaid by the Company’s insurers under
its insurance policies. Expenses shall includéhauit limitation, fees and costs incurred with exgtpto auditors, outside counsel, and consul
engaged by the Company and/or the Audit CommitteeeoCompany for the Evaluation, Restatement §iéind the Investigation. The amount
paid by FIDAC related to these expenses for thesyeaded December 31, 2013 and 2012 is $6.8 mdiimh$4.7 million, respectively, and is
presented in the Consolidated Statements of Opasatéind Comprehensive Income (Loss) as Expenseerges from Manager.

The amended management agreement is automatieayved for a one-year term on each anniversary a#teugh two-thirds of the
independent directors or the holders of a majaftthe outstanding shares of common stock (other those held by Annaly or its affiliates)
may elect to terminate the management agreement2(pdays notice at any time in their sole disoretwithout the payment of a termination
fee. The amendment also provides that the Compeayyterminate the management agreement effectineediately if (i) FIDAC engages in
any act of fraud, misappropriation of funds, or ealement against the Company, (ii) there is amtesleany gross negligence on the part of
FIDAC in the performance of its duties under thenagement agreement, (iii) there is a commencenfemtyoproceeding relating to FIDAC's
bankruptcy or insolvency, (iv) there is a dissantof FIDAC, or (v) FIDAC is convicted of (includina plea of nolo contendere) a felony.

On March 1, 2011, the Company entered into an adtrative services agreement with RCap Securities [“RCap”). RCap is a SEC-
registered broker-dealer and a wholly-owned subsjdif Annaly that clears the Company’s securitiedes in return for normal and customary
fees that RCap charges for such services. RCamfsayrovide brokerage services to the Company fime to time. During the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, fees paid to R@&PE $145 thousand, $137 thousand and $162 thdusspectively.

During the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2@12000 shares and 172,000 shares of restrictek istued by the Company to FIDAC's
employees vested, respectively.
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16. Commitments and Contingencies

From time to time, the Company may become involmedhrious claims and legal actions arising indhdinary course of business. In
connection with certain re-securitization transawiengaged in by the Company, the Company hasbtigation under certain circumstances to
repurchase assets from the VIE upon breach oficggpresentations and warranties. Managemerttiaware of any contingencies that req
accrual or disclosure as of December 31, 2013 aag.2

17. Subsequent Events

The Board of Directors declared and paid a comnbackscash dividend of $0.09 per common share feffitlst quarter of 2014. The Board of
Directors has also determined that there will loarterly dividend of $0.09 per share for the sdctinrd and fourth quarters of 2014. As of
March 31, 2014, the Company has sold all of itsrgsts in CSMC 2010-12R for approximately $580iamill A portion of the proceeds of this
sale were invested in other Non-Agency RMBS sdegriind the remainder was invested in Agency RM&S8rities. Also, subsequent to
March 31, 2014, the Company increased its Agenciigio by approximately $4 billion, financed primilg by repurchase agreements. From
time to time, the Company may add to its Agency ldod-Agency portfolio and may increase leveragmdoease net interest income.

18. Summarized Quarterly Results (Unaudited) andrhmaterial Restatements

In the 2012 Form 10-K as filed, the Company cosd@mounts previously reported in Total other-tteanporary impairments (“OTTI") losses
and the Portion of loss recognized in other comgmslve income (loss) in the Consolidated StatenwrBperations and Comprehensive
Income (Loss) as the previous presentation wagteghbon a cumulative basis. The current presemtaéifiects only that portion of Total other-
than-temporary impairments loss and the Portidos¥ recognized in other comprehensive income)(tbss is incremental for the reporting
period by giving consideration to both the creditl portions of OTTI reported in Other comprehengiv®me (loss) and recognized in prior
periods. For the years ended December 31, 201 préviously reported Total other-than-temporary ammpents losses of $418.1 million was
reduced by $176.2 million. This change was fuffget by an adjustment to the previously reportediBn of loss recognized in other
comprehensive income (loss) of $61.0 million. Therections had no impact on any previously repbiet other-than-temporary credit
impairment losses, Net income (loss), Other comgmeive income (loss), Net income (loss) per sheaéable to common shareholders or
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

In the Company’s 2012 Form 10-Q, for the periodiegdlarch 31, 2012, the Company did not preseial T TI correctly when total
cumulative credit losses are greater than total IO The Consolidated Statements of Operations@omiprehensive Income (Loss). Total OTTI
losses should be reported net of unrealized gairsssecurity when they occur in the same perica @edit loss. The previously reported total
OTTI and portion of loss recognized in OCI for #araonth period ending March 31, 2012 of $57.0 omlland $8.6 million, respectively, were
reduced by $24.9 million. Additionally, the Compamoted an error in the presentation of reclas#ifit items within Comprehensive income
(loss) in the Consolidated Statements of OperamasComprehensive Income (Loss) for the quartde@march 31, 2012. This error would
result in a reduction of $47.1 million between Ualized gains (losses) on available-for-sale sdesyinet, an increase in Reclassification
adjustment for net losses included in net incorass]l for other-than-temporary credit impairmenséssof $62.6 million and a reduction in
Reclassification adjustment for net realized loggais) included in net income (loss) of $15.5ioml. These adjustments are solely between
the components of Accumulated other comprehensn@me (loss) and have no impact on Total stockingléguity. The errors noted relatec
the financial statements for the period ended M&d;H012 will be corrected in the Companifuture filings that presents such informatione’
fiscal year ended December 31, 2012 reflects thecition of the March 31, 2012 errors. The cofogchad no impact on any previously
reported Net other-than-temporary credit impairniesses, Net income (loss), Other comprehensivanic(loss), Net income (loss) per share
available to common shareholders or ConsolidatateBtents of Cash Flows.

The following is a presentation of the results pé@tions for the quarters ended December 31, ZE@ember 30, 2013, June 30, 2013 and
March 31, 2013.

For the Quarter Ende
December 31  September 3(
2013 2013 June 30, 201 March 31, 201:
(dollars in thousands, except per share ¢

Net Interest Income:

Interest income $ 128,06: $ 130,36: $ 127,56 $ 125,79!
Less interest expen: (21,485 (25,079 (26,617 (28,829
Net interest income (expens 106,57 105,28 100,95 96,96¢
Other-than-temporary impairments:

Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss (2,147 (2,209 - -
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehen

income (loss (20,40:) (14,246 - (6,163
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss (22,549 (16,455 - (6,167)
Net gains (losses) on derivativ 22,36 (3,369 7,78 (12¢)
Net unrealized gains (losses) on inte-only RMBS (2,416 (27,879 (12,974 (1,019
Net realized gains (losses) on sales of investn (4,832 18,81¢ 54,115 6
Total other expense 8,51¢ 9,04: 6,67 9,86t
Net income (loss $ 72,31, $ 67,367 $ 143,200 $ 79,80:
Net income (loss) per sharbasic and diluted $ 0.06 $ 0.07 $ 014 $ 0.0¢







The following is a presentation of the results pé@tions for the quarters ended December 31, ZH@ember 30, 2012, June 30, 2012 and
March 31, 2012. The amounts below reflect the ichp&the immaterial restatement as described above

For the Quarter Ende
December 31  September 3(
2012 2012 June 30,201 March 31, 201.
(dollars in thousands, except per share ¢

Net Interest Income:

Interest income $ 133,55: $ 144,69¢ $ 161,52 $ 149,66¢

Less interest expen: (33,879 (34,356 (21,959 (36,379
Net interest income (expens 99,67¢ 110,34( 139,57: 113,29:

Other-than-temporary impairments:

Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss (36¢) (2,719 (12,474 (32,077
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehen

income (loss (7,817 (7,307 (53,219 (16,287
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss (8,185 (10,019 (65,687 (48,364)
Net gains (losses) on derivativ (199 (9,725 (16,18¢) (3,586
Net unrealized gains (losses) on inte-only RMBS 811 (15,399 (2,539 17,947

Net gains (losses) on embedded derivatives inds-

only RMBS - - - -

Net realized gains (losses) on sales of investn 1 69,15t - 16,01(

Total other expense 13,42: 16,29t 14,38t 15,06t

Net income (loss $ 78,68: $ 128,06 $ 40,78: $ 80,23

Net income (loss) per sharbasic and diluted $ 0.0¢ $ 0.1z $ 0.04 $ 0.0¢

The following is a presentation of the results pé@tions for the quarters ended December 31, Zddtember 30, 2011, June 30, 2011 and
March 31, 2011. The amounts below reflect the ichp&the immaterial restatement as described above

For the Quarter Ende
December 31  September 3(
2011 2011 June 30, 201 March 31, 201:
(dollars in thousands, except per share ¢

Net Interest Income:

Interest income $ 167,54: $ 185,58: $ 179,85¢ $ 172,04:
Less interest expen: (30,696 (32,797 (35,799 (35,57)
Net interest income (expens 136,84! 152,78 144,06¢ 136,46t
Other-than-temporary impairments:

Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss (80,039 (78,950 (57,926 (25,049
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehen

income (loss (31,159 (71,610 (4,244 (8,135
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss (111,19) (150,56() (62,170 (33,189
Net gains (losses) on derivativ (3,782 (29,817) (23,797 6,98¢
Net unrealized gains (losses) on inte-only RMBS (12,939 (17,600 11,88: 4,10¢
Net realized gains (losses) on sales of investn 52,56¢ 58 (919) 2,64:
Total other expense 18,79 15,08: 14,97: 15,67¢
Net income (loss $ 42,746 $ (60,036 $ 53,97¢ $ 100,63t
Net income (loss) per sharbasic and diluted $ 0.0 $ (0.06 $ 0.0t $ 0.1C
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(tH)e Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be signed
on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto dutii@nized, in the city of New York, State of New ¥or

CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION

By: /s/Matthew Lambias
Matthew Lambias:
Chief Executive Officer and Preside
June 4, 201.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bblpthe following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities@mthe date indicated.

Signature: Title Date
Chief Executive Officer, President, a

/s/ Matthew Lambias Director (Principal Executive Office June 4, 201
Matthew Lambiasi

) Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financi
/sl Robert Colligar and Accounting Officer June 4, 201.
Robert Colligar

/sl Mark Abrams Director June 4, 201
Mark Abrams

/s/ Paul A. Keena Director June 4, 201
Paul A. Keenal

/s/ Paul Donlir Director June 4, 201.
Paul Donlin

/sl Gerard Creag Director June 4, 201.

Gerard Creag

/s/ Dennis Mahone Director June 4, 201
Dennis Mahone!

/s/ John P. Reill Director June 4, 201.
John P. Reilly

S-1



Ratio of Income (Loss) To Combined Fixed Charged Rreferred Stock Divident

Exhibit 12.1

The following table sets forth the calculation of @atio of earnings to combined fixed charges prsderred stocl
dividends for the periods show

December 31

For the Year Ende

December 31

December 31

December 31 December 31

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
(dollars in thousand:
Net income (loss) before tax $ 362,68t $ 327,76t $ 137,93 $ 249,16: $ 230,69
Add: fixed charges (interest expense) 123,85t 146,78: 150,78’ 152,23¢ 35,08:
preferred stock dividen
Income (loss) as adjust $ 486,54: $ 47454¢ $ 288,72: $ 401,39° $ 265,78(
Fixed charges (interest expense) + preferred ¢
dividend $ 123,85¢ $ 146,78. $ 150,78 $ 152,23t $ 35,08:
Ratio of income (losses) to combined fixed chaayet
preferred stock dividenc 3.9% 3.2% 1.91x 2.64x 7.58
Deficiency $ - 8 - 8 - $ - $ -

(1) Includes effect of realized losses on interata swaps



Exhibit 21.1
Subsidiaries of Registrant

Chimera Securities Holdings LLC, Delaware limitébllity company.

Chimera Asset Holding LLC, Delaware limited liabilicompany.

Chimera Holding, LLC, Delaware limited liability ogpany.

Chimera Special Holdings LLC, Delaware limited lla company (a wholly owned subsidiary of Chimeéaset Holding LLC)
CIM Trading Company LLC, Delaware limited liabiligopmpany

CIM Holding 2 LLC, Delaware limited liability compgy

Chimera Funding TRS LLC, Delaware limited liabiltpmpany



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS

[, Matthew Lambiase, certify that:

1.

2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Chimera Investment Corporatic

Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or ométéde a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts under which such statements were made, nigiaglisg with respect to the
period covered by this repo

Based on my knowledge, the consolidated finant@#éments, and other financial information includethis report, fairly present |
all material respects the financial condition, tessaf operations and cash flows of the registesnof, and for, the periods presented in
this report;

The registrar's other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contaoid procedures (i
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))3nd internal control over financial reportirg defined in Exchange Act Rules
13e&15(f) and 15-15(f) for the registrant and hav

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedureaused such disclosure controls and procedutas designed under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingmared

b. Designed such internal control over financial réipg; or caused such internal control over finaheagorting to be designe
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atace with generally accepted accounting princij

C. Evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and pres@mtbis report our conclusior
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period covmréklis report based on
such evaluation; ar

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the regi’s internal control over financial reporting thatoaed during the
registrant’'s most recent fiscal quarter (the regrgts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimeport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

The registrar's other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdzhon our most recent evaluation of internal @btver financia
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of directfws persons performing the equivalent
functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contralsrdinancial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrgistrant’s ability to record, process, summaaad report financial
information; anc

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveammagement or other employees who have a significéain the registra’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: June 4, 2014

/sl Matthew Lambiase
Matthew Lambias:
Chief Executive Officer and President (PrincipakEuxtive Officer)




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS

[, Robert Colligan, certify that:

1.

2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Chimera Investment Corporatic

Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or ométéde a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts under which such statements were made, nigiaglisg with respect to the
period covered by this repo

Based on my knowledge, the consolidated finant@#éments, and other financial information includethis report, fairly present |
all material respects the financial condition, tessaf operations and cash flows of the registesnof, and for, the periods presented in
this report;

The registrar's other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contaoid procedures (i
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))3nd internal control over financial reportirg defined in Exchange Act Rules
13e&15(f) and 15-15(f) for the registrant and hav

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedureaused such disclosure controls and procedutas designed under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingmared

b. Designed such internal control over financial réipg; or caused such internal control over finaheagorting to be designe
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atace with generally accepted accounting princij

C. Evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and pres@mtbis report our conclusior
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period covmréklis report based on
such evaluation; ar

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the regi’s internal control over financial reporting thatoaed during the
registrant’'s most recent fiscal quarter (the regrgts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimeport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

The registrar's other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdzhon our most recent evaluation of internal @btver financia
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of directfws persons performing the equivalent
functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contralsrdinancial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrgistrant’s ability to record, process, summaaad report financial
information; anc

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveammagement or other employees who have a significéain the registra’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: June 4, 2014

/sl _Robert Colligan
Robert Colligar
Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Offie




Exhibit 32.1
CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
1211 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS
SUITE 2902
NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10036
CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002, 10 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with the annual report on Form 10fkChimera Investment Corporation (the “Company™) thee year ended December
31, 2013 to be filed with Securities and Exchangen@ission on or about the date hereof (the “RepdrtMatthew Lambiase, President, and

Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certifyrpuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley ARDOR, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSeftction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

2. The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial cbadiand results of operations of 1
Company at the dates of, and for the periods coMeyethe Repor

It is not intended that this statement be deeméx tiled for purposes of the Securities Exchangeof 1934.

/sl Matthew Lambias

Matthew Lambiase

Chief Executive Officer and President
June 4, 201.




Exhibit 32.2
CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
1211 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS
SUITE 2902
NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10036
CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002, 10 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with the annual report on Form 10fkChimera Investment Corporation (the “Company™) thee year ended December
31, 2013 to be filed, I, Robert Colligan, Chief &ial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuanBtction 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of

2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSeftction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

2. The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all materierespects, the financial condition and results @rafions of the
Company at the dates of, and for the periods coMeyethe Repor

It is not intended that this statement be deeméx tiled for purposes of the Securities Exchangeof 1934.

/s/ Robert Colligal
Robert Colligan

Chief Financial Officer
June 4, 201.




